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@) China Resources Power Holdings

@K Company Limited (the “Company” or “CR Power") is
a fastgrowing energy company which invests, develops, operates
@) and manages coal-fired power plants, wind farms, photovoltaic power
Q projects, hydro-electric projects and other clean and renewable energy projects
& in the more affluent regions or regions with abundant coal resources in China.
*
S

As at 31 December 2017, CR Power had 38 coal-fired power plants, 76 wind farms,

14 photovoltaic power plants, 2 hydroelectric plants and 2 gas-fired plant in commercial
operation. The total attributable operational generation capacity of the Company was
36,077MW, with 34.3% of our capacity located in Eastern China, 27.3% located in Central China,
18.2% located in Southern China, 10.3% located in Northern China, 4.9% located in Northeastern
China, 3.2% located in Southwestern China and 1.9% located in Northwestern China. Attributable
operational generation capacity in wind, gas-fired, hydro-electric and photovoltaic power totalled
6,263MW, accounting for approximately 17.4% of attributable operational generation capacity.
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5 - YEAR SUMMARY

LFRE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Earnings per share ERRAEEAZ

attributable to owners EREF(ET)

of the Company (HKS$)
Basic K 0.97 1.62 2.10 1.94 2.32
Diluted i 0.97 1.61 2.10 1.93 2.31
Turnover (HK$'000) EEH(TET) 73,311,677 66,212,590 71,435,875 70,680,628 69,581,526
Profit attributable to owners ZATREE A 4,623,323 7,708,373 10,025,241 9,214,858 11,015,526

of the Company (HK$'000) EERBE(TFET)
Dividend per share (HK$) SREE(ERT) 0.875 0.875 0.85 0.78 0.75
Consolidated statement B EMRRE

of financial position (F#Ex)

(HK$'000)
Non-current assets FERBEE 193,276,019 176,225,781 182,252,640 192,813,529 182,830,396
Current assets MEEE 27,696,451 23,885,688 25,833,239 32,834,552 31,034,507
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 72,623,180 73,885,120 64,681,383 83,799,696 77,175,881
Current liabilities mEasE 67,607,410 51,661,486 59,665,153 56,056,017 51,956,141
Equity attributable to owners A EEH A 75,213,819 69,020,906 70,917,575 70,794,403 64,985,061

of the Company JEfE
Total assets BEE 220,972,470 200,111,469 208,085,879 225,648,081 213,864,903
Cash and cash equivalents BehBReEEY 5,381,686 4,347,022 7,273,945 8,285,135 6,035,046
Bank and other borrowings BITREMER 100,922,869 91,463,402 88,517,336 100,432,860 92,569,457
Attributable operational BERESERRE

generation capacity (MW) (kR)
Eastern China EH 12,358 12,565 12,421 12,383 11,003
Central China HEh 9,838 9,554 9,373 8,902 7,282
Southern China ER 6,583 6,674 7,037 4,945 4,790
Northern China i 3,706 3,706 3,706 3,166 2,640
Northeastern China ®it 1,751 1,722 1,622 1,453 725
Southwestern China i) 1,171 1,702 368 280 280
Northwestern China [iipl 671 261 205 201 201
Total et 36,077 36,184 34,731 31,331 26,921
Clean and renewable energy BRI BARER 6,263 5,119 4,611 3,910 3,229
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Profit attributable to owners
of the Company
AATEE AEMLTE

EATREEAZERERER (HK$million B&ET)
(HK$ &)
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Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
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Net generation volume of Attributable operational
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operating power plants
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As at 31 December 2017, total attributable
operational generation capacity of the Company is

ﬁzgtﬁ;,iaﬁiiu 3 6 0 7 7

{ MW kR
= %
clean and
renewable energy MW kR
e
¢

power plants
in commercial operation
E ERERRAGRER

SERVICE AREAS BRF5E

.

@ Coal-fired ﬁ& Wind power,hydropower, photovoltaic

Power power, gas-fired power
KT N mm ke

ik - BB




COAL-FIRED 1,000MW

1,000 JK ELR A IE 32 B RK
o TONGSHAN o HUBEI (PHASE 1I) e HEZHOU o HAIFENG o CANGNAN
L it — B B it p-i=]
COAL-FIRED 600MW
600 JKELHR MR IE B2 B RK
o CHANGSHU o SHOUYANGSHAN e YANGZHOU NO.2
B LT BME=
e FUYANG o CHANGZHOU o NANJING THERMAL
Ef5 M A&
« LIYUJIANG B o ZHENJIANG 630 o HEZE
fRFITB $B5T630 R
COAL-FIRED 300MW
300 JKFLAR MR IE 38 B RR
o HUAXIN o HUBEI e GUANGZHOU THERMAL
%%MMA iplA BEMNAE
B TA . IJ.}I;};YUAN . %AE%N; BANQIAO
* CANGZHOU Gl T
BN * CAOFEIDIAN * XUZHOU
* GUCHENG Biem M
EL o DENGKOU o WENZHOU TELLURIDE
e DENGFENG "o BN
YYiT
COAL-FIRED 200MW AND BELOW
200 KRR R A TR IE 32 BRR
¢ YIXING ¢ LUOYANG e NANJING CHEMICAL
" &P INDUSTRIAL PARK
o SHENHAI THERMAL ARt TE
LERE

CLEAN AND RENEWABLE ENERGY

BERROBERR

e SHANTOU WIND
SEREE

o CHAONAN WIND

HRAE

SHANTOU HAOJIANG WIND

MEER IR E

HUILAI ZHOUTIAN WIND

BREAHRE

HUILAI WIND

BREE

YANGJIANG WIND

ZIRE

YANGJIANG WIND PHASE Il

f5 T J= 8 — HA

« YANTAI

HERE

YANTAI PENGLAI WIND
BEXKAE

DALIUHANG WIND

AMITRE

DAXINDIAN WIND

AFEERE

WEIHAI WIND

EVERE

WEIHAI HUANCUI WIND

BSREREE

QINGDAO WIND PHASE |

SERE—H

o FUXIN WIND
BEHRE

o FUXIN WIND PHASE [
BIEE—

¢ JJANPING WIND
BEYRE

 BAYINXILE WIND
EEHHRAE

e CHENGDE WIND
HERE

e CHENGDE WEICHANG WIND
HARESEE

e CHENGDE YUDAOKOU WIND
ACEESEE O AT

e JJAMUSI WIND
£ 2%

. WULIAN WIND PHASE |
hERE

o JUXIAN WIND PHASE |
EHREE—H

e MANZHOULI WIND
mMNERE

e SUIZHOU WIND
BEMNEE

e DATONG WIND
NGIEES

¢ LIANZHOU WIND
ENEE

¢ LIANZHOU QUANSHUI WIND
EN R EE

o QINGDAO WIND PHASE Il
SERAE=

e DATONG GUANGLING WIND
ANEEEEE

¢ DATONG SHENGQUAN WIND
ARER@EE

* BIYANG WIND
WS EE

* BEIPIAO WIND
EERE

e LINWU WIND
R EE

e SUIZHOU FENGMING WIND
BE MBS E B

e DATONG YANGGAO WIND
KA =@ E

* DATONG CHANGCHENG WIND
ANERHEE

o BIYANG PANGU WIND
WSS S RE

o BIYANG ZHONGXIANG WIND
ARG RS

o WULIAN WIND PHASE II
FERE

o JUXIAN WIND PHASE Il
EEEE !

« JINZHOU WIND
HBNEE
o JINING WIND
BERSE

* LINGHAI WIND
/Rl EI,EE

o LUFENG WIND
L EE

o XINYI WIND
FERE

e RIZHAO WIND
HRREE

¢ NANTONG WIND
FREE

o ZOUCHENG WIND
BHEE

o LINYI WIND
B TRE

o LIPING WIND
RELEE

* JINPING WIND
BHAE

¢ SUIXIAN TIANHEKOU WIND
g SN O [R E

¢ RONGXIAN WIND
AGEE

o WULANCHABU WIND
SHERMAEE

* WULANCHABU BAYIN WIND
SHRAEERE

5
?
[
&
[e)
<
3

\‘)

é@?
o

-
LL@»& 4,”7 5 b‘
0/%7 Yal Report 2017 =
g, i
'hpany Limited %=H
 DENGFENG (PHASE Il)
B8
« JJIAOZUO LONGYUAN
EIEEIR
e GUIZHOU LIUZHI
B
« HENGFENG « YICHANG
e =N
 HENGXING o PANJIN
18 5 #15
 NANJING CHEMICAL o TANGSHAN FENGRUN
INDUSTRY PARK (PHASE Il)  F= 111425
Bt TE =5 * BOHAI XINQU
HTHE
o ZHENJIANG 140
$E3T 140
 WULANCHABU HONGMU o HONGHE HYDRO
WIND 4D KE
EEERANES o YAZUIHE HYDRO
* GUANGSHUI WIND fErE A KE
BEKERE . EtEun\ig THERMAL
YICHENG WIND A
S « SHANGHAI GAS
o DE'AN WIND LB
FErEE o SHANXI TIANZHEN
o XINZHOU WIND T%%éoﬁgj’é'c
T EE « HEILONGJIANG TAILAI
* HUANXIAN WIND PHOTOVOLTAIC
@ g =
BHEE 2 BT RAL (R
* LINFEN WIND o SHANXI XINRONG
1NN W
A RE PHOTOVOLTAIC
¢ FUJIN WIND INEEEEDIAVN
EREE « YUNNAN ZHAOTONG
* DONGYING WIND PHOTOVOLTAIC
REEE ZEEE LR
« HAIYANG WIND « QINGHAI DELINGHA
G5 R E PHOTOVOLTAIC
o MANZHOULI WIND PHASE Il A/B RS IE IR
SRR E = A  HAIFENG PHOTOVOLTAIC
o XUNWEN WIND ek
RREE . HE)Z‘I‘-Ij(Q& PHOTOVOLTAIC
. %OYEAQG WIND . %umsa POTOVOLTAIC

ZAOYANG BAILU WIND
EBHEERE

GUAZHOU WIND

TUNEE

HAIYUAN WIND

AIREE

BAOJI WIND
BEHEE

JANHE WIND

R =2

* GUXIAN WIND

HHERE

As at 31 December 2017

U
* CANGNAN PHOTOVOLTAIC
AR
. JIANGZI PHOTOVOLTAIC

HAIR

o MIDU PHOTOVOLTAIC
ECVED AN

 ANDA PHOTOVOLTAIC
ZIESH AR

e YINGDE PHOTOVOLTAIC
TSR

* SUQIAN PHOTOVOLTAIC
BENIR

(

BE-_Z—+tF+-A=1+—8H



SERVICES AREAS
AR 55 (B8 134

PROVINCE/CITY/ EFFECTIVE ATTRIBUTABLE
AUTONOMOUS INSTALLED EQUITY INSTALLED
REGION CAPACITY (MW) INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
&/ BRE POWER PLANTS B EHAREBOER) s REERRIBECER)
Jiangsu Changshu i 1,950.0 100.0% 1,950.0
Nanjing Thermal A 1,200.0 100.0% 1,200.0
IEE Tongshan Fpfi] 2,000.0 59.9% 1,197.2
Zhenjiang ST 1,540.0 42.5% 654.5
Yangzhou No. 2 HINE = 1,260.0 45.0% 567.0
Xuzhou Al 1,280.0 42.7% 545.9
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Phase Il R TE = 600.0 90.0% 540.0
Huaxin E#E 660.0 72.0% 475.2
Nanjing Bangiao BRI 660.0 79.0% 521.4
Changzhou EM 1,260.0 25.0% 315.0
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park mRtIE 110.0 90.0% 99.0
Yixing HE 120.0 55.0% 66.0
Nantong Wind miBEE 65.5 100.0% 65.5
Sugian Photovoltaic BERRK 20.5 100.0% 20.5
Liyujiang B 1,300.0 100.0% 1,300.0
Gual:\gdong Guangzhou Thermal 600.0 100.0% 600.0
BRE Liyujiang A 600.0 60.0% 360.0
Haifeng 2,000.0 100.0% 2,000.0
Chaonan Wind 155.9 100.0% 155.9
Yangjiang Wind 89.8 100.0% 89.8
Huilai Zhoutian Wind 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Huilai Wind 73.5 100.0% 73.5
Shantou Wind 29.3 100.0% 29.3
Shantou Haojiang Wind i 18.0 100.0% 18.0
Lianzhou Wind M EE 140.0 100.0% 140.0
Lianzhou Quanshui Wind BN RKEE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Yangjiang Wind Phase Il [Zpan:: s 45.5 100.0% 45.5
Xinyi Wind EERE 39.0 100.0% 39.0
Lufeng Wind ELRE 66.0 100.0% 66.0
Xuwen Wind RERE 72.0 100.0% 72.0
Haifeng Photovoltaic s BIAVN 4.2 100.0% 4.2
Yingde Photovoltaic ESERAN 30.0 100.0% 30.0
Henan Shouyangshan EGI 1,200.0 85.0% 1,020.0
Gucheng B 600.0 100.0% 600.0
AEE Dengfeng 23 1,840.0 75.0% 1,380.0
Luoyang & 100.0 51.0% 51.0
Jiaozuo Longyuan EERER 1,320.0 100.0% 1,320.0
Biyang Wind WS EE 65.0 100.0% 65.0
Biyang Zhongxiang Wind WP EE 53.0 100.0% 53.0
Biyang Pangu Wind WS HHEE 49.0 100.0% 49.0
Hebei Cangzhou AN 660.0 95.0% 627.0
Caofeidian Wit 600.0 90.0% 540.0
adbE Hengfeng e 600.0 25.0% 150.0
Hengxing 5 8 600.0 25.0% 150.0
Tangshan Fengrun EILgE 700.0 60.0% 420.0
Bohai Xinqu BEHE 700.0 100.0% 700.0
Chengde Wind AERE 48.0 100.0% 48.0
Chengde Weichang Wind AEESAE 46.5 100.0% 46.5
Chengde Yudaokou Wind FEHEORE 151.5 100.0% 151.5
Liaoning Shenhai Thermal 600.0 54.1% 324.7
e e Panjin 700.0 100.0% 700.0
R E T Fuxin Wind 99.0 100.0% 99.0
Jianping Wind 99.0 100.0% 99.0
Beipiao Wind 198.1 100.0% 198.1
Fuxin Wind Phase Il 49.5 100.0% 49.5
Linghai Wind 90.0 100.0% 90.0
Jinzhou Wind 48.0 100.0% 48.0
Heze 1,200.0 90.0% 1,080.0
Shandong Weihai Wind 49.8 100.0% 49.8
IERE Weihai Huancui Wind 49.8 100.0% 49.8
Daliuhang Wind 49.8 100.0% 49.8
Daxindian Wind 49.8 100.0% 49.8
Yantai Wind 48.0 95.0% 45.6
Yantai Penglai Wind 46.6 95.0% 44.3
Qingdao Wind Phase | 49.8 100.0% 49.8
Qingdao Wind Phase Il 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Jining Wind | 49.5 100.0% 49.5
Juxian Wind Phase | 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Juxian Wind Phase Il 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Wulian Wind Phase | 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Wulian Wind Phase Il 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Rizhao Wind 48.6 100.0% 48.6
Zoucheng Wind 44.0 100.0% 44.0
Linyi Wind 78.0 100.0% 78.0
Dongying Wind 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Haiyang Wind 90.0 100.0% 90.0
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PROVINCE/CITY/ EFFECTIVE ATTRIBUTABLE
AUTONOMOUS INSTALLED EQUITY INSTALLED
REGION CAPACITY (MW) INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
&/ BRE POWER PLANTS BE HHAE(KR) AR REEEHAIBOER)
Inner Mongolia Dengkou ®mO 600.0 75.0% 450.0
Autonomous Bayinxile Wind EEHYRSE 99.0 100.0% 99.0
Region Manzhouli Wind WNERE 49.5 100.0% 49.5
el TS Wulanchabu Wind 49.5 100.0% 49.5
RELZBERE Wulanchabu Bayin Wind 49.5 100.0% 49.5
Waulanchabu Hongmu Wind 49.5 100.0% 49.5
Manzhouli Wind Phase Il 49.5 100.0% 49.5
Hubei Hubei 600.0 100.0% 600.0
s 2 Hubei Phase I 2,000.0 100.0% 2,000.0
il Yichang 700.0 100.0% 700.0
Suizhou Wind 76.8 100.0% 76.8
Suizhou Fengming Wind 49.5 100.0% 49.5
Suixian Tianhekou Wind 220.5 100.0% 220.5
Zaoyang Wind 99.5 100.0% 99.5
Guangshui Wind 110.0 100.0% 110.0
Yicheng Wind 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Zaoyang Bailu Wind EHHERE 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Guangxi Autonomous Region Hezhou =M 2,000.0 66.0% 1,320.0
E= LTE Rongxian Wind BERE 86.0 100.0% 86.0
REHAE Hezhou Photovoltaic BN AR 6.0 100.0% 6.0
Anhui Fuyang 25 1,280.0 55.0% 704.0
ZEE Huaibei Photovoltaic LSRR 5.9 100.0% 5.9
Hunan Lianyuan SR 600.0 100.0% 600.0
HEA Linwu Wind BREE 68.0 100.0% 68.0
Zhejiang Wenzhou Telluride PN 600.0 40.0% 240.0
ST Cangnan BB 2,000.0 55.0% 1,100.0
pAR] Cangnan Photovoltaic BRI 12.6 75.0% 9.4
Yunnan Honghe Hydro ALAKE 210.0 70.0% 147.0
=wY Zhaotong Photovoltaic BB IR 20.0 100.0% 20.0
=M7 Midu Photovoltaic BRI 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Sichuan _ -
mllE Yazuihe Hydro MuE A K E 260.0 51.0% 132.6
Gansu Guazhou Wind TN E 201.0 100.0% 201.0
HES Huanxian Wind BHERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Beijing Cit .
j_l_’,_‘l'_‘g y Beijing Thermal JERBE 150.0 51.0% 76.5
A
Heilongjiang Jiamusi Wind EAREEE 43.5 100.0% 435
massT Fujin Wind EREE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
~peiLE Tailai Photovoltaic e SN 20.0 100.0% 200
Anda Photovoltaic TENK 29.0 100.0% 29.0
Shanxi Datong Guangling Wind 50.0 100.0% 50.0
PN Datong Yanggao Wind E 49.5 100.0% 49.5
Tih Datong Shengquan Wind AR RRE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Datong Changcheng Wind KERHEE 49.5 100.0% 495
Datong Wind AERE 198.0 100.0% 198.0
Linfen Wind BN EE 99.0 100.0% 99.0
Xinzhou Wind 120.0 100.0% 120.0
Guxian Wind 19.5 100.0% 19.5
Tianzhen Photovoltaic 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Xinrong Photovoltaic 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Guizhou Guizhou Liuzhi FINR 1,320.0 49.0% 646.8
EME Liping Wind BEEE 112.0 100.0% 112.0
= Jinping Wind fi)3 32.0 100.0% 32.0
Jianhe Wind B EE 40.5 100.0% 40.5
Ningxia Autonomous Region .., wing HRmE 300.0 100.0% 300.0
EFRARE
{laﬁnQX| De'an Wind ERmE 48.0 100.0% 48.0
IAEE
Tibet Autonomous Region
< N Jiangzi Photovoltaic AR EAN 20.0 100.0% 20.0
ARBRE ¢ ’ °
g'%géla' Delingha Photovoltaic momiiR 20.0 100.0% 20.0
B/
haanxi
%E%a’é‘ Baoji Wind EREE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Shanghai City 2.4 100.0% 2.4

= Shanghai Gas
Lt8H 9




2017 was an extremely challenging year for the Chinese power
industry. CR Power actively responded to the difficult external
environment, accelerated the development of renewable
energy and focused on promoting business innovation and
transformation. The theme of green development and innovative
transformation was implemented in our businesses throughout
the year. During the year, the generation capacity of newly
commissioned wind and photovoltaic power projects reached
1,010MW and 145MW respectively (1,700MW and 200MW
respectively in terms of actual grid-connections), the highest
growth in the Chinese power industry in terms of newly added
generation capacity of renewable energy, and a new historic
record for CR Power.
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M/ On behalf of the Board, | present the results of CR
:@/ Power for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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PERFORMANCE RESULTS

As at the end of 2017, the business operations of CR Power
covered 26 provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities
in China, with attributable operational generation capacity of
36,077MW, comprising 38 coal-fired power plants, 2 hydro-
electric plants, 2 gas-fired plants, 76 wind farms and 14
photovoltaic power plants in commercial operations.

Due to the significant increase in domestic coal prices, CR
Power's net profit attributable to shareholders was approximately
HK$4,623 million in 2017, representing a decrease of
approximately 40.0% compared to 2016; basic earnings per share
was HK$0.97, a decrease of approximately 40.1% compared to
2016. In spite of the difficult operational environment with high
coal price, the Group continued to outperform due to its efficient
operations of power plants, accelerated commissioning of
renewable energy projects, continuous increase in the proportion
of clean energy operational capacity, and the team work between
management team and employees working hand-in-hand to
overcome difficulties, the overall drop in the Group’s profitability
was far less than the average decline level within the industry.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERERSE

CR Power places a high degree of importance in shareholder
value and attending to their requests and opinions. Despite the
decline in profitability last year due to external factors, the Board
of Directors proposed to maintain a stable dividend per share.
The final dividend proposed for the year is HK$0.75 per share,
which is in line with that of 2016. Taking into account the interim
dividend of HK$0.125 per share distributed during the year,
dividend distributed and proposed in 2017 amount to HK$0.875
per share, implying a dividend payout ratio of 90.2%.

Power Generation Business

As at the end of 2017, CR Power’s attributable operational
generation capacity of coal-fired power plants amounted to
29,815MW, accounting for 82.6% of the total attributable
operational generation capacity, representing a decrease of 3.3
percentage points as compared with that as at the end of 2016.
Taking into consideration the industry development trend, the
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domestic economic environment and the overall ample supply of
power, CR Power has tightened its control over the construction
and commissioning schedule of coal-fired power plants. During
the year, the Group did not commission any new coal-fired units
and reduced its stake in Liuzhi Power and Cangnan Power Plants.
The Group also shut down its 2x135MW generation units in
Guangdong Xingning in advance at its own initiative.

The average full-load equivalent utilisation hours of CR Power’s
subsidiary coal-fired power plants which were operational for
the full year of 2017 reached 4,964 hours, up 1.4% from 4,898
hours in 2016 and exceeding the national average utilization
hours for thermal power plants by 755 hours. This was because
most of our subsidiary power plants comprise of large-scale
efficient generation units mainly located in regions with relatively
strong demand for electricity, which gives us certain competitive
advantages in the market, and also reflects our high management
efficiency.

In 2018 and 2019, the coal-fired units which are expected to
commence operations include 2x1,000MW ultra-supercritical
generation units in Caofeidian (Phase Il), Hebei, and 2x350MW
heat and power co-generation units in Yundong Cangzhou,
Hebei. The two units in Caofeidian are expected to be equipped
with the most advanced technologies and its average coal
consumption rate is expected to be among the lowest in the
world. Upon commissioning, the units will contribute to
the further optimization of our power generation asset
structure in Hebei and in Northern China, and further
lower the emission level in the region. If we are able to
secure appropriate generation volume sending electricity
generated to Jiangsu Province at an appropriate tariff, we
will finalise the commissioning schedule of the 2x660MW
units in the Waujianfang power plant in Inner Mongolia
accordingly.
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In 2017, we accelerated the investment in clean energy, and
our development of wind power generation and grid-connected
capacity hit a record high. As at the end of the year, our
attributable operational generation capacity of wind, hydro-
electric, photovoltaic and gas-fired power generation amounted
to 6,263MW, accounting for 17.4% of our total attributable
operational generation capacity, representing an increase of 3.3
percentage points as compared with the end of 2016.

CR Power’s wind farms are mainly located in the Eastern, Central
and Southern China regions with less grid curtailment. In 2017,
the average full-load equivalent utilization hours of our wind
farms reached 2,225 hours, exceeding the national average level
by 277 hours, maintaining a leading position in the industry.

In 2017, the generation capacity of newly commissioned
wind and photovoltaic power projects reached 1,010MW and
145MW respectively (1,1700MW and 200MW respectively in
terms of actual grid-connection), reaching a record high. This
was mainly attributable to the successful completion of internal
organizational restructuring of CR Power in 2016, which divided
its nationwide target markets into 10 regions. We integrated the
development, construction and operation of our power projects,
and concentrated our resources on renewable energy projects
focusing mainly on the wind power business. The effective results
are evidently seen in 2017. Going forward, we aim to commission
approximately 1,500MW of new clean energy projects annually.
By 2020, the attributable generation capacity of clean energy
projects is targeted to account for 25% of the Company's total
attributable operational capacity.

In 2017, we entered in an agreement to acquire approximately
12% of a UK offshore wind power project. This is the first time
CR Power has invested in overseas power assets. The acquisition
will be formally completed in March 2018. The accumulated
experience in the construction and operation of this offshore
wind farm will enable us to actively seek opportunities to invest
in the same sector in the domestic market.
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We actively pursue industry upgrading and technological
innovation, and set up an Innovation Committee and Science and
Technology Associations to organize our efforts in planning and
promoting technological innovation.

To further enhance our operational efficiency, in 2017, the
Group strongly promoted remote centralized monitoring of
power projects. By the end of 2017, 7 centralized monitoring
centers and 7 centralized operation and maintenance centers
have been set up. Such efforts help improve the working and
living conditions of our front-line employees. For example, wind
farms are mostly located in remote areas, the implementation
of centralized monitoring, operation and maintenance can place
employees in areas where living conditions are more favorable
and at the same time, improves labor efficiency. As at the
end of 2017, the turbine-to-employee ratio of the Group was
approximately 4.23 units per employee.

Power retail and comprehensive energy service

The power retail and comprehensive energy service business
serves as a breakthrough for CR Power in response to the reform
of the Chinese power market for innovation and transformation
development. The businesses also serve as important tools for
CR Power to further explore new sources of profit growth and
expansion.

As at the end of 2017, the Group achieved full nation-wide
coverage by setting up 24 provincial power retail companies
across China. The power retail business experienced substantial
growth during the year, with its market share in terms of sales
volume of the 6 power retail companies ranking top three in
the respective regions. The Company also took advantage of the
momentum to strengthen the construction of basic capabilities, as
well as put effort in building the cloud platform for power retail,
so as to build up the core organization capability of our power
retail business.
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CR Power took the opportunities brought by the national supply-
side reform policies, and actively explored and developed various
forms of comprehensive services of distributed energy, micro-
grid, energy complementary integration and smart energy, and
achieved breakthroughs starting from scratch in various projects.
Among them, the first gas-distributed energy project for buildings
was commissioned in Shanghai MixC Shopping Mall Complex,
and achieved co-generation of heat, cooling and electricity. The
2x1.2MW gas-fired units provide heat, cooling and electricity to
users of the MixC Shopping Mall Complex, the units are efficient,
clean, and self-sufficient. The first smart energy platform
demonstration project was implemented at the Fuqging project
under the Fuyao Group, and achieved centralized collection,
control, analysis and dispatch of integrated energy production
and consumption data, such as waste heat power generation and
distributed solar power generation which optimized the allocation
of enterprise resources, enhanced the overall energy efficiency
and reduced the energy cost of the enterprise.

Coal mine business

In 2017, the subsidiary and associate coal mines of the Company
produced a total of approximately 15.02 million tonnes of coal,
representing an increase of 2% from 2016, among which, 12.83
million and 2.19 million tonnes were produced by the subsidiary
coal mines and associate coal mines, respectively.

In 2017, based on the national policy of “Reducing Overcapacity”,
we have properly planned and successively shut down 10 coal
mines, and eliminated inefficient capacity by 4.80 million tonnes
per year. Meanwhile, the Company has put efforts in streamlining
of the organization, quality and efficiency enhancement, and has
achieved a turnaround during the year, putting an end to the
continuous loss of the coal mining business since 2013.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Energy conservation and emission reduction: We are
dedicated to resource conservation and environmental protection.
While accelerating the investment in renewable energy, we also
sped up the upgrade and retrofitting of coal-fired generation
units to expedite energy conservation and emission reduction;
we have launched innovative projects such as urban waste and
sludge combustion and biomass coupling generation, to improve
the environment, lower coal consumption, and explore further
room for development.

In 2017, the average net generation standard coal consumption
rate of CR Power’s subsidiary coal-fired power plants was
303.169/kWh, representing a decrease of 1.84g/kWh or 0.6% as
compared with that of 2016.

In 2017, we invested HK$2 billion in the technology upgrades
for ultra-low emission, safety and energy conservation, and
remodeling of heat supply facilities of our operational coal-fired
generation units. During the year, we have upgraded 8 units with
ultra-low emission facilities. The emission of sulphur dioxide,
nitrogen oxide and particulates decreased by 0.03g/kWh, 0.03g/
kWh and 0.01g/kWh, respectively as compared to last year. As at
the end of the year, the Company's subsidiary power plants of
a total operational capacity of 22,792MW completed upgrades
for ultra-low emission, accounting for approximately 91% of the
operational capacity of our subsidiary coal-fired units, significantly
higher than the industry average level.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ITRMS

Contributions to the society: Over the years, we have been
devoted to social welfare in an effort to improve the well-being
of the general public and facilitate robust regional economic
and community developments. In 2017, through engaging in
education, poverty relief, environmental protection, disaster
relief, regional infrastructure development and voluntary services
as well as CRH’'s establishment of Hope Towns (& 2/)\) in
impoverished regions in China, we contributed a total donation
of approximately RMB4.6876 million to the society. In addition,
efforts were made to offer more job positions and during the
year, we recruited 2,252 additional employees, including 297
fresh university graduates.

Open communication: We attach great importance to
communication and establishment of mutual trust with all
stakeholders. Apart from conferences, reports, websites,
WeChat official accounts, hotlines and emails, we also launched
“Enterprise Open Days” to invite all stakeholders to visit our
power plants and we welcome the scrutiny by the society in
respect of the green development and performance of social
responsibilities of CR Power in an open manner. During the year,
the Group's power plants organized around 100 open days of
various nature, and maintained adequate communication with our
stakeholders.

EHRHE  ZFKR - R EBRFERE S
MHERTEE  HEPAREENRS M7
EHERERE —T—+F BBHE
BeE K8 RE - RLE T ERRME
& EREEEE  ARSBREREELES
BHERMEERSE/NEZTIE - 2F AL
CRABYETHOARKE 468768 T ° [
B - MBS M EREL - FAFRIKHE
EAE2252 A BIEEEREEEE 297
Ac

BIRUEE - RABREZNEHE T RETE
B EYEE - BREESE  WE My
MERRS  BEREHZTAI  BEET

BRUREFRIEERFAMES - ABBIFR
MR ARt Es T EERMERELS
B BEERIHESREEHENRITRE
BE - BIIMAEETIENES - 2FET
ERMBRSEFRBURBA AR - BT TR




In June 2017, on the eve of the 20th anniversary of Hong
Kong’s handover to China’s administration, CR Power, for the
first time, became the sole sponsor of the celebration event,
and joint hands with the Hong Kong Dragon Foundation in
organizing the “Dragon 100" charity event with the theme
“Vision for a Better Future: Innovation for Sustainable Growth in
China”, which invited over 100 young representatives of Chinese
nationality from 14 countries around the world to participate in
the expedition and exchange tour to visit Hong Kong, Shenzhen
and Henan Province. This enabled Chinese young people
around the world through the exchange experience to gain an
understanding of the current Chinese economy and innovative
development, and encouraged the younger generation to take up
the responsibility to build a better future and come up with new
ideas to drive the sustainable development of the country. The
young representatives toured the Group’'s Shouyangshan Power
Plant in Henan Province, enabled the young students to learn
more about the industry of the modern-days power generation
industry in China. In September 2017, CR Power organized
the event of “Month of Exploration at Environmental Friendly
Plants”, with 32 subsidiaries organizing open days for around
1,400 participants from different bodies, including our clients,
government representatives, the media, our business partners,
members of local communities, as well as school students to
visit CR Power, providing them with close encounter with our
efforts in operation and management, technology innovations,
environmental protection, fulfillment of social responsibilities,
as well as our efforts in advancing the economic, social and
environmental conditions of the local area.
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OUTLOOK ON 2018

The Chinese power industry is still facing numerous challenges
in 2018. Coal prices are expected to remain high but on a
declining trend. Overall, we continue to face overcapacity in the
power industry, and increasing complexities in the development
of renewable energy projects. The power system reform has
brought both changes to the existing businesses as well as new
opportunities for business development.

We will continue to optimize our asset structure, further
accelerate the development of clean energy, strictly control the
pace of coal-fired power plant construction, actively reduce the
overcapacity of coal-fired power generation, and accelerate the
disposal, transfer, or elimination of inefficient assets, enhance the
overall asset quality and profitability, and continue to maintain
our superior profitability level within the industry. Our target for
the renewable energy business, which mainly focuses on wind
power generation, is to commission approximately 1,500MW.
At the same time, we will actively develop the analysis and
application of information technology and big data to further
enhance management efficiency.

We will take advantage of the market trend and closely follow
the direction of the power reform policies, and speed up the
development of our comprehensive energy service business.
Customer-orientation and market direction will be the main focus
for the power retail business, supported by our comprehensive
energy services, to achieve organic comprehensive portfolio of
our energy and service business, and continue to extend our value
chain and expand on our profitability.

We will leverage on our own advantages and market
characteristics, and continue to develop our overseas businesses,
and keep strengthening our own construction ability, adequately
consolidate our competitive advantages in resources, and enhance
the competitiveness in the international markets. We shall, at the
same time, deepen our cooperation with external parties, and
look out for any development opportunities by integrating the
advanced technology around the world and applying the latest
industry trends in the Chinese market.
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We will continue to actively perform on our social obligations by
promoting the innovation and application of energy conservation
and emission reduction technologies and further improving
energy consumption and emission indicators. In 2018, we plan
to upgrade 6 coal-fired units with an attributable generation
capacity of 1,581TMW to be equipped with ultra-low emission
facilities, which will further reduce the emission of sulphur
dioxide, nitrogen oxide and particulates. It is expected that 100%
of our subsidiary coal-fired plants will have achieved ultra-low
emission by the end of 2018.

CR Power is well equipped with the best armor and awaits the
turning of a new leaf on our journey. Founded in the era of
reformation, CR Power quickly expanded our businesses as we
underwent reform from within. We were able to keep up with
latest developments, grasp market trends, and outcompete
other market players. Every step we took on our journey of
advancement and growth was backed by the regards and support
of our shareholders and members of the society. | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude on behalf of
the Board of CR Power.

2018 is the 80th anniversary of the CR Group and the 40th
anniversary of Reform and Opening of China, as well as the 15th
anniversary of the listing of CR Power in Hong Kong. This year
is also a critical year of linkage between our past and our future
as we undergo innovation and transformation. We will continue
to work hand-in-hand with all stakeholders, and adhere to our
vision of achieving new breakthroughs in different segments with
endeavors, innovations and steady growth. No efforts will be
spared to develop CR Power into an international comprehensive
energy services provider, suppling low-carbon green energy in a
safe and efficient manner.

Li Ru Ge
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 19 March 2018
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Mr. Li Ru Ge
TUERE

Mr. Li Ru Ge, aged 54, is the Chairman of the
Board and a Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Li joined CRH in December 2017
and is the chief financial officer of the China
Resources Group. Prior to that, Mr. Li served
as the chief financial officer of the State Grid
Corporation of China from November 2007 to
December 2017. Mr. Li has rich experience in the
power industry as he served as general manager
of power plant, fuel procurement company
and held many senior management positions
in Shandong Province Power Group Company
and China Guodian Corporation. Mr. Li is also
the vice chairman of Hua Xia Bank Co., Limited.
Mr. Li is an executive director of the council of
China Association of Chief Financial Officers and
is a director of the council of The Accounting
Society of China. Mr. Li holds a Master in Business
Administration degree from Nankai University and
is a senior accountant in China.
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Mr. Ge Changxin\
ER#MTE

Mr. Ge Changxin, aged 60, is the Vice Chairman
of the Board of Directors, Executive Director,
Senior Vice President of the Company and
chairman of China Resources Coal (Group) Co.,
Ltd (“CR Coal”).

He served as the Deputy General Manager of the
coal-fired power generation division, head of the
Office of the Board and head of the Strategic
Development Department of the Company from
November 2014 to April 2016. He served as the
Deputy General Manager of the coal-fired power
generation division and General Manager of the
South China Branch in May 2012. He was the
General Manager of South China Branch in January
2011 and the General Manager of Guangzhou
China Resources Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (E/M
FEHHEHBRAT]) from December 2007, and
successively served as the Assistant General
Manager and Deputy General Manager of China
Resources Power Hubei Co., Ltd. (3B E 7L B R
7~ A]) from August 2002 to November 2007.

Prior to joining the Company, he used to work in
Huaibei Go-On Power Co., Ltd. Mr. Ge holds a Master
in Business Administration degree from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology ("HUST").
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Mr. Hu Min\
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Mr. Hu Min, aged 53, is an Executive Director and President of the Company. From February 2014 to
April 2016, he served as a deputy director of Strategy and Management Department in CRH and the
head of Lean Management Office. From May 2012 to February 2014, he served as the Vice General
Manager of Thermal Power Division and General Manager of Jiangsu Branch Company. From May
2010 to May 2012, he worked as an Assistant President of the Company and a General Manager of
Jiangsu Branch Company. From June 2009 to February 2014, he worked as a Vice Technical Director
and General Manager of Operations Department of the Company. Before joining CRH, he took the roles
consecutively as a General Manager of Guangdong Shajiao C Thermal Power Plant, a general manager
of Guangdong Yuehua Power Generation Company Limited, an associate chief engineer of Guangdong
Yudean Group Corporation Limited and the head of its Strategy & Development Department.

Mr. Hu holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Thermal Power Engineering as well as a Master’'s degree in
Engineering Thermal Physics, both from Chongqing University. He obtained his Doctorate Degree in
Engineering Thermal Physics from Zhejiang University. Moreover, he was enrolled in the Guangdong
senior management talent program and studied in Massachusetts University at Boston. He is also entitled
as a professor-level senior engineer.
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Ms. Wang Xiao Bin, aged 50, is an Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company. Prior to joining the Company in July 2003, Ms. Wang was a director of corporate finance
of ING Investment Banking, responsible for execution of capital markets and merger and acquisition
transactions in the Asia Pacific region. She worked for Pricewaterhouse in Australia in the audit and
business advisory division for five years before joining ING Barings. Ms. Wang is also an independent
non-executive director of WorleyParsons Limited, a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

Ms. Wang is a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and holds a
graduate diploma in Applied Finance and Investment from the Securities Institute of Australia and a
Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from Murdoch University in Australia.
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Mr. Chen Ying
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Mr. Chen Ying, aged 47, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in June 2012. In
November 2017, Mr. Chen was appointed as a director of CR & CNIC Investment Ltd. In May 2012, he
was appointed as a non-executive director of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (“CR Cement”)
and China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (“CR Beer”) (formerly known as China Resources
Enterprise Limited), and he was appointed as a non-executive director of China Resources Gas Group
Limited (“CR Gas”) and China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”) in June 2012. These are fellow
subsidiaries of the Company and the shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx"). He has been the chief strategy officer of CRH since
July 2013 and the general manager of Strategy Management Department of CRH since October 2011.
Mr. Chen was appointed as a non-executive director of China Vanke Co., Ltd., the shares of which is
listed on the Main Board of the HKEx and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in March 2014. He used to be
a director of China Resources Double-crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“CR Doublecrane”), which listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from May 2012 to December 2015, and used to be a director of China
Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“CR Sanjiu”), which listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, from June 2012 to December 2015.

Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor’s degree of Architectural Management from the Tsinghua University, China in
1993 and a Master’s degree of Business Administration from University of Oxford, the United Kingdom,
in 2007. Mr. Chen joined CRH in 1993.
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Mr. Wang Yan, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2014.
Mr. Wang joined China Resources Company Limited (“CRCL") (formerly known as China Resources
National Corporation) in July 1994. He worked for China Resources Petrochems (Group) Company
Limited (currently known as Sinopec (Hong Kong) Petroleum Holding Company Limited) from 2000 to
2006. Mr. Wang was appointed as a director of China Resources Gas Limited in November 2005. He
was a deputy general manager of China Resources Gas (Holdings) Limited from September 2007 to April
2012. He was a deputy general manager of the Internal Audit Department of CRH from April 2012 to
January 2016 and was appointed as a general manager in February 2016. He was appointed as a non-
executive director of CR Land, CR Cement and CR Gas, all of which are listed on the Main Board of the
HKEx, in August 2014. He was also appointed as a non-executive director of China Resources Phoenix
Healthcare Holdings Company Limited (listed on the Main Board of the HKEx) in November 2016. Mr.
Wang was a non-executive director of CR Beer from August 2014 to April 2016.

Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from the Finance and Accounting Department, Capital
University of Economics and Business, a Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of
South Australia and is a qualified PRC Certified Accountant.
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Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung, aged 76, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in December 2006. Mr. Ma is a founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited (formerly
known as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited). He is presently a director of Mayee Management Limited and
also a director of several other private companies. Mr. Ma has more than 40 years’ experience in the
fields of accounting, auditing and finance. He received his Bachelor's degree in Economics from The
London School of Economics and Political Science (University of London) in England. Mr. Ma is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong.

In addition to his directorship in the Company, Mr. Ma is also an independent non-executive director
of a number of companies listed on the HKEx, including Asia Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
00662), C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 00043), Chong Hing Bank Limited (Stock Code: 01111),
Asiaray Media Group Limited (Stock Code: 01993) and C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limitied (Stock Code:
03309). Mr. Ma was an independent non-executive director of Southwest Securities International
Securities Limited (formerly known as Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 00812), a
company listed on the HKEx, from April 2005 to January 2015.
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Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie, aged 78, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in April 2010. Ms. Leung was the Secretary for Justice of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, as well as a member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong from July 1997 to
October 2005. Ms. Leung was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1968. She
was a partner of P. H Sin & Co., a Hong Kong law firm, which amalgamated with the law firm lu, Lai
& Li Solicitors & Notaries in 1993; she was a senior partner with Iu, Lai & Li Solicitors & Notaries from
1993 to 1997. At the end of 2006, she resumed practice at lu, Lai & Li Solicitors & Notaries. Ms. Leung
also serves as an independent non-executive director on the boards of United Company Rusal Plc, listed
on the Main Board of the HKEx, China Life Issuance Company Limited which is listed on the Main Boards
of the HKEx, New York Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange and Petro China Company Limited
listed on the New York Stock Exchange, HKEx and Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Ms. Leung served as a member of several government boards and committees, including the
Independent Police Complaints Council, Equal Opportunities Commission, Social Welfare Advisory
Committee and Inland Revenue Board of Review. Ms. Leung was appointed as a delegate of the People’s
Congress of Guangdong Province in 1989. In 1993, she was appointed as a delegate of the 8th National
People’s Congress and in 1994 as well as a Hong Kong Affairs Adviser. Since 2006, she has been the
deputy director of the Hong Kong Basic Law Committee of the Standing Committee of the National
People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China.

Apart from being a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong, Ms. Leung was qualified as a Solicitor
in England and Wales and obtained a Master of Law degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1998.

Ms. Leung was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1982 and was awarded the Grand Bauhinia Medal in
2002.
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Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung
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Dr. Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in April 2010. Dr. Ch’ien is the chairman and independent non-executive director of Hang
Seng Bank Limited. Dr. Ch'ien also serves as an independent non-executive director on the boards of
The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Swiss Re Limited and Swiss Re Asia Pte. Ltd.
Dr. Ch'ien was non-executive chairman of MTR Corporation Limited from July 2003 to December 2015.

In public service, Dr. Ch'ien is an honorary president and past chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries. From January 2013 to March 2018, Dr. Ch'ien was a member of the Economic Development
Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong SAR. From January 2008 to January 2018, he was a
member of the Standing Committee of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. From 1992 to 1997, Dr. Ch'ien was a member of the Executive Council of
Hong Kong, then under British administration. He was appointed a member of the Executive Council of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region on 1 July 1997 and served until June 2002. He was a Hong
Kong member of the APEC Business Advisory Council from 2004 to 2009. He was chairman of the Hong
Kong/European Union Business Cooperation Committee from 2005 to January 2012. Dr. Ch’ien was
previously chairman of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption, the Hong Kong/Japan Business Cooperation Committee, the Industry and Technology
Development Council and the Hong Kong Industrial Technology Centre Corporation Ltd.

Dr. Ch'ien received a Doctoral degree in Economics from the University of Pennsylvania in 1978 and was
a Trustee of the University from 2006 to 2016. Dr. Ch'ien was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1993
and a Commander in the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1994. In 1999, he was awarded
the Gold Bauhinia Star Medal. In August 2008, Dr. Ch'ien was conferred the honour of Chevalier de
I’Ordre du Mérite Agricole of France.
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Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in June 2014. Mr. So assumed the chairmanship of the Airport Authority Hong Kong in June
2015. He began his career with the Hong Kong Government and joined the private sector in 1978,
having held various senior positions in stockbroking, banking and property development. He served as
an executive director of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council from 1985 to 1992 and its chairman
from 2007 to 2015. He was chairman and chief executive of the MTR Corporation from 1995 to 2003
and deputy chairman and group managing director of PCCW from 2003 to 2007.

Mr. So is also an independent non-executive director of AIA Group Ltd. and is also a senior advisor to
Credit Suisse, Greater China. He was an independent director of HSBC from 2000 to 2007 and Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited from 2002 to 2015.

Mr. So is the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Philharmonic Society. He served as chairman of the Hong
Kong Film Development Council from 2007 to 2013. Mr. So was a member of the Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference since 2008 and was an international business advisor to the Mayor of
Beijing.

A Justice of the Peace, Mr. So was awarded the Golden Bauhinia Star and Grand Bauhinia Medal by
the Hong Kong SAR Government in 2011 and 2017 respectively. He received an Honorary Doctorate in
Social Science from the University of Hong Kong in 2011.
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Mr. Jiang Lihui, aged 55, is a Senior Vice President of the Company. From April 2012 to June 2014, he
served as a Senior Vice President of the Company and a General Manager of Coal Business Unit. From
July 2010 to May 2012, he served as a Deputy General Manager of China Resources New Energy, an
Assistant President of the Company and a General Manager of Hydropower Business Department. From
July 2009 to March 2011, he served as a Deputy Chief Technical Officer of the Company. From July
2002 to January 2010, he served as a Deputy General Manager of China Resources Power Hubei Co.,
Ltd, a General Manager of Xuzhou Huaxin Power Generation Co., Ltd and a General Manager of China
Resources Hezhou Co., Ltd. From April 1995 to July 2002, he served as a Deputy Chief Engineer and
an Assistant General Manager of China Resources (Xuzhou) Electric Power Co., Ltd. Mr. Jiang holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from Huazhong University of Science and Technology and a
Master's degree in Business Administration from China Europe International Business School (“CEIBS").
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Mr. Jian Yi
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Mr. Jian Yi, aged 41, is a Senior Vice President of the Company and a General Manager of CR Coal.
From March 2014 to April 2016, he served as a Deputy General Manager of CR Power Thermal Power
Division and a General Manager of Hunan Branch; From May 2012 to March 2014, he served as an
Assistant President and Director of Strategic Development of the Company; From March 2007 to May
2012, he served as a Deputy General Manager and a General Manager of Board Office of the Company
successively; and from 2003 to 2007, he was working in CEIBS, responsible for corporate leadership
development and management education. Mr. Jian holds a Bachelor of Laws, a Master of Law and a
minor degree in Economics from Peking University. He is experienced in leadership training, strategic
management and project development.
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Mr. Zhu Guolin
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Mr. Zhu Guolin, aged 58, is a Senior Vice President and Finance Director of the Company. From May
2012 to July 2016, he served as a Vice President and Finance Director of the Company; from July 2009
to May 2012, he served as the Deputy Finance Director and General Manager of the Finance Department
of the Company; from November 2005 to July 2009, he served as a Finance Director of Guangzhou
China Resources Thermal Power Co., Ltd.; from February 2004 to November 2005, he served as a deputy
general manager of the Corporate Development Department of CRH, and a director and deputy general
manager of China Resources Development and Investment Co., Ltd.; from November 2001 to February
2004, he served as the party committee member and vice director of the Department of Foreign Trade
and Economic Cooperation of Yunnan Province; from September 2000 to November 2001, he served
as a director and general manager of China Resources Conic Company Limited; from August 1997 to
September 2000, he served as a director and an assistant general manager of Hong Kong Kang Mao
Company Limited (B8R EZERAR A F]), and was also a director and general manager of Hong Kong
Kang Mao Finance Limited (BEEEZ IS AR A R]); from July 1985 to August 1997, he was an official
of the Foreign Trade and Finance Division under the Finance and Accounting Department of the Ministry
of Foreign Economic Relations and Trade of the PRC (FEILE AT EHINEFE), the financial
manager of Great Wall Trade Center, Dubai, United Arab Emirates (FiEfegmEERNE 5 F 0B EED),
a deputy director of the State-owned Assets Management Division under the Department of Foreign
Economic Coordination of the Ministry of Foreign Economic Relations and Trade of the PRC (H EI9MNE
EHLERFATIRNEEEEIERE), and a director of the Division of Integrated System Management under
the Planning and Finance Department of the Ministry of Foreign Economic Relations and Trade (JMNEH
#EtEF Rl A #IE ). Mr. Zhu holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of
International Business and Economics.
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Mr. Ding Qi
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Mr. Ding Qi, aged 59, is a Vice President of
the Company. He served as the Chief Human
Resources Officer of the Company between June
2007 and July 2010, and as the General Manager
of the Human Resources and Administration
Department of the Company from November 2001
to June 2007. Prior to joining the Company, he
was a departmental manager of China Resources
Development and Investment Co., Ltd. from 1998
to 1999. Mr. Ding holds a Bachelor’'s degree
in Wireless Communications from the Nanjing
Communications Engineering Institute.
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Mr. Wang Gaogiang
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Mr. Wang Gaogiang, aged 48, is a Vice President
and Chief Audit Executive of the Company. From
August 2002 to January 2012, he served as a
senior manager and deputy chief officer of the
audit and supervision department of CRH; from
August 1992 to February 2000, he served as a
manager of the Finance Department of CRCL; from
March 2000 to July 2002, he served as a manager
of the Audit Department of China Resources
Logistics Co. Limited (“CR Logistics”).Mr. Wang
has been engaged in financial accounting, internal
audit and risk management for over 20 years and
has extensive experience in corporate finance,
internal audit, internal control, risk management
and corporate governance. Mr. Wang holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics from Guangdong
University of Foreign Studies, and has obtained
the International Certified Internal Auditor
qualification and the PRC Accountant qualification.
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Mr. Ding Yuankui
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Mr. Ding Yuankui, aged 43, is a Vice President of
the Company. From April 2008 to April 2012, he
served as the deputy chief human resources officer
and chief human resources officer of CR Cement.
Prior to joining China Resources, Mr. Ding
worked at Mercer and Dong Feng Nissan and was
responsible for human resources consulting and
management. Mr. Ding graduated from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law in 1996 and
from the School of Economics and Management
of Tsinghua University in 2003, with a Master’s
degree in International Business Administration.
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Mr. Zhao Houchang
HEaLE
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Mr. Zhao Houchang, aged 52, is a Vice President
of the Company. From May 2012 to April 2016,
he served as a Vice General Manager and Chief
Technical Officer of the Thermal Power Division
of the Company; from July 2010 to May 2012,
he served as an Executive Vice President and
Chief Technical Officer of the Company; from
August 2009 to July 2010, he served as the Chief
Technical Officer and a General Manager of the
Construction Division of the Company; from 2003
to 2009, he served as a General Manager of China
Resources Power Henan Shouyangshan Co., Ltd;
from 2002 to 2003, he served as a Vice General
Manager of China Resources Power (Changshu)
Co., Ltd.; and from 1994 to 2002, he successively
served as a Deputy Head of the Engineering
Department, Deputy Chief Engineer, Assistant
General Manager and Vice General Manager of
China Resources (Xuzhou) Electric Power Co., Ltd.
Mr. Zhao holds an MBA degree from CEIBS.
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Mr. Wang Lin
EMEE

Mr. Wang Lin, aged 51, is a Vice President of
the Company. From May 2012 to June 2016, he
served as a Vice General Manager of the Thermal
Power Division of the Company; from July 2010 to
May 2012, he served as a Vice General Manager
of the Jiangsu Branch of the Company; from
March 2009 to June 2010, he served as a Vice
General Manager of the Shanxi Branch of the
Company; from July 2005 to March 2009, he
served as a Deputy General Manager of China
Resources Power (Jiangsu) Investment Company
Limited; from June 2003 to March 2009, he served
as the Chief Representative of the Company in
East China; from July 1996 to June 2003, he
served as the Chief Representative of Nanjing
Office of China Resources (Xuzhou) Electric Power
Co., Ltd.; and from 1982 to June 2003, he worked
in Fengxian Fuel Company and Xuzhou Fuel
Corporation in Jiangsu successively. Mr. Wang
holds an MBA degree from the School of Business
Administration of Nanjing University.
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Mr. Hou Yongjie
JaxeETEE

Mr. Hou Yongjie, aged 49, is a Vice President of
the Company. From May 2016 to August 2017,
he was the General Manager of the Central and
Western Region of the Company; from May 2012
to May 2016, he was the General Manager of the
the Thermal Power Division of Henan Branch; from
January 2011 to May 2012, he was the Deputy
General Manager of the Henan Branch; from
September 2010 to January 2011, he served as
the Deputy General Manager of Henan Branch and
the General Manager of Dengfeng Project as well
as the General Manager of Luore Project; from
September 2009 to September 2010, he served as
the General Manager of Shouyang Shan Project
and the General Manager of Luore project; from
October 2004 to September 2009, he successively
served as the Deputy General Manager and the
General Manager of Luore Project; from April
2003 to October 2004, he successively served as
the Assistant General Manager of the Production
Preparation Division of Dengfeng Project, the
General Manager of the Production Preparation
Division, Head of the Power Generation
Department, and the Assistant Technical Director.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Hou worked at
the Gansu Jingyuan Power Plant.
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Mr. An Xing
ZEEE

Mr. An Xing, aged 45, is an Assistant President
and Information Management Director of the
Company. From August 2009 to September 2012,
he served as the consulting director and assistant
general manager of the Information Management
Department of CRH. Prior to joining CRH, he
worked for Oracle Corporation and has more than
15 years of experience in information construction.
Mr. An holds a Bachelor's degree in Computer
Science and Technology from the Harbin University
of Science and Technology.
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Mr. Zhang Gang
SRt

Mr. Zhang Gang, aged 41, is an Assistant
President and General Legal Counsel of the
Company. From February 2009 to March 2013,
Mr. Zhang served as the chief legal director in the
Legal Affairs Department at CRH. From April 2004
to September 2009, Mr. Zhang practiced law at
Huaxia Investment, Special Assets Department of
CRH and Investment of CRH; and from July 2000
to March 2004, he served successively as the
assistant manager of the Legal Affairs Department
at CR Logistics, the assistant personnel officer for
the Director of the Southern China Region, and
the assistant general manager of China Resources
Courier. Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor's degree in
Law from Northwestern University of Politics &
Law.
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Mr. Xu Hongbo
PR R E

Mr. Xu Hongbo, aged 41, is an Assistant President of the Company and the General Manager of the
Strategic Development Division. From October 2014 to June 2017, he successively served as a qualified
director and assistant director of the Supervision Department of CRH. From August 2011 to October
2014, he successively served as a Senior Manager, Chief Analyst and Assistant Director of the Strategic
Development Department of the Company. From May 2004 to July 2011, he successively served as a
Qualified Engineer and Senior Manager of China Resources Power (Changshu) Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu
Branch of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, he worked for Yangcheng International Power
Generation Co., Ltd. Mr. Xu holds a Bachelor of engineering degree in thermal engineering from
Wuhan University of Hydraulic and Electric Engineering and a Master of engineering degree in electrical
engineering from Tsinghua University. He also holds the title of Senior Engineer.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the
Annual Report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group engages principally in investing, developing, operating
and managing power plants and coal mine projects in China.
The activities of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
are set out in Notes 9, 10 and 11 to the financial statements,
respectively.

GROUP PROFIT

The consolidated income statement is set out on page 142 and
shows the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2017.
A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year and the material factors underlying its results and financial
position are provided in the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis on pages 61 to 92 of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) is set out in
the sections headed “5-Year Summary”, “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” from pages 2 to
3, pages 8 to 19, and pages 61 to 92 respectively of this Annual
Report and other parts of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include, but
are not limited to, operational risks, policy risks, industry risks,
market risks, business risks and financial risks.
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Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 19
of this Annual Report for a discussion of the operational, policy,
market and business challenges and uncertainties facing the
Group; “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” on page 90
of this Annual Report for a discussion on foreign exchange rate
risk facing the Group; and “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” on pages 194 to 208 of this Annual Report for
details of the financial risks facing the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability throughout
its business operations. As a responsible corporation, and in
line with the energy and environmental protection strategies of
the Chinese Government, the Group strives to ensure minimal
environmental impacts by committing ourselves to conservation
of resources, promoting the development of clean and renewable
energy projects and improving on emission control.

Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 19 of
this Annual Report for a discussion of the Group’s development
in promoting Environmental, Health & Safety (EHS) awareness.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Company,
will be provided in the Sustainability Report to be published
by the Company pursuant to the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and will be available on the Company’s
website at www.cr-power.com.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board places emphasis on the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. Updates
on applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and operation units from time
to time. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
has complied in all material respects with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of
the Group, including the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Listing Rules.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
their contribution and support are valued at all times. The Group
places importance on the career development of its employees
and organised trainings for employees to facilitate their career
development. In order to promote the work-life balance of the
employees, the Group created a competitive, yet united and
pleasant working environment to encourage improvement and
personal value to enhance their sense of belonging.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Company believes that maintaining good relationships with
stakeholders including customers and suppliers is one of the key
contributors to the Group’s success. The Group has established
stable long-term relationships with a number of customers and
suppliers, and takes active steps to maintain good cooperative
relationships with its customers and suppliers and to strengthen
communication with them.
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DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK$0.125 per share of the Company
(“Share”) was paid on 31 October 2017.

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.75 per Share for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Wednesday, 20 June 2018, subject to the
approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “"AGM") to be held on Monday,
28 May 2018. The proposed dividend will be paid on or about
Thursday, 5 July 2018 following approval at the AGM of the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 6 to
the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the movement in the shares issued by the Company
during the year are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
HK$21,107,720,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$14,726,187,000). Movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 144 to 145 of this
Annual Report and Note 49(a) to the financial statements,
respectively.
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BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$100,922,869,000 (2016: HK$91,463,402,000).
Particulars of borrowings are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

BONDS AND NOTES ISSUED

The Group issued corporate bonds and notes with fixed rates
with face value amounting to RMB16,285,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$19,481,746,000) (2016: RMB16,285,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$18,205,490,000)) as at 31 December 2017, details of which
are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements. Such corporate
bonds and notes were issued in order to meet the Group's
general funding requirement, including financing of capital
expenditure and refinancing of debts.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB4.6876 million.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year of 2017 and as at
19 March 2018 are as follows:

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Ru Ge (Chairman, appointed on 5 March 2018)
Mr. Chen Ying
Mr. Wang Yan

Executive Directors:

(Ceased from her role as the Chairman and
Executive Director on 5 March 2018)

(Vice Chairman)

(President)

(Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary)

Ms. Zhou Junging

Mr. Ge Changxin
Mr. Hu Min
Ms. Wang Xiao Bin
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung
Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie

Dr. Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung
Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors had a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
terminable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Pursuant to Article 120 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Ge Changxin, Mr. Hu Min, Ms. Wang Xiao Bin
and Mr. So Chak Kwong, Jack, who are longest in office, shall
retire from office by rotation at the AGM and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 98 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Li Ru Ge, who was newly appointed as Chairman of the
Board and Non-executive Director on 5 March 2018, shall hold
office until the AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors in regard to their
independence to the Company and considers that each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors is independent to the
Company.

As at the date of this report, among the Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung was the only
one who has served more than 9 years.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 20 to 28 of this Annual Report.

The Executive Directors are entitled to salaries and discretionary
bonuses determined by the Board at its absolute discretion having
regard to the Group's performance and the prevailing market
conditions. The Independent Non-executive Directors are entitled
to director’'s fees authorised by shareholders and approved by
the Board by reference to the prevailing market conditions. The
Directors were granted options to subscribe for the Shares. For
details of the share option scheme, please refer to pages 269 to
270 of this Annual Report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are
provided under Note 50 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of persons who have served on the board of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to 19 March
2018 is available on the Company’s website at www.cr-power.com.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group regards the President, the Chief Financial Officer,
Senior Vice Presidents, Vice Presidents and Assistant Presidents of
the Company as members of the senior management team.

The emoluments of the members of the senior management team
who are not Executive Directors are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 114 of this Annual Report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every
director shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company
against all liability incurred by him or her as such director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgement is given in his or her favour, or in which he or she is
acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the Directors of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
approved by a resolution in writing of the shareholders of the
Company on 6 October 2003. The purposes of the Share Option
Scheme are to attract and retain the best available personnel; to
provide additional incentive to employees, directors, consultants
and advisors of (a) the Company, its subsidiaries and associates;
and (b) CRH and its subsidiaries; and to promote the success of
the business of the Company, its subsidiaries and associates.
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The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer an option to
eligible person to subscribe for the Shares at an exercise price
and subject to the other terms of the Share Option Scheme. Upon
acceptance of the offer of a grant, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not exceed 367,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the total number
of Shares in issue prior to the date on which dealings in the
Shares commenced on the Stock Exchange.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of the options granted to or to be granted to each
eligible person under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

The exercise price to subscribe for each Share under the Share
Option Scheme shall be not less than the greater of (1) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date the share option is granted;
(2) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (3) the nominal value
of the Shares.

Options granted have a 10-year exercise period within which
there is a total vesting period of five years. Commencing from
the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date
of grant of an option, the relevant grantee may exercise up to
20%, 40%, 60%, 80% and 100%, respectively, of the Shares
comprised in his or her option.

The Share Option Scheme expired on 5 October 2013, no further
options under the Share Option Scheme can be granted after that
date. In respect of outstanding share options, the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

As at 31 December 2017, no shares may be issued by the
Company upon exercise of all options (or lapse or cancellation)
which had been granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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Movement of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:
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Number of Number of
options options
outstanding Number of Number of outstanding
as at options options lapsed as at
1 January 2017 exercised during or cancelled 31 December 2017
RZB-t% theyear ™  during the year RZB-t%
-B-H RAEE RAEE tZA=1t-H Dateof Exercise price
Participant Date of grant RESHE M RNEEN MAITER  expiry (HKS)
85% RILAH EREXE ERERRO EREXE EREHE RERASD %8
(B7)
Aggregate total of 30 Mar 2007 5,852,660 (2,780,940) (3,071,720) — 29 Mar 2017 2.2
employees ZETtE “TtF
Ea4:t =A=tH =ZA=ThA
5,852,660 (2,780,940) (3,071,720) —
Note: 1. The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the MisE 1. BETEBEIRENE SR RO INEFTY

date on which the options were exercised was HK$14.25.

MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION INCENTIVE PLAN

As an incentive to retain and motivate the employees, on 25 April
2008 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board resolved to adopt the
“Medium to Long-term Performance Evaluation Incentive Plan”
(the “Plan”) and the Company appointed BOCI-Prudential Trustee
Limited as trustee to this Plan (the “Trustee”). Pursuant to the
Plan, Shares may be purchased by the Trustee from the market
out of cash contributed by the Group and be held in trust for
the selected employees until such interests are vested with the
selected employees in accordance with the provisions of the Plan.
The Plan does not constitute a share option scheme pursuant
to Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and is a discretionary
plan of the Company. The Board will implement the Plan in
accordance with the terms of the Plan, including the provision of
necessary funds to the Trustee for purchase of Shares up to 2%
of the issued shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date
(i.,e. 4,150,021,178 Shares). The Plan shall be effective from the
Adoption Date and shall continue in full force and effect for a
term of 10 years unless terminated at the discretion of the Board
at an earlier date.
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Under the Plan, there were total of 31,319,230 Shares (2016:
34,771,553 Shares) held by the Trustee as at 31 December 2017.

BiEZTE R E—+F+_A=1+—
H XTAFENRME 31,319,230
AR (—ZF—7<4F : 34,771,553 %) ©

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES EENBSERS
Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2017, none of the B NXPFHEBEEN  N"_ZE—+F+ A

Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest or

=t—B YEEFHARAEBITHA

short position in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures & & QTS A HEEE (IREBE
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within {55 571 Z &% R EIEIEHI ([ B4 LS K

the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code"), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein:

(A) The Company

Details of Shares held by the Directors as at 31 December

T — = /

|
Bl 1) XV EEPRE ) Rkt - G E
EERA T MERIOAE @ MAREBESK
HIE R BIEXVERE 7 R E8 D Epek L &%
TAZERHETIEF X SR ESTA([1RLEST
Al DHMERAG] LB ARIERES
N EIEA&HI 5 352 6 Z e AZIGFT I &=
i -

(A) R E]
WN_ZTE—+F+=-_A=+—H =

2017 are as follows:

March 2018.

FENRMDFBAT

Percentage of
the total issued

Number of shares of
issued ordinary the Company
shares held Long/short (RN
Name of Director Capacity BEC®T position 2RITRAE
EEHE 5 % B R B B 53 Y B
Zhou Junging® Beneficial Owner 93,595 Long 0.002%
JEM& B EnEEA ey}
Wang Xiao Bin Beneficial Owner 3,664,560 Long 0.076%
W EmEEA e
Wang Yan Beneficial Owner 44,000 Long 0.001%
TE EaEaA ey}
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung Beneficial Owner 30,167 Long 0.001%
BRE EnEEA ey}
Interest of Spouse 4,000 Long 0.000%
B R e
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung Beneficial Owner 600,000 Long 0.012%
5 IR EaEaA ey}
Interest of Spouse 100,000 Long 0.002%
B ey}
Ge Changxin Beneficial Owner 4,828 Long 0.000%
B EmEAA A
Note: 1. Ceased from her role as Chairman of the Board and Executive Director on 5 Mzt 1. RZZE-N\E=ZFAREFELEEEERR

AEEELIFERNTES -
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(B) China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (B) B EZ KR AR 2 8 ([ HE
(“CR Beer") &)
CR Beer is an associated corporation of the Company (as
defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Beer held by
the Directors as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

FRHER SRR R EREE(RIFE
SLEHMERPAATE) EFRN_-F

—tF+_A=t+—HEEEHEH
MR EFIBLT -

Name of Director

EENA

Percentage
of the total
Number of issued shares
issued ordinary of CR Beer
shares held Long/short LEBEE
Capacity BEERT position BBITRA
51 EBERHAE He/ HE Bt
Wang Yan Beneficial Owner 167,999 Long 0.005%
TE EmEAA e
(C) China Resources Gas Group Limited (“CR Gas") (@)
%]
CR Gas is an associated corporation of the Company (as
defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Gas held by
the Directors as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

e Ak

FEBMRR YA R B REEE (REE
SLHERPAAE) EFRN_-F

—tFF+ A=+ —HEBEERK
AR T -
Name of Director

ESHSR

Percentage
of the total
Number of issued shares
issued ordinary of CR Gas
shares held Long/short HEBRE
Capacity BEE®T position BEBITRAE
54 ZERYE Be HE Bol
Zhou Junging® Beneficial Owner 800 Long 0.000%
EER© EnEBA HE
Ge Changxin Beneficial Owner 200 Long 0.000%
B EmEAA e
Note: 1. Ceased from her role as Chairman of the Board and Executive Director on 5 PEE: 1.
March 2018.

R-ZE—-N\FEZARBBRTARREEE T
BERWITES ©



(D) HFHEMARAT(EBHEM])

CR Land is an associated corporation of the Company (as FHEWIARQ AR B AR (RIBFE
defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Land held by F MBI RE) EFRN_F
the Directors as at 31 December 2017 are as follows: —tF T+ A=T—HEEEHEH

(D) China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”)

RDFHBIT -
Percentage
of the total
Number of issued shares
issued ordinary of CR Land
shares held Long/short HEBEH
Name of Director Capacity BEE®T position 2RITRA
EEnE B4 EEREAE "R/ RE Bot
Chen Ying Beneficial Owner 500,000 Long 0.007%
[R & EaEEA =)

(E) China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (“CR (E) FEEKEERER 2 A ([FEBK
Cement”) ed)

EENORTIA R B EEEE (RERE
FMEEHROMAE) EEN_-F
—t¢+_ﬂ_+ BHAERKE

CR Cement is an associated corporation of the Company (as
defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Cement held
by the Directors as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

BRSSO
Percentage
of the total
Number of issued shares
issued ordinary of CR Cement
shares held Long/short IEZEEAKRE
Name of Director Capacity BFEE 81T position BERITRA
EEpA E27) EERHE "R KRR BAL
Chen Ying Beneficial Owner 230,000 Long 0.004%

(R & BEaEEA Sy



(F) China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (“CR (F)

Pharmaceutical”)

CR Pharmaceutical is an associated corporation of the
Company (as defined under the SFO). Details of shares in
CR Pharmaceutical held by the Directors as at 31 December

2017 are as follows:

Name of Director

BESHR

Wang Yan
IE

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO

Number of
issued ordinary
shares held

Capacity BEERT
54 ZEREE
Interest of Spouse 2,000
Ao e

ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

At no time during the year was the Company, the Company’s

holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries a party to  F{/&

any arrangement to enable the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company or their respective associates to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities of, the
Company or any associated corporation and none of the Directors
and chief executive, or their spouse and children under the age of
18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,

or had exercised any such right during the year. A o
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EHBEEEARAFA(EHE
%)

FHBEARRNEREE(RIEE
FMEEHRAMAE) EER_F
—tE T+ A=t HARBEEHEE
BB

Percentage
of the total
issued shares
of CR
Pharmaceutical
Long/short hEEEE
position BRITRA
"R KR BT
Long 0.000%

Ha

ESRERDAESHREE

RRT] - ARBZERARHME R B EW
NERANFEREAEER - HE2EET
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{n] AR HSE 025 1B A0 S A7) Bl (B 755 o8 25 T JE R A a5
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AIRBFERN - Y BN AFRITEZSE



TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, parent company or
fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director or his or
her connected entities had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

In addition, there was no contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and its controlling
shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries) and there was no contract
of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by its controlling shareholder (or any of its
subsidiaries) subsisting during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FTEEE
Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors B NXPriiEE I - —tF+=H

=+—8" é%lT%ﬂ,_\EﬂE@/\i(i

were not aware of any other persons (other than a Director

or chief executive, whose interests are disclosed in the section FEs{FEITHABRKRIN - IR EX
headed “Directors’ Interests in Securities” above) who had an [EEZEHFSFER|—SHCOEE)NAR T

interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company as required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be

recorded referred to therein:

Bt AR D B IR IBE 75 R E R BI5H
336 IRZAE R AXIGATA R IOR AR

Approximate
percentage of the
issued shares

of the Company

as at
Number of 31 December 2017
issued ordinary R-Z—+tH&
shares held  Long/short +=A=+—H
Name of shareholder Note Capacity BEENERT position {5ARATERTRE
BRRER MaE 54 EEREE HE %R BABE2 T
CRH (Power) Limited 1 Beneficial owner 3,027,003,337 Long 62.93%
EREEA e
CRH 1 Interest in a controlled 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
EHEE corporation e
R—RE LB #E =
CRC Bluesky Limited 1 Interest in a controlled 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
corporation e
— XX BEEENER
China Resources Co., Limited* 1 Interest in a controlled 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
("CRC") corporation He
ERHRMNERAR* R—RZIEEE N E R
(MEBRM D)
CRCL 1 Interest in a controlled 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
B corporation e
R—RE LB
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 2 Beneficial owner/ 241,549,196 Long 5.02%
investment manager/ e
aproved lending
agent
%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ*ﬁ}\/&;ﬁﬁ@fi
RAMELAEA
Beneficial owner 1,377,140 Short 0.03%
ExBEAA KB



Note:

*

1.

CRH (Power) Limited is a subsidiary of CRH, which is a 100% subsidiary of
CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned as to 100% by CRC, which
is in turn held as to 100% by CRCL. Each of CRH, CRCL, CRC and CRC
Bluesky Limited is deemed by virtue of Part XV of the SFO to have the same
interests in 3,027,003,337 Shares as those of CRH (Power) Limited. CRH,
through another wholly-owned subsidiary, is interested in 902,000 Shares
of the Company. Accordingly, each of CRCL, CRC and CRC Bluesky Limited
is deemed by virtue of Part XV of the SFO to have the same interests in the
902,000 Shares as those of CRH.

JPMorgan Chase & Co. through is various directly and indirectly 100%
controlled corporations, is interested in the above Shares in long and short
positions, which included (i) interest in 127,023,036 Shares in lending pool,
and (ii) unlisted derivative interests in 638,000 Shares with physically settled
in long position and unlisted derivative interests in 1,377,140 Shares with
physically settled in short position under the SFO.

The term “lending pool” is defined as (i) shares that the approved lending
agent holds as agent for a third party which he is authorised to lend and
other shares that can be lent according to the requirements of the Securities
Borrowing and Lending Rules; and (i) shares that have been lent by the
approved lending agent and only if the right of the approved lending agent
to require the return of the shares has not yet been extinguished.

For translation purposes only

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted continuing connected
transactions or connected transactions for the Group under
the Listing Rules. Details of those connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions which are subject to the
reporting requirements under Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules are
summarised below.
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CRH (Power) Limited BEHEBNHB AR
A MEB%EBEACRC Bluesky Limitedf)
& A® - MCRC Bluesky Limitedd )
RHEB100% s - mEBRMAIATE
EHFE100%Ez - REFRAEKOE
XVEmE - EHE® - FRER - FHR
3 % CRC Bluesky Limited¥J#4% &5 5B CRH
(Power) Limited3,027,003,3378&R% {5 7 &Y
HEER EHERERZ —RE2EMEA
AR F)902,000 B (5 R HEBAELS -
it - BE S R E GG EXVEmE - REE
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AR EHEE902,0008 87 F HHER
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Connected Transactions

(1)

On 19 December 2017, CRP Overseas Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“CRP Overseas”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into the Shareholders’ Agreement with
CR Strategic Investment Co., Ltd. (“CR strategic”), CR &
CNIC Investment Ltd. ("CR & CNIC") (which are two fellow
subsidiaries of the CRH) and the Consortium Company
(Summit Plus International Limited), in relation to the
formation of a consortium for the Proposed Acquisition
and pursuant to which the parties agreed to govern
the management of the Consortium Company and the
relationship among the Shareholders. The principal business
of the Consortium Company is overseas investment which
includes, among other things, investment holding of the
shares in CRC New Energy (UK) Limited (the “Bid Co").
The Consortium Company has incorporated the Bid Co,
a wholly-owned subsidiary, to act as the acquiring entity
in the Proposed Acquisition. 40% of the share capital of
the Consortium Company will be held by CRP Overseas.
The Shareholders expect to invest up to GBP600 million
(equivalent to HK$6,256 million) into the Consortium
Company for the purpose of the Proposed Acquisition,
of which CRP Overseas will invest up to GBP240 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,502 million), in
proportion to its 40% shareholding in the Consortium
Company. According to the Shareholders’ Agreement,
the Group shall pay GBP221,920,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,338,770,000) as shareholder loan to Summit Plus
International Limited, on interest-free basis and with
fixed term of repayment which would be disclosed as
capital commitment. On 19 December 2017, the Bid Co
and Statkraft UK Ltd. as the seller entered into a share
purchase agreement relating to the Proposed Acquisition
for the sale and purchase of a 30% equity stake and a
related shareholder loan in Dudgeon Holdings Limited
which, together with its subsidiary, engage in offshore
wind-farming business in the United Kingdom. Located
off the coast of Norfolk in the United Kingdom, the 402
MW Dudgeon offshore wind farm has officially achieved
commercial operation and is owned as to 35%, 35% and
30% by Statoil Wind Limited, Masdar Offshore Wind UK
Limited and Statkraft UK Ltd., respectively. As CR Strategic
and CR & CNIC are subsidiaries of the CRH which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company, CR Strategic and
CR & CNIC are connected persons of the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules. Details of these connected transactions
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 19
December 2017.
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EHENBIIMNCEBRAT(ERSE
NBNDERRB2E2EMBRF)
HEREKEIKEAR A A(EBE
B |) & CR & CNIC Investment Ltd.
([CR & CNICH(EH&EE 2 ME R
A B A R)) KB E AR (Summit Plus
International Limited)® — & — + 4
+Z A+ NBFILRERE  REEE
MEBWHEKZHE - BUFTHFRE
HEVB AR ZEEMIRE Z EREE -
MERRIZEEXEBRBINEE &
B FEIEIE35A CRC New Energy (UK)
Limited (B R A ]) 2 kg - FER
RIERMKZBELAF(AMBAR)
EAZRRENRIEER - mMIAB QR
LA BRERE NGINEE40% °
BREFREZRERUTEARIRE
%6008 & EEEEN6,256 88
Bw) EFEBHENEINEERE
BB R B 40% IR HE H I 1R B &
Z200B B RFHEENH2,50288
BIL) o BEBERRBE ~NEEER
REREERRFETERERNEAENEE
&I HIM Summit Plus International
Limited 32 15/ 221,920,000 % &5 (48 & 7
2,338,770,000 B L) tE BIR R E K °
R-_E—+F+=—A+NA " HBERQA
i Statkraft UK Ltd. {ERE ) EiER
W BE T 7 BE ik 7 5% - A B & Dudgeon
Holdings Limited (Dudgeon Holdings
Limited R K i B AR E R =
BEFERBHER) 230 %N &E
BERRER B EAHABELEN
402 JK [, Dudgeon & 7= [& &F 35 i 70 &=
B 7 @ 5e AR 8 = T 3T - 4 Bl B Statoil
Wind Limited * Masdar Offshore Wind
UK Limited % Statkraft UK Ltd.#% &
35%  35% F130% ) % # o R R
RS & CR & CNIC AZEEE B AN
BAR EFHEEAARATMNIZERRK
R oo URIE ETARAI - EHEEE L CR
& CNICAKRAFRINEEAL - 25
BRHGNFABHRNARRR T —+
F+ZATNBABEHHRE -



As at 31 December 2017, the Group provided
guarantee amounting to GBP301,920,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,181,874,000) to secure the purchase obligation
of the Bid Co. As at the date of this report, the base
consideration (amounting to GBP221,920,000, equivalent
to HK$2,338,770,000) has been paid and the relevant
guarantee portion has expired.

On 29 December 2017, Shanxi China Resources Coal
Co., Ltd. ("CR Shanxi”) entered into Coal CRI Agreement
1 with Taiyuan China Resources Coal Co,. Ltd. (“CR
Taiyuan”) to dispose of its Coal CRI 1 for a consideration
of RMB90,000,000 (excluding tax) (approximately
HK$107,484,300), and Shanxi China Resources Liansheng
Energy Investment Co., Ltd. (“CR Liansheng”) entered into
Coal CRI Agreement 2 with CR Taiyuan to dispose of its Coal
CRI 2 for a consideration of RMB60,000,000 (excluding tax)
(approximately HK$71,656,200). CR Taiyuan is owned as to
31% by CRC, which indirectly holds 62.94% of the Shares
in the Company and is a controlling shareholder of the
Company, CR Taiyuan is therefore an associate of CRC and
a connected person of the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Details of these connected transactions are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 29 December 2017.

Continuing Connected Transactions

(1)

On 21 December 2016, the Company and CR Cement
entered into the Power Supply Framework Agreement,
pursuant to which the Company shall supply electricity to
CR Cement, its subsidiaries or associates, including but not
limited to through direct power supply and agency power
supply, for a term of one year from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2017. At the time of the transaction, CRH, which
is interested in approximately 62.98% of the equity of the
Company is the controlling shareholder of the Company. CR
Cement is an associate of CRH and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of
the continuing connected transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 21 December 2016. On
1 November 2017, the Company and CR Cement entered
into a new Power Supply Framework Agreement for a term
of three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020.
At the time of the transaction, CRH, which is interested in
approximately 62.94% of the equity of the Company is the

(2)
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controlling shareholder of the Company. CR Cement is an
associate of CRH and therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the continuing
connected transaction are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 1 November 2017. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, the transaction amounts with
CR Cement, its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
are HK$417,353,000 in respect of the power supply of the
Company.

Reference is made to the joint announcement of the
Company, China Resources Group listed companies, CRC,
CRH and China Resources Microelectronics Limited, dated
19 December 2013 in relation to, among other things,
the entering of the Strategic Cooperation Agreement. The
new strategic cooperation agreement (“CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement 2015"”) with China Resources Bank
of Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (“CR Bank”) was entered into on 18
December 2015 whereby new annual caps were revised
taking into account of the Group’s liquidity, business needs
and the expected level of services to be received from CR
Bank under the CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2015. The term of the CR Bank Strategic Cooperation
Agreement 2015 is 3 years commencing from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2018. Under the CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement 2015, CR Bank provides deposit
services bearing the same interest and on the same terms
and conditions as would apply to a similar deposit made by
any other customer of the bank, which rates assessed with
reference to the rates published by the People’s Bank of
China. CR Bank also provides commercial banking services,
from time to time, which include but not limited to, letter of
credit, letter of guarantee, granting of loans with collaterals,
bill acceptance and discount services, account receivable
factoring services, RMB and foreign currency settlements,
provision of entrustment loans and security, wealth and cash
management services, financial consulting service and other
financial services as agreed by the parties. These services will
be provided on normal commercial terms and such service
fees shall not be higher than the net discounted fees offered
to other preferred customers of CR Bank. The maximum daily
deposit cap, inclusive of interest payable, and the maximum
daily cap of financial services and products to be provided
by CR Bank to the Group during the term of the CR Bank
Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2015 are HK$2.4 billion
and HK$1.2 billion respectively. For the period between 1
January 2017 and 31 December 2017, the maximum daily
deposit amount was approximately HK$1.2 billion and
the maximum daily of financial services and products was
HK$19,836,000.
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In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that save for these transactions, other continuing
connected transactions of the Company conducted during the
year ended 31 December 2017, were exempt from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and that the above continuing
connected transactions:

(i) have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
the Company’s business;

(i) have been entered into on normal commercial terms or
better; and

(iii) have been entered into on terms that are fair and reasonable
for and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole, and in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions.

Based on work performed, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
Company’s independent auditor, has confirmed in a letter to the
Board to the effect that the above transactions:

(@) have received the approval of the Board;

(b) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company
if the transactions involve provision of goods or services by
the Company;

(c) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) have not exceeded the caps.

Save for the following transactions, none of the related party
transactions contained in Note 46 to the financial statements falls
under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” within the meaning of the Listing Rules:

(1) The two trademark licence agreements dated 17 October
2003 entered into between the Company and CRCL and
CRH respectively, under which the Company was granted
irrevocable, royalty free and non-exclusive licences to use
certain trademarks and the rights to sub-license the same
to any member of the Group in consideration of nominal
amount of HK$1 each.
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(2) Significant transactions with related parties during the year: (2)

Name of related company

HEATER

China Resources Leasing Co., Ltd.

EHAEERAA

China Resources Property
Management Co., Ltd.

EHYEERARAG

CR Taiyuan

KIREH

China Resources (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

ZRRIDERRA

Beijing China Resources Building Co., Ltd.

ItREBAXERRAA
CR Energy Services
B IR IR 5

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd.

WEEERITRNERAR

Shenzhen Vivavoce Fashion Co., Ltd.
YT RM R ER AR

CRH

EHEE

Ce\rtain subsidiaries of CRH
EHEENETHEAR

Ce\rtain joint ventures of CR Cement
ERRRMETAELY

Ce\rtain associates of CR Cement
ERXRENETHELE

Relationship
B&

Fellow subsidiary
EEGEPNS
Fellow subsidiary

EES)-VN

Associate
BELE

Fellow subsidiary
EEGEEPNS
Fellow subsidiary
EES)= NS
Fellow subsidiary

EEX-ING

Fellow subsidiary

EES- VN

Fellow subsidiary
RIZKTE LA
Intermediate holding
company
R 2 A
Fellow subsidiaries

EEX- VN

Joint ventures
PUNE
BETE

Associates
B

Nature of transactions

XEHE

Providing maintenance service
REEE RS

Rental expense

MeER

Interest income

FEWA

Sales of coal

THE KK

Providing maintenance
service

REB/ERS

Purchase of coal

fEE KRR

Sales of coal mining capacity

HER K ERE

Providing agency service fee

RHRERBE

Rental expense

HeEH

Rental expense

HeEH

Contract environment
management fee, contract
energy management fee
and exclusive operation fee

BRRFEEEER - SRR
EEBERREAEEER

Interest expense

MEER

Interest income

FEBA

Purchase of materials

EEME

Interest expense

FEEM

Supply of direct power
BEHE
Providing retail power
agency services
RUTEENRERK
Providing retail power
agency services
RETEENRERE
Supply of direct power
BEHE

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FEx
1,001

8,433

204,589
13,242

5

12,360
177,732
8,858
8,498
4,749

50,241

695
1,107
1,216

520

138,597

22,357

3,672

30,361



(3) Compensation to the Company’s key management forms
part of the “Key Management Compensation” described in
note 46(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements. These
are continuing connected transactions exempt from the
connected transaction requirements under Rule 14A.76 or
14A.95 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers together
accounted for 21.20% of the Group’s total purchases during
the year. The five largest suppliers are #HEHEEEGR QA
(Shenhua Trading Group Co., Ltd.) (8.20%), Shaanxi Coal Selling
and Transportation (Group) Corporation (4.58%), IFEBRLZER
REERFAER M BRAF (Shanxi Lu’An Environmental Energy
Development Co., Ltd.) (3.39%), Datong Coal Mine Group Co.,
Ltd. (2.72%) and IIFAEWEERKEZEEBREERF (Shanxi
Jincheng Anthracite Mining Group Company Limited) (2.30%).

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers together accounted
for 58.41% of the Group’s total turnover during the year. The
five largest customers are ;L& & & /1’2 F) (Jiangsu Electric Power
Company) (18.32%), EREM A7 (Guangdong Power Grid
Company) (14.14%), A EEE 227 (Henan Provincial Power
Company) (11.52%), #dt&EE A7) (Hubei Provincial Electric
Power Company) (8.88%) and J#T&E 1A F] (Zhejiang Electric
Power Corporation) (5.55%).

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate
of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares) have any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESTHS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Apart from the Shares sold for the settlement of payment under
the Medium to Long-term Performance Evaluation Incentive
Plan as disclosed in this Annual Report, the Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied all of the principles and complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the "Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The
Company also adopted most of the recommended best practices
in the said Code.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices of the Company is
set out in Corporate Governance Report on page 93 to 130 of
this Annual Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (“MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit and
Risk Committee. In 2017, three of the four Audit and Risk
Committee members are Independent Non-executive Directors,
with the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee having
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial
matters.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 was audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditors
of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this Annual Report, there is sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company's issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited

Li Ru Ge
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2018
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BUSINESS REVIEW FOR 2017

The Group is engaged in the development, construction and
operation of power plants, including large-scale efficient coal-
fired generation units, wind farms, hydro-electric plants, gas-
fired power plants and photovoltaic power projects as well as
construction and operation of coal mines.

China’s total power generation reached 6.4 trillion kWh in 2017,
representing an increase of 6.5% compared with 2016. Thermal
power generation amounted to 4.6 trillion kWh, representing an
increase of 5.2% compared with 2016. Wind power generation
amounted to 0.31 trillion kWh, representing an increase of
26.3% compared with 2016.

In 2017, due to the policy of reducing overcapacity in the coal
industry, improvement in macro-economic growth and national
restrictions on coal production, the continuous tight supply in the
domestic coal market has resulted in coal prices remaining at high
levels throughout the year.

In 2017, due to the slow capacity growth in thermal power
generation and higher social demand for electricity, the average
utilisation hours for thermal generation units in China increased
by 23 hours or 0.5% vyear on year to 4,209 hours. Most power
plants of the Group are large-scale efficient generation units
mainly located in regions with relatively strong demand for
electricity which give us certain competitive advantages in the
market. The average full-load equivalent utilisation hours of
the subsidiary coal-fired power plants under the Group which
were operational for the full year of 2017 reached 4,964 hours,
representing an increase of 1.4% compared to 4,898 hours
for the full year of 2016, and exceeding the national average
utilisation hours for thermal power plants by 755 hours.

In 2017, the average utilisation hours for wind power generation
units in China was 1,948 hours. Wind farms of the Group are
mainly located in regions with low curtailment including Eastern,
Central and Southern China. The average full-load equivalent
utilisation hours of our wind farms which were operational for
the full year of 2017 reached 2,225 hours, exceeding the national
average level for wind power generation units by 277 hours.
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Generating capacity

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total attributable
operational generation capacity was 36,077MW, of which,
attributable operational generation capacity of the Group's coal-
fired power plants amounted to 29,815MW, accounting for
82.6%. Wind, hydro, photovoltaic and gas-fired capacity together
accounted for 17.4%, representing an increase of 3.3 percentage
points compared to the end of 2016.

During the year, the Group accelerated the development and
construction of clean renewable energy, mainly wind farms and
photovoltaic power projects. During the year, the generation
capacity of newly commissioned wind and photovoltaic power
projects reached 1,010MW and 145MW respectively. At the
end of 2017, the Group’s attributable operational wind power
generation capacity reached 5,629MW; wind power capacity
under construction was 2,137MW,; attributable operational
photovoltaic generation capacity reached 275MW and
photovoltaic capacity under construction was 71MW, attributable
operational hydro-electric generation capacity reached 280MW
and hydro-electric capacity under construction was 107MW.

During the year, the Group did not commission any new coal-
fired units, and reduced its stake in Guizhou Liuzhi power plant
and Cangnan power plant.

Gross and net generation volume

The total gross generation volume of the Group’s consolidated
operating power plants amounted to 168,864,293MWh in 2017,
representing an increase of 5.2% compared to 2016.

The total net generation volume of the Group’s consolidated
operating power plants amounted to 159,395,411TMWh in 2017,
representing an increase of 5.1% compared to 2016.

In 2017, the total net generation volume of the Group's
subsidiary power plants that participated in direct power supply
amounted to 59,786,344MWh, and the average tariff of the
direct power supply volumes compared with the average tariff
of the power plants that participated in direct power supply was
at a discount of approximately 6.0%. The Group collaborated
with other business units of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited (“CR Group"”), our controlling shareholder. In 2017,
the Group provided (among others) direct power supply and
power purchase agency services for companies including but
not limited to China Resources Cement Holdings Limited and
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China Resources Microelectronics Limited. In 2017, the Group
provided approximately 2,846,174MWh of direct power supply to
connected parties of CR Group, representing approximately 4.8%
of its total direct power supply volume.

On-grid tariff

Effective from 1 July 2017, the government increased the on-grid
tariffs of coal-fired plants via cancelling levies of special funds for
structural adjustment of industrial enterprises. The average rate
of adjustment for on-grid tariffs was RMB0.0129/kWh.

Fuel costs

Average unit fuel cost for the Group's subsidiary coal-fired power
plants in 2017 was RMB213.93/MWh, representing a year-on-year
increase of 37.0%. Average standard coal cost was RMB700.85/
tonne, representing an increase of 37.5% from the previous year.

In 2017, the average net generation standard coal consumption
rate of the Group’s subsidiary coal-fired power plants was
303.169/kWh, representing a decrease of 1.84g/kWh or 0.6%
from 305.00g/kWh in 2016.

Environmental expenses

In 2017, the total amount of environmental expenses incurred
by the Group’s subsidiary coal-fired power plants was RMB106
million, representing an increase of 11.6% compared to 2016,
which was mainly due to the increase in the levy rates for
environmental protection in Hebei province from 2017 and the
newly commissioned Liuzhi project at the end of 2016.

As at the end of 2017, units of the Group’s subsidiary coal-
fired power plants with an attributable operational generation
capacity of 22,792 MW have completed the installation for ultra-
low emission reduction, accounting for approximately 91% of the
attributable operational generation capacity of subsidiary coal-
fired power plants, which further lowers the emission of sulfur
dioxide, nitrogen oxide and particulates.

Coal mine operations

In 2017, the subsidiary and associate coal mines of the Group
produced a total of approximately 15.02 million tonnes of coal
(aggregation of each mine’s production volume), representing an
increase of 2.0% from 2016, among which, 12.83 million and
2.19 million tonnes were produced by the subsidiary coal mines
and associate coal mines, respectively.
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Capital expenditure

In 2017, the cash capital expenditure of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$16,400 million, among which, approximately
HK$9,000 million was used in the construction of wind farms,
photovoltaic power projects and hydro-electric projects, HK$2,000
million was used in the upgrading of existing coal-fired units for
ultra-low emission reduction, safety and energy saving and heat
supply technology, approximately HK$4,800 million was used in
the construction of coal-fired units, and approximately HK$600
million was used in the upgrading and construction of coal mines.

PROSPECTS FOR 2018 AND THE FUTURE

The growth rate of power consumption is expected to remain
stable year-on-year in 2018, with ample power supply to meet
demand, and oversupply in certain regions.

With a series of measures taken by the Chinese government to
increase coal supply to promote balanced supply and demand in
the coal market, market prices of thermal coal are expected to
decline in 2018.

The coal-fired units which are expected to commence operation
include: 2x1,000MW ultra-supercritical generation units in
Caofeidian (Phase Il), Hebei, currently 90% owned by the
Group and expected to commence operation of one unit each
in 2018 and 2019, respectively; 2x350MW heat and power co-
generation units in Yundong, Hebei, 90% owned by the Group
and expected to commence operation in 2019; and the 108MW
distributed gas project in Changzhou, Jiangsu, 100% owned by
the Group and expected to commence operation in 2018. As
Caofeidian Phase Il, upon completion, will have one of the lowest
coal consumption rate in the industry, and hence a significant
environmental advantage, we have received notices from
government authorities that they want the units to commence
operation as soon as possible. In addition, the Group will strictly
control the construction progress of Wujianfang project in Inner
Mongolia and Jinzhou project. If Wujianfang project is able
to secure appropriate generation volume sending electricity
generated to Jiangsu Province via ultra high voltage transmission
lines at an appropriate tariff, we will finalise the construction and
commissioning schedule of the project accordingly.
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In 2018, the Group will continue to accelerate the development
and construction of renewable energy projects, mainly wind
power projects, with the aim of commissioning approximately
1,500MW per year in the next three years. To achieve this goal,
the Group will be required to obtain approvals from the PRC
government for projects which meet internal investment hurdle
rates, have the right construction conditions and complete
construction as scheduled, some of which are subject to certain
external factors. The Group's target is to grow its renewables
business, primarily in wind power, to approximately 25% of its
total attributable operational generation capacity by 2020.

With the advancement of reform in the Chinese power industry,
the Group will actively monitor development opportunities arising
from the gradual liberalization of the power retail business and
new power distribution networks, and focus on the development
of power retail business and integrated energy services such as
energy efficiency service and energy storage.

The cash capital expenditure of the Group for 2018 is expected
to be approximately HK$18.2 billion, including approximately
HK$12.1 billion for the construction and acqusition of wind
farms, photovoltaic power projects and hydro-electric plants,
approximately HK$1.7 billion for technical upgrades such as
energy saving and efficiency improvement of existing operational
coal-fired units; approximately HK$3.9 billion for the construction
of coal-fired units; and approximately HK$0.5 billion for the
transformation and construction of coal mines. The Group will
control the pace of capital expenditure based on macro-economic
conditions of China, in particular domestic demand and supply of
electricity, government policies for energy and related industries
and the Group’s strategies, and make prompt and necessary
adjustment based on external market conditions and general
policies of the government.
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OPERATING RESULTS BEXR

Our audited results of operations for the years ended 31 HE_ZE—tFL_ZT—RF+_A=+—
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows: AIEFENREZSEEENT -

Consolidated Income Statement Sk EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 -_FE—+tH&E+=-BA=+—HLEE
2017 2016
—E—+tH§ —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiB FiB
Turnover EERR 73,311,677 66,212,590
Operating expenses SN
Fuels iy (38,071,827) (27,199,184)
Repairs and maintenance MBI U (1,848,321) (2,142,577)
Depreciation and amortisation 7 £ ER 5 (10,507,422) (9,882,488)
Employee benefit expenses BEERAHX (5,177,763) (5,530,489)
Consumables Mt (1,032,152) (920,790)
Impairment losses B K (850,665) (1,282,288)
Tax and surcharge e K BTan (1,163,242) (1,124,157)
Others Hith (4,163,098) (3,734,114)
Total operating expenses HR AR R (62,814,490) (51,816,087)
Other income H WA 2,335,498 1,923,016
Other (losses)/gains — net Hip($8%k), F5—F58 (352,687) 35,262
Operating profit & 12,479,998 16,354,781
Finance costs HBEA (3,991,498) (3,557,220)
Share of results of associates JEAGE S LS 136,448 288,995
Share of results of joint ventures BihaErEEE (104,558) (44,968)
Profit before income tax B 5% A A 8,520,390 13,041,588
Income tax expense TSt & A (2,901,686) (4,398,440)
Profit for the year FARE 5,618,704 8,643,148
Profit for the year attributable to: FANBEBER
Owners of the Company ZINNEIEF DN 4,623,323 7,708,373
Non-controlling interests FEFR Il A 2
— Perpetual capital securities — K ABARBH — 150,164
— Others —HAh 995,381 784,611
995,381 934,775
5,618,704 8,643,148
Earnings per share attributable to owners ~ FREFEBHRAAGHEA A
of the Company for the year 2 GREF
— Basic — &K HK$0.9738 T HK$1.627%8 7T
— Diluted —¥58 HK$0.9738 7T HK$1.617%8 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income BHE2ERBAR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—tHF+-A=+—HLEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ET—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHET
Profit for the year FAF 5,618,704 8,643,148
Other comprehensive income: HE2mkA -
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss FJFEE #7748 2 18 as 778 H
Currency translation differences PEH =% 5,750,623 (5,326,643)
Share of other comprehensive income of G HREER AR ERE
investments accounted for using W EMARE W=
the equity method 190,355 (203,312)
Release to profit or loss in relation MEBEWBAREEERE
to disposal of subsidiaries (2,549) —
Fair value changes on cash flow hedges, fﬁ@bm%%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁ
netoftax —  # BE)(Big) — 44,123
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale At ETREERE
investments, net of tax BEH(WE) (33,642) 22,543
Total items that may be reclassified HigngeEmo iz En
subsequently to profit or loss, net of tax KIE B 85 (FH1&) 5,904,787 (5,463,289)
Total comprehensive income for the year,  FARE BN A LS
net of tax 11,523,491 3,179,859
Attributable to: FER
Owners of the Company ZN/NGIE 2SN 10,299,555 2,327,122
Non-controlling interests FEE I A =
— Perpetual capital securities — K ABAREBH — 150,164
— Others — HAt 1,223,936 702,573
1,223,936 852,737
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEKRALLEE 11,523,491 3,179,859



Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2017 R=-ZB—+tHF+=H=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WERERE 152,334,653 138,275,197
Prepaid lease payments ENHEEER 3,537,380 3,344,692
Mining rights PRAEE 15,301,970 14,902,898
Exploration and resources rights BIRE R IE 162,310 151,677
Prepayment for non-current assets REATEf I8 5,093,455 2,784,169
Investments in associates REtE D ERER 8,747,317 8,459,278
Loans to an associate mA—REEECEER - 508,923
Investments in joint ventures REETENER 3,660,368 3,610,368
Goodwill BES 1,626,560 1,567,684
Amounts due from a joint venture JEY —FEl& & R RIKIE 142,566 -
Loans to a joint venture m—EAEEATER 41,590 —
Deferred income tax assets RERTSTREE 946,782 725,131
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 1,516,177 1,471,665
Loans to an available-for-sale MAl SRR E QT
investee company B 149,937 424,099
Loan to a non-controlling ) — [E BT 8 2 R) FEHE
shareholder of a subsidiary RERE 14,954 —
193,276,019 176,225,781
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 3,205,152 3,124,403
Trade receivables, other receivables and FEUBR R~ H A FE YRIE
prepayments S EANE s 16,006,853 14,765,870
Loans to associates ML CEER 1,158,256 21,911
Loans to joint ventures meEtEER 255,889 192,535
Loans to an available-for-sale mA SRR E QR
investee company X 303,893 —
Loans to non-controlling shareholders BEREPNGE S
of a subsidiary R R E K - 32,979
Amounts due from associates JrE L Bk e 1 ZE TR IR 466,885 162,862
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW & & IR 25,006 143,821
Amounts due from other related companies JEU H th 388 A &) K18 2,649 2,171
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B KX R HRITER 890,182 1,092,114
Cash and cash equivalents BeNIREEEY 5,381,686 4,347,022
27,696,451 23,885,688
Total assets mEE 220,972,470 200,111,469
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2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkEas
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KA &% A A B
Share capital LN 22,341,736 22,257,732
Other reserves H 13,618,598 6,746,795
Retained earnings RE B 39,253,485 40,016,379
75,213,819 69,020,906
Non-controlling interests FEPE MR 5,528,061 5,543,957
Total equity BER 80,741,880 74,564,863
LIABILITIES a8\
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings BE 68,761,886 70,166,815
Deferred income tax liabilities RS ARE 2,576,356 2,590,741
Deferred income REWA 1,060,334 955,922
Retirement and other long-term employee  JERFEIK K H K HR
benefits obligations 8 TR A 224,604 171,642
72,623,180 73,885,120
Current liabilities mENaE
Trade payables, other payables and FERTIRER « EAth FEAT FRIE
accruals NIEFTEM 32,181,836 28,337,920
Amounts due to associates JEASTBS 1> E 5108 629,919 253,426
Amounts due to joint ventures B EDENIE 317,077 653,476
Amounts due to other related companies JE A< EL Ath B 38 & R 5K I8 1,440,535 544,165
Current income tax liabilities JESFT1S IR 877,060 575,912
Borrowings BE 32,160,983 21,296,587
67,607,410 51,661,486
Total liabilities =R 140,230,590 125,546,606
Total equity and liabilities RERREE 220,972,470 200,111,469



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHRERNER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tHF+-A=+—-HLEE
2017 2016
—E—tF T—RF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FERT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHELENEERE
Profit before income tax B BRI AR 8,520,390 13,041,588
Adjustments for: TE
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment ~ #1% - BE &R EMITE 10,015,238 9,428,679
Amortisation of mining rights PRERE 2 8 396,292 360,138
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BNHEEEREH 95,892 93,671
Impairment charges on property, plant and W% - BEREERESR
equipment 728,239 1,000,347
Reversal of impairment losses on prepaid BNHEEERRERE
lease payments (2,112) (3,071)
Impairment charges on mining rights KiEEREES 99,808 119,687
Impairment charges on goodwill HEREZS - 136,370
Impairment charges on inventories FEKEERE 28,984 19,670
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment ERORERR),EE
of doubtful accounts (4,254) 9,285
Exchange losses/(gains) BE R Bk (W) 193,456 (219,397)
Interest expense FBFX 3,991,498 3,557,220
Interest income FEWA (310,854) (279,427)
Fair value changes on derivative financial TEEMIANAAEE
instruments o - 17,552
Share of results of associates Fﬂﬁﬂy" EEEE (136,448) (288,995)
Share of results of joint ventures BIEEELERE 104,558 44,968
Dividends received from available-for-sale BEWRATEHDERERS
investments (189,572) (78,778)
Net losses on disposal of property, HEWE - BEK&ER
plant and equipment BEFE 363,925 447,066
Net gains on disposal of prepaid HEENHEEBAN
lease payments Y5 % EE - (4,760)
Net gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEWMB A TKERFE (143,965) (26,121)
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of other HER R A RS/
equity investments (Hﬂl 5) 558 133,065 (203,556)
Changes in working capital: BoEE)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories T_f‘fﬂ//(i'jjl]) 135,281 (1,005,845)
Increase in trade receivables, other receivables — FEUREBRFN + E & U R 0E K2
and prepayments FEAST BRI AN (1,852,116) (1,117,764)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, FERTIRER « ELfth & 4 5038 K2
other payables and accruals A BERCRD), /1L (840,489) 2,447,716
Increase in retirement and other long-term JERTRAREMRAET
employee benefits obligations 1@ M AN N 52,962 21,878
Income tax paid B FEE (2,817,758) (5,223,601)
CASH INFLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEENRAERA
ACTIVITIES - NET REE 18,562,020 22,294,520
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2017 2016
—B—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHELENEEHRE
Dividend received from associates Bl E T ERE 908,581 1,633,123
Dividend received from joint ventures BREETERE - 27,889
Dividend received from available-for-sale BERAIHEERERE
investments 218,593 75,327
Interest received RE NS 212,399 90,937
Decrease/(increase) of term deposits FHETORD/(38h0) 82,229 (368,710)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, ~ BEWE « BEMKE
prepaid lease payments, mining rights and ENHEETIE - RKEER
exploration and resources rights &R B R (15,527,187) (16,319,256)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWME BE - JEW
equipment FriS5IA 239,401 145,121
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease HEBNHEEERNAMERIE
payments - 6,840
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries-net HEWBARMESRIEFHE 445,824 34,274
Proceeds from disposal of other equity HEHMERIRERMEHRIEA
investments = 200,409
Loans to associates M EDEER (654,872) (609,619)
(Loans to)/loans repaid by joint ventures (MEELEER),/
RECEEREXK (118,507) 37,566
Loans to an available-for-sale investee company ~ [AIAJ#EEERHKIKE R RIE R - (74,016)
Loans repaid by other related parties Hin Bl H B RSN 19,919 34,485
Capital contributions into available-for-sale RAEHERETE
investments = (30,160)
Capital contributions into associates At ST ETE (530,382) (96,699)
Proceeds from repayment of capital contributions EUS A ERERETE
for an available-for-sale investment Fri5s0a - 42,378
Capital contributions into joint ventures AaEt¥TE (61,494) (146,868)
Cash outflows on acquisition of interests WS & QAR
in a joint venture = (50,254)
Government grants related to assets A E BB AL 44,987 99,029
CASH OUTFLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHELENRAER
ACTIVITIES - NET R (14,720,509) (15,268,204)



2017 2016
—B—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RBETHELENEEHRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings MERITEE 38,788,104 37,360,832
Proceeds from issuance of corporate bonds BITARESEHIE - 9,379,850
Repayment of bank borrowings %\ﬁ;fﬁﬁfﬁ%\ (32,909,672) (39,326,437)
Redemption of perpetual capital securities Bk A B ARE 5 - (5,835,750)
Coupon payment on perpetual capital securities ﬁﬂ<5ﬁ§$u§%ﬁ‘]% - (210,915)
Proceeds from issuance of shares for exercised — FLIT{EEERRIEZE 1T
options FT1SRIA 33,954 3,454
Proceeds from sale of shares held for share & B 52 B AT B PR AR (D
award scheme B FT1S 3R 55,184 —
Capital contributions to acquisition of additional 4 8% —fEIfT & A 71 EESN
interest in a subsidiary A oAy = (188,087)
Capital contributions from non-controlling IR LA
interests 497,611 404,851
Advabce from/(repayment of advances to) fEERR S (BEH
associates EIR) 107,090 (492,095)
Repayment of advances to joint ventures EBEA %”JE% b7 (517,812) (225,291)
Repayment of advances to other related BEHMEAEARRBR
companies (34,718) (37,153)
Advances from/(repayment of advances to) —APEZERATRR(BE
an intermediate holding company —FAPEERARRR) 800,102 (132)
(Repayment of advances to)/advances from (EEWE TE'HH PR AR ER
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries B3,/ WEB AR FEER
FRERE R (5,052) 19,520
Interests paid ERFE (4,090,291) (3,923,506)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BIRNAREHEARE (4,185,088) (4,175,587)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests EATH B A R FEERAR R
of the subsidiaries BB (1,770,857) (2,333,321)
CASH OUTFLOWS FROM FINANCING METHELNRESR L FHE
ACTIVITIES - NET (3,231,445) (9,579,767)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BeRBLEEMEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2)#8E 610,066 (2,553,451)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FORERBRESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 4,347,022 7,273,945
EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES) BERWE (BX) 424,598 (373,472)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERRAERRESEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 5,381,686 4,347,022



Overview

Net Profit for 2017 amounted to approximately HK$4,623 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 40.0% as compared
with 2016.

Basis of preparation of financial statements and principal
accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale investments which are carried at fair value.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622, the Laws of Hong Kong).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$39,911 million. The Board is of the opinion
that, taking into account the banking facilities undrawn by the
Group as well as the current operation conditions of the Group,
the Group has sufficient working capital to enable it to meet
in full its financial obligations as they fall due for at least the
following twelve months from the balance sheet date. Therefore,
these financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

Except as described below, the accounting policies applied are
consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016, as described in those annual
financial statements.

(@) New and amended standards, effective for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 January 2017:

e Amendments to HKAS 12 “Income taxes”

e  Amendments to HKAS 7 “Statement of cash flows”

e Amendment to HKFRS 12
other entities”

“Disclosure of interest in
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New and amended standards that have been issued but
are effective for the financial year after 1 January 2017 and
have not been early adopted by the Group

e Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 “Sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture”

° HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

e  HKFRS15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

e Amendments to HKFRS 2 “Classification on
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions”

e  Amendments to HKFRS 4, “Insurance Contracts”

e Amendment to HKFRS 1 “First time adoption of HKFRS"

e  Amendment to HKAS 28 “Investments in associates and
joint ventures”

e Amendment to HKAS 40 “Transfers of investment
property”

e  HKFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration”

° HKFRS 16 “Leases”

e Amendment to HK(IFRIC) 23 “Uncertainty Over Income
Tax Treatments”

The management has made an assessment of the impact of
the above new standards and amendments to standards, and
the result is consistent with assessment the management
made and disclosed in the annual financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION SERB[RDPER
Turnover represents revenue received and receivable arising on EEZEEFAMBEEE N - Kk LEET
sales of electricity, coal and heat supply, net of value-added tax,  URANFEUR A FREE (FOBRIEEFLIE) -
during the year.
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Sales of electricity BHHE 64,013,900 59,484,597
Of which: Sales of power generated from  Hf 1 ANEREEHE
thermal power plants 56,532,142 53,449,457
Sales of power generated from AEARRES
renewable energy HE 7,481,758 6,035,140
Heat supply Hpe e 3,763,647 3,128,114
Sales of coal BRI H & 5,534,130 3,599,879
73,311,677 66,212,590

The Group’'s turnover for 2017 was HK$73,312 million,
representing a 10.7% increase from HK$66,213 million in 2016,
mainly attributable to (1) a year-on-year increase of 5.1% in
the sales of electricity from subsidiary power plants, (2) the
government increased the on-grid tariffs for coal-fired plants
through measures including cancelling special fund for structural
adjustment of industrial enterprises from 1 July 2017, and (3)
a year-on-year increase of 57.5% in the selling price of coal.
However, the above factors were partially offset as the Group’s
revenue is substantially denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") and
with the depreciation of the RMB against the Hong Kong dollar
("HKD"), the value of turnover presented in HKD recorded a year-
on-year decrease.

The Group is currently engaged in three main business areas -
thermal power (inclusive of coal-fired and gas-fired power plants),
renewable energy (inclusive of wind farms, hydro-electric and
photovoltaic power projects) and coal mining.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Féii@ujuﬁﬁ& *ﬁ

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS D ERARFER

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by — ZIRE D 2O ITHAREBE UL A K LS 10

reportable segments: N
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tHF+-A=+—HLEE
Thermal ~ Renewable Coal
power energy mining  Eliminations Total
A&  ABLRR o h it act

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER TiEn TER TiEn TER

Segment revenue PEBA

External sales MhEpsEE 60,295,789 7,481,758 5,534,130 — 73,311,677

Inter-segment sales PEFEHE - - 118,931 (118,931) -
Total b 60,295,789 7,481,758 5,653,061 (118,931) 73,311,677
Segment profit AEFE 6,538,715 4,154,059 2,896,483 — 13,589,257
Unallocated corporate expenses FOBELEER (1,427,129)
Interest income FEKA 310,854
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HE RN B A RKE 143,965
Losses on disposal of other equity HEEMEGREER

investments, net i (133,065)
Finance costs HEER (3,991,498)
Share of results of associates Eﬂﬁ%’kﬁ%%f‘i 136,448
Share of results of joint ventures RS EEE (104,558)
Dividend income from available-for-sale ﬁﬁ’%&ﬁﬁx%ﬂ&/\

investments 189,572
Exchange losses B iEE (193,456)
Profit before income tax BHEAIAE 8,520,390
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—R"F+_A=1+—HLEFE
Thermal Renewable Coal
power energy mining  Eliminations Total
KE  WEERR RRRR it @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR BT T TiET e

Segment revenue AEBA

External sales NBEHE 56,577,571 6,035,140 3,599,879 — 66,212,590

Inter-segment sales PPREEE — — 99,232 (99,232) -
Total @it 56,577,571 6,035,140 3,699,111 (99,232) 66,212,590
Segment profit/(loss) FHHE/ (EE) 13,835,139 3,010,846 (320,448) — 16,525,537
Unallocated corporate expenses FOBLEER (960,483)
Interest income FEMA 279,427
Fair value changes on derivative TEERIANDAEE

financial instruments g (17,552)
Gains on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEREARAKE 26,121
Gains on disposal of other equity HEEERREKE

investments, net ] 203,556
Finance costs HEER (3,557,220)
Share of results of associates BBa %5 288,995
Share of results of joint ventures BhAELEEE (44,968)
Dividend income from available-for-sale A HERER RN

investments 78,778
Exchange gains i s 219,397
Profit before income tax B A 71 B8 13,041,588

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DI EIRE B TISKETE




Geographical information

Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets are located in
the PRC, and operations for the year were substantially carried
out in the PRC.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses mainly comprise fuels, repairs and
maintenance, depreciation and amortisation, employee benefit
expenses, consumables, tax and surcharge, impairment charges,
and other operating expenses. Other operating expenses
include safety production expenses of coal, office rent, water
charges, production maintenance fees, utility expenses and other
management expenses. Operating expenses in 2017 amounted
to HK$62,814 million, representing an increase of 21.2% from
HK$51,816 million in 2016.

Fuels for 2017 amounted to approximately HK$38,072 million,
representing an increase of HK$10,873 million or 40.0% from
HK$27,199 million for 2016. This was mainly due to a 37.0%
increase in the average unit fuel cost and a 3.9% increase in net
generation volume of the Group’s consolidated coal-fired power
plants in 2017.

In 2017, repairs and maintenance expenses decreased by
approximately HK$294 million or 13.7% to approximately
HK$1,848 million, which was mainly attributable to the decrease
in the number of units which undertook repair and maintenance
in 2017 as compared with that in 2016.

In 2017, depreciation and amortisation increased by
approximately HK$625 million or 6.3% to HK$10,507 million,
mainly due to the newly commissioned Liuzhi coal-fired
generation units at the end of 2016 and the newly commissioned
wind and photovoltaic power projects.

Employee benefit expenses decreased by approximately HK$353
million or 6.4% to HK$5,178 million from approximately
HK$5,530 million in 2016, mainly due to personnel reassignment
and retirement due to closure of certain subsidiary coal mines of
the Group, resulting in a decrease in the number of employees.

Tax and surcharge increased by HK$39 million or 3.5% from
HK$1,124 million in 2016 to HK$1,163 million, mainly due to
increase in coal price, leading to an increase of resource tax paid
by subsidiary coal mine producers.
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Impairment losses decreased by 33.7% from approximately
HK$1,282 million in 2016 to approximately HK$851 million
in 2017, mainly including: (1) impairment provisions of
approximately HK$703 million made for power assets, including
shutting down of 2x135MW coal-fired units in Xingning,
controlling the pace of new coal-fired power plants, discontinuing
certain coal-fired power plants and making provisions for the
capital already invested, and making impairment provisions for
obsolete environmental protection, safety and energy saving
equipment as a result of technological upgrades; (2) impairment
provisions of approximately HK$123 million was made for
mining assets, mainly due to the implementation of the plan
to shut down individual coal mines in Hunan and Shanxi which
resulted in impairment for underlying coal assets and provisions
for impairment of inventories and trade receivables of individual
projects amounting to HK$25 million in aggregate. Based on the
Group’s stakes in the power and coal assets stated above, share
of total impairment losses recognised in the Group’s Net Profit
amounted to approximately HK$844 million.

Other operating expenses in 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$4,163 million, representing an increase of HK$429 million
or 11.5% as compared with HK$3,734 million in 2016. Other
operating expenses mainly include other production costs for
power operations such as water charges, discharge fees and utility
expenses in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$2,102
million; other production costs for coal operations such as safety
production fees and production maintenance fees in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$319 million; and management fees
such as office rent, building management fees, professional fees,
transportation costs and other administrative fees in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$1,742 million.

Other income and other losses - net

In 2017, other income amounted to approximately HK$2,335
million, representing an increase of 21.4% as compared with
approximately HK$1,923 million in 2016, mainly attributable
to an increase in income received from government subsidies,
dividend income, income from sales of by-products, service
income from heat connection contracts and interest income.
Other income for the year mainly included government grant
and subsidies of approximately HK$786 million, sales of scrap
materials of approximately HK$601 million, service income from
heat connection contracts of approximately HK$333 million,
interest income of approximately HK$311 million and dividend
income of approximately HK$190 million.

5
?
[
&
[e)
<
3

@ 0y

%@ 1%\
¥4 A %
0/07;7 Yal Report 2017 &
= o) %ﬂg
MPany Limited B
°
REEBRA-ZT— NFLH12.82E BT TR

33.7% =48 511EE L TEREFE:(1)E

HEEFIEREBEL7TBEET TEZH
(FEER S 135 K FHMAR « 1758 5l ¥R R
HERRE  EIERAEBOMESHILEE
RANE S T ABE - AR B R Tk
EMBERIRRE AR BT IRRE
QRQEBEETREBELN123B8F L T2
R RE KL AR ERERE R EET
g BREBEEREENERE  REE
RIIEE 7 & EERIIRRETRBEO.25EE
TG o RIBAEBEE FlEH MEEEENE
REEELAI » EHRAREIB K ANERBFF B
EH)8.A4 BT ©

—EtFNEMEERATOR41.631EF
T BT NF37.34EFTIEIMNL. 2918

BILK115%  EMEERITERRESE
NEBHHEMEEKRAIKE - 558 -
HEZAHH21.02E88 T EREKNE
WEERANEZEEESE  HEBSERS
H319EE L BAEHEE EFEE
B BEXE . ERHE THHESSEERE
BRATH17.42(8T -

HWAFMEIE X -

—E-EFNEMKALY R2335EE
LB T RNFEHNI1923EBEF T LFH
21.4%  FZ 2 W R B BT B - AR B IR
A BERBERA - @EEREBWA - A
MFBW AR - RFEEMKAEE
BIERBRBFE REREA7.86 BT -
HEBRKALNGOEETL  APERE
WA#333EBIL  FIBWAXDINES
TC 0 MR BURA L) 1.90 @B T -

3T
HER



Other losses - net were approximately HK$353 million, including
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment of HK$364
million, exchange losses of HK$193 million, partially offset by
gains from capacity replacement of HK$91 million for coal and
insurance indemnity income of HK$25 million.

Operating profit

Operating profit represents profit from subsidiaries before
deduction of finance costs, income tax expense and non-
controlling interests. Operating profit amounted to approximately
HK$12,480 million for 2017, representing a decrease of 23.7%
from HK$16,355 million for 2016. The decrease in operating
profit was mainly due to the significant increase in unit fuel cost
of the Group's subsidiary coal-fired power plants.

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$3,991 million in
2017, representing an increase of HK$434 million or 12.2% from
HK$3,557 million in 2016, mainly due to the increase in bank and
other borrowings of the Group during the year.

Hipidk - FHAOR3L3EET Hh B
EME BMEAREREBRKX364EE
T EHBER1EET KEXERER
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8122% T ERANFRAEERNIRIT
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2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TET
Interests on bank and other borrowings RITREMEEF S 3,585,454 3,283,822
Interests on corporate bonds NEEHFE 803,024 648,152
Others Hitb 91,254 86,806
4,479,732 4,018,780

Less: Interests capitalised in property, B RE - BE &
plant and equipment REEAMEHF B (488,234) (461,560)
3,991,498 3,557,220
\\!/,




Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates in 2017 amounted to HK$136
million, compared to that of HK$289 million in 2016, which was
mainly due to the decrease in profitability of associate coal-fired
power plants as a result of a significant increase in coal prices.

Share of results of joint ventures

Share of results of joint ventures recorded a loss of approximately
HK$105 million in 2017, compared to a loss of HK$45 million in
2016. The increased loss was mainly attributable to the increased
losses incurred by Hezhou Power Plant in Guangxi due to the
increase in coal prices.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$2,902 million, representing a decrease of HK$1,497 million or
34.0% from HK$4,398 million in 2016. The decrease in enterprise
income tax was mainly due to the decline in profit of subsidiary
coal-fired power plants.
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Details of the income tax expense for the years ended 31 HE-_Z—+FN _T— X XF+_f=+—
December 2017 and 2016 are set out below: RIEtFEEMMESHRERFEIHINNT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current income tax — PRC enterprise EHIREMIE PR E
income tax Frig e 3,129,034 4,464,475
Deferred income tax EIEFTIS IR (227,348) (66,035)
2,901,686 4,398,440

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no taxable profit or incurred tax losses in Hong Kong
for both years.

The PRC enterprise income tax has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax
rates applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC.
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Operating profit for the year FRERE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Operating profit for the year has been FAKLEN B MNHR T
arrived at after charging: &I
Directors’ remuneration =
— Fees —HE 1,335 1,335
— Salaries and bonus -~ ITERES 23,133 18,738
— Pension costs — R AR 156 488
24,624 20,561
Wages, salaries and bonus TERES 4,395,857 4,489,471
Pension costs, excluding directors BIKKA  TNEEES
— retirement benefit schemes —RKEFETE 624,206 685,263
Employees termination benefits RIREE R A A 133,076 335,194
Total staff costs =N 5,177,763 5,530,489
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TERHE S A 95,892 93,671
Amortisation of mining rights PR i 396,292 360,138
Auditor’s remuneration % BN B 12,056 10,872
Cost of inventories recognised FEXRAERBLE AT H
as operating expenses 39,132,963 28,139,644
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #12 - = MRIEITE 10,015,238 9,428,679
Impairment loss on property, plant and M WERERERERX
equipment 728,239 1,000,347
Reversal of impairment loss on prepaid ENEEERRERE
lease payments (2,112) (3,071)
Impairment loss on mining rights HRIEEREELX 99,808 119,687
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREERX - 136,370
Impairment loss on inventories FEUEEE 28,984 19,670
(Reversal of)/provision for doubtful accounts AR CRERE) & (4,254) 9,285
Minimum lease payments under operating BEGEHAOEFEATYSIE
leases in respect of: MxEHEEER :
— land and buildings — T REF 133,496 93,817
Fair value changes on derivative financial TEemI AR FEEE
instruments (included in other gains) (BEBREREMFE) = 17,552



and after crediting:

Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments

Government grant

Interest income

Sales of scrap materials

Service income from heat connection
contracts

Net exchange (losses)/gains (included in
other gains/(losses))

Net gains on disposal of a subsidiary
(included in other gains/(losses))

Net (losses)/gains on disposal of other
equity investment (included in other
gains/(losses))

Net losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (included in other
gains/(losses))

Net gains on disposal of prepaid
lease payments (included in other
gains/(losses))

Expenses capitalised in construction
in progress:

Other staff costs

Pension costs

Depreciation and amortisation
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Profit attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company decreased from approximately HK$7,708 million in =
2016 to approximately HK$4,623 million in 2017, representing a

40.0% decrease year-on-year.
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2017

—EB-tF

HK$'000
FTET

189,572
785,581
310,854
600,707

333,227

(193,456)

143,965

(133,065)

(363,925)

439,761
30,912
41,966

RNRBEE AR

oo p—

2016
—E—RF
HK$°000
FHT

78,778
592,838
279,427
489,930
225,347
219,397

26,121
203,556

(447,066)

4,760

463,910
28,827
51,419
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Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Profit attributable to owners of the Company ZANAFI#EHE A &1L F)E

Weighted average number of ordinary shares Bzt EEREAEFIME -

excluding own shares held for incentive Tim AR (IR SRE
plan for the purpose of basic earnings FTEIPTFE 2 AN & R (n
per share Y N T35 81

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

HEBRRNECHETE

BREF

ARFRE NEENSRERRBERF L
R T AR E

2017
—E2—+tH§
HK$'000
FET

4,623,323

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FAET

7,708,373

Number of ordinary shares

ERR#E
2017 2016
—B—tF A
4,777.316,320  4,772,621,357

— share options — R 174,857 1,008,196

Weighted average number of ordinary T EFREERN
shares for the purpose of diluted mE - HiEke

earnings per share IniEF 58 4,777,491,177  4,773,629,553

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —T—REF

HK$ HK$

BT BTT

Basic earnings per share ERELRAT 0.97 1.62

Diluted earnings per share BREERT 0.97 1.61



Final dividend and closure of register of members

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.75
per share for 2017 (2016: HK$0.75 per share).
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BEEEIAEZ T LFEXRBRBE AT
0.758L(ZF—RF : K0.7587L) °

2017 2016
—Z2—tF —T-REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Dividends recognised as distribution FHANEDIRHRE :
during the year:
2017 Interim, paid — HK$0.125 per share BJRff —ZT—+FHhHIAL S
(2016: HK$0.125 per share) —E/%0.1258 T
TE—RFE
Fh8%0.125%87T) 601,305 597,500
2016 Final, paid — HK$0.75 per share BIRN ZZE—RFERBKE
(2015: HK$0.75 per share) — &% 0.75%8 7T
—ZT-hEF:
FR0.75%7T) 3,584,343 3,578,474
4,185,648 4,175,974

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Monday,
28 May 2018 (the "AGM"), the proposed final dividend will be
distributed on or about Thursday, 5 July 2018 to shareholders of
the Company whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 20 June
2018.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 23 May 2018 to Monday, 28 May 2018 (both days
inclusive), during which no share transfer will be registered. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 21 May 2018.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017, the register of members
of the Company will be closed on Wednesday, 20 June 2018 and
no share transfer will be registered on that day. To qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’'s
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 19 June 2018.

Capital structure management

The Group and the Company manage capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s and the
Company’s overall strategy remain unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes long-term and short-term bank borrowings, corporate
bonds, loans from related parties, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged and restricted bank deposits and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained earnings.

The Board has reviewed the capital structure on a periodic basis.
As part of the review, the Board considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
the resolution of the Board, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts or the
repayment of existing debts.

Liquidity and financial resources, borrowings, and
charge of assets

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately HK$39,911
million as at 31 December 2017. The Directors are of the opinion
that, taking into account the presently undrawn banking facilities
and internal financial resources of the Group, the Group has
sufficient working capital for its present requirements for at
least the next twelve months commencing from the date of the
financial statements.

The cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2017
denominated in HKD, RMB and other foreign currencies amounted
to approximately HK$365 million, RMB4,180 million and US$2
million.

ARETEFAEEE T+t +_A=+—H
IFFEBIR AR S AR - ANQ R
BRBR-E-N\FAAZTRH(EHZE
= BRETSHEROHBFELTFE - A
FEERZEBRKRNARAKRE - TERHA
FXHERBEREREAN_ZT—N\FN
A+hB(E28-) TFEE=+5F1R B A
RENBRNBFELEE BT RESFZSLE
BRAF - i AEEET E2ERER 1835
SMAN17TEITIZE 1716 E ©

EREBEE
AEERARTNEAERNTE HRRAE
EREERETEEREE  ABER
2 VTNl SIS LS PR:
5 o 758 B R A2 ) B S L £ —
B TS -

AEBELNGEBEEFAB(HTEERE
HIRITEE  RAfEs  BBAOESR) ]
e MREEFEY SEALZRBIETHE
RRARPEE ARGER(BRDETH
K- EEMREFE)

SR THRNERER - (FRRTH—&F
D BERGEREARANEG—BHEN
BRMER - AEBEREESFEIRE

BIR S  BITHREBBEG - AR
BOTHENEEREABETOEBRRERNGE

e

RBESRMBER BEREERR

AEBR - ZE—+F+_A=+—HEAR
BEEFENININEBT - EFRA
KERIARBIHEBANFETREMAEERN
N HEERE  AEBERHLEEDE
NEBRME(AIZ2L B KRER BB
KE+—MEA) °

RZZE—+F+_A=+—"H  UBT A
REREMINEDIERNRE MRS EEY S
R R365EEBIIT ARK41.80E T &
0.0218%ETT



The bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
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2017 and 2016 were as follows:

=+ AMRTREMEENT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Secured bank loans BIRWIEITER 4,115,637 3,743,443
Unsecured bank loans EIAIRITERK 77,325,486 69,514,469
Corporate bonds NAES 19,481,746 18,205,490
Loans from related parties Ba R 7 fE K 800,000 —
101,722,869 91,463,402
The maturity profile of the above bank and other borrowings is as  F#i$R{T R EMEENIEHEWNOT ¢
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within 1 year —FERX 32,960,983 21,296,587
Between 1 and 2 years R —FETEBME 20,774,002 10,675,634
Between 2 and 5 years R T AT EIR RS 25,426,074 39,598,307
Over 5 years il hF 22,561,810 19,892,874
101,722,869 91,463,402
The above secured bank and Pt EEFRRIT R
other borrowings are secured by: HmEENATSIEE
YEHFR -
Pledge of assets (note) EEEBFEE) 3,072,225 3,042,672

Note: Certain bank loans were secured by the Group’s land use rights, buildings, and
power generating plant and equipment with carrying values of HK$940,000
(2016: HK$7,673,000), HK$1,137,179,000 (2016: HK$1,057,910,000) and
HK$1,934,106,000 (2016: HK$1,977,089,000), respectively.

GEX

ETROTEFRAREBIREES 5 BI40TF 5
7T (ZZF—R&E:7,673T#7xT) ~ 1,137,179
FHL (ZZF—XF :1,057,910F#Fx) &
1,934,106 8L (ZF—/"F : 1,977,089 F %
;‘t) WLHERE  BF  BEHmERBEER
ﬁilo

Bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2017 denominated RZZE—tF+ZA=+—8 ' LEIT " A

in HKD, RMB and other foreign currencies amounted to

REREMINEFENRTTREMEE DR

approximately HK$18,502 million, RMB68,769 million, US$120 #J/4185.0218# T - AR¥687.69187T -

million and EUR2 million, respectively.

1.201B3T K% 0.02 BEUT °



As at 31 December 2017, bank and other borrowings of
approximately HK$18,502 million and US$120 million (2016:
HK$17,632 million and US$120 million) bore interest at a range
from HIBOR plus 0.85% to HIBOR plus 1.80% per annum and
LIBOR plus 1.60% per annum, respectively. The remaining bank
and other borrowings carried interest rates at a range from
2.75% t0 6.40% (2016: 2.77% to 6.40%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net debt to shareholders’
equity was 126.9%, and total debt to total capitalisation was
55.7%. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has a stable
capital structure, which can support its future development plans
and operations.

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2017, the Group’'s
primary sources of funding included new bank borrowings,
dividend income and net cash inflow from operating activities,
which amounted to HK$38,788 million, HK$1,127 million and
HK$18,562 million, respectively. The Group’s funds were primarily

R-B—+E+-A=+—8  RITIEHEM
EEBESREA185.02EE TR 1.208%E
TT(ZZ—7RF  176.321B L 1.2018%
T D RIAN FEBRITRIERE N 0.85F
EEE fEﬁH%TﬁHmsoEmfF%W&
WHEEEREMI0OENENERFE M
BTIETREMEERNTT2.75E=6.40
B(ZZE—XRE 277EZE6.40F )8 EF
KETB o

7

E—tF+-A=1+—H AxEENF
,a%mx%*“ LE R 5126.9% @ EBEYH
uéf$tt?7%557% BEERE AKH
MEREEET I RBERRERTEIR

o

;\b\m//>
_FHI

D

=

Bl EZT—+F+-_A=+—H1t+=
A AEBMEZEE R RBEENERITE
f? H& WA RGEEEEENRESRAF

oAl &387.881E B L~ 112718 B T
&185621%5%7_5 AEENESTEMAE

used for the repayment of bank borrowings, acquisition of and EBERITEE  BEWE MELXRENLTE
deposits paid for property, plant and equipment and prepaid {17 iffﬁ(lﬁmﬁﬁ KIE M iRE - IRE R
lease payments, interest and dividend payments, which amounted %2+ 25 A&329.10&8 7T * 155.2718/48
to HK$32,910 million, HK$15,527 million, HK$4,090 HK$5,956 JT * 40.90 &8 L% 59.56 BT °
million, respectively.
Trade and note receivables YRR K EWERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
Trade receivables JE W BR X 9,789,845 7,814,499
Note receivables e 788,129 1,048,236
10,577,974 8,862,735
Less: provision for impairment B EWAR TR AR
of trade receivables (159,973) (140,410)
10,418,001 8,722,325

Trade receivables are generally due within 60 days from the date
of billing.

JEUBR X — AR MR B2 B BARERT 60 B A EIER o
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The following is an aging analysis of trade and note receivables A TN ARHEHREDIFEEKIER - EfbfE
included in trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments HSZ,TAIEEZ?E\H K IE A B B BR B R FE W R R

at the end of the reporting period: FIBREE AT ¢
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET FET
0 - 30 days 0&230H 6,868,924 6,122,293
31 - 60 days 31260H 655,806 579,000
Over 60 day 60 HLA F 3,053,244 2,161,442
10,577,974 8,862,735

Trade payables FE A5 R X

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables included in AN ARFEHARBIELEMRR - HibE
trade payables, other payables and accruals at the end of the 7B K FERTE A EIRAA R 9

reporting period: o

2017 2016
—ZE—tF T—RFE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
THExT FET
0 - 30 days 0Z30H 5,112,944 6,030,620
31 - 90 days 31290 H 2,779,780 2,103,095
Over 90 days 90 B £ 3,494,283 2,790,181
11,387,007 10,923,896

Average credit term for purchases is 90 days. BETHEEHABH -

Key financial ratios of the Group RNEBEWETEMKLE R
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Current ratio (times) MENEL R () 0.41 0.46
Quick ratio (times) RENL R (fF) 0.36 0.40
Net debt to shareholders’ equity (%) FEEHREER (%) 126.9 124.6

EBITDA interest coverage (times) ™ EBITDA | BRBEFE(FF) O 5.4 6.9



Current ratio = balance of current assets at the end of the year /

balance of current liabilities at the end of the year

Quick ratio = (balance of current assets at the end of the year
- balance of inventories at the end of the year) /
balance of current liabilities at the end of the year

Net debt = (balance of borrowings at the end of the year -

to shareholders’ balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of
equity the year - balance of pledged cash at the end of the

year) / balance of equity attributable to owners of
the Company at the end of the year

EBITDA interest =
coverage

(profit before taxation + interest expense +
depreciation and amortisation) / interest expenditure
(including capitalised interests)

Note:

(1) Excluding non-cash income and expenses, being impairment charges, changes in
fair value of derivative financial instruments and exchange gains and losses.

Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group collects substantially all of its revenue in RMB
and most of the Group’s expenditures including expenditures
incurred in its operations as well as capital expenditures are also
denominated in RMB. Dividends receivable from the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates can be collected in either RMB, US
Dollar (“USD") or HKD.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Future exchange rates
of RMB could vary significantly from the current or historical
exchange rates as a result of controls that could be imposed by
the PRC government. The exchange rates may also be affected
by economic developments, political changes and supply and
demand of RMB. The appreciation or devaluation of RMB against
HKD and USD may have positive or negative impact on the results
of operations of the Group.

The majority of the Group's operations are in the PRC and the
Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB which is
the functional currency of the respective group entities. Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from certain borrowings denominated
in HKD and USD, particularly depreciation of the RMB against
HKD and USD. However, certain entities are located in Hong
Kong and their functional currency is HKD or USD. The foreign
exchange risk for them mainly arises from balances denominated
in RMB.

mEht & = RFEEMRBEELS TEF
BHREEESR

REPLL K = (RERORHEELEH -
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI AR DT

In addition, given there are different functional currencies within
the Group, there is still foreign exchange risk which arises from
the transactions and balances within the Group even after
intra-group eliminations. The carrying amounts of the foreign
currencies denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
before elimination as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Assets BE
usD =
RMB AR
HKD BT
Liabilities =L
RMB AR
Euro BT

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge
its exposure against changes in exchange rates of the RMB
against HKD and USD.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group provided certain guarantees
amounting to HK$3,849,912,000.

In addition, there were certain pending litigations and claims
against the Group. After consulting with legal counsels, the
Directors are of the view that the likelihood of any material
adverse financial impact to the Group is remote. Therefore, no
provisions have been made in light of such litigations and claims.
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Group
AEE
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
12,965 12,814
15,121,282 16,148,124
79,196 20,800
6,579,650 8,496,268
14,521 12,748

AEBYERBITES R T AL T AREY
BTN ETTE R AR

HAREE
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SPEIEREY - Sakiin

Employees

The Group had 29,827 employees as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
33,604 employees).

The Company and its subsidiaries have concluded employment
contracts with all of their respective employees. The compensation
of employees mainly includes salaries and performance-based
bonuses.

Medium to Long-term Performance Evaluation Incentive
Plan

The Company has adopted the Medium to Long-term Performance
Evaluation Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan aims to link
the performance of employees and the management and the
overall operating results and the accomplishment of strategic
objectives of the Company to the income of employees and
the management through medium and long term performance
appraisals. The Plan was effective from 25 April 2008 for a term
of 10 years unless terminated at the discretion of the Board at an
earlier date.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company sold
3,452,323 Shares on the Stock Exchange through the trustee.
The net proceeds of the sale amounting to HK$51,180,327 were
distributed through the Plan.
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INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) strive to
ensure that the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) meet
high standards of safety, performance and corporate governance.

The Board has ultimate authority over, and oversight of, the
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Group's operations and regards good corporate governance as a I ' WRARITMNTEE AKFEFERELRSE
critical element in the drive to improve the Group's performance BRIE N EK At R —Re0R M &R LA

and achieve the Group’s vision of being a world class energy
provider and one of the most admired employers in China.

BeEXEIEE . —WEREZE -

In 2017, CR Power has applied all of the principles and complied Z—Z—+ - FEEE HERKAMEELIL
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance HIES(MNEEASTEIN([FE]] @E/\\E/a
Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to The Rules EtAXSHAMRARES MBI EHR

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The following summarizes the Company’s corporate governance

A1 1) 8400 ) Pt ey <7 RIS o

TXAAR DB EREAER N AT

practices and explains the implementation of recommended best EHERIEFERAEIE o

practices.

A.1 The Board Al EE8
The Board is responsible for the optimization of the EEGHNTEAAANEEEGE
Company's corporate governance, and is ultimately F o WHEHARARNEBRE - EHE

accountable for the Company’s strategic planning, operating
activities and operating results.

The Board Charter is published on the Company’s website
(www.cr-power.com) under the “Investor Relations” section.
The Board Charter is reviewed regularly and enhanced
where necessary to take account of changes in the law and
governance practices.

ENREXRERARKEE -

EESEREEHRARA M
(www.cr-power.com) B[ % & & 1% |
— W -EECERETHEN LER
T UNREARAEZEZRNE RS RN

The Board is ultimately responsible for the oversight and EEEHEFENER KLEEE2HE
review of management, administration and the overall a}uﬁﬁ ?ELP&EQ“EI’]H‘&E v Al

governance of CR Power and its strategic direction. The
Board plays a central supporting and supervisory role in CR

/\,\%”IF_E@ZH} TE e BEREHEEN
BEINEREARBTAEIZNS

Power’s corporate governance structure, provides leadership RLEEEE  AASEMEIHREM
and guidance to the Group's activities, and oversees the BB RIESIMEE RN EEEFEER
execution of the Group’s business strategies. AT o



This includes:

>

the protection of shareholders’ interests by seeking to
ensure that CR Power’s strategic direction provides and
creates value for its shareholders;

establishing goals for management and monitoring the
achievement of those goals;

authorising policies and overseeing the strategic
implementation of these policies;

seeking to ensure that CR Power’s internal control and
reporting procedures are adequate; and

ensuring that management can effectively perform its
duties. The Board’s policy is to regularly monitor the
effectiveness of management policies and decisions,
including the implementation of strategies.

The Board oversees the implementation and operation
of a risk management system. In addition to fulfilling its
obligations to generate rewards for shareholders who
invest their capital in CR Power, the Board recognises that
CR Power has responsibilities to its customers, employees
and suppliers and to the communities in which CR Power
operates.

In carrying out its responsibilities and powers as set out in
the Board Charter, the Board will at all times recognise its
ultimate responsibility to:

>

>

maintain good corporate governance standards;
act honestly, fairly and diligently;

supervise safety, health and environmental issues
associated with the Company’s operations;

establish a “zero-tolerance” culture in relation to

corruption;
act in accordance with laws and regulations;

avoid conflicts of interest;
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»  promote CR Power as a good corporate citizen; and

» achieve and maintain community respect.

Non-executive directors should use all reasonable endeavours
to ensure that CR Power’s business, operations and
transactions are conducted in accordance with the law and
the highest standards of propriety.

The Company has set forth matters that require the Board's
approval in its Board Charter.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provisions A.1.1 to A.1.8, as
described as follows:

A.1.1Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, meetings
of the Board should be held at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. During the year,
the Board held a total of twelve Board meetings.

The Board met twelve times in 2017. Each meeting
involved the active participation in person of a majority
of Directors entitled to be present. Out of the twelve
meetings, the Board held four meetings through
conference call.

In the year under review, Ms. Zhou Junging, Mr. Ge
Changxin, Mr. Hu Min, Ms. Wang Xiao Bin, Mr. Chen
Ying, Mr. Wang Yan, Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung,
Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie, Dr. Raymond Ch’ien Kuo
Fung and Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong were Directors
throughout the year.

In 2017, there were no changes in directorship
announced during the year.

Ms. Zhou Junging has resigned as the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director, Mr Li Ru Ge has been
appointed as the Chairman of the Board and a Non-
executive Director of the Company, all with effect from
5 March 2018.
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The former and current Directors’ attendance at the
meetings of the Board and the Annual General Meeting
(the “AGM") during the year is as follows:

Li Ru Ge (Note 1) i (MIEE)
Chen Ying (Note 2) PR (P3E2)
Wang Yan (Not 2) FEME2)
Zhou Junging (Note 3) AEB(MEE3)
Ge Changxin B
Hu Min HABL
Wang Xiao Bin FW
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung 5 IR
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REFF
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung ERE

(Note 4) (PfisE4)
Jack So Chak Kwong BROZN

Note (1):

Note (2):

Note (3):

Note (4):

Mr. Li Ru Ge has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board
and a Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 5
March 2018.

Given that Mr. Chen Ying and Mr. Wang Yan are concurrently
holding senior positions in the Company’s controlling shareholder
group, they have abstained from voting on the Board resolutions
regarding certain transactions in two of the twelve board
meetings held during the year.

Ms. Zhou Junging has resigned as the Chairman of the Board and
an Executive Director of the Company with effect from 5 March
2018.

Due to conflict of interest, Mr. Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung
abstained from voting on a Board resolution in one of the twelve
board meetings held during the year.

AMERREEEHREAFEES
gl RBEAS (KRB

FAREDHERET :

Attendance

rate of board

meetings

Number of during the

board office of
meetings directorship Attendance
attended THEHE of the AGM
HEESE EEeRE  HERX
eV HEE  BEAR
N/A N/A N/A
TE A A iE F T iE
1710 10% —
2/10 20% —
10/12 83% 4
12/12 100% v
10/12 83% —
12/12 100% v
11/12 92% v
11/12 92% v
11/11 100% v
10/12 83% —
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A.1.2Throughout the year under review, arrangements

were in place to ensure that all Directors were given
an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings. The Board is supported by four
committees, namely the Audit and Risk Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Sustainability Committee to ensure that it is
well equipped to discharge its responsibilities. Each
committee has its own terms of reference which are
available on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.
com). The terms of reference of each committee are
reviewed regularly and enhanced where necessary to
take account of changes in the rules and regulations
and governance practices. The chairperson of respective
committees reported to the Board regularly and
made recommendations on matters discussed when
appropriate. Members of senior management of the
Company may attend committee meetings upon
invitation by the relevant chairperson.

A.1.3In the year under review, notice of at least 14 days was

given of a regular Board meeting, giving all Directors
an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice was given. The Board aims to set
dates of regular meetings, AGM and site visits at the
start of each year, so that all Directors can make proper
arrangements to ensure attendance of the meetings
and visits.

A.1.4The Company Secretary attended all Board and

committee meetings except meetings of the
Remuneration Committee where a person (other than
a member of senior management) was appointed as
secretary. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board Committees were kept by the Company Secretary
or duly appointed personnel and were arranged to
be reviewed by the Directors present at the meetings
before signing by the chairperson of the respective
meetings. Such minutes will be made available by the
Company for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director when he/she deems
necessary.
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A.1.5Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees recorded in detail the matters considered
by the Board or Board Committees and decisions
reached. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board
meetings and meetings of Board Committees were sent
to all Directors for their comments within a reasonable
time after the Board or committee meetings were held.

A.1.6The Board Charter sets out the policy that Directors,
especially Non-executive Directors should be provided
with sufficient resources in the furtherance of their
duties as Board/Committee members, including access
to independent professional advice, if necessary, at the
Company’s expense.

A.1.7Physical board meetings, as opposed to written
resolutions, were held to consider matters in which a
substantial shareholder or Director had a conflict of
interest which the Board determined to be material.
At these physical board meetings, Independent Non-
executive Directors who, and whose close associates,
had no material interest in the transaction were
present. Directors who had a conflict of interest
abstained from voting.

A.1.8The Company has arranged corporate liability insurance
coverage in respect of legal actions against its Directors.

The Board Committees have adopted, so far as practicable,
the principles, procedures and arrangements set out in A.1.1
to A.1.8 in the Code, where applicable.

The Chairman and the President

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the President has been clearly established and set out in
writing. Under A.2.1 of the Code, the role of the Chairman
and the President should be separate to ensure a balance of
power and authority. The Chairman’s primary responsibilities
include deciding on the meeting schedule and agenda,
formulating Board policies, ensuring Board effectiveness,
promoting the Company and maintaining the Company’s
corporate governance. The President has delegated authority
from, and is responsible to, the Board for managing the
Group’s business, including the implementation of the
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.
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In the period under review, the Company strictly complied
with the Code principle and Code provisions A.2.1 to A.2.9
as described below:

A.2.1The roles of the Chairman and the President of the
Company are separate and are currently assumed by
Mr. Li Ru Ge and Mr. Hu Min, respectively. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
President has been clearly established and set out in
writing. During the year, the role of the Chairman was
assumed by Madam Zhou Junging.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for providing
leadership for the Board. The duties are mainly to
ensure the effective operation of the Board, and the
establishment of and compliance with the corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Chairman
is also responsible for ensuring that appropriate
procedures are adopted to guarantee effective
communications with shareholders, and that the
shareholders’ opinions are circulated among all Board
members.

The President of the Company is responsible for
managing the Company’s business and coordinating
overall business operations, implementing major
strategies approved by the Board and making day-to-
day operation decisions.

None of the members of the Board has any connections
(including financial, business, family relationship and
other material/related relationships) with each other
(including between the Chairman and the President).

A.2.2 All Directors were properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings. Any enquiries and requests from the
Directors were followed up and responded to by the
management of the Company in a timely manner.

A.2.3The Board papers contained sufficient details and
Directors were given reasonable time to review the
contents before the meetings. All Directors who were
present at the Board meetings received adequate
information in a timely manner, prior to the meetings.
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A.2.40ne of the Chairman’s responsibilities is to provide

leadership for the Board. The Chairman ensures that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed
by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman, with
the help of other Executive Directors and Company
Secretary, is primarily responsible for drawing up and
approving the agenda for each Board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed
by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The
Chairman should delegate this responsibility to a
designated director or the Company Secretary in the
event of her absence at a board meeting.

A.2.5The Chairman takes primary responsibility for

ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established. The Chairman meets
regularly with Independent Non-executive Directors to
discuss, among others, suggestions and feedback with
regard to Board and corporate governance practices
and procedures and areas for improvement.

A.2.6The Chairman encourages all Directors to make a full

and active contribution to the Board's affairs and
takes the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the
best interests of the Company. The Chairman also
encourages Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allows sufficient time for discussion of issues
and ensures that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus.

A.2.7The ex-Chairman, Ms. Zhou Junging held a meeting

with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Executive Directors or
management in 2017.

A.2.8The Chairman ensures that appropriate steps are taken

to provide effective communication with shareholders
and that their views are communicated to the Board as
a whole.
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A.2.9The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and
debate by facilitating the effective contribution of Non-
executive Directors and ensures constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors. During
the year, the Independent Non-executive Directors
visited our 210MW photovoltaic farm in Delingha,
Qinghai Province in July 2017 and our 2x350MW heat
and power co-generation coal-fired project in Yichang,
Hubei Province in September 2017. The site visits
gave the Independent Non-executive Directors an
opportunity to meet with the Company’s front-line staff
and local management team and also gained first-hand
understanding of the Chinese power industry.

A.3 Board Composition

The Board’'s composition is determined in accordance
with the following principles, the Company’s Articles of
Association and relevant governance requirements:

»  the Company should appoint at least three Independent
Non-executive Directors and maintain Independent
Non-executive Directors representing at least one-third
of the Board;

»  the role of Chairman and President should be held by
separate persons;

» the Board should comprise of Directors with an
appropriate range and mix of skills, experience,
expertise and diversity;

»  the performance of the Board and its members should
be reviewed annually and objectively; and

»> all Directors must submit themselves for re-election at
regular intervals.
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As at the date of this report, the Board consists of 10
Directors, 3 of whom are Non-executive Directors, 3 are
Executive Directors and 4 are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The number of Independent Non-executive
Directors complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10 and
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The list of Directors and
their biographies are set out in the Directors and Senior
Management Section on page 20 to page 28 of this Annual
Report, and are available on the Company's website
(www.cr-power.com).
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Set out below are details of the composition of the Board RABREHE EFehBETLES®
and its committees as at the date of this report: R EEBIT ¢
Committee Membership
ZEERE
Board Audit
Designation Sustainability and Risk Remuneration Nomination
Director = EEERN TUHERRE 2 BREAR i rE
Li Ru Ge FHE NE, C 4 C
Ge Changxin B
Hu Min HAER
Wang Xiao Bin T/
Chen Ying PR NE
Wang Yan TE NE
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung 55 FR%E INED v C 4
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REFF INED v C v
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung R Z INED v v
Jack So Chak Kwong #OZ INED C v v
Note: FIRE -
C: Chairman C: IE‘
E: Executive Director E: iﬂﬂfii$
NE: Non-executive Director NE : FMTESR

INED: Independent Non-executive Director

INED © B IEWMITES
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10 [—
9 — 4 _Female
2 - =-70-90 0-39 7-9
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7 —
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6 —
=NED )
5 — JegiirEE | - Chinese
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—80-100
3 —
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2 — —INED
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Gender Designation Nationality Age Group Attendance Rate at  Directorship with  Directorship with
5 158 EI%E FRE Board mettings CRP (Number Other Public
in 2017(%) of Years) Companies (Number
—E—+tF REEEH of companies)
EZ28E BEEESEL RAHEMGLTAR
HER(%) (F8) BEESHT
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In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principles and Code provisions A.3.1 and A.3.2 as
described as follows:

A.3.1The Independent Non-executive Directors accounted
for more than one-third of the members of the
Board and were expressly identified in all corporate
communications that disclosed the names of Directors
of the Company.

A.3.2The Company posts the names and biographical
details of the Board members on its website (www.
cr-power.com), with their designations in the Board
clearly stated. The Company also posts on the website
of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its directors
identifying their roles and functions and whether they
are Independent Non-executive Directors.
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A.4 Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board’s Nomination Committee sets and reviews the
criteria for new Director appointments having regard to the
overall composition of the Board.

The Board seeks to ensure that its membership is such that
each Director:

» is a person of integrity;

»  has sufficient time available and abilities to perform his
or her role effectively;

»  brings an independent and questioning mind to his or
her role which enables him or her to exercise sound
judgment;

» enhances the breadth and depth of skills and
knowledge of the Board as a whole; and

»  enhances the experience and diversity of the Board as a
whole.

The service term of every Director is 3 years. All Directors
are subject to regular retirement and retiring Directors are
eligible for re-election. The staggered structure enables the
Board to change its composition in an orderly manner over
time while maintaining leadership, stability and continuity,
and allows for regular evaluation of the mix of skills and
experience, as required.

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the above principles and Code provisions A.4.1 to A.4.3
as described as follows:

A.4.1Each Non-executive Director (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) receives a letter formalizing
his or her appointment and that letter outlines the
key terms and conditions of the appointment. Each
Non-executive Director (including Independent Non-
executive Director) is appointed for a term of 3 years.
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In accordance with Article 120 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors,
including Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors
as well as Independent Non-executive Directors, shall
retire by rotation at each AGM of the Company,
provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least every three years and
a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.
Pursuant to Article 120 of the Articles of Association,
Ms. Zhou Junging, Mr. Chen Ying, Mr. Wang Yan and
Mr. Ma Chiu-Cheung, Andrew, retired from office by
rotation and were re-elected at the AGM on 8 June
2017.

A.4.2In accordance with the Company’s Articles of

Association, all new Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or being a new member of the Board of
Directors shall be subject to re-election by shareholders
at the next general meeting after their appointment (in
the case of filling casual vacancy) or next AGM (in the
case of addition to the Board). During the year, there
were no newly appointed Directors. Mr. Li Ru Ge, who
was newly appointed as Chairman of the Board and
Non-executive Director on 5 march 2018, shall retire
from office by rotation at the upcoming AGM and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

A.4.3As at the date of this report, among the Independent

Non-executive Directors, only Mr. Ma Chiu-Cheung,
Andrew has served more than 9 years. Mr. Ma was
re-elected at the AGM on 8 June 2017 by a separate
resolution. As an Independent Non-executive Director
with in-depth understanding of the Company’s
operations and business, Mr. Ma has expressed
objective view and given independent guidance to
the Company over the years, and he continues to
demonstrate a firm commitment to his role. The Board
considers that the long service of Mr. Ma would not
affect his exercise of independent judgment and is
satisfied that Mr. Ma has the required character,
integrity and experience to continue fulfilling the
role of Independent Non-executive Director. The
Board considers that the re-election of Mr. Ma as an
Independent Non-executive Director is in the best
interest of the Company and Shareholders as a whole.
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A5 Nomination Committee

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
Code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.6 as described as follows:

A.5.1The Company has established a Nomination Committee ASIEKARIHREBEREZEZESG  BE4
which is comprised of 4 members, including 3 HKE BREIZEIUIENTE

Independent Non-executive Directors and Chairman
of the Board. In 2017, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to, among other things, review the
composition and performance of the Board and the

ENEZEEIF R _FT—L
FOREZEBEHAH-—KE
& A(ERed)rdEsed
kB R IRA S PR R FHIBUR ©

policy for nomination of directors.

Number of meetings

attended/number
of meetings held Attendance
HE BITEE rate
Nomination Committee REEEEY RE i E xR
Li Ru Ge (Chairman) PHE(ERE) N/A N/A
(Note 1) (fIzE1) T iE A i A

Elsie Leung Oi-sie REFF 0/1 0%
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung ERe 1/1 100%
Jack So Chak Kwong ERZ N 1/1 100%
Zhou Junging (Note 2) A& (5 2) 1/1 100%
Note(1): Mr. Li Ru Ge has been appointed as the Chairman of the (1) : EEFRERZT-\F=AEA

Nomination Committee with effect from 5 March 2018.

Note(2): Ms. Zhou Junging has resigned as the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 5 March 2018.

A.5.2Nomination Committee’s major responsibilities are to

formulate and implement the policy for nominating
candidates for appointment on new directors or for
re-election by shareholders of the Company based on
criteria such as reputation for integrity, accomplishment
and experience, professional and educational
background, and potential time commitments, and to
assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee (which is reviewed regularly and enhanced
where necessary) have incorporated the specific duties
set out in the Code provision.

In considering the new appointment of Directors, the
Nomination Committee assesses candidates on criteria
such as integrity, independent mindedness, experience,
skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry out
duties and responsibilities effectively. In 2017, there
were no newly appointed Directors.
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A.5.3The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference are

available on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.
com) and the Stock Exchange's website.

A.5.4The Company ensures that the Nomination Committee

is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties.

Where necessary, the Nomination Committee may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’'s
expense, to perform its responsibilities.

A5.51f the Board proposes a resolution to elect an

individual as an Independent Non-executive Director
at the general meeting, it will set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general
meeting why the Company believes the individual
should be elected and the reasons why it considers the
individual to be independent.

A.5.6The Company has established a policy concerning

diversity of board members which is available on
the Company’s website (www.cr-power.com). The
Company aims to set out the approach to achieving
diversity on the Board by endorsing the principle that
the Board should have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
Company’s business. The Company welcomes a very
diverse population of people that reflects the range of
cultures and background spanned by its operations.
These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.
The Nomination Committee will consider and if
appropriate, set measurable objectives to implement
the policy and review such objectives to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee has reviewed the policy to ensure its
continued effectiveness.
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A.6 Responsibilities of Directors

The Board plays a central supporting and supervisory role
in the Company’s corporate governance structure, provides
leadership and guidance to the Group’s activities and
development and oversees the work of the management and
its execution of the Company’s business strategies.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principle and Code provisions A.6.1 to A.6.8 as
described as follows:

A.6.1TAIl newly appointed Directors will receive a formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of their
appointment in order to ensure that they will have a
proper understanding of the operations and business
of the Company and that they will be fully aware of
their responsibilities under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory
requirements, and the Company's business and
governance policies.

A.6.2The Independent Non-executive Directors actively
participated in Board meetings of the Company. The
Company’s Audit and Risk Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Sustainability
Committee comprise a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Directors were encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development programs at the
Company’s expense to remain abreast of developments
impacting the business.

The roles of the Independent Non-executive Directors
also include providing their independent views to the
Board and management on business proposals and
strategies and supporting the implementation of these
strategies. The Independent Non-executive Directors
take the lead in board meetings in the event there are
conflicts of interests. They also scrutinise and monitor
senior management’s performance in meeting goals and
objectives. The Independent Non-executive Directors
also visited the Group’s operations in different locations
to broaden their knowledge of the Group’s business.
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A.6.3Directors’ attendance of Board meetings and

Committee meetings is set out on pages 96, 106, 113
and 122 of this Annual Report. Each of the Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) ensured that he/
she gave sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company.

A.6.4The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with their obligations regarding dealings in securities
of the Company under the Model Code throughout the
year.

The Company has also established written guidelines
for senior management and employees in certain
functions in respect of their dealings in the securities of
the Company for their strict compliance. The Company
issued notices to all Directors, senior management and
relevant employees reminding them to comply with
the restriction on dealing of securities of the Company
under the above code and guidelines 60 days prior to
the publication of the annual results and 30 days prior
to the publication of the interim results.

A.6.5The Company’s Executive and Non-executive Directors

(including Independent Non-executive Directors)
participated in various development programs to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to help
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Directors are encouraged to
participate in professional training programs and
the Company also organizes and funds such training
programs.

S
%70
% o
S
} \

P
o, Qq’
Q. % A N )
0/07}7 Ml Report 2017 =8 @_@‘@y
Qs Com %ﬂﬁ
Pany Limited =R

AGIEZTHFEEZTERNEES
TEHBFERNIERNANFRFEG -
106~ 113K 1228 - BEZHITE
ERFFNITES(RIER L IERIT
ER)BRESEZRFEIIE
NFARRBEF -

A6 47NN A B ER A _E T AR AU MY 8% 19
BRESTR FREFETESX
ZRRTER - KRS ESF
HEFEEH - ARRERNEE
FE MAEE BHETEREST
AERESETARAERR S
MBE -

ARARNTEHESREEAB R
HEBHBEMNEEEEALNA
BABEARKEBTNEMES -
KRR FEREEELHATE0 KR
M EEERNMAI30RBAFTAE
B S EEAEMEHBES
BF L sFRINIESIBERIE B A
NREIEFHIR I o

A6SARRIHITHEIFNITES (B
VIFMTESR)2EZRERRIE
VA$R Tt 2 5B 3 0 38 A 1% BE LA 165 B
EREMPEZSSNER A K
BREEN ARFIZBEES
HERFIRE - TETAER R
BEPABIEIIRE -



For the year ended 31 December 2017, Directors
participated in training programs regarding Directors’
responsibilities and duties and visited the Company’'s
operations. The Company has received the Directors’
training records. Attendance record is as follows:

Zhou Junging (Note 1) FEEE (FizE1)

Ge Changxin B

Hu Min AR

Wang Xiao Bin T/

Chen Ying PR E

Wang Yan FE

Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung BB

Elsie Leung Oi-sie REE

Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung wRE

Jack So Chak Kwong #RZ N

Note (1): Ms. Zhou Junging has resigned as the Chairman of the Board and
an Executive Director of the Company with effect from 5 March
2018.

A.6.6Each Director has disclosed to the Company at the
time of his or her appointment, and on a periodic
basis, the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant
commitments, with the identity of the public companies
or organisations and an indication of the time involved.
Such disclosures should be made annually.
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A6.7Independent Non-executive Directors actively

participated in Board meetings and Committee
meetings. In order to develop a balanced understanding
of the views of Shareholders, a number of Executive
Directors participated in roadshows and investor forums
to meet with institutional investors during the year. As
laid out in the attendance table in A.1.1 on page 96 of
this Annual Report, majority of the Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors attended the
AGM held on 8 June 2017. The Company sets the date
of the AGM at the beginning of a year so all Directors
are encouraged to attend the AGM to enhance
communication with Shareholders. For the Company’s
report on communication with Shareholders, please
refer to page 126 of the Annual Report.

A6.8Independent Non-executive Directors actively

participated in Board meetings and Committee
meetings and made a positive contribution to the
development of the Company’s strategy and policies
through independent, constructive and informed
comments. Non-executive Directors actively participated
in meetings with management and site visits and made
a positive contribution to the development of the
Company.

A.7 Supply of and Access to Information

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
Code provisions A.7.1 to A.7.3 as described as follows:

A.7.1In respect of regular Board meetings and Committee

meetings, the Company’s policy is to provide at least
a 14-day notice prior to the meeting setting out the
intended agenda. An agenda and accompanying board
papers are delivered in full to all Directors at least three
days before the intended date of a Board or Board
Committee meeting.
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B.1

A.7.2To enable Directors to make decisions based upon
the related data on hand, management is required to
provide adequate, complete and reliable information
and provide briefing to the Board in respect of the
matters and issues under consideration. The Company
supplied Directors with monthly management reports
to keep Board members informed of the latest
development and performance of the Company.
The Board and Directors also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior
management.

A.7.3All Directors are entitled to have access to board papers
and related materials. Queries from Directors also
receive a prompt and full response.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD
EVALUATION

The level and make-up of remuneration and
disclosure

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code provisions B.1.1 to B.1.5 and the recommended
best practices B.1.6 to B.1.9 except for B.1.8 as described as
follows:

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee.
The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are
to evaluate the performance and make recommendations
on the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management, and to evaluate and make recommendations
on employee benefit arrangements. All three members of the
Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors.

In 2017, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to, among other things, review and determine the policy
for the remuneration of the Executive Directors, assess
the performance of the Executive Directors, and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages
of all Executive Directors and senior management.
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Remuneration Committee FHMZEEE

Elsie Leung Qi-sie (Chairman) &% (X/E)
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung 5 R
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung 3%

B.1.1The Remuneration Committee may consult the
Chairman, President or any independent third party
about remuneration level of Executive Directors.
The Company has a policy that the Remuneration
Committee may seek professional advice from
independent third parties if it thinks necessary at the
expense of the Company.

B.1.2 The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
(which is reviewed regularly and enhanced where
necessary) have incorporated the specific duties set out
in the code provision of the Code. Code provision B.1.2
(c) (ii) was adopted by the Remuneration Committee.

B.1.3The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are set out on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.
com) and the Stock Exchange's website.

B.1.4The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The
Remuneration Committee may seek professional advice
from independent third parties if it thinks necessary at
the expense of the Company in order to enable it to
properly discharge its duties and responsibilities.

B.1.5The emoluments of the members of the senior
management team who are not Executive Directors are
within the following bands:
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Emolument bands i & 2
HK$0 to HK$ 1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/ 7T

HK$2,000,001
HK$2,500,001
HK$3,000,001
HK$3,500,001
HK$4,000,001
HK$4,500,001
HK$5,000,001

to
to
to
to
to
to
to

HK$2,500,000
HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,000
HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,000
HK$5,000,000
HK$5,500,000

2,000,001#7C%2,500,000/8 7T
2,500,001#7C% 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001#7C% 3,500,000/ 7T
3,500,001/ 7T %4,000,000/%8 7T
4,000,001/ 7C % 4,500,000/ 7T
4,500,001/ 7C%5,000,000/8 7T
5,000,001 L £ 5,500,000/ 7T

B.1.6 The Board has no disagreement with the Remuneration B.1.6

Committee on remuneration or compensation
arrangements with regards to Executive Directors and
senior management.

B.1.7A significant proportion of Executive Directors’

remuneration is structured so as to link rewards to
corporate and individual performance. The Company
sets its strategic and performance targets on an
annual and three year rolling forward basis. Based
on the Company’s overall performance targets, the
Company assigns responsibilities and sets performance
benchmarks and evaluation methods for each Executive
Director, members of the senior management team
and other managerial staff. The total remuneration of
Executive Directors and senior management comprises
three key components, namely basic salary, annual
bonus and the Medium to Long-term Performance
Evaluation Incentive Plan. The actual performance of
the Company and each Executive Director and senior
management team members’ own performance against
performance targets determine the component paid
under the annual bonus and Medium to Long-term
Performance Evaluation Incentive Plan. Please refer
to Note 50 under the section “Notes to the Financial
Statements” in this Annual Report on page 323 to 326
for details on Directors’ remuneration.

Number of individuals

A%
2017 2016
—E—tF ZFTAF
1 J—
= 1
= 3
2 6
2 1
1 2
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B.1.8The Company has not adopted the recommended

best practice to disclose details of any remuneration
paid to members of senior management (other than
Executive Directors) on an individual and named basis
in the Annual Report. Having disclosed Directors’
remuneration and remuneration of the five highest
paid individuals, the Company believes that disclosure
of individual senior management’'s remuneration does
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not benefit Shareholders. Shareholders are mostly
concerned with the total amount of remuneration,
rather than on an individual basis.
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B.1.9Board evaluation is conducted on an annual basis.
During the year, this evaluation was conducted in the
form of a detailed questionnaire completed by each
Director, followed by consideration by the Board of the
aggregated responses. Each Committee of the Board
was also evaluated during the year using a similar
process. Committee members and other Board members
completed a detailed questionnaire and the aggregated
responses were considered and discussed by the Board.

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT C. IEHEX
C.1 Financial Reporting C.1 MEER

EESRRFE AW kE2EAEAN
SENKRE  BRALAR EFEF
BREIEEREEERAT2IAKE
AEEER XEMAEETRENTFE
BRA -

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects. It is also the Board’s responsibility to
oversee the preparation of the annual accounts which give a
true and fair view of the Group's state of affairs, results and
cash flows for the year.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with NEOEEEE  NAFHRKEST iR
the above principle and Code provisions C.1.1 to C.1.5 as BIERSFBEX C1.1 2= C.1.5 #Eatan
described as follows: N

CIMNEFETHEERFEXERM
RIERE AN BT ER KA
B AMERIBRTE -

C.1.1Directors were provided with financial information and
the related information of the Group enabling them to
make an informed assessment before the publication of
the interim results and the annual results, respectively.



C.1.2To enable Directors to discharge their duties under
Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, senior
management is required to provide adequate, complete
and reliable information and provide briefing to the
Board in respect of the matters and issues under
consideration. The Company supplied Directors with
monthly management reports to keep Board members
informed of the latest development and performance of
the Group.

C.1.3The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility
for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which gives a true and fair
view of the operating results and financial conditions
of the Group. More information about the external
auditor’s responsibilities is set out in the Independent
Auditor’'s Report on pages 131 to 326 of this Annual
Report. In preparing the financial reports for the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable, and prepared accounts on a
going concern basis. The Company does not foresee
any uncertainties in its ability to continue as a going
concern.

C.1.4The Chairman’s Statement on pages 8 to 19 of the
Annual Report provides a summary of the Group’s
performance and future prospects on how the Group
will preserve value over the longer term and our
strategies for delivering the Group's objectives.

C.1.5The Directors have acknowledged that their
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and
interim reports, other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, reports to regulators as well as
other information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

The Company has not resolved to announce and publish
financial results on a quarterly basis and has not adopted
recommended best practices C.1.6 and C.1.7.
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C.2 Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems
for the Group and to review their effectiveness to safeguard
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. To this
end, risk management and internal control systems have
been established to provide reasonable assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and manage or mitigate
risks of failure to achieve business objectives. The Board
oversees the senior management in design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems and the senior management have provided
a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these
systems for 2017.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principle and Code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.5 and
has taken into consideration recommended best practices
C.2.6 to C.2.7 as described as follows:

C.2.1The Company’s target is to establish an efficient and
effective risk management and internal control system.

The Company emphasizes on professional integrity and
high business ethics. All managerial staff totaling 524
people completed an annual declaration on compliance
with code of ethics.

The Company and its subsidiaries provide regular
training to its management and staff. The training
sessions not only cover the technical and operational
aspects of our businesses, but also on business ethics,
Listing Rules, corporate laws and regulations and
internal controls.
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The Group has an internal audit department which is
responsible for the monitoring of the Group’s internal
control. The internal audit team has unrestricted access
and authority to review the information on the business
and internal control matters of the Group. The Chief
Audit Officer reports directly to the Chairman of the
Audit and Risk Committee and administratively to the
President. The internal auditors can employ outside
resources when necessary. During 2017, the internal
audit department completed internal audits and follow-
up audits on a number of subsidiaries and branches
of the Group, and presented their findings and
recommendations to the Audit and Risk Committee,
senior management of the Company and the Board.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems (including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions) of
the Group. The Board believes that in order to manage
the risk of failure in achieving the Group's goals and
objectives to an ultimate extent, the Group should
improve continuously its risk management and internal
control systems.

C.2.2In March 2018, the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed

the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience of the Company's internal audit function,
accounting and financial reporting function and
believes that the Group should monitor on an ongoing
basis its total resources in the accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, and continue
to increase its investment and budgets for staff
recruitment and training and information technology
system.

C.2.3The Board, through the Audit and Risk Committee,

reviews annually the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Company and its subsidiaries, such review considers:

e the changes in the significant risks since the last
review, and the Company’s ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external
environment;
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the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks
and the internal control system, and the work of
the internal audit function;

the communication of the monitoring results to
the Board semi-annually that enables it to assess
control of the Company and the effectiveness of
the risk management;

any possible significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been identified and the
extent to which they have caused unforeseeable
outcomes or contingencies that had or might
have material impact on the Company’s financial
performance or condition; and

the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rule compliance.

C.2.4In the year under review, the Company complied
with the risk management and internal control code
provisions C.2.4(a) to C.2.4(e) as described as follows:

(a)

The Board has delegated to senior management of
the Company the responsibility to design, operate
and monitor its risk management and internal
control systems for identifying and evaluating the
risks and probable exposures faced by the Group.
Key risks, control measures and management
actions are continually identified, reviewed and
monitored by the management. The internal
auditor assists and guides the management in
the formulation of risk policies and processes
to effectively identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks. The management has established
a risk identification and management process.

The senior management is accountable to the
Board for providing assurance on managing and
monitoring the risk management and internal
control.
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The Group's risk management and internal control
systems provide a systematic and disciplined
approach to risk management process, which
are embedded as an integral part of corporate
governance. The systems help sustain business
success, create value for stakeholders and support
the Board in discharging its corporate governance
responsibilities by proactively identifying,
addressing and managing key risks within the
Group.

The Board is accountable for overseeing the
Group's risk management and internal control
systems and for reviewing its effectiveness,
while the management and other personnel are
responsible for implementing and maintaining
a robust system of internal controls that covers
governance, compliance, risk management,
financial as well as operational controls to
safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholders’
interests. The systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute assurance against
material misstatements or loss.

All findings and recommendations on internal
control deficiencies for each audit engagement
are communicated to senior management who
are required to establish remedial plans to
correct those internal control deficiencies within
a reasonable time period. Post-audit reviews are
performed regularly to monitor those agreed
action plans and to ensure that corrective
measures of previously identified internal control
deficiencies have been implemented as intended
and on a timely basis. Significant deficiencies
of individual engagement are reported to and
reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee.
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() The Company has adopted a policy for certain
relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information
in relation to the Company or its shares, for
instance financial results of the Company.
Relevant employees are required to acknowledge
their understanding of this policy and the list of
relevant employees is updated at regular intervals.
The Group has management controls in place
to ensure that potential inside information can
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated
for the attention of the Board to decide the
need for disclosure. Furthermore, the Company
ensures that dissemination of inside information
strictly complies with the standards and disclosure
requirements of the Listing Rules.

C.2.5The Company has an internal audit function in place.

In the annual assessment of the effectiveness and adequacy
of the risk management and internal control systems, the
Company has taken into consideration the recommended
best practices contained in C.2.6 and C.2.7.

The Company considers the risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate.

Audit and Risk Committee

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code provisions C.3.1 to C.3.7 and recommended best
practice C.3.8 as described as follows:

C.3.1Full minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meetings
were kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting.
Draft and final version of minutes of the Audit and
Risk Committee meetings were sent to all committee
members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting.

C.3.2The Company’s Audit and Risk Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors and
one Non-executive Director, with Chairman of the
Committee, who is an Independent Non-executive
Director, having the requisite qualification, knowledge
and experience.
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C.3.3The main duties of the Audit and Risk Committee CI33BERERRBREZEENEIERER
include the following: FET5)&IE

e To investigate any activity within its terms of . EH“,WFM.WETE&%F)?E
reference with full access to all books, records, ARE - e REKBTI -
facilities and personnel. It is authorised to seek NFAEERIESE - B IR
information it requires from any employee and all EEEELERAERE
employees are required to co-operate with any ¥ 2REBAEEZER
request made by the Audit and Risk Committee; BZEEgMNEMERMmE

./:l\{’lf ,

e To obtain independent legal or other professional . ﬁﬂ%ﬁiii’:@i,ﬁ\@ﬁ%ﬁ\
advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders R iRz ARG
with relevant experience and expertise if it ﬁﬁfﬁ,\é%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ’\\ AT
considers necessary to carry out its duties; HE - ABITHEE

e To be primarily responsible for making e IZABEREME EEHEMA
recommendation to the Board on the KRB RINEZEEN T RES
appointment, reappointment and removal of the EREER  MAEINER
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration MO ZEME NFR - B
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, BLH B 3 R B 1R ] RS
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal. R o

The above Directors’ attendance at the meetings of the FiEEHEEZEARREZES

Audit and Risk Committee is as follows: 2ERNBELAT

Number of meetings
attended/number of
meetings held

HE BT Attendance rate

Audit and Risk Committee EVHEABEES BERE HER
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung BRE(ER) 2/2 100%
(Chairman)

Elsie Leung Oi-sie REFF 2/2 100%
Jack So Chak Kwong ERZ N 2/2 100%
Wang Yan TE 0/2 0%
The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee BEzEEREZEGNBESED
have incorporated all the duties set out in the Code AN A ST BRI 3P 3K P A BB /EE\ e
provision and are reviewed regularly and enhanced FHEFE W EM BB THE

where necessary.



For the period from 1 January 2017 to the date of this
report, the Audit and Risk Committee has performed
its duties, including reviewing the Group’s interim
and annual results, risk management and internal
control systems, the internal control report prepared
by the Company’s internal audit department and the
statement relating to risk management and internal
control systems as set out in this report. The Audit
and Risk Committee also met with the external auditor
without the presence of Executive Directors and
senior management. In March 2018, the Audit and
Risk Committee reviewed the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017,
including the major accounting issues raised by the
external auditor. The Audit and Risk Committee also
recommended the re-appointment of the external
auditor.

C.3.4The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee

are available on the Company’'s website (www.cr-
power.com) and the Stock Exchange’s website.

C.3.5In 2017, there was no disagreement between the Board

and the Audit and Risk Committee on the selection and
appointment of the external auditor. The Audit and Risk
Committee is mandated to monitor the independence
of the external auditor to ensure true objectivity in the
financial statements. Prior to the commencement of
the audit of the Group’s 2017 accounts, the Audit and
Risk Committee received written confirmation from the
external auditor on its independence and objectivity.
The external auditor is refrained from engaging in non-
audit services except for limited tax-related services or
specific approved items. The Audit and Risk Committee
reviews the external auditor’s statutory audit scope and
non-audit services and approves its fees.
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C.3.6The Audit and Risk Committee was provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties in 2017.

C.3.7The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee
have incorporated all the duties contained in the Code
provision.

C.3.8The Company has established a whistleblowing policy
and system by which employees and others who deal
with the Group can raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in any matter related to
the Group. The contents of the whistleblowing policy
are available on the Company’'s website (www.cr-
power.com).

D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D.1 Management functions

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the principle set out in the Code and Code provisions D.1.1
to D.1.4 as described below:

D.1.1The Board is mainly responsible for formulating and
approving the business strategies, objectives, policies
and plans of the Group, and monitoring the execution
of the Group’s strategies. It is also responsible for
overseeing the operational and financial performance
of the Group and establishing appropriate risk control
policies and procedures in order to ensure that the
strategic objectives of the Group are achieved. In
addition, the Board is also responsible for improving
the corporate governance structure and enhancing
communications with Shareholders.

D.1.2The Board Charter has laid out clearly the role of the
Board, including matters which are reserved for Board
approval and delegation to management. The Board
Charter is reviewed regularly and enhanced where
necessary to take account of changes in law and
governance practices as well as changes in business
operations.

D.1.3The responsibilities of the Board and the management
are contained in the Board Charter which is available
on the Company’'s website (www.cr-power.com) and
the Stock Exchange’s website.
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D.2

D.1.4The Company has formal letter of appointment for all
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointment.

Board committees

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the principle set out in the Code and Code provisions D.2.1
and D.2.2 as described below:

D.2.1&The Company has established written terms of

D2.2 reference for the Committees (namely, Audit and
Risk, Nomination, Remuneration and Sustainability
Committees) of the Board. Details on the duties and
terms of reference of the Board Committees are
available on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.
com) and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The terms of reference of each Board Committee
require it to report back to the Board on its decisions
and recommendations.

In addition to the Nomination, Remuneration and Audit
and Risk Committee meetings held as mentioned on
pages 106, 113 and 122 of this Annual Report, the
Sustainability Committee also held one meeting in 2017
where all members of the committee attended the
meeting.

D.3 Corporate Governance Functions

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the Code provisions D.3.1 and D.3.2 as described
below:

D.3.1The Board Charter includes the duties specified in the
code provision.

D.3.2The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the Board Charter
including determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company, and duties performed by
the Board under D.3.1.
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E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E.1

Effective communication

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the principle set out in the Code and Code provisions E.1.1
to E.1.4 as described below:

E.1.11In respect of each substantially separate issue at a

general meeting, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman of the meeting, including the re-election
of individual Directors. The poll voting results of the
meetings are available on the Company’s website
(Www.cr-power.com).

Matters resolved at the 2017 AGM

Received the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 together with the Reports of
the Directors and the Independent Auditor

Approved payment of the final dividend of HK$0.75 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2016

Re-elected Ms. Zhou Junging, Mr. Chen Ying, Mr.
Wang Yan and Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung as
Directors, and authorised the Board of Directors to fix
the remuneration of the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2017

Appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditor of the
Company and authorised the Board to fix the Auditor’s
remuneration

Granted a general mandate to the Board for the share
repurchase of a number not exceeding 10% of the total
number of the Company’s issued shares as at the date
of 2017 AGM

Granted a general mandate to the Directors to issue
new shares of the Company not exceeding 20% of the
total number of the Company’s issued shares as at the
date of 2017 AGM
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Approved to extend the general mandate granted to
the Directors to issue new shares of the Company
by addition thereto of the shares repurchased by the
Company

E.1.2The general meeting is the ideal venue for the

interchange of ideas between the Board, the
management and Shareholders. We therefore
encourage Shareholders to attend our AGM to discuss
matters of business substance with the Board and
management and to give us valuable advice and
feedback on both operational and governance matters.
At the AGM held on 8 June 2017 at 2:30pm, there
were a total of 89 individual Shareholders, authorised
representatives of corporate Shareholders as well as
proxies participated and the number of shares voted
represented 84.50% of the total number of the
Company'’s issued shares.

As laid out in the attendance table in A.1.1 on page 96
of this Annual Report, a majority of Directors attended
the AGM held on 8 June 2017. The Directors and
management of the Company took the opportunity
to communicate with the Shareholders present, and
answered their queries with respect to the Company’s
operations and industries. A representative of the
external auditor attended the AGM and was available
to answer Shareholder’s questions about the conduct
of the audit and the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report.

The Company, the Board and management highly value
the opinions and requirements of our Shareholders.
The Company communicates with Shareholders through
various channels including publication of interim
and Annual Reports, circulars, press releases and
announcements of the latest business developments,
operational results, major financing plans and other
developments of the Company on its corporate website
(www.cr-power.com) and the Stock Exchange's website
in a timely manner.

E.1.3 The notices to Shareholders are sent at least 20 clear

business days before the AGM and there was no
extraordinary general meeting held in 2017.
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Convening Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of Laws of Hong Kong), members of the
Company representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the members having a right to vote at general
meetings may request the Directors to call a general
meeting. The request must state the general nature of
business to be dealt with at the meeting and may include
the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at the meeting. The request may
consist of several documents in like form and may be sent
to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and
must be authenticated by the person(s) making it.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of Laws of Hong Kong), the members of the
Company may request the Company to give to members
of the Company entitled to receive notice of the annual
general meeting, notice of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting. The
request may be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by
depositing at the registered office of the Company for the
attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by email: crp-
ir@crc.com.hk) and must identify the resolution of which
notice is to be given, authenticated by the person or persons
making it and received by the Company not later than 6
weeks before the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or if later, the time at which notice is given
of that meeting.

The Company will give notice of a resolution if it has
received the requests from (a) members representing at
least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the members who
have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting to which the requests relate; or (b) at least 50
members who have a relevant right to vote.

Procedure for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as Director are available on the website of the
Company (www.cr-power.com).
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E.1.4 An Investor Relations team has been designated to
maintain purposeful dialogue and ongoing relationships
with investors and analysts. We strive to provide quality
information to Shareholders as well of our many
stakeholders regarding the latest developments of the
Company whilst ensuring that material information is
equally and simultaneously provided and accessible to
all interested parties. The Company has established a
shareholder’s communication policy which is available
on the Company's website (www.cr-power.com).

Investor Relations Activities

The Company consistently pays close attention to investor
relations activities and always believes that maintaining
effective communications with Shareholders and provision
of timely and accurate information are critical in creating
shareholder value.

The Company enhances communication with Shareholders
through various investor relations activities. Details of major
investor relations activities in 2017 are set out below.

In 2017, there were over 100 requests for company visits
and teleconferences from different investors. Together
with investor conferences and roadshows in major financial
centres around the world, we met approximately more than
200 fund managers and analysts. During the meetings with
investors, we explained the development and trend of the
power industry and updated Shareholders on our operational
conditions, strategic planning and future outlook. We also
placed great emphasis on listening to investors’ feedback,
concerns and expectations so we can relay the messages
from Shareholders to our management team.

In order to enhance the understanding of investors towards
our business operations, we also arranged site visits to
power plants in Beijing, Nanjing and Guangdong for fund
managers and securities analysts. These activities enabled
our investors to have the opportunity of direct contact
with front-line managers and staff, thereby having a better
understanding of our operations, and in the meantime,
our front-line managers were also able to get a better
understanding of shareholders’ expectations, which helped
to improve our internal management.
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E.2

Through emails or designated telephone lines, we also
provide Shareholders and potential investors with a channel
to obtain the latest information of the Company and have
their queries answered in a timely manner. We announce our
power generation volume and coal production volume on a
monthly basis on our Company website (www.cr-power.com)
as well as through announcements on the website of the
Stock Exchange.

The Board always welcomes Shareholders’ views and input.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the Investor
Relations Department of the Company by letter, telephone,
fax or email. Details of the contact information can be found
on page 328 of this Annual Report.

Voting by Poll

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provision E.2.1. The Chairman
explained the detailed procedures for conducting a poll at
the AGM in 2017.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provisions F.1.1 to F.1.4.

The role of Company Secretary is taken on by Ms. Wang Xiao
Bin, who is also an Executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Company’s affairs. Her duties as Company Secretary
include ensuring good information flow among the Directors
and that board policy, procedures and all applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed. She advises the Directors
through the Chairman of the Company and also facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors.

In 2017, Ms. Wang attended at least 15 hours of relevant
training which complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

. CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

In the year under review, there were no significant changes
in the Company’s Articles of Association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIURHETRS

To the Members of China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 140 to 326 which
comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

\
L
\
2 Q
OILG,. 4 \'B 2,
n, 5 >
’36/% "al Report 2017 =B e
s o, gﬂxg}g-
MPany Limited B

HERENZRBIRATMNE

(REBEMKLZBRAF)

=
= 5
/GAN

RFEESNAR

ERHENIERABR AR (A TEBEIERF])
NEWB AR (A THBIEEE ) HEHNE
140 £ 326 BEMEHIUmRE @ BIF ¢

e RZTE—tFF+-A=1T—HWAH
BERERX:

s HEZHALFENAHNKESR

s BEZAULFEMAMFEEPAK:

s HEZHULFEMNAHEREIR

e HEZAILFEMAHRERER:

sl

s AUHMBHRIE  BRI2EFK
RBE -

EMHER

HFIRR  ZFHVBHREERER LS
PRI AERmAKEEMBREERDNEE
M sHRRTERER T —+tF+ A
=t HANAHMBRRAREBEZB LS
ENEHMBERARGHRERE - YO &
REBCQRRDDZ REHE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BIURHENRS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Impairment of the non-financial assets (including property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payment, mining rights
and prepayment for acquisition of mining rights) in coal
mining segment

o Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BIURHENRS

Key Audit Matters

Impairment of the non-financial assets (including
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payment,
mining rights and prepayment for acquisition of mining
rights) in coal mining segment

Refer to notes 4(b), 4(e), 6, 7, 8 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group made material impairment of non-financial
assets in coal mining segment in past years due to
the fact that the coal market downturn and China’s
supply-side reform. During the year, although the coal
prices kept in a high level, the Group would continue
its shutdown plan of some of its coal mines gradually
from 2017 to 2020 pursuant to the government
policy of reducing overcapacity in coal industry, which
indicated that the carrying amounts of the non-
financial assets of the Group in coal mining segment
may not be recoverable. Therefore, management
perform impairment assessment and made additional
impairment provision of approximately HK$123 millions
for non-financial assets in coal mining segment for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

For the impairment assessment performed,
management determined the recoverable amounts of
the coal mines related non-financial assets based on
the higher of their fair values less costs of disposal and
their value in use (“VIU”) amounts. VIU calculation
involved significant management judgements including
(1) the possibility of converting the prepayment into
mining rights; and (2) growth rate of coal prices,
output volumes, estimated operation date for the coal
mines currently in construction and discount rates used
in the calculation.

We focused on this area due to the material amounts
of the non-financial assets and the significant
judgement involved in the impairment assessments
using the VIU calculation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BIUEENRS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We obtained management’'s assessment and
supporting documents, and checked the accuracy of
calculation by verifying the inputs of the underlying
financial information and the correctness of
calculation.

We challenged the reasonableness of the following
management’'s key assumptions used in the
impairment assessments:

] Possibility of converting the prepayment into
the mining rights - we reviewed the related
agreements and the relevant government policy.
We inquired management to assess their views
on the development of coal mine industry, the
approval status of related projects and if there
were any legal barriers;

J Growth rates of coal prices — we compared
them to the historical trend of coal prices
and economic and industry forecasts, and
corroborated with the discussion and enquiry
with the operational management;

° Output volumes of each coal mine, and
estimated operation date for the coal mines
currently in construction — we compared them
to the approved throughput, and relevant
government requirement/standards for coal mine
industry;

J Discount rates - we involved our valuation
specialists to assess the reasonableness of the
discount rates used, taking into account the cost
of capital of each cash generating unit as well
as the relevant territory and industry specific
factors.

We also formulated a range of sensitivity analyses
based on different scenarios to assess whether an
impairment would be required.

None of the items described above resulted in
a change to the impairment charge recorded by
management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BIURHENRS

Key Audit Matters

Fair value of available-for-sale investments

Refer to notes 3.3 and 13(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the available-for-sale equity
investments were stated at their fair values of HK$1.52
billion, which is determined by management using
dividend discounted model. They were classified as
“level 3" financial instruments because the significant
inputs used in the fair value determination are not
based on observable market data.

The calculation of the fair value of these available-for-
sale equity investments requires management to make
significant estimates about their future return including
average growth rate of dividends and discount rates
used in the valuations.

We focused on this area due to the size of the balance
and the significant estimates in valuation of level 3
equity investments.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We tested the management’s valuation for material
available-for-sale equity investments. The testing varied
by portfolio, but typically included the assessment
of key assumptions used by the management in
evaluating unobservable valuation parameters:

Compared the current year actual results with the prior
year forecast to consider the reliability of forecast;

Compared the current year forecast with the historical
record and industry development to assess the
reasonableness of key assumptions, mainly including
the average growth rates of dividends and discount
rates.

We found the significant estimations made by
management were based on the available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the “Report of the Directors” and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis” (but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon), which
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’'s report. On the
other hand, the following information are expected to be made
available to us after that date, including the “About CR Power”,
“5-Year Summary”, “Service Areas”, “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Directors and Senior Management”, “Corporate Governance
Report”, “Corporate Information” and “Information for
Investors”.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the “About CR Power”, “5-Year Summary”,
“Service Areas”, “Chairman’s Statement”, “Directors and Senior
Management”, “Corporate Governance Report”, “Corporate
Information” and “Information for Investors”, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to the Audit and Risk Committee
and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BIUZHENRS

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the

financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated

financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit and Risk Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
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deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

BR E A IR

HRE - ERMERHP B R
B EAI B RERRE -

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
safequards.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Committee with a statement
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
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BREREZERRZ

EgieEHR - HH
BMPERAEMBLENEEEXERE
Ko SR FTEBA A

[ WAN

BEm

PN

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
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of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. B MiELEE - BRIEEBERTL
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or HFARKEREEEE @ iEHHEENEBER
requlation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, - (IRAEEHERMRETEBREEE
ERH B EERBBESD
RENEEREFBRALEIE -

in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEAZRBIZEMBENEHEEESEAR
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Lam Sung Wan. MEELE o
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SHEERER

As at 31 December

BR+=-—A=+—H
Note 2017 2016
FdsE —EB—+tHF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WERERE 6 152,334,653 138,275,197
Prepaid lease payments FENEEER 7 3,537,380 3,344,692
Mining rights g 8(a) 15,301,970 14,902,898
Exploration and resources rights &R iR 8(b) 162,310 151,677
Prepayment for non-current assets REATE( B 14 5,093,455 2,784,169
Investments in associates REEE P ENER 10(a) 8,747,317 8,459,278
Loans to an associate m—fEEE P EER 10(b) — 508,923
Investments in joint ventures REERENER 11(a) 3,660,368 3,610,368
Loans to a joint venture mM—fAEETEER 11(b) 41,590 —
Amounts due from a joint venture FE—M& & ENIA 18 142,566 —
Goodwill EES 12 1,626,560 1,567,684
Deferred income tax assets REFTISTREE 33 946,782 725,131
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 13(a) 1,516,177 1,471,665
Loans to an available-for-sale MAEEHENHIRELRR 13(b)
investee company 8% 149,937 424,099
Loan to a non-controlling ] — 1 B B A m) FEIE AR 19(b)
shareholder of a subsidary BRERER 14,954 —
193,276,019 176,225,781
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BE 15 3,205,152 3,124,403
Trade receivables, other receivables FEUBRZK « Eqth B U FNIB 16
and prepayments PSEANE S 16,006,853 14,765,870
Loans to associates mEtEPEER 10(b) 1,158,256 21,911
Loans to joint ventures MEETEER 11(b) 255,889 192,535
Loans to an available-for-sale mMA R HENHIEERT  13(b)
investee company B 303,893 —
Loans to non-controlling BN EINGIE 2233 19(b)
shareholders of a subsidary BX — 32,979
Amounts due from associates JE Wi i (b ZE ROR 17 466,885 162,862
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW & &> EFRIE 18 25,006 143,821
Amounts due from other JrE L B th B8 38 2 ) 5B 19(a)
related companies 2,649 2,171
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B MR HISRTTE 20 890,182 1,092,114
Cash and cash equivalents ReERAEEEY 21 5,381,686 4,347,022
27,696,451 23,885,688
Total assets HEE 220,972,470 200,111,469
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MPany Limited EE®
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+—8H
Note 2017 2016
B 5 —E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExkEaE
Equity attributable to owners of RAREEABILERE
the Company
Share capital N 22 22,341,736 22,257,732
Other reserves HAuh A 25 13,618,598 6,746,795
Retained earnings REF|HE 26 39,253,485 40,016,379
75,213,819 69,020,906
Non-controlling interests FEIE S MR 5,528,061 5,543,957
Total equity RS 80,741,880 74,564,863
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities 'a'F‘JﬁE?Jﬁ%
Borrowings BE 31 68,761,886 70,166,815
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFGEHAR 33 2,576,356 2,590,741
Deferred income EEUA 34 1,060,334 955,922
Retirement and other long-term FERTRR R E A R 5 384iii)
employee benefits obligations 8 TRA AR 224,604 171,642
72,623,180 73,885,120
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables, other payables and JETERSR - HMERRIE 27
accruals NEETER 32,181,836 28,337,920
Amounts due to associates JRE {5 B 5 1D S SRR 28 629,919 253,426
Amounts due to joint ventures JEfS & &R EFRIE 29 317,077 653,476
Amounts due to other related < E A B3 A B 5R08 30
companies 1,440,535 544,165
Current income tax liabilities eI FT1S TR 877,060 575,912
Borrowings BE 31 32,160,983 21,296,587
67,607,410 51,661,486
Total liabilities wWaeE 140,230,590 125,546,606
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 220,972,470 200,111,469

The notes on pages 148 to 326 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 140 to 326 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 19 March 2018 and were signed on its

behalf.

Director
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Director
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

SHEER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—HLEFE

Note 2017 2016
B 5T —E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FH&T
Turnover EHER 5 73,311,677 66,212,590
Operating expenses: KEE RS
Fuels R (38,071,827) (27,199,184)
Repairs and maintenance HAS T4 & (1,848,321)  (2,142,577)
Depreciation and amortisation PTE R (10,507,422)  (9,882,488)
Employee benefit expenses EERMNMAXZ 37 (5,177,763)  (5,530,489)
Consumables M (1,032,152) (920,790)
Impairment charges VERIEREES 43 (850,665) (1,282,288)
Tax and surcharge & Kt hn (1,163,242) (1,124,157)
Others HAt (4,163,098) (3,734,114)
Total operating expenses 4 iR R R (62,814,490) (51,816,087)
Other income E A 35 2,335,498 1,923,016
Other (losses)/gains — net Hfb(HBK), /TG — 75 36 (352,687) 35,262
Operating profit KERE 12,479,998 16,354,781
Finance costs % &R 39 (3,991,498) (3,557,220)
Share of results of associates LB E P EEE 10(a)(b) 136,448 288,995
Share of results of joint ventures BihEETEEE 11(a) (104,558) (44,968)
Profit before income tax R B4 50 A5 8,520,390 13,041,588
Income tax expense Frigti &M 40 (2,901,686) (4,398,440)
Profit for the year FRFE 5,618,704 8,643,148
Profit for the year attributable to: FRAFBEER :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEZ N 4,623,323 7,708,373
Non-controlling interests FEPEH MR
- Perpetual capital securities — K ABAREH — 150,164
- Others —HAth 995,381 784,611
995,381 934,775
5,618,704 8,643,148
Earnings per share attributable to FRABEBREATEERA 41
owners of the Company for the year Z&RZEF|
- Basic - 7 HK$0.9738 7T  HK$1.62/87T
- Diluted — s HK$0.9738 7T  HK$1.6187T

F148 B2 F 326 BT IZEA HHEI
WMAREMERKIL D o

The notes on pages 148 to 326 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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BE+-A=t—HLEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FH&T
Profit for the year FRFHE 5,618,704 8,643,148
Other comprehensive income: HihZ2HEUBA :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss A BEE#T 7 X8 F 1825 HYIE H
Currency translation differences bE X =% 5,750,623 (5,326,643)
Share of other comprehensive income of FE(REREUE R EZERE
investments accounted for B H A ARG e
using the equity method 190,355 (203,312)
Release to profit or loss in relation to MEBENBAREEER
disposal of subsidiaries (2,549) —
Fair value changes on cash flow hedges, RERBEHHNANEE
net of tax E(Hig) = 44,123
Changes in fair value of AHEEREAAEE
available-for-sale investments, net of tax BEy(Hig) (33,642) 22,543
Total items that may be reclassified HigrAgeEm»BEEH
subsequently to profit or loss, net of tax BYIE B 4258 (FiE) 5,904,787 (5,463,289)
Total comprehensive income FRBEZEBALE
for the year, net of tax 11,523,491 3,179,859
Attributable to: BER
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIEZ 2 DN 10,299,555 2,327,122
Non-controlling interests FEPES) M i
— Perpetual capital securities — KA B AR = 150,164
~ Others — HAftb 1,223,936 702,573
1,223,936 852,737
Total comprehensive income for the year FREHEUALLEE 11,523,491 3,179,859
The notes on pages 148 to 326 are an integral part of these 5148 B &% 326 AWMV E A MH011%

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SHEERE

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

Note 2017 2016
Fiasx —E—+F ZEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT AT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEENRERE
Cash generated from operations REFTHELENRE 43 21,379,778 27,518,121
Income tax paid ERFEHR (2,817,758) (5,223,601)
Cash inflows from operating activities - net E&FZEHELENELSAANTHE 18,562,020 22,294,520
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELENRERE
Dividend received from associates BB S ERE 908,581 1,633,123
Dividend received from joint ventures BREEDTERE — 27,889
Dividend received from ERAIHEERERE
available-for-sale investments 218,593 75,327
Interest received B2 IH S 212,399 90,937
Decrease/(increase) of term deposits EREFRD,/(Em) 82,229 (368,710)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, EEX - BEKHRE
prepaid lease payments, mining rights BENHEFNIE - FEER
and exploration and resources rights &R RE (15,527,187) (16,319,256)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERSEN 43
plant and equipment TSR 239,401 145,121
Proceeds from disposal of HEBNHEBRAMMAEHRE 43
prepaid lease payments — 6,840
Proceeds from disposal of HERMESIREMEIA
other equity investments = 200,409
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, net HENBRBSHRIETE 445,824 34,274
Proceeds from repayment of RS HTHERERE
capital contributions for EEREHIE
an available-for-sale investment — 42,378
Loans to associates RSP EER (654,872) (609,619)
(Loans to)/loans repaid by joint ventures (MEBEEER)/
RECRERER (118,507) 37,566
Loans to an available-for-sale At HEMNRIRE AR ER
investee company = (74,016)
Loans repaid by other related parties Hib@mn BEER 19,919 34,485
Capital contributions into available-for-sale mAftHERETE
investments — (30,160)
Capital contributions into associates RBETEITE (530,382) (96,699)
Capital contributions into joint ventures MEERrETE (61,494) (146,868)
Cash outflow on acquisition of s e A rlER
interest in a joint venture — (50,254)
Government grants related to assets B & FE AR A RO BT 4B B 44,987 99,029

Cash outflows from investing RETHELENAELR
activities - net FE

(14,720,509)

(15,268,204)
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Pany Limited

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLHFE

2017 2016
—E—tf —TRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT AT
Cash flows from financing activities RETHELENRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings HEHRITEE 38,788,104 37,360,832
Repayment of bank borrowings EERTER (32,909,672) (39,326,437)
Proceeds from issuance of corporate bonds BIIRAERMEIR — 9,379,850
Redemption of perpetual capital securities BREKABRES — (5,835,750)
Coupon payment on perpetual capital BRIKABERELF S
securities = (210,915)
Proceeds from issuance of shares TR R ITR D
for exercised options {3 3IE 33,954 3,454
Proceeds from sale of shares held & B 7 2B 5t B AT
for share award scheme BB FTE5IE 55,184 —
Capital contributions to acquisition of W B — TP B 2 B BB
additional interest in a subsidiary BERAHE — (188,087)
Capital contributions from non-controlling IR A
interests 497,611 404,851
Advances from/(repayment of advances to) —fPRERARRR/(BE
an intermediate holding company —EPEER AR RR) 800,102 (132)
Advances from/(repayment of advances) BECERN(BEHE
associates EETR) 107,090 (492,095)
Repayment of advances from joint ventures ERELLERN (517,812) (225,291)
Repayment of advances from other BEAMEEARRK
related companies (34,718) (37,153)
(Repayment of advances)/advances from (EBKHB RN IEERARE
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries B30/ BB KR
BRERE R (5,052) 19,520
Interests paid BRFE (4,090,291) (3,923,506)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company ERNARAEEARE (4,185,088) (4,175,587)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests RENIEYNGIE e e
of subsidiaries B AR S, (1,770,857) (2,333,321)
Cash outflows from financing METHELENRER
activities - net i (3,231,445) (9,579,767
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBELEEWEM (RD)
cash equivalents R 610,066 (2,553,451)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FORERASEED
of the year 4,347,022 7,273,945
Exchange gains/(losses) B 5 e/ (18K) 424,598 (373,472)
Cash and cash equivalents at end EXBRERBALEEY
of the year 5,381,686 4,347,022

The notes on pages 148 to 326 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

WARHERED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ST RRMEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a public company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The intermediate holding company
of the Company as at 31 December 2017 is China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH"), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The directors regard the
ultimate holding company of the Company to be China
Resources Company Limited (“CRCL") (Formerly known
as China Resources National Corporation), a company
registered in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is
principally engaged in the construction and operation of
power plants and coal mines. The address of the registered
office of the Company is Rooms 2001-2002, 20th Floor,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in HK
dollars, unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 19 March 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

21

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS").
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
investments, which is carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with the HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

2.1.1 Going concern

At 31 December 2017, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$39,910,959,000.
In addition, there were outstanding capital
commitments amounting to HK$24,335,160,000
(Note 44). The directors are of the opinion that,
taking into account the current operating and
business plan of the Group as well as the banking
facilities (Note 31) available to the Group, the
Group has sufficient working capital to enable
it to meet in full its financial obligations as and
when they fall due for the coming twelve months
from the balance sheet date. Therefore, these
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

2

g
%’70
o
@
O
<,
®
[y

O\
,\V
\
2 )
OL,,G/.& 4, ’\b‘ P
o/% Nug| Report 2017 w8 é}@y

e {23
°Mpany Limited gas?

TESHBEREZ @

mRERE

AEBENAHPBEHRRERIEMR
BERBERMBREER(EE
MBREENDRE - BHMB
BROWBELKAEZR/E - I
RAHEERECARREERT
RIMEMMEHER

MBRROERTANEEBRM
BHREER  ARAETHRES
HhEt MEEBREAASE
SRR IRAE L HE - PR
BEMNHAHNSEEMITEHE
P KRR K fh B A O 7 75 R
RBE R RSHOM T4 HEER -

B=Z+—HEERHEE
F %8 #939,910,959,000
BT W AEBES
24,335,160,000 7 7T &9 &~
BARAE(MIE44) - EFR
B REEAEEBRIAKL
BREBRTERAERTH
AERITRVE (BIsE31)1% -
REBERHEEELESTEH
BTERBLEHRTED
KEA+ AR BHNTES
T At ZEAHTHER
ROEBFBERLEREERSR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF ISDIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING

OLICIES (conTiNueD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

)

(i)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time
for the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2017:

o Amendments to HKAS 12 “Income
taxes”

° Amendments to HKAS 7 “Statement of
cash flows”

° Amendment to HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of
interest in other entities”

The adoption of these amendments to
standards did not have any material impact
on the Group.

New and amended standards, not yet adopted
by the Group

The following new and amended standards
have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning after 1 January
2017 and have not been early adopted by the
Group:

. Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 on sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or
joint venture were originally intended
to be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
but the effective date has now not been
determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

New and amended standards, not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” is
effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The new
standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets.

The Group has reviewed its financial
assets and liabilities and is expecting the
following impact from the adoption of
the new standard on 1 January 2018:

The majority of the Group's equity
instruments that are currently classified
as available-for-sale will satisfy the
conditions for classification as at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI"”) and hence there will
be no change to the accounting for
these assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

New and amended standards, not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

Accordingly, the Group does not
expect the new guidance to affect the
classification and measurement of these
financial assets. However, gains or losses
realised on the sale of financial assets
at FVOCI will no longer be transferred
to profit or loss on sale, but instead
reclassified below the line from the
FVOCI reserve to retained earnings.
During the year ended 31 December
2017, no available-for-sale financial
assets were disposed.

There will be no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as
the new requirements only affect the
accounting for financial liabilities that
are designated at fair value through
profit or loss and the Group does not
have any such liabilities.

The new hedge accounting rules will
align the accounting for hedging
instruments more closely with risk
management practices. As a general
rule, more hedge relationships might
be eligible for hedge accounting, as the
standard introduces a more principles-
based approach.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

New and amended standards, not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions
based on expected credit losses ("ECL")
rather than only incurred credit losses as
is the case under HKAS 39. It applies to
financial assets classified at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at
FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial
guarantee contracts. Based on the
assessments undertaken to date, the
Group expects that the impact will be
immaterial.

The new standard also introduces
expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and
extent of the Group’s disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in
the year of the adoption of the new
standard.

The Group will apply the new rules
retrospectively from 1 January 2018.
Comparatives for 2017 will not be
restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

New and amended standards, not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS15 “Revenue from contracts
with customers” is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. This will replace HKAS 18 which
covers contracts for goods and services
and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts and related literature. The new
standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a
good or service transfers to a customer.
The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

Management has assessed the effects
of applying the new standard on the
Group’s financial statements and has
estimated the following area that is
likely to be affected:

o revenue from service — the
application of HKFRS 15 may result
in the identification of separate
performance obligations which
could affect the timing of the
recognition of revenue; and

2

HmELELE (@)
212 BT BERNE B RIRE (@)

TESHBEREZ @

7S 58 [ 1 R BR AR B # R] ]

BRI 2R ()

Z Rl =~

FBM TR E £
FISHIEFELELD
WamIn=ZT—N
F-HA—B&zi&
RieEEMEL
R o R ERAOR &
HE S m LR R
BELENBAZE
BERFERIF18
SIASORERES
R MR 2 &
B e R ERIE 1
5t o FTERRER
WARE Gk iRk
ZIEHIEEE R
PR 2 RA -
HEARPEZA
2HEHRAE
f& 28 B 77 3R
o

EEED AR
7 QI Y AR [ B
BmR2TE X
EfbEt M ER

EXTEZRE

o RBBA—IK
A B R
& A E 15
5 ] e B B
B BHE
(SR =R Il
FEERBA
B HE R RS )
K&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

New and amended standards, not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

o accounting for certain costs
incurred in fulfilling a contract -
certain costs which are currently
expensed may need to be
recognised as an asset under HKFRS
15.

The Group intends to adopt the
standard using the modified
retrospective approach which means
that the cumulative impact of the
adoption will be recognised in retained
earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.

Amendment to HKFRS 2 “Classification
and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions” is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. This change in accounting
standards is expected to have no
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Amendment to HKFRS 4 “Insurance
Contracts” is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. This change in accounting
standards is expected to have no
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

New and amended standards, not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 1 “First time
adoption of HKFRS” is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. This change in accounting
standards is expected to have no
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Amendment to HKAS 28 “Investments
in associates and joint ventures” s
effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. This change
in accounting standards is expected
to have no significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

Amendment to HKAS 40 “Transfers of
investment property” is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. This change in accounting
standards is expected to have no
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

New and amended standards, not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

Amendment to HK (IFRIC) 22 “Foreign
Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration” is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. This change in accounting
standards is expected to have no
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

HKFRS 16 “Leases” is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

The new stanard will result in almost
all leases being recognised on the
balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an
asset (the right to use the leased item)
and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

New and amended standards, not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for Group’s operating
leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$391,112,000
(Note 44(ii)). The Group estimates that
approximately 24% of these relate to
payments for short-term and low value
leases which will be recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss.

However, the Group has not yet
assessed what other adjustments, if any,
are necessary for example because of
the change in the definition of the lease
term and the different treatment of
variable lease payments and of extension
and termination options. It is therefore
not yet possible to estimate the amount
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
that will have to be recognised on
adoption of the new standard and how
this may affect the Group’s profit or loss
and classification of cash flows going
forward.

At this stage, the new standard is not
expected to apply until the financial year
of 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i) New and amended standards, not yet adopted

by the Group (Continued)

o Amendment to HK (IFRIC)
“Uncertainty over
Treatments”

23

Income Tax
is effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. This change in accounting
standards is expected to have no
significant effect on the consolidated

financial statements of the Group.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity's
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by

by-acquisition basis.

HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill
(Note 2.10). If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF ISDIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING

OLICIES (conTiNueD)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions -
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group's investments in associates
include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.3 Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured
treceivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using
equity method’ in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the income statement.
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SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

SET BRI E m)

2.4 Joint arrangements 24 8EZH
Investments in joint arrangements are classified as RELLHNREDERERKL
either joint operations or joint ventures depending EHEaertE RIZREFN
on the contractual rights and obligations of each BREMNREEME - AEEE

investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEESEHBREZ @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.5 SN E
2.5.1 EER 25| E#E

2.5 Foreign currency translation

2.5.1 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars ("HK$"), which
is the Company’'s functional and the Group’'s
presentation currency.

2.5.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
‘other gains/(losses) - net’.

Translation difference on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEESEBREZE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.5 HMNEIAE (@)
2.5.3 Group companies 2535&E AT

The results and financial positions of all the group AEEETHEBERUTA

entities (none of which has the currency of a HEJNEBEL—HNER

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional %(ﬁﬁhﬂéﬁ FTHEERAE

currency different from the presentation currency BEBREHEENER)

are translated into the presentation currency as ﬁ%éﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂj{}ﬂﬁ?ﬁb{?

follows: HEBRERENNEYE

* Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet ° %£§E1§i§ﬁﬁi§|JE@
presented are translated at the closing rate at ﬁ@&%fﬁi@?ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
the date of that balance sheet; HHOWTE XGRS

e Income and expenses for each consolidated s ZaffzmlmEiRmi
statement of comprehensive income are AT 51 R
translated at average exchange rates; and RME R

e All resulting exchange differences are s FAEAMERZEY
recognised in other comprehensive income. RE M 2 E WA TR

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the H&E%i@l\féf%}%ﬁﬁ%iﬁ’qﬁ

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets %&@ﬁfg@ﬁ%‘i@ﬁf/ﬁ}

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated 9|\1§:§%E}9/§§&§% » A A

at the closing rate. Currency translation difference Wl RBE - EEE’]ER

arising are recognised in other comprehensive Z RN A2 ERARER -

income.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEESEHBREZ @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.5 INEERE ()
254 HESBEIEBERIBDHE

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.5.4Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’'s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.6

2.7

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
and senior management of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of buildings,
power generating plant and equipment, mining
structures, motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures,
equipment and others and construction-in-progress
(“CIP"). Property, plant and equipment, other than
the CIP are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and any impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

2

TESHBEREZ @

2.7 YWE - - BERRE@

ME - BEEREOFEDRT
FMEET AT E A F IR ERERH
RADEEERSREETE

Estimated useful lives

fhat Al A 5 5

Buildings BF 18 - 45 years
18 £ 454

Power generating plant and equipment BEM R 15 - 18 years
15% 184F

Mining structures HRIESRE 5 - 20 years
5£E204F

Motor vehicles, furniture, B REBERE - 3 - 10 years
fixtures, equipment and others M E A 32104

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

CIP represents the direct costs of construction incurred
of property, plant and equipment including interest
capitalized less any impairment losses. No provision or
depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time the relevant assets are completed and put
into use. CIP is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.8 Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, and are amortised
using the unit of production method based on the
proved and probable mineral reserves.

2.9 Exploration and resources rights

Exploration and resources rights are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and resources rights are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Exploration and
resources rights include the cost of exploration rights
and the expenditures incurred in the search for mineral
resources as well as the determination of the technical
feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
those resources. When the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of extracting mineral resources
become demonstrable and relevant mining rights
certificate is obtained, previously recognised exploration
and resources rights are reclassified as mining rights

or other fixed assets. These assets are assessed for
impairment before reclassifications.

2.10 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any

previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which

the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for

internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.10 Goodwiill (Continued)

21

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill and intangible assets not ready to use - are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered from impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.12 Financial assets

2.12.1 Classification

The

Group classifies its financial assets in the

following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, and available for

sale.

The classification depends on the purpose

for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading
and designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade
and other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ in the consolidated balance sheet
(Notes 2.18 and 2.19).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEESEHBREZ @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued) 212 EREE (@)
2.12.1Classification (Continued) 2121 (&)

(¢) Available-for-sale financial assets (0 FHHESREE
Available-for-sale financial assets are non- AHEESRHEEARRT
derivative financial assets that are either BEZERSIRDER
designated in this category or not classified in A EM AR IEITE
any of the other categories. They are included TREE - ERETH
in current assets when the investment HEEEBRANEEH
matures or management intends to dispose it BI121E A N E &K
within 12 months of the balance sheet date. B ZufthEemE

Et ARBEE

2.12.2Recognition and measurement 2122FERRETE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets ERBEENSREERNRS
are recognised on the trade-date, the date on AR X5 A AR E&
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the HEBEEEER BB
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair WIER AR EBEGT ABREE
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets NEMEE  REVIFZER
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. AEBEMRGHAER 1%
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit NABEFABRENSH
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and BEENFRAANBERR -
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated HIXGMAREHKERX
income statement. Available-for-sale financial He At EeRmEE R
assets and financial assets at fair value through NABETFABRZENSH
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. EEEBEKRAALBEIEE-
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at ERRERFIEREERERAE
amortised cost using the effective interest method. BRI AT BR -

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair [Z AR EEFT ABRED
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through TREE BN AAEE
profit or loss’ category are presented in the PHMELANKEHER
consolidated income statement within ‘other REE RS A S s &
gains/(losses) — net’ in the period in which they WIEMmFIE (k) —F

arise. BB o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

2.12.2Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recoginized in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated income statement as ‘other gains/
(losses) — net’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part
of other income. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEESEHBREZ @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets 214 eREERE
2.14.1 Assets carried at amortised cost 214V IR A SR E

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting NEEEE HRE R RE
period whether there is objective evidence that MBS REERER B
a financial asset or group of financial assets is —HEREETHRRE -
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial NP HEREER  WEE
assets is impaired and impairment losses are Ex—EAxxZRHREREL
incurred only if there is objective evidence of BENESEEGH(EBEES
impairment as a result of one or more events that 1) mMEBEESHYEA
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset ST ZENZEASRE
(a "loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has ERMGETARKRE S REEAK
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of T2 BZBERZEATHE
the financial asset or group of financial assets that EHgRABERERLIRR
can be reliably estimated. BEE -

Evidence of impairment may include indications BEFEEAEEFES AL
that the debtors or a group of debtors is —HEB AN B R B EMRAE
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default BEBHIBRAE SR
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, ® - HEB RN ESETT
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy HiEsEHl  UREAE
or other financial reorganisation, and where REBBE TR G RKIE RN
observable data indicate that there is a measurable EHRAFEM T B(MEE
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such B AV KB R B FE N R RSB
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that RS EEY) o

correlate with defaults.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEBEEFBERMZEm
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)
2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 214 REERE @)
2.14.1 Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued) 2141 SRR AR TIBR VB = ()
For loans and receivables category, the amount BE R & E W SKIERE R i
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of

HEFARBELSRAERE
(TBEREAEENARREER
the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is

BE)NEEGTE  WIEZ
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

CREERERFELE -
EEMNREEZTH M8
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount

rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under

BoRanNa e RE
price.

=
may measure impairment on the basis of an

Ao 8 IR F B A X5

B M ERERSENE X
RIRES
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group

instrument’s fair value using an observable market

BEABENRAER

- fERAITHREIDE
REBAEERBAIBEDE

impairment losses decreases and the decrease

ERZELAN R AEER
ERE -
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
can be related objectively to an event occurring

AHEAEHME  REBE®N
SRR - MR R B E
HWERRBEREENSMH
after the impairment was recognised (such as an HE(MEBANEETR
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the HE) Bl ZA R E
reversal of the previously recognised impairment BEEELDgRE MRk R
losses is recognised in the consolidated income 7R o
statement.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEESEHBREZ @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 214 SREERE @)
2.14.2Assets classified as available for sale 21420 BRAIHEENEE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting REBRNZHRERARTEE
period whether there is objective evidence that AREBEBEFRAEENES
a financial asset or group of financial assets is TREENARME -
impaired.
For debt securities, if any such evidence exists TEBESMSE @ BFEU
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference ERE R EBRBREORKE
between the acquisition cost and the current fair KAEERAALBENE
value, less any impairment losses on that financial B RZemEE LR
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — are m AR RN AR EE R
removed from equity and recognised in profit or H)E#HFIRITERRER
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of R MR EZERE - 5
a debt instrument classified as available for sale RAHEHENBEBEIANA
increases and the increase can be objectively AEEEM - mAEEMA
related to an event occurring after the impairment B R 1B R AR RRE
losses were recognised in profit or loss, the EIEEFTEANSHHBE
impairment losses were reversed through the A& pt i s R B LRE R
consolidated income statement. 1B
For equity investments, a significant or prolonged HREREMS - WEHFA
decline in the fair value of the security below its AEBEARNBHIRAKEERR
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. HNNAEB MERAEELR
If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss BE BEFEHERE &
- measured as the difference between the BT BT 18 (IR W i A 7 B 8 B
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any AABEMNERE  HzeH
impairment losses on that financial asset previously BEZAEERERERNT
recognised in profit or loss — are removed from AREEBEHE) BRI
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment BRI ERRER - £6 0F
losses recognised in the consolidated income W R R ARE T RRE
statement on equity instruments are not reversed EEIgABAe M ERE

through the consolidated income statement. [@ o
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)
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215 TE ST A REHES

2.15 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as
a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the
item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as hedges of a particular risk associated
with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the
transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking
various hedging transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and
on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that
are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items.

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified
as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining
hedged item is more than 12 months, and as a current
asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the
hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives
are classified as a current asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHBEREZE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)
215 TSR T AR EHIEE (@)

2.15 Derivative financial instruments and hedging
activities (Continued)

2.15.1Cash flow hedge 2151 B EmEBEHH

The effective portion of changes in the fair value
of derivatives that are designated and qualified
as cash flow hedges is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement within
‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified
to profit or loss in the period when the hedged
item affects profit or loss (for example, when the
forecast sale that is hedged takes place). The gain
or loss relating to the effective portion of interest
rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance costs’.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in equity at that time remains in equity
and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the consolidated income statement
within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

TESHBEREZ @

2.16 Financial guarantee contracts 2.16 BIEIERER

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and
other bodies on behalf of subsidiaries or associates to
secure loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because
all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for
the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Company’s liabilities under
such guarantees are measured at the higher of the
initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of
the amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience of similar
transactions and history of past losses, supplemented
by management’'s judgement. The fee income earned
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of
the guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating
to guarantees is reported in the consolidated income
statement within other operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries or associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.17 Inventories

Inventories include fuel oil for power generation, coal,
materials for repairs and maintenance and spare parts,
and are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are initially recorded at cost and are charged
to fuel costs, repairs and maintenance, or comsumables,
respectively when used, or capitalised to property,
plant and equipment when installed, as appropriate,
using weighted average cost basis. Cost of inventories
includes costs of purchase and transportation expenses.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.18 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
products sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEBESHERMZE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)
2.19 Cash and cash equivalents 29 RERREEEY
Cash and cash equivalents listed in the consolidated ReEHReEREREINRE R
statement of cash flows represent cash in hand, ReEBEYMATFERSE  R1THE
deposits held at call with banks, and other short- MEZEEMEEZEHRER KN
term highly-liquid investments with original maturities 7 SR HABR & = B A s A T Y52 23
of three months or less that are readily convertible BEREMARNKRE (FTERERAS
to known amounts of cash and are subject to an EMERERE) -
insignificant risk of changes in value.
2.20 Share capital 2.20 B A<
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. TR EAER -
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue BITHRSEREEEZEENR
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a 38 B AN PO 55 51| PR AS SRIE HR
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. (BREE1&) o
2.21 Perpetual capital securities 2.2 KAERES
Perpetual capital securities issued by the Group ?%ﬁéﬁﬂj‘]*ﬂﬁ$§#ﬁﬁ
are classified as equity instruments and are initially *EEH&$I/E\ I ¥) 2 1% P R
recorded at the amount of proceeds received. HERAR °
2.22 Trade and other payables 2.22 BRI R H AL RR
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or J_E1—JLBE/T/\7%Z§:E wERBBET
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course () £ 7 s B 5 S BR A5 0 £ K
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables EEE ° fis SRIBR — F AP (SUAE
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due E%iﬁk%@@/ﬁﬂmfﬁﬁqﬁi) %)
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle . R A1 B 3R e H A A SRR
/_\ (=
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as EP—"U'L@JQL - BRRER B
non-current liabilities. % CERIR
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair ﬁﬁaﬁ KB H At A R IB ) 4%
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost RICBERR - K1z R EERA

using the effective interest method. %5&&&&@%’&2}&3 e
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.23 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.24 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(@) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
the tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred taxtion asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal
of the temporary difference, deferred income tax
liabilities are not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.26 Employee benefits

Employee benefits include all expenditures relating to
the employees for their services. The Group recognises
employee benefits as liabilities during the accounting
period when employees render services and allocates to

related cost of assets and expenses based on different
beneficiaries.

(a)

Defined contribution plan

In connection with pension obligations, the
Group operates various defined contribution

plans in accordance with the local conditions
and practices in the countries and provinces

in which they operate. A defined contribution
plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate publicly
administered pension insurance plan on
mandatory and voluntary basis. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when incurred.

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans, state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

TESHBEREZ @

226 BERER @)
(b) #KRIEZ{EREF

2.26 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period are discounted to
their present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.27 Share-based payment

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the Group
received services from directors and employees of the
Group, directors of CRH, employees of CRH and its
subsidiaries to the Group.

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options and
award shares granted at the grant date is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in employee share-based
compensation reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to employee share-based
compensation reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in employee share-
based compensation reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting period or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in employee
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

The Company also operates a Medium to Long-term
Performance Evaluation Incentive Plan (the “Scheme”).
Pursuant to the Scheme, share plan trust has been set
up by the Company for employees.

The Scheme is accounted for as a cash-settled
transaction. The Group measures the services acquired
and the liability incurred at the fair value of the liability.
Until the liability is settled, the Group remeasures the
fair value of the liability at the end of each reporting
period and at the date of settlement, with any changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)
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2.28 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or contractual obligation as a result of
a past event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation, and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Provisions are measured
at the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Provisions for the Group’s restoration, rehabilitation
and environmental expenses are based on estimates of
required expenditure at the mines in accordance with
PRC rules and regulations. Provisions are measured at
the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.29 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

o
\\
2 Q
OIPQ,& 4/7 . \q (‘/
O Report 2017 @»@‘@V

22
°Mpany Limited gas?

TESHBEREZ @

2.28 &

WASEERBTEHmEREE
AEEREHREE  MAKEER
AR EREZERTEHEREE
ﬁ—fsaﬁu‘l‘ﬂv - BB - B
W ERE TSR ERR &
THEEHARE  REBEEHRAE
1Eu/<EE| B fEEﬁﬁ/,J¥Kﬁ%T‘tEE}]E—
1i1au+u+i 1h1§ﬁﬁ¢£ﬁfﬁux =4
BEENGARERETEHE -
AlHAEREEAZSZRERENIR
BE(WEEREENTZEEX) -

AEBEWRE  EFLIRFRERDN
BBTIRBEPERASERES
BILATHRMEFAETE - BER
AR X IZEREEE AR
TR HREFE - ZAR KR
ERMESHeEREENGRA
BB R a0 T h o BEZEEE
EMEBNMBEEERSHNEER -

2.29 LT BY

i BE 50 & 3 (R 78 AN 5 [ A5 BUAS K
Fi 8 B e R SR B AS S & P A B A
&t BIBFHB SR E R E
BRER -

B B8 AN B TR 6 B A R AT
7 B2 L 45 4 18 /O A AN i 5 P 75 1
RIAN A FHU R 5 R -

BREME - BB LR BB #
BIOIESER B A E T HELEW
A WiR A BE E N TEHIF A
EAORRT AR PIRER o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEESEHBREZ @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.30 Revenue recognition 2.30 e FER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales of
products and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of discounts
and after eliminating sales with the group companies.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customers, the type of
transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

2.30.1 Sales of electricity
Revenue is earned and recognised upon
transmission of electricity to the customers or the
power grid owned by the respective regional or
provincial grid companies.

2.30.2 Sales of coal

Revenue is recognised when the coal delivered
to the customers and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the coal.

2.30.3 Sales of heat supply

Revenue is recognised when the heat is delivered
to the customers.

2.30.4 Provision of services

Service income is recognised when services are
rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.31 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan
and receivables are recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

2.32 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.33 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases.

The Group is the lessee — Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

The Group is the lessor — When assets are leased out
under an operating lease, the assets are included in the
balance sheet based on the nature of the assets. Lease
income is recognised over the term of the lease on a
straight-line basis.

2.34 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central group
treasury department under policies approved by the
board of directors. The department identifies, evaluates
and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with
the Group's operating units.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The majority of the Group's operations
are in the PRC and transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") which
is the functional currency of the respective
group entities. Foreign exchange risk mainly
arises from certain cash and cash equivalents,
and borrowings which are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and US dollars
("US$"). However, certain entities are located
in Hong Kong and their functional currency
are HK$ or US$, the foreign exchange
risk for them mainly arises from balances
denominated in RMB. During the year ended
31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group
did not enter into any forward exchange
contracts or currency swap contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

In addition, given there are different
functional currencies within the Group, there
are still foreign exchange risk which arises
from the transactions and balances within the
Group even though they are eliminated. The
carrying amounts of the foreign currencies
denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities before elimination (excluding the
amounts denominared in HK$ or US$, of
which the functional currency is US$ or HK$)

at the reporting date are as follows:

Assets
Us$
RMB
HK$

Liabilities
RMB
Euro (“EUR$")
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
HK$ and US$ with all other variables
held constant, net profit for the year
would have been HK$248,240,000 (2016:
HK$248,078,000) lower/higher, or net assets
as of 31 December 2017 would have been
HK$424,522,000 (2016: HK$381,903,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of non-
functional currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities. This sensitivity
has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk which is partially offset
by cash held at bank with interest income
accrued at variable rates. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1

(a)
(ii)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, except for
HK$51,393,624,000 (2016: HK$48,037,391,000)
of long-term borrowings whose interests
were charged at floating rates, interests on
all remaining long term borrowings and long
term loans from related parties were charged
at fixed rates before cash flow hedge.

In order to keep borrowings at fixed rate and
to minimise cash flow interest rate risk, the
Group would adopte floating to fixed interest
rate swaps to manage cash flow interest rate
risk exposure associated with the borrowings
at floating interest rates if necessary. As at
31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group
did not enter into any interest rate swap
agreements.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for borrowings at floating rates which
are not hedged with hedging instruments.
The analysis is prepared by assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end
of the period were outstanding for the whole
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

3 TlREEEm

3.1 epEREZE@)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

At 31 December 2017, if interest rates on
long-term borrowings at that date had been
10 basis point higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year or net assets as of 31 December
2017 would have been approximately
HK$38,550,000 (2016: HK$36,033,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expenses on floating rate
borrowings.

Price risk

The major price explosure of the Group
is from purchase of coal. The coal market
is influenced by the global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A
change in prices of coal could significantly
affect the Group’s financial performance.
The Group historically has not used any
commodity derivative instruments to hedge
the potential price fluctuations of coal and
does not have a fixed policy to do so in the
foreseeable future. If the coal price increased/
decreased by 5%, net profit for the year
would have been HK$1,427,693,000 (2016:
HK$1,019,969,000) lower/higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1
(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Price risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to price risk
because of investments classified as available-
for-sale on the consolidated balance sheet. To
manage its price risk arising from investments
in equity interests, the Group diversifies its
portfolio within the limits set by the Group. If
the price of the avaliable-for-sale investments
increased/decreased by 5%, net assets as
of 31 December 2017 would have been
HK$6,760,000 (2016: HK$7,988,000) higher/
lower.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to bank deposits, trade and other receivables,
and amounts due from related companies. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 December 2017 in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
of the Group has reviewed the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk as
at 31 December 2017 is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk for the Group is concentrated on a
limited number of power grids, associates, and
joint ventures. However, management of the
Group, having considered the financial background
and good creditability of the power grids and
related companies, and operating prospects of
associates and joint ventures, believes that there is
no significant credit risk.

Credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral
held or other credit enhancements are summarised

3 ERlREER @
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as below: s
2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
THT

Credit risk exposure relating to HEEREBERINEEEH
off-balance sheet items: WEERR

Financial guarantees (Note 47) SR (MaE47) 3,849,912

Liquidity risk

The Group operates a central treasury function
at corporate level that surplus cash of operating
entities within the Group is gathered in a pool. The
cash balance is then advanced to entities within
the Group with cash needs. The Group’s policy is
to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions in order
to meet the liquidity requirements of the Group in
the short and longer terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As stated in Note 2.1.1, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$39,910,959,000 at 31 December
2017 and outstanding capital commitment of
HK$24,335,160,000, which exposed the Group
to liquidity risk. In order to mitigate the liquidity
risk, the Group had obtained sufficient short
and long-term bank facilities at the end of the
reporting period. In addition, the management will
undertake close monitoring process to control the
timing of the expected cash outflows associated
with the construction of new power plants and the
purchase of power generation equipment. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s liquidity risk has been significantly
reduced and they are satisfied that the Group will
be able to meet in full its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for the coming twelve
months from 31 December 2017.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities,
computed on the earliest date when the Group
would be required to settle them. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are computed at
floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contnuep)y 3 EREERE IR w0

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 emERREZ @)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REEZREPMR(E)
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did RIE—tEFR-T—-RF
not have any derivative financial instruments. +ZA=1+—H AEBEL

BAERATESHBTA -

Carrying

Total  amount/

Weighted undiscounted face
average Less than cash flows value

interest rate  On demand Tyear 1-5years OverSyears £ffEREH  BEE/
NEFSHE REREE  OWN-F  -EEF RENE E4E HE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
% Tién TiEn THR TEn TiEn TiEn

At 31 December 2017 R-B-tE+=R

=t-H
Non-derivative financial ~ JFiTASRER:
liabilities:
Non-interest bearing & N/ARER 17,623,682 11,998,907 = — 29,622,589 29,622,589
Fixed interest rate Ehik 4017 — 6,659,775 23,224,281 — 29,884,056 27,577,108
Variable interest rate FE)H% 3.695 — 28,870,527 29,384,557 28,028,074 86,283,158 74,145,761

17,623,682 47,529,209 52,608,838 28,028,074 145,789,803 131,345,458

Financial quarantee contracts BT ERAL — 3181874 668,038 — 3849912 3,849,912
At31December 2016  R=E-AE+ZR

=1-H
Non-Gerivative financial HiEcREt:
liabilities:
Non-interest bearing T8 NANER 14,037,230 11,423,985 — — 25,461,215 25,461,215
Fixed interest rate e i 3814 766,606 4,228,052 24,001,662 — 28,996,380 26,108,741
Variable interest rate e 3551 — 18,982,363 33,974,093 25558057 78514513  66,121327

14,803,89 34,634,400 57,975,755 25,558,057 132,972,108 117,691,283

Financial guarantee contracts S ERAL - 578,903 467 451 163,788 1,210,142 1,210,142



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives in managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure in order to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors its capital based on gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity (excluding
non-controlling interests). Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings and loans from related parties less
cash and cash equivalents, and pledged and restricted
bank deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuepy 3

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2017 were as

CREMREE@

32 EXERERE S

RZE—+F+_A=+—HH

follows: ERBEEERT -
2017 2016
—E2E—tF T RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT
Total borrowings E- ek 100,922,869 91,463,402
Loan from an intermediate HE—EFRBEERARMNER
holding company 800,000 —
Less: cash and cash equivalents W BENMIREEED (5,381,686)  (4,347,022)
pledged and restricted bank B R 2R
deposits RITIFR (890,182)  (1,092,114)
Net debt BEFR 95,451,001 86,024,266
Total equity (excluding ik (N EFEIEES MR )
non-controlling interests) 75,213,819 69,020,906
Gearing ratio BEAXRBELE 127% 125%

The directors of the Company consider the Group's
gearing ratio has been maintained at a comfortable

level.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT contnuepy 3 £ RLE B EE @)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREEME

The table below analyses financial instruments carried TERATAKEER A AEE

at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels FERSRIE CEHENTRE

have been defined as follows: AN

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets F—H - JHNEEXEER
for identical assets or liabilities V&R T 5 B FRE (R AL

FHEE)

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included FHm - RBEEEGEIER)K
within level 1 that are observable for the REBIRBER)A
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as BREEXEENE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from ABBE-—RBEN
prices) BRI

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not F= - WHERBREBAUEBERERMS
based on observable market data (that is, ERETMEEXEA
unobservable inputs) EHE A EUE (Bl AN a]

B ABE)

The following table presents the Group's financial THREBINAEER ZZ—1F

assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at T+ A=+—HEAARBEFE

31 December 2017: MNeEMEERBE :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— B E= #Et

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE

Available-for-sale A ERE
investments — — 1,516,177 1,516,177



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuepy 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at
31 December 2016:

Level 1
F—
HK$'000
FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale A ERE
investments —

There were no transfers among level 1, level 2 and level
3 during the year.

(a) Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is determined based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. As at 31 December 2017
and 2016, the Group held no financial assets that
included in level 1.

SEAEAREE @

3.3 AREEMA @

TREINAEBR -_F—RF
=

=7
A=+—HBERAAREES

+=

MNeEMEERAE :

Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-R F=4 KBET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET AT

— 1,471,665 1,471,665

RER F—F F_ARE=
Az I e o

(a)

E—-fEmTE

EERMIZFRXINERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2. If one or more of
the significant inputs are not determined based on
observable market data, the financial instrument
is included in level 3. As at 31 December 2017
and 2016, the Group held no financial assets that
included in level 2.

Level 3 financial instruments

Level 3 financial instruments mainly included
available-for-sale investments in unlisted equity
securities. As these investments are not traded
in an active market, their fair values have been
determined using dividend discounted model.
The details of the assumptions for available-for-
sale investments and the sensitivity analysis are
disclosed in Notes 13(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(c)

SEAEAREE @

3.3 AREEMA @

3

Level 3 financial instruments (Continued) (c) E=#HesmIAE®
The movement of level 3 financial instruments for HE_ZT—+F+ A
the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows: =t+—BLEFE F=F
BTEMEBHINT -
Available-for-sale
investments
AHEERE
HK$°000
FET
Opening balance at 1 January K—A—Br 4R 1,471,665
Exchange difference =R 85,974
Losses recognised in REAM 2 ERAEREEE ()
other comprehensive income (i) (44,856)
Additions NE 3,394
Closing balance at 31 December RTZA=+—B8HREH 1,516,177
Total unrealised gains/losses for FFAFREFEENEEERERFR
the period included in profit or loss MEIA R E IR,
for assets held at the end of the year  [E5{E48%8 —
The movement of level 3 financial instruments for HE-_Z—X ¢j’ — A
the period ended 31 December 2016 is as follows: “t+—HALFE BT
T ER ST :
Available-for-sale
investments
AHHERSE
HK$'000
FET
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BrEY&EER 1,497,284
Exchange difference b W =% (85,804)
Gains recognised in R E b 2 AR A UL E (i)
other comprehensive income (i) 30,057
Additions NE 30,160
Settlements e (32)
Closing balance at 31 December R+ A=+—H®EREH 1,471,665

Total unrealised gains/losses for
the period included in profit or loss
for assets held at the end of the year

)
available-for-sale investment, namely Tanggang
Ltd. (“Tanggang Railway").

The gains/(losses) represented fair value changes of an

AAAERFENEERSRT

SLEL ey
FiBRE _

W, (BH) HafHER
E (BEBHBEREERA
fg( [ERHEK] ) ) ORRE

U]
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s o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within next financial year are addressed below:

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The estimate of depreciable lives of property, plant
and equipment, especially power generating plant
and equipment and mining structures, was made
by the directors with reference to the following: (1)
the historical usage of the assets; (2) their expected
physical wear and tear; (3) results of recent durability
assessment performed; (4) technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production of similar fixed assets; and (5) the changes
in market demand for, or legal or comparable limits
imposed on, the use of such fixed assets. When the
useful lives differ from the original estimated useful
lives, management will adjust the estimated useful lives
accordingly.

The current estimated useful lives are stated in Note
2.7. 1t is possible that the estimates made based on
existing experience are different to the actual outcomes
within next financial period and could cause a material
adjustment to the depreciation and carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continuED)

(a)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

If the estimated depreciable lives of power generating
plant and equipment and mining structures had been
increased/decreased by 5%, the depreciation expenses
of fixed assets for the year ended 31 December 2017
would have been decreased/increased by approximately
HK$411,649,000 and HK$393,581,000 respectively
(2016: HK$406,067,000 and HK$364,005,000).

Estimated impairment of non-financial assets
(other than goodwill)

In determining whether a non-financial asset is impaired
or the event previously causing the impairment no
longer exists, management has to exercise judgement,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the
level of impairment, including the discount rate or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect net present value used in the
impairment test.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continuED)

(b) Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

(other than goodwill) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, although
coal prices maintained at high levels, the Group
will continue its shutdown plan of some of its coal
mines gradually from 2017 to 2020 according to the
government policy of reducing overcapacity in the
coal industry. Net impairment losses therefore were
recognised in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (Notes 6, 7 and 8)
to reflect the lower economic benefit to be recovered
from those mining rights and related mining assets.

Further considerations in performing impairment tests
regarding non-financial assets in coal mining segment
are set out in Notes 6, 7 and 8 respectively.

Impairment review of goodwill

As of 31 December 2017, there was goodwill
substantially arising from acquisition of various power
plants amounting to HK$1,626,560,000 (2016:
HK$1,567,684,000) (Note 12). Determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The recoverable amounts of each of
CGUs are determined based on value in use calculation.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and any residual value from
disposing the related assets and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

The details of the assumptions used by management
and the sensitivity analysis are disclosed in Note 12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continuED)

(d) Mining rights

As stated in Note 2.8, mining rights are amortised using
the unit of production method based on the proved
and probable mineral reserves.

The process of estimating quantities of reserves
is inherently uncertain and complex. It requires
significant judgements and decisions based on available
geological, geophysical, engineering and economic
data. These estimates may change substantially as
additional data from ongoing development activities
and production performance becomes available and
as economic conditions impacting mineral prices and
costs change. Reserve estimates are based on current
production forecasts, prices and economic conditions.
The directors exercise their judgement in estimating the
total proved and probable reserves of the coal mines
and on the assumption that the PRC government will
continue to renew the mining right certificates (the
"Certificates”) upon its expiration at minimal charges.
If the quantities of reserves are different from current
estimates and significant charge would be incurred in
renewal of the relevant Certificates upon its expiration,
it will result in significant changes to amortisation
and depreciation expenses of mining rights and affect
the recoverable amount of mining rights, in which a
material impairment loss may arise.

Impairment review of deposits paid for
acquisition of mining rights/exploration rights

Deposits paid for acquisition of mining rights/
exploration rights are reviewed for impairment
whenever one of the following events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable (the list is not exhaustive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continuED)

(e) Impairment review of deposits paid for
acquisition of mining rights/exploration rights
(Continued)

o The possibility of converting the deposits into the
mining rights/exploration rights.

e  The period for which the entity has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not
expected to be renewed.

o Substantive expenditure on future exploration for
and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor planned.

o Exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area have not led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of
mineral resources and the entity has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.

° Sufficient data exist to indicate that, though
a development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the exploration
and resources rights is unlikely to be recovered in
full from successful development or by sale.

In estimating the recoverable amounts of assets,
various assumptions, including future cash flows to
be associated with the deposits and discount rates,
are made. If future events do not correspond to such
assumptions, the recoverable amounts will need to be
revised, and this may have an impact on the Group’s
results of operations or financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continuED)

(e) Impairment review of deposits paid for
acquisition of mining rights/exploration rights

(Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of deposits
paid for acquisition of mining rights/exploration rights
is HK$1,449,133,000 (2016: HK$1,354,200,000) (Note
14) and there is no impairment made for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

4 BEESTETTRAE @

(e) WEBERIERE HhIRMEFT (4%
SRR ERE @)

R_E—+F+-_A=+—8"
WEE R WEEmMY e
/) B8R ™ & A& 1,449,133,0007% 7T
(ZZ— /X4 :1,354,200,000 %
T)(MF14RBEE_T—EF
+—A=+—BLFEMEEDR
BE(ZZ—REFE &)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue arising from sales of electricity
and heat generated by thermal power plants, and sales of
coal during the year. The Group is currently engaged in

ERER T HER

EEBERFARFEEED
HERURRRFEEMELDEA - K

/_\_L

%@EEIE'%E%E{ EEDE

- BERH
— KN

three business areas — thermal power (inclusive of coal-fired B(BREREEHmMRBER) « Al B
and gas-fired power plants), renewable energy (inclusive of ERER(BIERNESE KNBERK
wind farms, hydro-electric projects and photovoltaic power BE) LEEFRER -
generation) and coal mining.
2017 2016
—B-tF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Sales of electricity 64,013,900 59,484,597
Of which: :
Sales of power generation from NEMEEIHE
thermal power plants 56,532,142 53,449,457
Sales of power generation from
renewable energy 7,481,758 6,035,140
Heat supply Hpefitre 3,763,647 3,128,114
Sales of coal BEIRIHE 5,534,130 3,599,879
73,311,677 66,212,590
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SHMBHRRMEE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continueD)

The chief operating decision-makers mainly include
executive directors and members of senior management
of the Company. For the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment, the chief operating decision-
makers review operating results and financial information
on a group company by company basis. Each such group
company is identified as an operating segment. When the
group company operates in similar business model with
similar target group of customers, the Group's operating
segments are aggregated.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 2.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central corporate expenses, interest
income, finance costs, share of results of associates, share
of results of joint ventures, fair value changes on derivative
financial instruments, gains on disposal of investments,
dividend income from available-for-sale investments and
exchange gains/(losses).

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EHBWMRMEE
5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 ZEXEHERITER @
INFORMATION (continueD)
Segment information of the Group’s revenue and results is REBRAREEN DI EERHT 40
presented below: N
For the year ended 31 December 2017: HE-_FT—tF+-A=+—HIEHF
B
Thermal  Renewable Coal
power energy mining Eliminations Total
XE ABAEHER RIERR R g #st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TEx TERx TR

Segment revenue DEBA

External sales INERSHE 60,295,789 7,481,758 5,534,130 — 73,311,677

Inter-segment sales HEPEHEE - = 118,931 (118,931) =
Total act 60,295,789 7,481,758 5,653,061 (118,931) 73,311,677
Segment profit 2 E 6,538,715 4,154,059 2,896,483 — 13,589,257
Unallocated corporate expenses &7 58> %2 (1,427,129)
Interest income FIEMA 310,854
Gains on disposal of HENB L AW

subsidiaries 143,965
Losses on disposal of HERMERRE

other equity investments,net  [E518)F%8 (133,065)
Finance costs B%ER (3,991,498)
Share of results of associates [ELHZ MEELE 136,448
Share of results of i

joint ventures (104,558)
Dividend income from AEHERERSIA

available-for-sale investments 189,572
Exchange losses b 5 E1E (193,456)

Profit before income tax  BR%iAIFIE 8,520,390
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continueD)

2
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

5 EXBRIHBER @

# ET—RNFE+-_A=+—HIHF
=
Thermal Renewable Coal
power energy mining  Eliminations Total
KE  AEERR RiERR 13 Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAET TET TAET
Segment revenue AEHA
External sales INEREHE 56,577,571 6,035,140 3,599,879 — 66,212,590
Inter-segment sales AEEEE — — 99,232 (99,232) —
Total @t 56,577,571 6,035,140 3,699,111 (99,232) 66,212,590
Segment profit/(loss) PEHFE,/(HE) 13,835,139 3,010,846 (320,448) — 16,525,537
Unallocated corporate expenses K 2B ¥EH (960,483)
Interest income FLSUWA 279,427
Fair value changes on derivative ST BT EMAR
financial instruments EBEE (17,552)
Gains on disposal of HE—RRE L ks
a subsidiary 26,121
Gains on disposal of HEEMERRE
other equity investments,net  MiaF % 203,556
Finance costs BBER (3,557,220)
Share of results of associates  [E{FHEE(DEXE 288,995
Share of results of EEaEt%%E
joint ventures (44,968)
Dividend income from HNERERSWA
available-for-sale investments 78,778
Exchange gains B 5 s 219,397
Profit before income tax BR B4 A0 A

13,041,588



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMBRRME

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 EXBERTHERm@
INFORMATION (continueD)

Segment information about the Group’s assets and liabilities

ATRAEENEERBENDFE

is presented below: ¥}
2017 2016
—E2—tF T RF
HK$’000 HK$000
TEx FHT
Segment assets DHEE
— Thermal power —NE 103,616,110 103,165,862
— Renewable energy — A& ER 61,997,153 47,316,785
— Coal mining — ERERER 30,409,930 27,397,373
Total segment assets BOEEE 196,023,193 177,880,020
Investments in associates REtE P ERNRE 8,747,317 8,459,278
Investments in joint ventures REETENTE 3,660,368 3,610,368
Available-for-sale and loans to AHEE RA—B A EER
an available-for-sale investee REEER 1,970,007 1,895,764
Loans to/amounts due from associates and [A),JEWEE S PE LA LD E
joint ventures B FIE 2,090,192 1,030,052
Loans to/amounts due from non-controll 0],/ e FT B 1 ) I EAth
shareholders of a subsidiary and RAES 5 IR AR R B 3k
other related parties IR 17,603 35,150
Pledged bank deposits, and cash and EEPRITER BekBe
cash equivalents ZEY 6,271,868 5,439,136
Deferred income tax assets RIS TR E E 946,782 725,131
Other corporate assets, mainly representing Efi{b3¥EE - TERBIH KL
assets held by head office and REERARBENEE
investment holding companies 1,245,140 1,036,570

aHEE

Consolidated assets 220,972,470 200,111,469



&

. \
o ,«L‘\Cb
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED @,%/ e g o
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i & sport 20 g a2
SHUBBRRMEE oany Limited
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INFORMATION (continueD)
2017 2016
—B—+tF —ZE—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Segment liabilities DEEE
— Thermal power —NE 15,356,768 16,705,968
- Renewable energy — B4R 7,923,887 4,832,738
— Coal mining — R 8,516,356 6,818,134
Total segment liabilities woMaE 31,797,011 28,356,840
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 100,922,869 91,463,402
Deferred income tax liabilities RS RAE 2,576,356 2,590,741
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTIS R aE 877,060 575,912
Amounts due to associates and B E D EREEENRIE
joint ventures 946,996 906,902
Amounts due to other related parties JE A< EL At B Bt 5 RRIR 1,440,535 544,165
Other corporate liabilities, mainly HEMAEEE  TEREHAK
representing liabilities of head office KEZERARINAER
and investment holding companies 1,669,763 1,108,644
Consolidated liabilities aHtAE 140,230,590 125,546,606
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and HERDBERR LR D HE D BEEER
allocating resources between segments: mE :
e all assets are allocated to operating segments other e BRREELENKRE Resdd

than investments in associates, investments in joint
ventures, available-for-sale investments and loans to an
available-for-sale investee company, loans to/amounts
due from associates and joint ventures, amounts due
from other related companies, deferred income tax
assets, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents managed by corporate office, and other
unallocated corporate assets; and

ERE A ERE kA —
AR HERREEQRRER
M,/ ERBECERAELER
RHRIE - FEWCE b BB 1 R AR
B BREMBHEE - D EFR
THEAREERAEEENRS
EREEBYREMARDAEE
BEN FEEEHMOIREEEE

D K



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continueD)

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other o
than bank and other borrowings, deferred income
tax liabilities, current income tax liabilities, amounts
due to associates and joint ventures, amounts due to
other related parties and other unallocated corporate

liabilities.
Other segment information is presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

Amounts included in the
measure of segment
profit and segment

BRESBAERDH
BESENSH

assets:

Additions to non-current FmEEEME M)
assets (i)

Depreciation and amortisation 378 [ # §4

Impairment charges BEBX

Net (losses)/gains on disposal  HEWE « BE MR E
of property, plant and m(ER) e FE

equipment

Amounts regularly provided
to chief operating decision
maker but not included
in the measure of
segment profit:

Share of results of associates

Share of results of
joint ventures

Finance costs

Interest income

Income tax expense

EHOEIREBERKE
RUETEEEDH
REFENEE

et gl
FiEaet%%E

MHER
MBIA
FiSHER

5 EXBRIHBER @

BRERTTREMEE - BERFH
BE - MHMEREE BT
SEENEELENER BNH
fl B R 07 SRR M E AR R D Fo b %
BEN FTEREHMOREEZE

HE -
T AR S AR
BE-F—t#+-A=+-AL#

I

Thermal Renewable Coal
power energy mining Unallocated Total
KRE TBLERER REBAR AOE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
1,714,488 17,087,811 3,796,611 799,210 23,398,120
(7,340,011)  (2,538,445) (588,940) (40,026) (10,507,422)
(700,709) (2,119) (147,837) = (850,665)
(377,134) 5,737 7,511 (39) (363,925)
181,325 = (44,877) = 136,448
(107,928) = 3,370 = (104,558)
(1,520,106) (798,149)  (1,266,991) (406,252)  (3,991,498)
52,736 30,376 192,944 34,798 310,854
(1,387,113) (419,331) (460,691) (634,551)  (2,901,686)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continueD)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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5 EXBRIHBER @

# T —ANF+_A=+—BLF
=
Thermal ~ Renewable Coal
power energy mining  Unallocated Total
NE  AHEERR BRI ROE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TR FET THT
Amounts included in the BREEIBFABERD S
measure of segment profit EEFENEE:
and segment assets:
Additions to non-current JREBEEMIEM()
assets (i) 4,804,220 10,773,429 468,017 257,301 16,302,967
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7& [ # 84 (7,034,438)  (2,145,918)  (678,971) (23,161)  (9,882,488)
Impairment charges RERX (387,640) (20,298)  (874,350) —  (1,282,288)
Net losses on disposal HENE - BERHRE
of property, plant and HEETE
equipment (431,756) (13,276) (2,015) (19) (447,066)
Amounts regularly provided EHETEEERKRE
to chief operating decision REEBEFBEEL Y
maker but not included FIBtEMEE
in the measure of
segment profit
Share of results of associates ~ [EIGHE & (ME R 687,340 — (398,345) — 288,995
Share of results of EihaEtE%E
joint ventures 43,721 — (88,689) — (44,968)
Finance costs HBER (1,390,478) (720,527)  (1,394,592) (51,623)  (3,557,220)
Interest income FEHA 45,807 16,917 183,533 33,170 279,427
Income tax expense FERER (3,073,056)  (220,592)  (179,856) (924,936)  (4,398,440)
(i): Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and financial instruments (i) :

FRPEETERREEHARAERERTA

5y
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continueD)

Geographical information

The Group’'s operations are principally located in the
PRC. All of the Group's revenue from external customers
are attributed to customers located in the PRC. The
Group’s non-current assets excluding deferred income
tax assets and financial instruments, which amounted to
HK$190,458,538,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$160,991,621,000) are located in the PRC, other than
Hong Kong.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of each corresponding year
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as
follows:

Customer A Z2EA
Customer B =FB
Customer C EFEC

The customers quoted relate to the thermal power and
renewable energy segments.

EEERDHBER @)

Hh 13 &

AREBNEETBMNRPE K&
ERERBIIBEPLPHWAREN
RABNEF - RZ_E—tF+=
A=+—H8 XEENIERHEE
(TEEREMSHREERERTE)
190,458,538,000/8 7c( =& — /N F -
160,991,621,0007 T ) Az 7 B (T~
BIERE) o

BEREETERFHNEHR
REMREFEERMASEAHERR

10% MEFHWALT :
2017 2016
—E—tH§ —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
13,433,150 13,668,633
10,369,292 9,181,970
8,441,875 7,973,978

FoIEFRANERABLEERY
%a o

okr

i)
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 V¥ BMEKRXRE
Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Power fixtures,
generating equipment
plant and and others
equipment Mining 5E ' kA - Construction
Buildings BWK  structures £E - FRMER  in progress Total
- RiE HIERB Hith EEIRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FET FExT FExT FExT
At 1 January 2016 R=-F—-XR"F-—-A—H
Cost B 39,673,922 134,053,266 3,453,654 6,993,042 16,978,035 201,151,919
Impairment A (1,167,959)  (1,368,636) (125,759) (814,863)  (2,988,904)  (6,466,121)
Accumulated depreciation 2FmE (10,129,073) (39,647,139) (854,503) (1,209,873) —  (51,840,588)
Net book amount REEE 28,376,890 93,037,491 2,473,392 4,968,306 13,989,131 142,845,210
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE=-Z—~E+=A
=t+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FOEDFE 28,376,890 93,037,491 2,473,392 4,968,306 13,989,131 142,845,210
Exchange differences EHERE (1,811,061)  (6,020,321) (157,264) (301,147) (897,042)  (9,186,835)
Relating to disposal of a subsidiary 7 B & — K B2 F — (33) — (1,008) (62,689) (63,730)
Additions nE 80,452 6,811,184 — 3,365,910 5,493,664 15,751,210
Transfer LEE 1,915,110 6,597,925 545,833 24,499  (9,083,367) —
Disposals & (92,160) (409,478) — (4,328) (86,221) (592,187)
Impairment A (133,424) (236,099) (2,305) (8,718) (619,801)  (1,000,347)
Depreciation charge FERX (1,566,103)  (7,574,067) (147,681) (190,273) —  (9,478,124)
Closing net book amount FERREEEFE 26,769,704 92,206,602 2,711,975 7,853,241 8,733,675 138,275,197
At 31 December 2016 R-B-XE+=A
=+-8
Cost B 38,683,741 136,698,793 3,509,962 9,836,108 11,740,078 200,468,682
Impairment A (1,111,047)  (1,420,779) (32,644) (759,230)  (3,006,403)  (6,330,103)
Accumulated depreciation BEHTE (10,802,990) (43,071,412) (765,343)  (1,223,637) —  (55,863,382)
Net book amount REFE 26,769,704 92,206,602 2,711,975 7,853,241 8,733,675 138,275,197
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE=-Z—t+F+=A
=t+t—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHREEFE 26,769,704 92,206,602 2,711,975 7,853,241 8,733,675 138,275,197
Exchange differences EHEH 1,873,879 5,991,489 189,838 534,021 594,507 9,183,734
Relating to disposal of subsidiaries AR EHBAR (54,277)  (3,808,422) — (5,270) (1,122)  (3.869,091)
Additions NE 37,167 2,175,928 — 1,083,663 16,831,223 20,127,981
Transfer B 1,206,413 9,475,838 294,603 20,770 (10,997,624) —
Disposals e (89,352) (430,592) — (21,388) (61,994) (603,326)
Impairment A 189,524 (269,433) (89,867) (197,089) (361,374) (728,239)
Depreciation charge ERX (1,810,285)  (7,906,961) (154,377) (179,980) —  (10,051,603)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 28,122,773 97,434,449 2,952,172 9,087,968 14,737,291 152,334,653
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZE—+&+=A
=+-—H
Cost AR A 42,354,603 150,922,254 4,053,193 11,307,318 18,532,829 227,170,197
Impairment A (801,682)  (1,331,600) (165,684) (861,718)  (3,795,538)  (6,956,222)
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (13,430,148) (52,156,205) (935,337)  (1,357,632) — (67,879,322)
Net book amount REFEE 28,122,773 97,434,449 2,952,172 9,087,968 14,737,291 152,334,653



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Construction work in progress as at 31 December 2017
mainly comprises infrastructure contruction of new power
plants, technical impovement projects of power plants and
coal mines being constructed in the PRC.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to HK$488,234,000 (2016: HK$461,560,000)
(Note 39) on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were
capitalised at the weighted average rate of the borrowings
of 4.43% (2016: 4.76%).

Depreciation expenses of HK$10,015,238,000 and
HK$36,365,000 (2016: HK$9,428,679,000 and
HK$49,445,000) has been recorded in operating expenses
and construction in progress, respectively.

The impairment charges related to property, plant
and equipment amounting to HK$728,239,000 (2016:
HK$1,000,347,000) has been recorded in operating
expenses. The movement on the provision for impairment of
property, plant and equipment of the Group by segment is

6

MEE - BER&RE®

R-ZBE—+FE+_A=+—HBWHEE
TRFEPEFNEEHMOERTRE
BEROMIRAEE EPBEEZE
R o

RER AEBEERNLEEREE
& B A A 488,234,000 T (ZF — 7%
F : 461,560,00078 7T ) (FisE39) - &
BERAZEEENNEFEEL43%
(ZZE—JRF :4.76%)ER1L -

¥ & B % 10,015,238,000 7T &
36,365,00087L(= & — X F:
9,428,679,000,8 7T K& 49,445,000/%
TP RIARRKEERE RERTRE -

EAME BEAZKENREREX
#$728,239,000%8 (= & — ;N F ¢
1,000,347,000/8 70 ) © B R & KA
AR - REBIZRDIHEDHWE - K
EREERERENESHOT -

as follows:
Thermal power Coal mining
KE BRI ER

2017 2016 2017 2016
“2-tF —TNF Bt —FTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FET FEx FHAT
At 1 January n—BA—H 696,001 866,923 5,634,102 5,599,198
Exchange differences bE = FE 17,402 (72,260) 126,555 (452,458)
Provision of impairment HERE 703,007 268,507 213,518 1,433,820
Reversal of impairment charged  JBfEE KR [ — — (188,286)  (701,980)
Disposals & (168,484)  (367,169) (77,593)  (244,478)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 1,247,926 696,001 5,708,296 5,634,102
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SHMBHRRMEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

During the year, certain small-scale coal-fired power
generators were determined to be closed down and
certain power assets were retired or obsolete as a result of
technological reforms, consequently the Group has made an
impairment charge of HK$703,007,000, after considering
any possible benefit receivable during the disposal process.
The recoverable amounts of these assets are based on their
fair value less costs of disposal.

The impairment charge reported in coal mining segment
for the year ended 31 December 2017 mainly related to
property, plant and equipment held by subsidiaries located
in Shanxi and Hunan Provinces. The impairment provision
of HK$213,518,000 made mainly resulted from the Group’s
shutdown plan of some of its coal mines gradually from
2017 to 2020 according to the government policy of
reducing overcapacity in coal industry. At the same time,
impairment provision of HK$188,286,000 was partially offset
by the increase in recoverable amounts of certain coal mines
given the improvement in their operational conditions.

Each coal mine is determined as one CGU. The impairment
losses or reversal of impairment attributable to these CGUs
was then allocated to write down the assets in the CGU on
a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
(including prepaid lease payments (Note 7), mining rights
(Note 8) and related property, plant and equipment) in the
CGU.

6

MEE - BER&RE®

FR - ARASEEATEFMTES
BARAE T/ ) AMEEEREARETE
NEBHEBEERRE  AASEER
Z BN EBRES IR A gg B A F &=
&5 B R E 18 5K & 703,007,000 %
T ZEEEMAKRERENREA
R EBERHEKATE -

HE _Z—+tF+-_A=1+—HIHF
EREBRRDBERAOBEERKE
THURLUAERNHAEENKE A
RFFENYE  MELKHEEB - 5t
IR {E 213,518,000/ T T B R A
RAEEEERBERITEEERK
NERER_E—tEtFE_FT_ZF
ZABMEAE TIEE - R REZE
188,286,000 TLE DA TIRIEEE
AR S B AT UL B S ERIE ANFTHESE -

ERBEE R —ARSELENM - %
FHeELEMBIGBERBEBIRE
BROHEZRBERSELENSEE(R
EEMNEEERMET) - RuEEG
HE8)RBBYE - ME KRE)IRE
BRREL B B AMOBERE € EAE B 1
BE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Except for certain coal mining related assets, of which the
recoverable amounts were determined based on their fair
value less costs of disposal, the recoverable amounts of most
of coal mine CGUs held by subsidiaries and one associate,
Taiyuan China Resources Coal Co., Ltd. (“CR Taiyuan”),
were determined based on value in use (“VIU") calculation.
The VIU of these coal mine CGUs have been estimated using
calculations of pre-tax cash flow projections developed
based on financial budgets compiled by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated without considering any growth
rate. The annual production volume of each coal mine
CGU throughout the projection period is consistent with
the certificate of each mining right or technical feasibility
report. The key assumptions and discount rate used for VIU
calculations and the recoverable amount of those CGUs
where there has been impairment losses or reversal of
impairment are as follows:

6

MEE - BER&RE®

RTETRERKEEEE(E KD
TREEAAEEBRLERAEE)
Sh - MR B R — B2 X (BNKR
EFRERFARAR(TARER])) M
BRORE D BIEHR S EE B0 A
Ol g B RERBE(ERER] A
BREEE ERBRSELEM
MEREES N AKEEEREMRER
MAFHPBEEFELNRTARES
MEFERNE T EM MG - £HE
BHZAFHNR S RER L B\ K
TRRER - ERBEREELEUR
EEEANNFEEERESTRBEREE
B SRR Al AT IE R E AR o £
BEABETEZMANEZERR LR
A Ko 1 1 3R BB 85 18 SR (8 3 [l B
ZERSEABUM RO SERNT

2017 2016

ZE—tF —ERF

Real pre-tax discount rate ERRBRTIATHTIR X 7.6%-11.4% 7.3%-12.7%

Coal prices (% annual growth rate) ExER(FERBAL) 0% 0%

Recoverable amounts of AEERANREESE

the CGUs held by the Group B KEeE HK$7,024,140,00058 T HK$6,635,622,000/ 7T
Recoverable amounts of RECEBANREESE

the CGUs held by the associate B kEeE HK$6,583,512,000;8 T HK$6,036,926,000/5 T
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Another key assumption is the full operation timing for
certain mines currently in construction. The management
currently estimated a full operation of all mines by the end
of year 2021.

Should the coal prices have been 5% lower while holding
other variables constant, the Group would have recognised
a further impairment against the CGUs by HK$420,498,000
(2016: HK$486,518,000) and a further unrecorgnised
investment loss in the associate of HK$321,332,000 (2016:
HK$329,530,000).

As at 31 December 2017, total net book value of property,
plant and equipment pledged as collateral for the Group’s
bank borrowings amounted to HK$3,071,285,000 (2016:
HK$3,034,999,000) (Note 31).

As at 31 December 2017, the ownership certificates of
certain buildings (”Building Ownership Certificates”) of the
Group with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$8,815,640,000 (2016: HK$7,971,139,000) had not
been obtained by the Group. After consultation made with
the Company's legal counsel, the directors of the Company
consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group to
apply for and obtain the Building Ownership Certificates and
it should not lead to any significant adverse impact on the
operations of the Group.

6

MEE - BER&RE®

EMFrERIARBEENAE TER
fEB/\iﬁ@ S B E o BIRE IR
SARERBR - —F KA EHE

s

MIERERTRRS% MRS T
g $E@ﬂ#5’jﬁfﬁi}gﬁi 11%11@%

4R 1E 420,498,000 (= F — <
F : 486,518,000/8 7T ) M pA B & (> 2
R — PR IERIS B B 18 321,332,000
B (= & — 78 4 1 329,530,000/8
JL) °

R-ZE—tEtF+-_A=1t—H8 &
RMEAREBRTEEERROY
X BEAERENEERFES

3,071,285,0007 (= & — X F:
3,034,999,0007 7T ) (MizE31) °

R-ZZB—tF+-A=+—H8 &%
BB ARESAKRESE TETNMARE
M(T%%Fﬁﬁ%"ﬂ)(ﬁ%ﬁ“@ O

8,815,640,000/ (= & — /X F:
7,971,139,000870)) - RARIEEHE
BHAARNBEERERE  RELAEE

R RES @%Fﬁﬁ%QEITTHE‘E
MEERES - BT AEEMHEE
R EA TR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments are related to leases
of land located in the PRC and their net book value are
analysed as follows:

ANEEEH

AEBMEMEAEEREVARTEAN
THANER  ZSERONEEFE
DT

2017 2016

—E2E-tF T RF

HK$'000 HK$000

FHET FET

At 1 January m—A—A8 3,344,692 3,344,056
Exchange differences ME H ZRE 220,947 (217,339)
Additions NE 71,225 312,629
Relating to disposal of subsidiaries BHELEHNBE AR (103) —
Amortisation charge BIHFY (101,493) (95,645)
Disposal & — (2,080)
Reversal of impairment R (B B (] 2,112 3,071
At 31 December R+=ZH=+—H 3,537,380 3,344,692

Amortisation of HK$95,892,000 and HK$5,601,000 (2016:
HK$93,671,000 and HK$1,974,000) has been recorded
in operating expenses and construction in progress,
respectively.

Certain bank borrowings of the Group are secured by land
leases at an aggregate carrying amount of HK$940,000
(2016: HK$7,673,000) (Note 31).

As at 31 December 2017, land use right certificates (“Land
Certificates”) of certain parcels of land of the Group with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$467,883,000 (2016:
HK$550,534,000) had not been obtained. After consultation
made with the Company’s legal counsel, the directors
consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group to
apply for and obtain the Land Certificates and it should not
lead to any significant adverse impact on the operations of
the Group.

# $595,892,000% 7t & 5,601,000/
(= ZF — X% 193,671,000 7T &
1,974,000 70 ) 9 A ABREE & K AN &
EREIR -

AEBETROTEELRERES
H A940,000% (= & — X F:
7,673,000 7T ) &9 + # A 494K 8 (P 7%
31) e

R-E—+H5+-_HA=+—8 X&
EHAESAERE TR ML
FREZEZ((XHEZD)(EEEER
/467,883,000 ;L(Z= & — X F ¢
550,534,000 70 )) © £E L& @A
NAVEREMBEZ REAEBSHE
NESTMBES A FEETMERR
#lc BN EEAREEMNLCEENER
BERTFFE -



Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the
mining rights using the unit of production method
based on the proved and probable reserves of the
coal mines. Amortisation of HK$396,292,000 (2016:
HK$360,138,000) and impairment of HK$99,808,000
(2016: HK$119,687,000) have been recorded in
operating expenses.
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8 MINING RIGHTS AND EXPLORATION 8 HREENERERE
AND RESOURCES RIGHTS
(@) Mining rights (a) BRuEfRE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January W—A—H
Cost BN 20,685,448 21,640,513
Impairment BIE (3,841,298)  (4,131,307)
Accumulated amortisation Rt #E (1,941,252)  (1,693,309)
Opening net book amount FYREFE 14,902,898 15,815,897
Exchange differences ME H ZRE 597,419 (433,174)
Additions NE 297,753 —
Impairment B (99,808) (119,687)
Amortisation charge B (396,292) (360,138)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 15,301,970 14,902,898
At 31 December R+t=-—HA=+—H
Cost X 7S 21,942,145 20,685,448
Impairment BE (4,237,241)  (3,841,298)
Accumulated amortisation R (2,402,934)  (1,941,252)
Net book amount BRMEFEE 15,301,970 14,902,898

B85 Th AR IR R TR A R A K HE R
FEFAEEEME T UG
I LAMSH SR IE R AR AR o #E §H
396,292,000/ (= T — X
£ : 360,138,00078 7T ) M A &
99,808,000/ Jt( = & — /N 4 -
119,687,000870) B ABR&E K
$ o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

8 MINING RIGHTS AND EXPLORATION
AND RESOURCES RIGHTS (conTinuep)

(a) Mining rights (Continued)

The impairment charge of HK$99,808,000 reported for
the year ended 31 December 2017 related to certain
mining rights held by subsidiaries located in Shanxi
and Hunan Provinces, which is engaged in the coal
mining business. Further considerations in performing
impairment tests, the key assumptions used in the
impairment calculation and the sensitivity analysis are
set out in Note 6.

As at 31 December 2017, the ownership certificates
of certain mining rights (“Mining Rights Ownership
Certificates”) of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$2,790,071,000
and HK$1,792,695,000 (2016: HK$2,161,231,000
and HK$615,362,000) had not been obtained by the
Group or past due, respectively. The management
has considered its impact in performing impairment
assessment of related assets.

(b) Exploration and resources rights

8 HKEEREREREERE®

(a) HRIBRE @)

HE-_ZT—+ttF+=-RA=+—
BIEFEZ2FBRBMEIBEBKX
99,808,000 T EA AL M L FEE &
HEANEREBRRERDMN B
RAIFFNETHERSGH - #
ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁmﬁ FHEE - RE

EFANEERINBERES
ﬁﬁmmﬁ6o

R—_ZE—+F+=-_A=+—8"
$‘§IIEHX Kﬁlﬁﬁﬁfﬁ/\
# #92,790,071,0008 (= &
— 7N £ :2,161,231,0003 7T )
ME TREENFTEESE (KB
HERMEREFE])  MEEEA XY
1,792,695,000% 7t(= & — X
£ 1 615,362,000 78 7T ) B ER A A
%ﬁ% B BEEECRE
TEBEEMRETEEEEY

zEIZ R
E

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

At 31 December 2016 RZE—XRFE+ZHA=1+—H 151,677 161,947
Exchange differences PEH =% 10,633 (10,270)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tHF+=ZH=+—H 162,310 151,677
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9 SUBSIDIARIES 9 WEXT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RZE—tF+_A=T—HHEZE
December 2017: MEAREHIIWT :
Proportion of
Issued and ordinary shares
Place of fully paid share held by non-
incorporation and capital/registered controlling
operation and capital and interests (%)
form of legal entity paid-up capital Percentage of equity FEGMESE  Principal
Name of subsidiary AMALREE BRAHERE/ interest held (%) FrisE@R  activities
WEARER NRERERER AMEARMREER  FEENREE DL (%) MELBl (%) TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
China Resources Power PRC, Registered capital - 100 —  Operation of
(Haifeng) Co., Ltd. Wholly Foreign - RMB2,095,000,000 a power station
EREN(FL)ERAA Owned Enterprise Paid-up capital EBEY
hE - NEEELE - RMB1,589,280,000
AMExR
- NE#2,095,000,0007C
BRER
- AR#1,589,280,000 7
Shanxi China Resources PRC, Registered and - 51 49 Coal mining
Daning Energy Co., Ltd. Sino-Foreign paid-up capital R IR
WAZEAZRRERRE  Contractual Joint - US$53,600,000
Venture HARBRER
hE - BoATE ~53,600,000%7
%«Mﬂ}_%
Shanxi China Resources PRC, Registered and - 75.5 245  Coal mining
Coal Company Limited Sino-Foreign paid-up capital FRER
WEERRFERAR Equity Joint Venture - RMB800,000,000
HE - RORERE M R&RER
— AR%800,000,0007
Shanxi China Resources PRC, Registered and - 51 49 Coal mining
Liansheng Energy Limited Liability paid-up capital FRER
Investment Co., Ltd. Company - RMB3,800,000,000
(“Shanxi CR Liansheng") HE BERETLF FRRERER
WA EREERREARRA - A% 3,800,000,000

(MU RR
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The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GHUFRRMEE

9 SUBSIDIARIES (continueD)

December 2017: (Continued)

China Resources Power
Investment Co., Ltd.

ERENRERR LA

China Resources Power
(Tangshan Caofeidian)
Co., Ltd.

EEENELELRR)
ARAA

China Resources Power
Dengfeng Co., Ltd.

ZRRNEUBRAA

China Resources Power
Hubei Co., Ltd.
EHENMLERAA

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

TEHEEELR

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
RE - PIRELE

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
hE - fHRELE

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

THHEBELE

Registered and
paid-up capital

- RMB15,800,000,000
AMRGRER
N
15,800,000,000 7

Registered capital
RMB3,571,340,000
Paid-up capital
RMB1,808,779,800
AR

AR 3,571,340,000
HREAR

AR 1,808,779,800 7

Registered and

paid-up capital

- RMB1,760,000,000

A RaRER

- AR%1,760,000,000 7T

Registered and

paid-up capital

- RMB2,690,000,000

A RE AR

- AR #2,690,000,000 7T

100

9 WBATwm

90

85

100

RN-_E—+F+-_A=+—HHNTE
BB AREFIT « (4)

Investment
holding
RERR

Operation of
a power station
LESY

Operation of
a power station

LEEY

Operation of
a power station
&R
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

9 SUBSIDIARIES (conTinuED)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2017: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

. PG

China Resources Power
(Tongshan) Co., Ltd.
FLERENERAE

China Resources Power
(Jiaozuo) Co., Ltd.
EREN(EE)ERLA

China Resources Power
(Wenzhou) Co., Ltd.
ZBEN(EM)BRAT

China Resources Power
(Heze) Co., Ltd.
£BEN(EE)BRAA

Place of
incorporation and
operation and

form of legal entity

AR RS
URERRRRE

PRC,
Limited Liability
Company

hE - BREELT

PRC, Wholly Foreign

Owned Enterprise

TE - FEEALE

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
hE - PHRELE

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
hE - PHRELE

Issued and

fully paid share
capital/registered
capital and
paid-up capital
BRTARRE/
AMERRARES

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,500,000,000

M R&RER

AR 1,500,000,0007

Registered capital

- RMB1,254,000,000
Paid-up capital

- RMB1,074,999,504
AMER

— AR#1,254,000,000 7
HRER

~ NR#1,074,999,504 70

Registered capital
RMB2,000,000,000
Paid-up capital

- RMB1,667,972,355
AE#2,000,000,0007
HRER

- AR#1,667,972,355 T

Registered and

paid-up capital

- RMB931,250,000
AMR& AR

- AR 931,250,0007C

&5
\"\'
2
%e, p 'l?’w
A, n, t.c >
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9 WELIm

R-T—
B

P 28

AIESIINT

Proportion of
ordinary shares

t$+_ﬂ_+—EIE’\]I%

held by non-
controlling
interests (%)
Percentage of equity FEGMESE  Principal
interest held (%) FrisE@R  activities
FERRER 2L (%) WEhl(%) TERH
Directly Indirectly
E# (3
- 54.5 455 QOperation of
a power station
EBEY
100 — —  Operation of
a power station
LESY
75 - 25 Operation of
a power station
EBEY
90 - 10 Operation of

a power station
EBEY
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GHUFRRMEE

9 SUBSIDIARIES (continueD)

China Resources Power

(Bohaixingu) Co., Ltd.
ERTN(DBIE)ARAT

Sichuan China Resources
Yazui River Hydro Power
Development Co., Ltd.

mIEEEETKERE
BRAR

China Resources Power
(Panjin) Co., Ltd.
EREN(EBR)ERLA

Fuyang China Resources
Power Co., Ltd.
EREFENERAA)

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

TEHEEELR

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
hE - PHRELE

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

TE - EBALE

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
E BaED:

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2017: (Continued)

Registered capital

- RIMB840,000,000
Paid-up capital

- RMB549,605,540
AR

— AR 840,000,000
HRER

— ANR#549,605,540 7

Registered and

paid-up capital

- RMBA473,750,000
MRS ER

- AR# 473,750,000

Registered and

paid-up capital

- RMB776,000,000
AMRGRER

- AR#776,000,0007

Registered capital

- RMB1,259,000,000
Paid-up capital

- RMB919,000,000
AMER

— AR#1,259,000,000 70
HRER

- A&#919,000,0007C

9 WBATwm

100

100

55

49

45

RN-_E—+F+-_A=+—HHNTE
BB AREFIT « (4)

Operation of

a power station
BEEY

Operation of
a power station
LEEY

Operation of

a power station
BiEEY

Operation of
a power station

LEEY
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SHMBHRRMEE

9 SUBSIDIARIES (conTinuED)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2017: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELAREHE

China Resources Power
(Changshu) Co., Ltd.
EREN(RA)ERLA

China Resources Power
Hunan Co., Ltd.
ERENHNEERAA

China Resources Power Henan
Shouyangshan Co., Ltd.

ABERENERUBRAA

Jiangsu Nanre Power
Generation Co., Ltd.
IHBREEARRELT

Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Thermoeletricity
Co., Ltd.

AR BIXERERRAT

Place of
incorporation and
operation and

form of legal entity

AR R A R

NRERRRER

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

B IEEALR

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

B IEEALR

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
TE - PHRERE

PRC,
Limited Liability
Company

hE - BREELH

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
TE - PHRERE

Issued and

fully paid share
capital/registered
capital and
paid-up capital
BRTHERE/
AMEARBEER

Registered and
paid-up capital
- US$173,520,000
A Ra R AR
~173,520,000% 7T

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB1,361,000,000

A RE R AR
AR 1,361,000,0007T

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB1,237,500,000

A Ra AR
AR 1,237,500,000

Registered and

paid-up capital

- RMB1,030,000,000

A Ra AR

- AR%1,030,000,0007

Registered and
paid-up capital
- US$127,580,252
A Ra AR
~127,580,252% T

&
3
B
&
[¢)
%
N
)

pel
O,

11@,

4 4
h

\
iy

r;?
o

) t.c
ual Report 2017 =8

@ 22
°Mpany Limited gas?

9 WEBATm

o
&

R-E—+F+_A=+—HHEE
BB ARETIT  (4)

Percentage of equity
interest held (%)
FrisEMRER DL (%)

Directly  Indirectly

Bi B
— 100
— 100
— 85
— 100
— 90

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by non-
controlling
interests (%)
FEHMER
FrEEgR

#y LBl (%)

Principal
activities

IRRR

—  Operation of
a power station
LEEY

—  Operation of
a power station
LEEN

15 QOperation of
a power station
LEEN

—  Operation of
a power station
LEEN

10 Operation of
a power station
LEEN
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9 SUBSIDIARIES (continueD)

China Resources Cangzhou
Co-generation Co., Ltd.

BNEERERRAT

Guangzhou China Resources
Thermal Co. Ltd.
BNEBREERAT

China Resources Wind Power
(Haiyuan) Co., Ltd.
ZRRE(ER)BR LA

Henan China Resources
Power Gucheng Co., Ltd.
TRERENEHERAT

The following is a list of the principal
December 2017: (Continued)

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
E PIRERE

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

TESEEELR

PRC,
Wholly foreign
Owned Enterprise

TESEEELE

PRC,
Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise

TENEEELE

Registered and

paid-up capital

- RMB550,000,000
HM R RER

— AR #550,000,000 T

Registered and

paid-up capital

- RMB1,100,000,000
HM R RER

— AR#1,100,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB630,336,600
Paid-up capital
RMB510,000,000
HMER

AR 630,336,600
BREX
AR%510,000,0007T

Registered and

paid-up capital

- RMB740,500,000
HMRERER

— AR #740,500,000 70

subsidiaries at 31

9 WBATwm

95

100

100

100

RN-_E—+F+-_A=+—HHNTE
BB AREFIT « (4)

Operation of
a power station

2EEY

Operation of
a power station

2EEY

Operation of
a power station

2EEY

Operation of
a power station
EEEY
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9 SUBSIDIARIES (continueD) 9 MWEBAT @
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RZZT— ‘t$+_ﬂ _+—E|E'\]Ig
December 2017: (Continued) B ARESAT

Proportion of

Issued and ordinary shares
Place of fully paid share held by non-
incorporation and capital/registered controlling
operation and capital and interests (%)
form of legal entity paid-up capital Percentage of equity FEHMER  Principal
Name of subsidiary MR RS 2 BRTHRRE/ interest held (%) FEEZER  activities
MEARER DREEERER AMEARHEEE  FEANREEDLL(%) WEh(%) FEXRK
Directly Indirectly
Ef &
Xuzhou Huaxin Power PRC, Registered and - 72 28 Operation of
Generation Co., Ltd. Limited Liability paid-up capital a power station
BHERRBERAA Company - RMB480,000,000 EEE
TE - AREEATF M RE AR
— AR 480,000,000
China Resources Power PRC, Registered and 60 40 —  Operation of
(Xilinguole) Coal Mining Wholly Foreign paid-up capital a power station
Co., Ltd. Owned Enterprise - RMB300,000,000 RESU
EFEN(HRBY) X TENEBERE M RE AR
ARRT — A&%300,000,0007
China Resources Power PRC, Registered and — 100 —  Operation of
(Yichang) Co., Ltd. Wholly Foreign paid-up capital a power station
ZHEN(ER)ERAH Owned Enterprise - RMB769,000,000 EEEY
TE NEBELE AMRARER
— A&%769,000,0007C
China Resources Power PRC, Registered capital — 60 40  Operation of
Tangshan Fengrun Co., Ltd.  Sino-Foreign - RMB690,135,000 a power station
ERENELEHERAT Equity Joint Venture Paid-up capital EEEL
hE - PHRERE RMB674,574,250
- NR#690,135,0007C
HRER
~ NE%674,574,2507T
Guizhou Tianrun Mining PRC, Registered and - 100 —  Coal mining
Co., Ltd. Limited Liability paid-up capital R IR
ENRBEBXERARA company RMB100,000,000
TR AREEAF AMRARER

A& #100,000,0007C
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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9 SUBSIDIARIES (conTinuED)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2017: (Continued)

Issued and

Place of fully paid share

incorporation and capital/registered

operation and capital and

form of legal entity paid-up capital

Name of subsidiary R AES -t BRTHRRES/
MEARER DREEERER AMERRARER
China Resources Power PRC, Registered capital
(XiLinGuoLe) Co., Ltd. Sino-Foreign - RMB2,065,000,000
EHEN(HNDE)ERDE Equity Joint Venture Paid-up capital
hE - PHRELE RMB1,300,000,000

AMEAR

~ ANR#2,065,000,00070

HREX

- A& H1,300,000,000 T

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Group
which in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected/will affect the operation of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Some of the subsidiaries’ English names represent
managements’ translation of the Chinese names as they
have not adopted formal English names.

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are all limited
liability companies.

(a) Significant restrictions

As at 31 December 2017, cash and bank deposits of
HK$ 4,989,465,000 (2016: HK$4,489,027,000) are
held in China and are subject to local exchange control
regulations. These local exchange control regulations
provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the
country, other than through cash dividend approved
by the shareholders’ meeting in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations.

9 WBAT W

N-E—F+F+-_A=+—HHTE
MEBAREIIAT : (&)

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by non-
controlling
interests (%)

Percentage of equity  FFIEFIMER  Principal

interest held (%) FiigE @R activities

FrsBRRER 2L (%) MEH (%) TEXH
Directly Indirectly
R

— 70 30 Operation of

a power station
LEEN

RRABEZRRERIIA A B
TENBARE, / SEHAKENEE
BERYE - ARAESFARIEH
B ARNEREERERBRIT
E o

F 7 EB 9 i B8~ B) I 4 BR AR IE = A9 38
X AR RRAR R AT
REEBWEPNABELOHE -

NP BEMA LM B AR SER
BERARA] -

(a) EKRRHI

RZE—+F+_A=+—H"
EHREFENRE RIRITERE
4,989,465,000% ;t(=— & — X
£ : 4,489,027,0005 7T ) W 78 &
SPHE T INEEFE B AR o thFH S
HNEZESLER BB ERAERHA
EH(EBRRRERSRIERE LR
;ﬁzﬁ%ﬁﬁt;&a’afﬁﬁﬂﬁélﬁ%ﬁlwE’\JBE
I| o
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO
ASSOCIATES

(@) Investments in associates
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10 RBE O E0BRRBBE
CEEH

(a) MEFERZEAES

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$000
FExT FET
At 1 January R—HA—H 8,459,278 9,484,351
Transfer from investment in a joint HEANEELENER
venture (Note ii) (P aE i) 111,651 —
Transfer from investment in a subsidiary & & & 8 R — EH B
as a result of disposal (Note iii) N AR RE RS (B i) 528,397 —
Capital contributions to associates M EDETE 530,382 96,699
Disposal of associates (Note i) HERE M ZE (T (464,836) (41,822)
Share of profits FEAG A 181,325 687,340
Dividends IRE (925,896) (1,331,246)
Other comprehensive income HEih2mUWA 65,870 (80,318)
Share of other equity movement of DIREEE P ER
associates HibigEm s (1,271) (728)
Exchange differences ME HE%R 262,417 (354,998)
At 31 December R+t=A=+—H 8,747,317 8,459,278

Note it During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group disposed
one associate, namely Guizhou Hualong Coal Mining Co., Ltd.
("Guizhou Hualong”). Disposal gains were recognised within
“other gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated income statements.

Included in the Group’s cost of investment in
associates is goodwill of HK$700,536,000 (2016:
HK$700,536,000) arising from acquisition of certain
associates.

Wei: B2 —tF+_A=+—HL
FE AEBELE—MEBELE -
BIEMEREEFRAR(EMNE
) HERZEREHKREZRAN
[EAMAE(BK) — FE IR -

AEBRBELCENRENABRE
AEE THECEMEENTE
700,536,000 jt(= T — /X F:
700,536,000 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

10 E(‘Hﬁﬁ%it‘%lﬁﬂgﬁ&ﬂﬂﬁﬁ’%
TEER @

(a) REFEDEMNER @)

As at 31 December 2017, the investments in principal RZE—tEtF+ZA=+—8"
associates of the Group, all of which were accounted RASEEFEBEEENRE(H
for using equity method, were as follows: KAEREZE)WT :

10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO
ASSOCIATES (continueD)

(@) Investments in associates (Continued)

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Place of registered capital
incorporation and paid-up capital
and operation BERTRRRE/ Percentage of equity Principal
Name of associate H A TRERR interest held activities
BEL¥ER REEHE HREX FEENRER DL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
Ef Rt
(R Taiyuan PRC Registered and — 24,99 Coal mining
(Limited Liability Company) i paid-up capital BRER
KREE RMB4,000,000,000
AR ER
AK%4,000,000,0007C
China Resources (Xuzhou) PRC Registered and - 42.65  Operation of
Electric Power Co., Ltd. E paid-up capital a power station
(Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Venture) - RMB863,110,000 LEE
BNEBENERAR FMRGRER
(POMEREZHER) ~ AR%863,110,000 7T
China Resources Power PRC Registered and 49 —  Operation of
(Liuzhi) Co., Ltd. HE paid-up capital a power station
(Smo Foreign Equity Joint Venture) RMB900,000,000 BEE
EBEN(AR)ERAR (i) HMR&RER
(*9\\ tREHEE) AR 900,000,000 7T
Jingneng (Xilinguole) Power PRC Registered capital - 30 Operation of
Corporation hE RMB 1,916,000,000 a power station

(Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Venture)
A (AHFE) HEERAA

(PINAREHER)

Paid-up capital
RMB1,773,200,000
AK1,916,000,000 T
BRER

AR 1,773,200,000 7T
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SHMBHRRMEE

10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO 10 AERE RRAVRERS R M) B &

ASSOCIATES (continueD) TEERm@
(a) Investments in associates (Continued) (a) MEF=LENER @

RZE—+F+_A=+—H"
RAEEETEBRLZCEMNKE (P
RE#EREZE)WNT - (@)

As at 31 December 2017, the investments in principal
associates of the Group, all of which were accounted
for using equity method, were as follows: (Continued)

Name of associate

BELEER

Hunan Taohuajiang Nuclear
Power Co., Ltd. (“Hunan
Taohuajiang Nuclear")
(Limited Liability Company)

AEREIREERAA
(TAEEIRE])
(BREARR)

Jiangsu Zhenjiang Power
Generation Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangsu Zhenjiang Power")
(Limited Liability Company)

IHAIREERAT
(MIHRIEE])
(EREERA)

Yangzhou No. 2 Power
Generation Co.,Ltd.
(Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Venture)
BNE_BREBREMLLA
(PONLEREHIEE)

Guodian Changzhou Power
Corporation
(Limited Liability Company)
HERMEERRAA
(BREARA)

Place of
incorporation
and operation
AL
REEHH

PRC
hE

PRC
hE

PRC
e

PRC
FE

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
and paid-up capital
BRTARRE/
AMERR
BREX

Registered capital
RMB1,025,704,000
Paid-up capital
RMB1,149,227,000
HMER
AR%1,025,704,0007¢
BRER
ARH1,149,227,0007

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,482,200,000

M R&RER
AR 1,482,200,000

Registered and

paid-up capital

- RMB1,692,000,000
M R&RER

- AR 1,692,000,0007C

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,000,000,000
EAIPE v
AR 1,000,000,000 70

Percentage of equity
interest held
FEENRER DL
Directly Indirectly
B B

— 25

- 425

45 —

Principal
activities

IRER

Operation of
a power station
EEBY

Operation of
a power station
EEEY

Operation of
a power station
EEBY

Operation of
a power station
HEE
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO 10 REFE RN R MBE

ASSOCIATES (contiNnuED) TEE R @

(a) Investments in associates (Continued) (a) MEZEDEMNRER @)
As at 31 December 2017, the investments in principal —E—+F+=-A=+—80"
associates of the Group, all of which were accounted BA$’$.IEH§ ERERNREM
for using equity method, were as follows: (Continued) HAEREZE)WT + (&)

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Place of registered capital
incorporation and paid-up capital
and operation BRTHERE/ Percentage of equity Principal
Name of associate T ZMERR interest held activities
BEL¥LR REEHE HREX FEENRER DL TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE %

Zhengzhou Huayuan Coal PRC Registered and - 30.67  Exploration and
Mining Co., Ltd. HE paid-up capital sale of coal
(Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Venture) RMB750,000,000 iR R EERR

OMEREEXBRAR AMERARER
(POMERIEHIER) AR 750,000,000 7

Shanxi Zhonglv China Resources PRC Registered and — 20 Operation of a
Company Limited (i) hE paid-up capital power station
(Limited Liability Company) RMB1,000,000,000 BESY

\WAH iR BER AR i) FHRERER
(EREERR) AEH1,000,000,000 70

Note ii: In 2017, the voting right of the Group in Shanxi Zhonglv China Waki: RZTE—+1F ARBIE=FH
Resources Company Limited was diluted to be 20% due to FINEE - AEERILTETRER
the additional capital injection by an independent third party. BRATNFRREREEZ20% ©
Therefore, Shanxi Zhonglv China Resources Company Limited is At - LR R E AR AR HIE
accounted for as an associate of the Group. REBRBEDE -

Note iii: In 2017, the Group entered into an agreement with an MisEii: R-ZT—tF  AEBEBIE=
independent third party to dispose of its 51% equity interests in FEI - HEEREREN
China Resources Power (Liuzhi) Co., Ltd. and committed to act in (") BRRABIHS1% G - I
concert with the third party. Therefore, China Resources Power AGHEE = —BITE - HL -
(Liuzhi) Co., Ltd. is accounted for as an associate of the Group. BENSBOBERAGIEREE

BELE-

The above table lists the principle associates of the RAREERE ' ERAAIAEAE

Group which in the opinion of the directors of the EXrZEmEersxt HHAEE

Company, principally affected/will affect the results iﬁﬁ%%fﬁi%%iﬂjﬂ%}ﬂi$ﬁ

of the year or formed a substantial portion of the net BFEEECETEHD - ARAIE
assets of the Group. To give details of other associates ERE JEHEM P%ﬁ%ﬁ@;ﬁ
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, HeEyEranitE -

result in particulars of excessive length.
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO
ASSOCIATES (continueD)

10 REFELENERR QBE

TEER @

(a) Investments in associates (Continued) (a) MREfEENER @)

Some of the associates’ English names represent
managements’ translation of the Chinese names as they
have not adopted formal English names.

All the associates are limited liability companies.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group and the third
parties provided guarantee amounting to nil and
HK$617,093,000 (31 December 2016: HK$593,252,000
and HK$578,903,000) to secure bank loans of two
associates, being Guizhou Hualong Coal Mining Co.,
Ltd. and Hunan Taohuajiang Nuclear (Note 47). The
guarantee will expire in 3 years.

Summarised financial information for other
immaterial associates

According to the assessment of directors of the
Company, as at 31 December 2017, no individual
associate is material to the Group, therefore, no
information on individual associate is disclosed.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the immaterial associates which are accounted for
using the equity method.

AR EP D B 2 DR I RN IE R
MR AT - B R AR AN
RN ELHAEEEREH XA
TEHRORYRE -

BB AR REREEAR -

R—_ZE—+tF+_A=+—
H A&SBEEE=ZF28E
#® A & T K617,093,000%
THERCCZCZE—-—X~NF+ A

=+ —H : 593,252,000/ 7T &
578,903,000 % 7T ) LAHE 1R A9 SR B
EhEBIEMEREERR AT
NOBERE IZE)MIEITER
(FF5E47) - EREBRIFAEW ©

Hth AP ERBELENUBER
BME

READAEENTE R F
—EF+- A= +— BEmES
BECEHAEENEBEE -
B b O R 1 4
AR -

A TSI ERESAARNTE
REpE RN EERRE -

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$000

FTExT FHT

Profit from continuing operations FHB & E TN 181,325 687,340
Other comprehensive income Hb2mEmBA 65,870 (80,318)
Total comprehensive income 2HEUW A BEE 247,195 607,022
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO
ASSOCIATES (continueD)

(b) Loans to associates

10 REFELENERR QBE

TEER @

(b) MEEEREERR

2017 2016
—E—+tH§ —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Non current (i): JEBNER (i) :
Loans B& 3,055,175 3,753,296
Less: written down of loans B MSEE K (3,055,175) (3,244,373)
— 508,923

Current (ii): BIEA (ii) -

Loans B& 1,716,407 21,911
Less: written down of loans B MSEHE R (558,151) —
1,158,256 21,911

The loans were mainly due from CR Taiyuan, which have been written
down to reflect the loss recognised in applying the equity method
exceeding investment in the associate.

All are the loans to CR Taiyuan, which are all denominated in RMB,
unsecured, with annual interest rate of 4.75% and repayable within
three years.

ii. As at 31 December 2017, loans to associates (including the loan
to CR Taiyuan amounting to approximately HK$1,033,243,000) are
all denominated in RMB, unsecured, with annual interest rates of
3.92% to 4.75% (2016: 4.35%).

ZEERETERBIKREBRIR - B MH
ZEFARRE A A ERNBERBLR
ZH SRR R -

REEFHBRARREBER - LA
REHE - BEER - R4T75%0F
FEER - RARZFREE -

RZTE—+E+=-A=+—HB M
BMArEBR(BRERAARERER
491,033,243,00078 7T ) 9 A A R #E
AIE AEIKF RN TR3.92%
E4T5% W) F R R(ZF — KF:
4.35%)ET B °
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO 10 REtE XN ER R O BE
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ASSOCIATES (continueD) TEER @
(b) Loans to an associates (Continued) (b) MEEEEER @
Movements on the written down are as follows: WS EHWT -
2017 2016
—E—tF AN S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January Mm—HA—H 3,244,373 3,152,006
Charged to profit or loss R8s AR I0BR 44,877 398,345
Exchange differences PE W Z=RE 324,076 (305,978)
At 31 December R+——A=+—~8 3,613,326 3,244,373
As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of loans to an R_E—+F+_A=+—H"
associates approximate their carrying amounts. The fair MEECEERNAABERAR
values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate BREEMESE - AREBENREE
based on benchmark lending rate of the People’s Bank AHEARBITEREER KB,
of China. The fair values are within level 2 of the fair BB REFEMHR - RAE

value hierarchy. BEERANEBESE-H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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(a) Investments in joint ventures

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO JOINT
VENTURES

TEER

(a) B&

SN ER

11 REELENERZROEE

At 1 January R—B—H 3,610,368 3,694,388
Transfer to investments in associates — BHE 2= A& DA 2E

(Note 10 (a)) (F7E 10(a)) (111,651) —
Capital contributions to joint ventures RASENEITE 61,494 146,868
Transfer from investments in EHEmMERBRHERF

subsidiaries as a result of disposal K= — 33,790
Share of losses FE(LEE (104,558) (44,968)
Dividends g5\ — (27,889)
Other comprehensive income HEf2mEmkA 124,485 (122,994)
Share of other equity movement of JEIE & ERERNEM

joint ventures k) — 1,244
Exchange differences &5 =8 80,230 (70,071)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 3,660,368 3,610,368




INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO JOINT

VENTURES (continueD)

(@) Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

As at 31 December 2017, the principle investments
in joint ventures of the Group, all of which were
accounted for using equity method, were as follows:

Name of joint venture

RELEEN

Resources J Energy Investment
Limited (“Resources J") 0

HEERREARAA
([EteaLIR] )0

China Resources Power Orient
Co., Limited (“Orient") ©

EHENFHERATA
([&H710

China Resources Power (Hezhou)
Co., Limited ("CR Hezhou") ©

EZHEN(BM)BRAA
(TE=EEMIP

Summit Plus International Limited
("Summit Plus") @

Notes:

Place of
incorporation
and operation
A K
e

HK

PRC
FE

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
and paid-up capital
ERTHRERE/
AMEFRAZER

Share capital
-US$266,599,544
BRA
-266,599,544 % 7T

Share capital

- US265,311,808
EN
—265,311,808 7T

Registered and
paid-up capital

- RMB1,724,000,000
i kR ER

— AE#1,724,000,0007C

Share capital - GBP3
PR —3 58

The Group holds 66% of the interests of Resources J. As certain key
financial and operating matters should be approved by the board
members appointed by both the Group and the third party, the
directors of the Company consider that Resources J is still jointly
controlled by the Group and the third party. Orient and CR Hezhou
are 100% directly and indirectly held by Resources J respectively.

ii. In 2017, the Group entered into an investment and shareholders’
agreement with two fellow subsidiaries of ultimate holding company
to set up a consortium, Summit Plus for a proposed acquisition
in the United Kingdom (“UK"). The Group holds 40% of equity

interests of Summit Plus.

—~

Percentage of equity

FrsRNRER DT (%)

AS
\
%ILQ 'Lb‘b
’%/ 4/7’70@ { ey rl\?@
Y, Report 2017 ‘g:é@-

@ 22
°Mpany Limited gas?

BELRNEREROSE

- NC )

a) REeELENER @)

W_ZE—tF+_R=+—8H"
RAKE G EX(GRMEDRE
AR E RSN

Principal
activities

interest held (%)

Directly Indirectly
EE &

66 — Investment
holding

HERK

Investment
holding
REER

Operation of
a power station
2EEL

Investment
holding
REER

Bt

REEREHELR66% WS - &
TEBPBEREEFRAEAEER
F=ZFTHREEMESTSKEIAE -
ABRARBEERRAEEALE=T
HRERIRIDITE AR ESRE - Ry
R EE BN ) 2 3P 5 Bl e B e
REEREERE -

i. RIZZ—F  AEBESGKEERA
AR MER R B ARG MLIRE KR
Wi - BARRBI(EE ) EH K
BE RX ST 8@ Summit Plus » REEEHA
Summit Plus 40% HIAE S ©
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INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO JOINT
VENTURES (continueD)

(@) Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

According to the shareholders’ agreement, the Group shall pay
GBP221,920,000 (equivalent to HK$2,338,770,000) as shareholder
loan to Summit Plus, on interest-free basis with fixed term of
repayment which would be disclosed as capital commitment (Note
44(i)).

In 2017, CRC New Energy (UK) Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Summit Plus) as the preferred purchaser and Statkraft UK Ltd.
as the seller entered into a share purchase agreement relating to
the proposed acquisition for the sale and purchase of a 30% equity
interests and a related shareholder loan in Dudgeon Holdings Limited
which, together with its subsidiary, engage in offshore wind-farming
business in the UK. At the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the acquisition has completed.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group provided guarantee amounting
to GBP301,920,000 (equivalent to HK$3,181,874,000) to secure the
purchase performance of CRC New Energy (UK) Limited (Note 47).

Some of the joint ventures’ English names represent
managements’ translation of the Chinese names as they
have not adopted formal English names.

All the entities above are limited liability companies.

Except the guarantee provided to CRC New Energy
(UK) Limited mentioned above, the Group and the third
parties also jointly provided guarantee amounting to
HK$50,945,000 (31 December 2016: HK$37,987,000)
to secure financial leasing by Shanxi Lanhua Daning
Electric Power Co., Ltd. (Note 47). The guarantee will
expire in 2 years.

REEERNERROEE

TEER @

(a) MEERFEARER(

Kisx: (48)

BB EDHE A& @BEX
£221,920,000% & F »
2,338,770,0007%8 7t ) F Summit Plus
EBBRRER - BTE  BEER
HAHE A& AN E I 7R (I RE 44()) ©

W = Z — 4+ F Summit Plusty &
& [ff B 2 &) CRC New Energy (UK)
Limited (1F /& & $& B 77 ) Hi Statkraft
UK Ltd. (ERE ) BEBERERT
MRk 155% + LABE Dudgeon Holdings
Limited (Dudgeon Holdings Limited
EREMNBARTEEABENEHRFASE
BER)Z30% RENRIEBERREE
e R ESHMBRKRELNLER
B WEEETK -
R-Z—+F+-_A=+—8 K&
[ 12 4 # 18 301,920,000 % 5 (1§ &
#3,181,874,0007 7T) + LA¥ELR CRC
New Energy (UK) Limited 988 & K35
(BF&E47) ©

HRIEOEECETERRIER
MEHE MERYERBAE
BEMERXEZBIELAEE -

AFAEEERH/RBRETAR]

% _F £ £ T CRC New Energy
(UK) Limited® #& {® 4N » &K £
BrRE=ZFMERRE LK
50,945,000/%8 7w(=Z & — X F
+=—A=+—H :37,987,000%
TO)MERAERLABLEKRE
EEARAANMEMEEM T
47) o RNV 2 FEANER °
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11 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANSTO JOINT 11 REE L EMERROEE

VENTURES (conTinueD) TEER @

(a) Investments in joint ventures (Continued) (a) REELENRER @)
According to the assessment of directors of the BEBEAAREENNE R
Company, as at 31 December 2017, no individual —tF+ZA=+—H  TEME
joint venture is material to the Group, therefore, no FleErEHREEBERX -
information on individual joint venture is disclosed. gt WEFEFEENEGEPENE

£} o
Set out below are the summarised financial information ATHEHIERAEREARNIEE
for the immaterial joint ventures which are accounted RELTLENUHEERE -

for using the equity method.

2017 2016

—EB—tF T RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHT

Loss from continuing operations RBCEEBNES (104,558) (44,968)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2w A 124,485 (122,994)

Total comprehensive income ZHEIRALEE 19,927 (167,962)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

11

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO JOINT

11 RAEECENERRODEE

As at 31 December 2017, loans to joint ventures are
unsecured with annual interest rates ranging from 0%
t0 4.35% (31 December 2016: 6.37% to 8.02%).

The net amounts of loans to Yangcheng Asia-america
Daning Railway Operation Co., Ltd. after provision
are HK$142,381,000 (RMB119,018,000) (2016:
HK$133,054,000 (RMB119,018,000)), the current
and non-current amounts are HK$100,791,000
(RMB84,253,000) (2016: HK$133,054,000
(RMB119,018,000)) and HK$41,590,000
(RMB34,765,000) (2016: Nil) respectively. The
original amounts are RMB273,178,000 (2016:
RMB273,178,000), of which are overdue.

VENTURES (continueD) TEERm
(b) Loans to joint ventures (b) MEELEER
2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
HK$'000 HK$000
THET FHT
Non-current: FEBNER
Loans to joint venture mEEPEER 226,012 —
Less: provision for impairment loans B BORERE (184,422) —
41,590 —
Current: BIHR
Loans to joint ventures mEErEER 255,889 364,875
Less: provision for impairment loans B BB BB — (172,340)
255,889 192,535

R-ZF—+F+-_A=+—0" A&
EEEERAERR  FRENT 0%
EA43B%(ZE—RFEF+_A=+—
H:637%%8.02% °)

MK EERZ mBR
BREREBEARA
F EE A142,381,0008
#119,018,0007t )(=
% : 133,054,000 (A R &
119,018,000 T )) + Bl Hi K& 3E AP
B # %@ 9 Bl A&100,791,000% JT
(A B #84,253,0007C ) (= & — X
% :133,054,000/8 JT(A R *&
119,018,000t )) } 41,590,000
& JT(AN B #34,765,000T )(—
TE-RNF:F) BYHHBAREK
273,178,000 L(—ZZ—RF : AR
273,178,000 ) E % Hf -

x
B & X

(

oy K
W >+
R

\

A S
| >
>k o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

11 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO JOINT

VENTURES (conTinueD)

(b) Loans to joint ventures (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of loans to
joint ventures approximate their carrying amounts. The
fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a
rate based on benchmark lending rate of the People's
Bank of China. The fair values are within level 2 of the

fair value hierarchy.

Movements on the provision for impairment of loans to
joint ventures are as follows:

At 1 January
Exchange differences

R—A—H

11 R
o

3, >

22
°Mpany Limited gas?

S A R B
=

A (8%)

5E
EEM

WZZE—+F+=—A=+—8"
mA & ﬁ%% KA EBEEAE
BFREEMRE - ARBENBEE
%¢ﬁAEﬁﬁ%ﬁ K AL
BNESREFE - ANEBEE
RARBEFE K-

AREECRERNBREREED
mr
2017 2016
—E2—tF T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
172,340 184,010
12,082 (11,670)

At 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H

184,422 172,340

\

~

P

4/7/; % >
o, “al Report 2017 =8 ‘g:é@y
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12 GOODWILL

the year are as follows:

At 1 January 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

The movements in the carrying amount of goodwill during

12 BHE

R-B-XE—H—H

BENEEENSFENEHNT

Cost BXAR 2,737,742
Accumulated impairment losses ZEHREE R (976,818)
Net book amount REFE 1,760,924
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-AF+-A=+—HLEFE

Opening net book amount FYIREFE 1,760,924
Impairment charge VEREREEN (136,370)
Exchange differences MEH Z8 (56,870)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 1,567,684
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE-AE+=ZA=+—H

Cost DN 2,676,469
Accumulated impairment losses ZEHREE R (1,108,785)
Net book amount BREFE 1,567,684
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tHF+-A=+—HLEE

Opening net book amount FYIRREFE 1,567,684
Exchange differences fEHZ%8 58,876
Closing net book amount FARIREFE 1,626,560
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—8H

Cost DN 2,719,606
Accumulated impairment losses REPREEE (1,093,046)
Net book amount REFE 1,626,560




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

12 GOODWILL (conTinueD)

Impairment tests for goodwill:

12

Goodwill is allocated to the CGUs of the Company's

subsidiaries within three segments,

thermal power,

renewable energy and coal mining, in different provinces in

the PRC. The carrying amounts of major

goodwill allocated

&
3
B
&
[¢)
%
N
)

pel
O,

11@,

BEwm

4 4
h

e
W
25
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BERENH

BENPREARBRNFTETRE D
MEBAR=EoM(ANEE AIHLE
BEIR S K IRBA SR ) ARVIR S E A AL -
TEREENRCELBUNTIZRE

to individual CGUs are as follows: BREEWT -
Exchange
2017 Opening Impairment difference Closing
—E—tF F4 WE EXRESH FR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FET THET
Thermal power segment AKHBEEDH
- Shenyang China Resources —EGEBHRN
Heating Co., Ltd. BRATA
(“Shenyang Power ([V&E5ENRR])
Company”) 348,774 = = 348,774
— Other companies —HMAA] 1,208,462 — 58,876 1,267,338
Renewable energy segment ABLERRD S 10,448 — — 10,448
Total et 1,567,684 — 58,876 1,626,560
Exchange
2016 Opening Impairment  difference Closing
—E-RF F 1] BE EHERE FAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
Thermal power segment AKHBEEDH
- Shenyang Power Company —&GE N AT 348,774 — — 348,774
- Xingning Power Company - & WIVNG] 116,072 (116,072) — —
- Other companies —H A A] 1,265,332 — (56,870) 1,208,462
Renewable energy segment THEERDS 30,746 (20,298) — 10,448
Total BEt 1,760,924 (136,370) (56,870) 1,567,684

During the year ended 31 December 2017, management

made no impairment provision (31

December 2016:

HK$116,072,000 and HK$20,298,000) in thermal power

segment and renewable energy segment.

HE_Z—+tF+-_A=+—8ULHF
E EBEEYEHANNEESIH KA
BERERSSMEHRERE(ZE—X
F+—HA=+—H :116,072,000/%&7T
20,298,000 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

12 GOODWILL (contiNnuEeD) 12 5w

The recoverable amounts of each of the CGUs are
determined based on value in use calculations. The
key assumptions for the value in use calculations are
those regarding the discount rates, sales growth rates
and expected changes to gross margin during the year.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The sales growth
rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in
gross margin are based on past practices and expectations
of future changes in the market.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group performed impairment
review for goodwill based on pre-tax cash flow projection
covering a period of shorter than the useful life of the
property, plant and equipment and operation period of each
of the CGU. The first 5 years derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management, while the
forecast beyond 5 years is compiled based on the financial
budget and assumes no growth.

For each of the CGUs with significant amount of goodwill,
the key assumptions and discount rate used in the value-in-
use calculations in 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Thermal power segment RKNBEEDT
Gross margin EFIE

Sales growth rate SHE 18 E &
Pre-tax discount rate M ATEL IR &

At 31 December 2017, the recoverable amount
calculated based on value-in-use exceeded carrying
value by HK$829,640,094. A decrease of gross margin
by 0.05%~6.09%, or a rise in pre-tax discount rate to
10.56%~21.49%, all changes taken in isolation, would
remove the remaining headroom.

EReELBEMOAKESETIIRE

REEHESL - EREEAEME
MEBBRDERFARKRBR - HE
BEXREMNENEARES  EEE
RAEAIRRBITHIZEHERFEER
M MR EEEMEENERD
BATM R RAEFTREIREK - HEHE KX
BENERTARNETE - ENXNEH
RBEEG MY TIHERREHNTAY
BE -

N_ZET—+tF+A=+—H K&
l*ﬁ?ﬁf%% T 5= K a5 1 9 ] 5
FHESReELBEUNELHRA
EHHREANBAR e REEN -
W EETRERN - BRFEATD
REBEEMZNSI RN BESR
MEBARAFHBANREVBEER
o WRRIEER -

Edﬂ?ﬁ@ %Eikﬂﬁxfﬁiﬁiiumi

CTRIFB—LEFERFE-RFAR
.:Jr 195%1??@9’]}_%1& & R BHER &= 40
T

2017 2016
—E—+F —ZE—RF
-10%~25% 5%~27%

-27%~21%
10%~17%

-10%~11%
10%~16%

R-ZE—+FE+=—RA=+—H #F
REBETEmMARMATIE 2B RER
M 18 829,640,094 Jr o £ F| K [ [&
7 0.05% % 6.09% 3k Fr 7 Bl B 37 & F
Z10.56% F21.49% (FTBEE H B L
BHE)E  BehEgE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS AND
LOANS TO AN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

INVESTEE COMPANY

(@) Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments represent investments
in unlisted equity of ten (2016: ten) limited liability
entities registered in the PRC. Movement of available-
for-sale investments is disclosed in Note 3.3(c).

Fair value of available-for-sale investment in Tanggang
Railway has been determined using dividend discounted
model. The key assumptions used for dividend
discounted model calculations are as follows:

Real discount rate

Average growth rate of dividends

As at 31 December 2017, none of the carrying amounts
of interests in each of the companies exceed 10% of

total assets of the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, available-for-sale investments
are all denominated in RMB.

FHR S EEE

&
3
B
&
[¢)
%
N
)

&3
\
%ILQ 'f’“
» 4 ;
%/0}), el Report 2017 =8 ‘g{é}@-{}

22
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13 AIEHERERBAIEEHE

HIRE D BIER

(a) AIEERSE

AfEEREERETH(ZE

—RETE)EREEMNA
REMCERBMIFLMES - Al
HERENEFSHBERFERWE
3.3(0) ¢

REBEEROATRHREERENA
AREEEFRAREMBEERE
o RERBARAGEMERAD
FERKBOT :

2017 2016
—E2—+5 —F—RF
14% 12%

3% 3%

b'(\ —tF+-_A=+—H" R
ﬂﬁ’ﬁ”*mﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁtﬂﬁﬁﬁ
BEERI10% °

JiNE=S
=

BE_T—+tF+_-_A=t+—H" 7
HHEEREHUARKEFE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS AND
LOANS TO AN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTEE COMPANY (conTiNuED)

(b) Loans to an available-for-sale investee

13 AIEHERERBAIEEHE

HNEIRE QAT ERm

(b) BMAHHENKIRERTER

company

2017 2016
—E—tF —F—R

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT T T
Non-current JERED 149,937 424,099
Current mE) 303,893 —
453,830 424,099

As at 31 December 2017, loans to an available-for-
sale investee company, are unsecured, denominated
in RMB, bearing interests at the rate published by the
People’s Bank of China, and repayable in 2018 and
2019 respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of the loans
to an available-for-sale investee company approximate
their carrying amounts. The fair values are based on
cash flows discounted using a rate based on benchmark
lending rate of the People’s Bank of China. The fair
values are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

RZZE—+F+=-A=+—H " @
HHENWREQARERAEIRE
MARBEE BPBRARRITAM
MAEAB > BEDRIR - —N\F
R—E—NFEE-

RZZE—+F+=-A=+—H " @
HEENHRERNEZRNAAEBE
HERMERS AABEIBEE
APEARBRITEREERRIIREY
BeEmEtE - AABEBRAAE
BEZH -
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14 PREPAYMENT FOR NON-CURRENT 14 REFAMNARIE
ASSETS

2017 2016
—E—tF T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Prepayments for acquisition of property, UEEWZ - B LR EMN
plant and equipment TERT IR 1,713,288 1,349,110
Prepayments for acquisition of WAt s R A 9 FE A5 KT ()
mining rights (i) 1,449,133 1,354,200
Prepayments for establishment of P 7B 1 S RO TR SR
associates 41,987 79,692
Prepayments for acquisition of WS & E R TA N /I
intangible assets 23,356 1,167
Input VAT HEIFIREN 1,865,691 —
5,093,455 2,784,169
(i) In January 2008 and December 2011, the Group entered into (i) R-EENE—AR=-_ZE—E+=8 "
agreements with a local government authority in the PRC to acquire AN ER (B B AR B M 5 AT A R AT S 1
the exploration and resources right attached to an area of 21,000 KB AR %5,782,130,0000(# & ©
hectares of a coal mine located in Inner Mongolia at a consideration 6,917,162,000 %8 70 ) BRI RN SR & B9 — BB
amounted to RMB5,782,130,000 (equivalents to HK$6,917,162,000). ERE (T FE A& 21,000 2 ) B &R B R 4 -
Up to 31 December 2017, deposit amounting to RMB1,166,000,000 BE-_Z—+H+-_A=+—H £A£H
(equivalent to HK$1,394,886,000) (2016: RMB1,166,000,000, equivalent BT & AR #¥1,166,000,000 7t (48 & K
to HK$1,303,506,000) had been paid by the Group, with the remaining 1,394,886,000/ 8 L) (ZE—~F: AR
balance payable at approximately RMB4,616,130,000 (equivalent to 1,166,000,000 =(# % 7#%1,303,506,000
HK$5,522,276,000 (Note 44)) (2016: RMB4,616,130,000, equivalent to BIL)) MB TENEHRHARE
HK$5,160,510,000) included in the capital commitments. 4,616,130,000T(#8 % 525,522,276,000

B F4d)) (T — N F: AR
4,616,130,000 7T (#8 % 7 5,160,510,000 7
TL))aT AR AREIE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15 INVENTORIES 15 78
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Coal BER 2,233,252 2,162,444
Spare parts and consumables — at cost ERZHAER R — R 805,789 831,330
Spare parts and consumables HRAZMMNEFmR

— at fair value less cost to sell —BAREBERBEEKA 125,210 91,489
Fuel oil yoa¥ici 40,901 39,140
3,205,152 3,124,403

The cost of inventories recognised as operating HREKLEIENFEXRR A

expenses amounted to HK$39,132,963,000 (2016:

HK$28,139,644,000).

39,132,963,0008 ;o(=Z & — X F -
28,139,644,0007T) ©

The impairment charges related to inventories amounting to 7 $028,984,0008 T (Z T — /N F ¢
HK$28,984,000 (2016: HK$19,670,000) has been recorded 19,670,000/8 7T) KB BF EHRIER
in operating expenses. The movement on the provision for KERKESLHAR - AEBGFERN
impairment of inventories of the Group is as follows: BEREZHWOT -

2017 2016

—B—+tF —ERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TETT

At 1 January A—H—H 80,321 75,326
Exchange differences EH =% 5,887 (5,712)
Impairment charged to profit or loss REBZERIRARE 28,984 19,670
Disposal HE (6,681) (8,963)
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H 108,511 80,321
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SH B MKMTEE "Pany Limited
16 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 16 BEWERF - EMEWRER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS BT IE
Trade and other receivables, and prepayments comprise the FE W BR ZK - Bt B YRR IB K FE N R IB
following: BFELAT &8 :
2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Trade receivables JE U BR 3R
— Trade receivable — EUHR X 9,789,845 7,814,499
— Notes receivable — R E® 788,129 1,048,236
10,577,974 8,862,735
Less: provision for impairment of B EUWARRIR AR A
trade receivables (159,973) (140,410)
Trade receivables — net PE W AR FORE 10,418,001 8,722,325
Input VAT and prepayment for income tax #EIEIZ (BT & TSI TET B 1,807,575 3,237,335
Prepayments for coal and fuel B R B TR BIR 1,013,718 987,036
Deposits for environmental protection RIRIES 201,721 203,184
Dividends receivable from available-for-sale JEUZ A] B & i & A A
investee companies s 25,144 28,498
Loans to employees FEEER 5,530 8,053
Others EAh 2,657,655 1,704,387
5,711,343 6,168,493
Less: provision for impairment of R B UG IR RV B B
other receivables (122,491) (124,948)
16,006,853 14,765,870
All the trade and other receivables are denominated in RMB. FiT 75 FE W BR 30 & B Ath jB WK GRIE P9 A A

RAEH (8 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 16 BUER - HABWRIER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

YA A5 FOE ()

N—_ZE—+tF+=-_A=+—H &%
F A HE 5 8 FE U AR TR R BR B 9 AT 40
B

2017 2016

—E—+F TE—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FETT

0-30 days 0Z230H 6,868,924 6,122,293
31-60 days 31£60H 655,806 579,000
Over 60 days #Bm60H 3,053,244 2,161,442
10,577,974 8,862,735

The Group’s trade debtors are mainly thermal power and
renewable energy electricity sales receivable from local grid
companies. Generally, the Group usually grants about 60
days’ credit period to customers from the end of the month
in which the sales is made, except for the tariff premium
for renewable energy projects. The collection of such tariff
premium is subject to the allocation of funds by relevant
government authorities to local grid companies, which
consequently takes a relatively long time for settlement.

Pursuant to CaiJian [2012] No.102 Notice on the Interim
Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff
Premium of Renewable Energy ( (AT B4 RIREE M MBI E
SEBEITYE) ) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance,
the National Development and Reform Commission and the
National Energy Administration in March 2012, standardised
procedures for the settlement of the tariff premium come
into force since 2012 and approvals on a project by project
basis are required before the allocation of funds to local grid
companies.

REBORKEREECEWEHE
WMARNMANERAIBERRENHE
Ko AEEBERTEFK60 B
FRH(EELE AERBRG) (AIBE
BERIERMEBMHMMELRIN) o EEH
e B W ZAAR T IR BT R A E i
BERNRELES D ENBRME
EYFHRERE -

BEFRS BERERNMNEZES
FRREERN _E——F=H &
TR BERBREBH INHBIE S
EIBETHNE R BA(BIE[2012]102
SR BEWMMEES T ——Fit
BEENAEAHNIT BEERSHE
“EBNEEMINASBNZEME
NI
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16 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 16 BUERF - HERRIER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the operating projects
of the Group have been approved for the tariff premium
and certain projects are in the process of applying for the
approval. The ageing analysis of trade receivables over 60
days excluding those tariff premium receivales is as follows:

Over 60 days #8860 H

As at 31 December 2017, included in trade receivables was
an amount of HK$213,517,000 (2016: HK$149,051,000)
which is trade receivables from fellow subsidiaries or
associates and is aged within one year.

Y8 A5 FE ()

W-Z—tF+-A=+—0 %%
W% TEEEA 2 RAEER M
BRGNS EARNEBHENS
T o %% 8860 A A W (Tt
KB (EH 0% BB D HT AT

2017 2016

—S—+t& —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

157,147 285,480
R-ZE—+EF+-_A=+—8 " A

& Ut BE 3k H9213,517,00078 T(= &
— 754 1 149,051,000 70 ) AR B E
A B R A S E P ERNEUERR
BRECTHBIB—F -

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade REBERWIRTUZRBENE ST ¢
receivables of the Group are as follows:

2017 2016

—E—tHF ZE-RF

HK$'000 HK$000

FExT FET

At 1 January m—HA—H 140,410 139,123

Provision for doubtful accounts REREAE 10,679 9,806
Receivables written off during the year FRIERTIEIE B

as uncollectible T 35 B & W SR IE (1,657) —

Exchange differences E W =% 10,541 (8,519)

At 31 December BR+=-—A=+—H 159,973 140,410
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16 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 16 EWR - HtEWRREAR

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Movements on the provision for impairment of other
receivables of the Group are as follows:

Y8 {5 7R IE ()

7 S B £ 1 8 K 2T A (S A0 )
mF -

2017 2016
—E—+tF VAN

HK$’000 HK$000

FET AT

At 1 January W—ABA—H 124,948 133,981

Reversal of doubtful accounts RERE O] (14,933) (521)
Receivables written off during the year FRIERDAIEIIE B

as uncollectible 50 5H A FE W B (12,722) (54)

Exchange differences B =% 25,198 (8,458)

At 31 December BR+=-—A=+—H 122,491 124,948

Management of the Group closely monitors the credit quality
of trade and other receivables. The Group makes provision
against impairment of trade and other receivables based
on the assessment results of credit quality of the respective
parties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of trade and other
receivables approximate their carrying amounts due to the
short-term nature.

AEEERE BTV ERBUIRRN N E
KT IBENEEER - AEBERE
BEBE T EELRNTHERIE
Wi R R e L i R LA R TR ) R B A i 3B
& o

RS ARMESENZEAEERRS
bt R BRWFIENRAEE A5 H
I R B AR (R

R-_TE—+E+-_A=+—H \#R
B HIMEE - BRI R H At R U KR
HRNAABEEEEREMEMRS -
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17 AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

17 FEURHs & I 3 FRTR

Dividends receivable from associates
Interests receivable from associates
Others

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET AT
JE o B 8 1R SR AR B 65,976 85,661
JE LSt 8 1 ZE 12 181,197 63,366
Hith 219,712 13,835
466,885 162,862
Amounts due from associates are denominated in RMB, JEWEE S PERBUARKE - B
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. EER - T8 BARERIBEER -
The Group does not provide any allowance for amounts due 7N ER [ 30 A R S i T FESRIA AT 1R
from associates because the Group had not experienced any FEE AAASEELREEM
default history from associates. Management of the Group BELEEANEBER AEEEEE
closely monitors the credit quality of amounts due from FYERENBENCENBENEEL
associates and considers that the amounts are neither past = URAZSFEMES N LR
due nor impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral BE - AEEVERZEEHREFEET
over these balances. AR m -
As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of the amounts due
from associates approximate their carrying amounts due to
the short-term nature.

R-F—£F+-A=+—8 @R
BT O O R ROR R
R EESEEREERE -

N
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18 AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES 18 BB & & (e EF1E

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$000
THET FH&T

Non current: FEBNER -
Interests receivable from a joint venture  JEUW—FEIAZEDZEFE 142,566 —

Current: BIVHA -

Interests receivable from joint ventures FEY & &R R 2,248 134,218
Others — non-trading Hih—3EE 5 22,758 9,603
25,006 143,821
167,572 143,821

A& RFREGUARKEE

The amounts due from joint ventures are all denominated

in RMB, unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

The Group does not provide any impairment provision
against amounts due from joint ventures because there
was no default history experienced from the joint ventures.
Management of the Group closely monitors the credit
quality of amounts due from joint ventures and considers
the amounts are neither past due nor impaired. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of the amounts due
from joint ventures approximate their carrying amounts due
to the short-term nature.

AEER - B RAREKREE -

AR B30 4 LR WA R FRIARH R
TRBERE ARAEtXBEY
BEMEQRE  AREEEER Y
EREUREZLEXRENEEEER
I 78 7% % % 7R IR B 8 2 2k 3ROR
B AEBIERZFEHFTHIMN
A o

=

RZE—+tF+_A=+—H B8R
BRHME  BREECERENR
AEEEEEmMERS -
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19 AMOUNTS DUE FROM OTHER RELATED

COMPANIES/LOAN TO A NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A
SUBSIDIARY

(@) Amounts due from other related companies

19
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P ELABRE A TIARIE
— BN BA TR

oy

(a) FEREALBEADHKE

2017 2016
—B—tF T RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Non-trading related: EE S
Amounts due from non-controlling JE W BfY B8 2 R FEFE AR AR 3R
shareholders of subsidiaries IE 789 990
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  FEUR R B A A1 FIE 1,860 1,181
2,649 2,171
The amounts due from other related parties of the FEUL K £ A fh B BE 7 2IE A |

Group are unsecured, denominated in RMB, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The Group does not provide any impairment provision
against amounts due from other related companies
because there was no default history experienced from
the related companies. Management of the Group
closely monitors the credit quality of amounts due from
other related companies and considers the amounts
are neither past due nor impaired. The Group does not

hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of the
amounts due from other related parties approximate

their carrying amounts due to the short-term nature.

BUAREHE 2EREAREX

REE o

7K 52 [ I 4 it B AOEL At BB 2 2 B ROR
tEHEMRERE  EREEARYL
BEMBTENLCE AEEEERE
Y EREWE MR E AR FKIAMIE
EE% . UR/ZFFAMERIX
HIRRME o AN 5 B M L 5% 5 S AR
BT

R-ZTE—+F+=-_A=+—80 gR
BREAME  EWEMEEESZEN
AR EBEREAERS -
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM OTHER RELATED
COMPANIES/LOAN TO A NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A
SUBSIDIARY (conTiNuED)

(b) Loans to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary

As at 31 December 2017, loans to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary are unsecured, denominated
in RMB, with annual interest rates of 4.9% (2016:
3.92%).

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of loans
to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
approximates its carrying amount. The fair value is
based on cash flows discounted using a rate based
on benchmark lending rate of the People’s Bank of
China. The fair value is within level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.

PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS

Pledged and restricted bank deposits represent deposits
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group, deposits restricted for special purpose and time
deposits.

As at 31 December 2017, deposits amounting to
HK$411,140,000 (2016: HK$692,841,000) had been pledged
to secure bank acceptance bills. Deposits amounting to
HK$292,385,000 (2016: HK$273,066,000) were restricted
for environmental protection and industry transformation
use with the approval of certain governments. Deposits
amounting to HK$146,657,000 (2016: HK$3,978,000) were
restricted by PRC court order.

19

20

ENEMEREATIRE, O
— B BT FERIRRE

R (&)

w)g—%WEﬂﬁﬁﬁwﬁiﬁ
TR
R_E—+F+-_A=+—8"
m— B AR IEIERBREERK
BEEE LARBKEE - U
49% (ZF—7RF 1 3.92%)MF
FIEETE ©

R—_ZE—+tF+=-_A=+—80"
m— B AR IEIERBREERK
ARAEBBELARAEREE - ARE
EREBEFEATBRARRITERE
EFEGBEHRESREFTE - D
REEBRALBESRE L -

EEBRZRHIRTER

EEMLEZRNRTEFREEEMRT
RITERAEEERRITEEZER
MFER - XRGBIERERENTFR K
EHIER

R—ZE—+tF+=_A=+—80"
A E1411,140,0008 T(= & — X
F :692,841,000/%8 7T ) W 17 3K &
BHEE UERBTEALEE - A
£0292,385,000/8 ;o(= & — ;X F ¢
273,066,000 8 7T ) B 17 sR & & T B
HEWRBIERBREREZEER
FA > A#146,657,00008 T(=ZF— <
F : 3,978,000 L) I F KX HBE

Beap BRI o
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20 PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK 20 BEEBRZRERFIERITER
DEPOSITS (continueD) ()
Term deposits amounting to HK$40,000,000 (2016: € BA 77 3% 40,000,000/ o (= & — 7%
HK$122,229,000) were three months to one year with 1 122,229,00078 0 ) B AR A& =@
deposit interest rate ranging from 1.54% to 3.85% per RE—F TFTRENENF1.54% %
annum. The term deposits can be withdrawn on demand. 3.85% ° FEHIF R A R ERKFIRER ©
None of the deposits is either past due or impaired. HMEERE B HIRIE -
As at 31 December 2017, the pledged and restricted bank RZE—tEF+ZHA=+—H 2%
deposits are all denominated in RMB and the fair values HRZRERITFREHAARET
approximate their carrying amounts. B AAEBEERREERS -
21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERREEEY
2017 2016
—E—tFE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFRERE 5,381,686 4,347,022
As at 31 December 2017, included in cash and cash RZE—+tF+_A=+—8" 5 A
equivalents was an amount of HK492,294,000 (2016: He MR FEEYWHA92,294,000%5
HK$43,064,000) which is deposited in China Resources Bank (= & — X 4 : 43,064,000 7T )
of Zhuhai Co., Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the Group, with MARIEBEERASEEB R XN EBRFHKE
interest rates ranging from 0.35% to 1.265% (2016: 0.35% EBHRITROBRAA - FHMEN
to 1.15%) per annum. F0.35% F£1.265% (= & — )X F:

035% % 1.15%)
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22

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (contnuen) 21 RERRBREZEFEBY @

AEENREMREEFEMANTE

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are denominated

in the following currencies: HEHE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
RMB AR & 4,999,939 4,007,016
HK dollars BT 364,807 289,843
US dollars ETT 16,940 50,163
5,381,686 4,347,022

RZE—+tF+_A=+—H ' B=e
FBReEEYHN A EEERAEEN

o

As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents approximate their carrying amounts.

SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER STATUTORY 22
CAPITAL RESERVES

RAREMEEE R GFEE

AR DRTRME

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

Number of
shares  Share capital
R E LN
‘000 HK$'000
T FAET
Balance at 1 January 2016 R-ZFE—R"F—HA—BW&ER 4,807,204 22,252,458
Issued upon exercise of share options TR R A R 28 1T (M 3E 23)
(Note 23) 459 5,274
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-ZF—-AR"E+=-A=+—H
YA B 4,807,663 22,257,732
Balance at 1 January 2017 R=-TB—tF—A—AWN&ER 4,807,663 22,257,732
Issued upon exercise of share options TR AR R 2 1T (PY 5 23)
(Note 23) 2,781 84,004
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-ZF—tHF+=-A=+—H
HY R B 4,810,444 22,341,736
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SHMBHRRMEE

23 SHARE OPTIONS 23 B

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme approved by a
resolution of the shareholders of the Company dated 6
October 2003, the Board may, at its absolute discretion,
offer any employee, director, consultant or advisor of (i) CRH
and its subsidiaries; and (ii) the Company, its subsidiaries
and associated companies, options to subscribe for the
Company’s shares, for the promotion of success of the
business of the Group. The exercise price of the share option
will be determined at the highest of (1) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant of the option; (2) the average closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (3) the
nominal value of the shares.

Options granted are exercisable during the period from the
vesting date to the last day of the ten-year period after
grant date. The share options have vesting periods from one
to five years and every 20% will be vested at the end of
each year.

BREARBARER_-_ZZ=F1TARX
BLURZRIENBRESE - &5
SR RERERG)EBSE & EHB
NIV SR /NI - FNCIDSE:
BEERNEMNESR  FF - BRNGE
AARLBRERBARBEND - A
R AR BRI - BRIEMNTT
EERRETIIRSEEE  (DARQ
A 70 B RECRE 1 L B A ZE B AR P Y
WHE : (2ARARMDNERFELH
HA A 7118 52 5 B 2 Bt 52 P 9 S 15 W
&: RQ)EMHmE -

REmBERERINEEEREERD
RHR+FHHEEmE BLLITE - B
RENGEERNF—FE0F RE
FREFE20% °
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23 SHARE OPTION (conTiNnuED) 23 BAGHE )
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and TE-RFERZE-LEFHERERTE
their related exercise prices under the Share Option Scheme BmARTTEERESE RERETEE
in 2016 and 2017 are as follows: BEIAT -

Employees of the Group ~ AEEHES 6.925 5 Sep 2006
ZTE5F

NATE  1,948600 (407,000 (1,541,400) - - - -
12.21 30 Mar 2007

_TRtE
ZAZTE 5,904,660 (52,000) — 5852660 (2,780,940) (3,071,720) -
7,853,260  (459,200) (1,541,400) 5,852,660 (2,780,940) (3,071,720) -
Exercisable at the end of ~ ARERITE
the year 7,853,260 5,852,660 —
Weighted average exercise  JNETS(7(E
price 10.90 752 6.93 12.21 2. 12.21 -
In 2017 and 2016, there were no share option expenses RIZE—tFRIFT—RF TER
recognised in either the consolidated income statement or et ERIASEERERERR
the Group's share option reserve. BiREMAS -
The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares AATRODNFEANBREREITER 2B
at dates on which the options were exercised during the Wi FHKRTER14258BT(ZF

year was HK$14.25 (2016: HK$13.29). —NF 1 13.29%87T) ©
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24 SHARES HELD FOR SHARE AWARD
SCHEME

N 5
"ual Report 2011 %
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On 25 April 2008 (the “Adoption Date”), a Medium to Long-

\
)j\
N

term Performance Evaluation Incentive Plan (the “Scheme”)

24 TRzt R B EIFTRF AR D
was adopted by the Company. The Scheme shall be valid
Adoption Date.

and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from the

NEFEEA=—+RB(EMAA
Hi ) RNABRA T REE R EM
Byat a8l ([axst &) - %At8 A &RM A
HEEF 10 FRNEEZB -

Pursuant to the rules of the Scheme, the Company has set

up a trust, and BOCI - Prudential Trustee Limited (“Trustee”)
acts as the trustee. The Company’s shares may be purchased
by the Trustee from the market out of cash contributed by

iR T 84 3K

RN
the Group and be held in trust for the qualified employees

RNARFZIL—IE

S5t WHPRBBFRERMETEE

RARIIXFEANDERRTEA - AR

AR AR ZFEANT IS ARE B H

EMReBE YU EAERXAEEE

until such shares are vested and proceeds from sale of REBRE BEEEEROLKHER
shares distributed to the qualified employees in accordance 15

with the provisions of the Scheme.

DA IS W ARIBZETEGREE D
TEEREERIL -
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no shares

(2016: Nil) were vested. The proceeds of sales of the vested
shares have been distributed to the relevant directors and

employees in accordance with the Scheme. In 2017, the

BHE-_ZT—tF+-_A=1T—HBILHF
awarded sum amounting to HK$55,184,000 was determined

based on the net proceeds from the sale of the vested shares
statement.

B UE(ZZE-RF:T)ROHER
B HERBRONMAERIADRIE
ZAgl oK EHBESRERE - —F
—+ & - B %55,184,000% T ) 2 E)
THRBELHEER
and recognised as an expense in the consolidated income

& B A7 1) F WA EETE
FREHRERERRFAX

s
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BHMBRRME
24 SHARES HELD FOR SHARE AWARD 24 TR R EVE BIFTRFER 1D
SCHEME (conTinueD) ()
Under the Scheme, there were total unvested shares BEZTE R —+&F+ =
of 31,319,230 (2016: 34,771,553) amounting to A=+—8" % EE ABAEH
HK$494,996,000 (2016: HK$550,180,000) held by the 31,319,230 (= = — X #F:
Trustee at 31 December 2017. The movement of the shares 34771553 ) KR B B K’ - #E
held for the Scheme is as follows: 494,996,000/% 7T(= & — /X F:
550,180,000 7T ) ° Bta&at 8l P AR
MEHHINT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
ROEE BAE  ROEE PR
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR THET T FET
At 1 January W—B—H 34,772 550,180 34,772 550,180
Sold during the year FAHE (3,452)  (55,184) — —
At 31 December RTt=ZA=+—8H 31,320 494,996 34,772 550,180
25 OTHER RESERVES 25 Hithf s
Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in AEBEREZHFBINEI144EE
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages FI4EMNEHREREHE -
144 to 145.
General reserve is part of the shareholders’ funds and —MRREEERRERESN—&n B
comprises statutory surplus reserves, enterprise expansion i R BB BT 8 A R R E B R R
funds and reserve funds of subsidiaries in the PRC. Pursuant #H tEEREKFEES - RBRE

to the provisions of their respective Articles of Association,
certain of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC shall make appropriation from their profit after tax to
the general reserves. The general reserves shall be used for
making up losses, capitalisation into capital and expansion of
the operations and production of the respective subsidiaries.

HEXBABEIEMANMGR - AR

BIE T RNFEMME QB AR R
BB BEE —RFHEE - —ﬁxﬁﬁﬁ 7
RERERBE BAEANEBEAEH

B ARIREE REE
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25 OTHER RESERVES (continuED)

The special reserves of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by
the Company and the nominal amount of the share capital
of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation
for the purpose of the preparation of the listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
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25 HtfE s

AEENFRFEREANAREEIT
AEEEARBEAEERARABNES
AR LT METHRBEARA
HM B QR A EE 2 R ZRE -

The movement of the capital reserve is as follows: BARFEEBENEESHOT
As at
i
2017 2016
—E2—tF T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FH&T
Opening balance at 1 January R—B— B 509,789 462,779
Changes in fair values of available-for-sale AJf{HERE RN EEEZF)
investments, net of tax ($0BR#IE) (30,255) 20,289
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB QA (9,052) —
Share of other equity movement of JEIGERRRR EZZERE
investments accounted for using B E Ath i e & B
the equity method (1,080) 270
Transfers (Note a) s (feEa) 201,737 205,271
Transfers upon utilisation (Note b) A% (MMiEDb) (222,142) (178,820)
Closing balance at 31 December RT=-RA=+—HBEXR&R 448,997 509,789

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to certain regulations in the PRC governing the mining industry,
the Group is required to make an annual transfer to the capital reserve
account an amount being calculated at the volume of coal ore extracted
each year, mulitplied by the applicable rate per tonne of coal ore. Pursuant
to the relevant provisions of the PRC Companies Law, the fund can only
be used for future improvement of the mining facilities and enhancement
of safety production environment. The fund is not available for distribution
to either shareholders of the Company or equity owners of the related
entities.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, HK$222,142,000 (2016:
HK$178,820,000) had been utilised for expenditures incurred in the
relevant assets as stated in Note a, and therefore the corresponding amount
was transferred out of the capital reserve account to retained earnings.

GEE

(a)

REPEEETREXOARER  AKEA
FEER-SFRZEANHER  2HEEE
4 FRER 80 B I B8 TR DA A B MR e b SR A
B REPEDRDENBBIGEN  ZASE
ARAFEESERBRERRA LS EER
%o ZAS T RED KT AR BRR KM
MERNERITAA

HEzE-_Z—+tF+_A=+—BLHF
E 222,142,000 (= T — X F:
178,820,00075 7T ) B AR K st a ATt fE A &
EFMEENAS - BUBARFIERRIEER
REBREREREBFE -
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26 RETAINED EARNINGS 26 (REBFHE

At 1 January R—A—H 40,016,379 38,256,404
Profit for the year FRFHE 4,623,323 7,708,373
Dividends paid to owners of the Company B AARZHA ARE
(Note 42) (Ft5E42) (4,185,648) (4,175,974)
Profit appropriation to reserves BARENNE (1,220,974)  (1,745,973)
Transfers i (201,737) (205,271)
Transfers upon utilisation (R T 222,142 178,820
At 31 December BR+=—A=+—H 39,253,485 40,016,379
27 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 27 BEBNERM - HENRIBER
AND ACCRUALS fEStEH

Trade payables (i) JE < BR R (i) 11,387,007 10,923,896
Other payables and accruals (ii) Hh fE T 5B R FEET B A (i) 20,794,829 17,414,024

32,181,836 28,337,920
(i)  Ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: () BEREFORERSITOT

0-30 days 0Z30H 5,112,944 6,030,620
31-90 days 31290H 2,779,780 2,103,095
Over 90 days 90 H M 3,494,283 2,790,181

11,387,007 10,923,896
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27 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 27 FENERM - HESRIBR
AND ACCRUALS (contiNueD) FESTE )
(i) Ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: () EREFHOERESTOT - (&)

(Continued)

The average credit term for purchases of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit

terms.
(i)  Other payables and accruals include: (ii)

Payables in respect of purchase of FHABEIERBEE
non-current assets Y FE T 5RIR

Accrued wages st H &

Advances from customers BE#K

Other tax payables H {th e 818

Interests payable & 72

Payable in respect of employee B AT B A R E B A AR A
settlement costs of a subsidiary Y FE < k18

Deferred consideration payables JEfIRAER (B

Retirement and other long-term JEET R R HMmRET
employee benefits obligations — & A 28 — BN ER
current (Note 38 (iii)) (B 5% 38(Gii))

Others HAth

BEEYNFHEER/A -
AEEEE YRR EIEK
R BERMARNFEREED
AT ©

Hp B FA N ER B

2017 2016
—E2—tF T RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAET

14,200,426 11,785,010

1,211,722 1,418,325
1,358,820 967,156
1,085,036 862,011
611,900 507,822
359,113 146,949
99,879 86,346
32,207 80,567
1,835,726 1,559,838

Trade and other payables are unsecured, interest
free, and repayable on demand. They are mainly
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of trade and
other payables of the Group approximate their carrying
amounts due to the short-term nature.

20,794,829 17,414,024

ST BR R e EL A B A SRR A 4K
- 2EREARBEREER - %
EFRETEAARKIIE -

R-F—tF+-_A=+—8H"
HREEMTEE  AEERMK
B H Al A SRIA R A S B (B A
FREEMEE -
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28

29

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

Except for the deposits amounting to HK$376,787,000
which are market-interest bearing, other amounts due
to associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and
repayable on demand. The amounts due to associates are
mainly denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of amounts due to
associates approximate their carrying amounts due to the
short-term nature.

AMOUNTS DUE TO JOINT VENTURES

Except for the deposits amounting to HK$155,975,000
which are market-interest bearing, other amounts due to
joint ventures are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and
repayable on demand. They are all denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of amounts due to
joint ventures approximate their carrying amounts due to the
short-term nature.

28

29

BATIEEERIR

B4 3% 4 376,787,000 7 7T 1% T 35 FI| &
SRS EfhEMBESERIBLAE
B RERAREREEE - BN
BMETERBBETBEUARKBIINE -

R-ZE—+F+_-_A=+—8 #\HR
BREHME  BABECERENR
AEAEEEERS -

BINE=EEMREA

B #% & 155,975,000 /%8 JT 1% T 35 K| K
BN EfhEMALNERIEAE
B RERARERBEER 2%
FEE2HUAARETIE -

RZZE—tF+=ZA=+—H @R
BRMEE  BNAELERENA
AEEEREERES
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30 AMOUNTS DUE TO OTHER RELATED
COMPANIES

30 BVEAMEEER

=IE/9E]
2017 2016
—EB-tF& —ZFRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Loan from an intermediate holding RE—FEREERARBNER
company 800,000 —
Amounts due to non-controlling ANEIEVNGER L &8
shareholders of subsidiaries 633,825 538,701
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries JEAST R R B B~ B 508 5,498 4,823
Amounts due to an intermediate T — R IR A R IR
holding company 1,212 641
1,440,535 544,165
Except for the loan from the intermediate holding company
(CRH) with an annual interest rate of 1.98%, amounts due
to other related companies are unsecured, non-interest
bearing, and repayable on demand. They are mainly
denominated in RMB.

R EZERAR(ERER)ERIRE
MFE1.98% AN BRI EMEAER
AINEAEER 2B REAEREXE
As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of amounts due to
other related companies approximate their carrying amounts
due to the short-term nature.

BE - ZFHBEEIBUAREIIE -

AN

BRMEE  BNEMBEEQRNEA

R-E—+F+_A=+—8 B\R
AR EBEERTERS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHIIEHRMIEE
31 BORROWINGS 31 fBe
2017 2016
—E—+tF —F—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE& T FHTT
Non-current JEENER
Bank loans RITER
— Secured — B 3,315,009 3,299,793
— Unsecured — K 50,750,331 48,661,532
Corporate bonds and notes (i) NEES K& ) 14,696,546 18,205,490
68,761,886 70,166,815
Current BN HA
Bank loans RITER
— Secured —HHEHF 800,628 443,650
— Unsecured — K 26,575,155 20,852,937
Corporate bonds and notes (i) NEESH R EE ) 4,785,200 —
32,160,983 21,296,587
Total borrowings BBz 100,922,869 91,463,402

As at 31 December 2017, there is no borrowings due
to fellow subsidiaries (2016: an unsecured amount of
HK$18,446,000 was due to China Resources Bank of Zhuhai

Co., Ltd.).

As at 31 December 2017, the secured bank loans of the

RZE—tF+=ZA=+—8 #HE
FE A5 [R) 25t /B8 X ] &Y
FRNKEBEBRITIBROARAA

H S — 2
SRS _g /\

B K E B 4 58 518,446,000 8

JT) e

_

R—_FE—+F+-_A=+—H  &&

Group were secured by: WBEEMIBITERATIEE EEK
-
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Buildings and equipment (Note 6) BFNEE(METe) 3,071,285 3,034,999
Prepaid lease payments (Note 7) EBAEEER(MME7) 940 7,673
3,072,225 3,042,672
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

31 BORROWINGS (conTinuED)

At 31 December 2017, the borrowings were repayable as

‘@
\
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31 @8 m

R—_E—+F+_A=+—H " £

follows: RN T HARMEE -
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Within 1 year — R 32,160,983 21,296,587
Between 1 and 2 years FEB—F BT BAME 20,774,002 10,675,634
Between 2 and 5 years HBBMERETBBRT 25,426,074 39,598,307
Over 5 years FBiA A F 22,561,810 19,892,874
100,922,869 91,463,402
As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of borrowings R—FE—tF+=-_A=+—H" ' EFE
approximate their carrying amounts. The fair values are MAREBERKREAEES Q2REE

based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on
benchmark lending rate of the People’s Bank of China or
LIBOR rate. The fair values are within level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

i

IR 5% 2 P o A R R (TR
e LEGET VB R R
g ARBERRAABESRES
e

EENRAENNTEEIIE :

2017 2016
—E—+tH§ —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

RMB AR B 82,268,132 72,887,932
HK$ BT 17,702,192 17,632,112
us$ ETT 938,024 930,610
Euro BT 14,521 12,748
100,922,869 91,463,402



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

31 BORROWINGS (conTinuED)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had the following
undrawn borrowing facilities:

—FREH
—FREH

Expiring within one year
Expiring beyond one year

31 @8 m

R-ZT—tLHF+-_A=1+—H &A%
ERERMERBENT

2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
89,578,019 87,148,347
53,386,449 45,609,862

During the year ended 31 December 2017, bank borrowings
bear average annual interest rate at 4.09% (2016: 4.10%).

(i) Corporate bonds and notes with fixed rates issued by
the Group are as follows:

(@) issued by China Resources Power Investment
Company Limited (“CR Power Investment”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in the
PRC:

(1) RMB4,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$4,785,200,000) — 5.6% due November
2018 (issued in November 2011).

142,964,468 132,758,209

BHE-_ZE—+t&+-_A=+—HIHF
€ BITEENFEHERNERL409E(Z
T—RNFE:410F)FHE

(i) ATESEAKEETHES QA
EESE S

() MAATNFERENREL
SEHENREERA A
ETLTECDEGE

(1)  AE#4,000,000,000 7T
(18 £ 724,785,200,000
BIL) —56%0N - F
—N\F+—ARHMR=
T——F+— 877 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHMBHRRMEE

31 BORROWINGS (conTinuED)

(i) Corporate bonds and notes with fixed rates issued by
the Group are as follows: (Continued)

(a)

issued by China Resources Power Investment
Company Limited (“CR Power Investment”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in the
PRC: (Continued)

(2)

RMB1,785,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,135,395,500) - 4.70% due
January 2020 (issued in January 2010)
and RMB500,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$598,150,000) — 4.95% due January 2020
(issued in January 2010).

The maturity of the corporate bonds is 10
years from the date of issue, subject to
the right of sale-back described below.
The corporate bonds are divided into two
tranches, amounting to RMB3,300,000,000
(equivalent to HK$3,947,790,000) (“Tranche
1”") and RMB500,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$598,150,000) (“Tranche 2"), and carry
coupon rates of 4.70% and 4.95% for
Tranche 1 and Tranche 2, respectively. At
the end of the fifth and seventh year from
the issue of corporate bonds for Tranche 1
and Tranche 2, respectively, the issuer has
the right to adjust the coupon rate (“New
Coupon Rate”) and the corporate bonds
holders have the right to sell the corporate
bonds held by them, in whole or in part, to
CR Power Investment at a total consideration
equivalent to the total face value of the
corresponding corporate bonds within 5
business days after the announcement of the
New Coupon Rate. During the year ended
31 December 2015, RMB1,515,000,000
(equivalent to HK$1,808,349,000) of
Tranche 1 had been redeemed by CR Power
Investment.

g
%’70
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31 B8

(i) WRTREAKEIRT
BEFERE - (5)

BE B A A

SEnEHRAARAA
(8T :
(#%)

(2) AR¥1,785,000,000 7T
(#8 % 1 2,135,395,500
BIL) —470% RN =&
—ZEF—-ARHR=E
—ZEF—ABT)EAR
# 500,000,000 7T (48 =
598, 150, 0007 7T) —
4%% AN—E_FF—

AEB(R=_ZE—=F—
AE1T) °

NBEFEHE AA
A @ 104 -
ﬁéﬂ

0, 00073(7@
% 743,947,790,000 %
m)(Fé%ttJ)&/\Eﬁ%
500,000,000 7t (¥ %
598,150,000/ 7T )
([E=#t]) - HHRE
—HEH D HI%E4.70
B X495 5t B ° i
B RE_HARGESE
BT DIERFR
BAFEERE - BHITA
EREARESR([FHE
EX|)MARESEE
ANBIBE#ERZEBE I
éfﬁ%ﬁéz#ﬁﬁ%ﬁmi
s E D A RES

REEZERA W%ﬁm,_\
Eig A A= HAAE
BARIESFNEEE -

HE2_Z—RF+=-A
=+—HIEFE > FH
BEHRECEOEHA

E #1,515,000,000 7T
(¥B%71,808,349,000
BIL)NES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

31 BORROWINGS (conTinuED)

(i) Corporate bonds and notes with fixed rates issued by
the Group are as follows: (Continued)

(a)

issued by China Resources Power Investment
Company Limited (“CR Power Investment”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in the
PRC: (Continued)

(3) RMB2,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,392,600,000) — 5.05% due May 2019
(issued in May 2012).

(4) RMB5,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,981,500,000) — 3.49% due June 2023
(issued in June 2016).

The maturity of the corporate bonds is 7
years from the date of issue, subject to
the right of sale-back described below. At
the end of the fifth year from the issue of
corporate bonds, the issuer has the right
to adjust the coupon rate (“New Coupon
Rate”) and the corporate bonds holders have
the right to sell the corporate bonds held
by them, in whole or in part, to CR Power
Investment at a total consideration equivalent
to the total face value of the corresponding
corporate bonds within 5 business days after
the announcement of the New Coupon Rate.

(5 RMB3,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,588,900,000) — 2.92% due September
2019 (issued in September 2016).

31 B8«

(i M
(£

(a)

&)

TRBAEEETHNER AT
HFRER (@)

HARANHEZ2ENB L
AERENREFRAA
TEBHENRE )T

(%)

(3) AR¥2,000,000,0007C
(¥ % 7 2,392,600,000
BIL) —5.05%R = F
—NFRAZBRR=Z
— R ABET) -

(4) AR¥5,000,000,0007C
(#8 % 1 5,981,500,000
BIL) —349% RN - F
“=ERAIHBR-E
—NEFENPETT) o

REEFZIMARBEH#®
THEF7E  B&ET
AEBIER - BARIE
FERITEAEDFER
B BT ABRHAER
BR(#MELEXDMA
AEFRHEARE#ER
FHENREHERS
P B2 E D &
AlfEZ - BHEREER
NGBSt Sl
X BARNERRRES
MAREE -

(5) AR 3,000,000,000 7T
(#8 % 1 3,588,900,000
BIL) 2N%BWAR_E
—hENATBR-Z
—NFENAET) -
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

31 December 2017
—F—tHt+=A=t—H

Assets as per consolidated EHEEEBERIEE
balance sheet

Available-for-sale investments A ERE

(o
. o\
%o . s
O/O}bg C"ua[ Report 2017 =8 g‘s{éﬁ@y
°Mpany Limited HEE

32 ZEREIDNEM TR

Loans and Available-

receivables for-sale
B K investments Total
EWHE JHEERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT

= 1,516,177 1,516,177

Loans to associates M EE R 1,158,256 — 1,158,256
Loans to joint ventures mEErEER 297,479 — 297,479
Loans to a non-controlling B EIEPNGIE 22

shareholder of a subsidiary REER 14,954 = 14,954
Loan to an available-for-sale m—EA SRR RE

investee company ~EEX 453,830 = 453,830
Amounts due from associates JE s B o 1> SR IE 466,885 — 466,885
Amounts due from joint ventures JEULA &1 FIA 167,572 — 167,572
Amounts due from other related &Y E th 3838 A 7 78

companies 2,649 = 2,649
Trade and other receivables JFEE 2 B 5 B LA FE W 5k IE

excluding input VAT and (EIFIZET

prepayments R IEFRIEBRSN) 13,185,560 — 13,185,560
Cash and cash equivalents, and IR& NMIR&HEWIU

pledged and restricted bank SAmE iy

deposits RITIER 6,271,868 — 6,271,868
Total e 22,019,053 1,516,177 23,535,230
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GHUFRRMEE

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32 #Z#FBIZIDNEZ/M T Emw)

(CONTINUED)

Liabilities as per consolidated AHfEEEBBERFAIER

balance sheet

Borrowings BE — 100,922,869 100,922,869
Trade and other payables JE AT R K 2 L Ath FE A< 508

excluding non-financial GE2mBaERIN)

liabilities — 28,035,058 28,035,058
Amounts due to associates JE - B 48 1 FE SR IE — 629,919 629,919
Amounts due to joint ventures  JEf A& EFIA — 317,077 317,077
Amounts due to other related  JEfTEAbREIE R BB

companies — 1,440,535 1,440,535

Total @t — 131,345,458 131,345,458
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32 #ZFEFRIZIS VTR LH @)

(CONTINUED)
Loans and Available-
receivables for-sale
31 December 2016 BE# X investments Total
—E-RFE+ZHA=+—H FEW IR AIEHERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THETT TAET TET

Assets as per consolidated EHEEEBRFIEE
balance sheet

Available-for-sale investments AHHERE — 1,471,665 1,471,665
Loans to associates mEEECEER 530,834 — 530,834
Loans to joint ventures MAZEER 192,535 — 192,535
Loans to a non-controlling BB NEYNGIE 22

shareholder of a subsidiary RERE R 32,979 — 32,979
Loan to an available-for-sale m— A SRR E

investee company NEER 424,099 — 424,099
Amounts due from associates JE WA BSE 2 1> ZE FRIE 162,862 — 162,862
Amounts due from joint ventures FEUE & {bFFRIE 143,821 — 143,821
Amounts due from other related JE Y E fth B 38 A 7] B

companies 2,171 — 2,171
Trade and other receivables JFEE 52 B 3 B LA R W sk B

excluding input VAT and (ETRIBEMN

prepayments WSEERNECEIEIY) 10,541,499 — 10,541,499
Cash and cash equivalents, and IR& KIRESEFEY

pledged and restricted bank DA K 2 4K

deposits MZ R HRITHER 5,439,136 — 5,439,136
Assets as per consolidated EHEEBBRMIIEE

balance sheet

Total o 17,469,936 1,471,665 18,941,601
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GHUFRRMEE

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32 #Z#FBIZIDNEZ/M T Emw)

(CONTINUED)

Liabilities as per consolidated SfEESBEXRMIIAEE

balance sheet

Borrowings BE — 91,463,402 91,463,402
Trade and other payables JE AT R K 2 L Ath FE A< 508

excluding non-financial GE2mBaERIN)

liabilities — 24,776,814 24,776,814
Amounts due to associates JE ST B & > 2E TR — 253,426 253,426
Amounts due to joint ventures  JEf A& EFIA — 653,476 653,476
Amounts due to other related  JEfTEAbREIE R BB

companies — 544,165 544,165

Total @t — 117,691,283 117,691,283
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33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

33 IEEFTEREERIELZNE
REE

BB HEEMBLEMEHRAGBHN
DT

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Deferred income tax assets: EIEFTEREE :
— Deferred income tax assets to be — #1218 A 2B EAY
recovered after more than 12 months RIEFTETEE 617,325 494,698
— Deferred income tax assets to be — #1128 A Uk E A
recovered within 12 months FIEFTISRREE 329,457 230,433
946,782 725,131
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFTIFHEE
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —BRI2ZEAZEBEERN
settled after more than 12 months RIEFTISHAE (2,445,485) (2,518,719)
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —#BR12EAREE
settled within 12 months BT AR (130,871) (72,022)
(2,576,356) (2,590,741)
Deferred income tax liabilities (net) EEFIESHREE(FE) (1,629,574) (1,865,610)
The gross movement on the deferred income tax accounts is RIEFTSTHAR B VAEHIT -
as follows:
2017 2016
—S—+t& —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
At 1 January n—A—H (1,865,610) (1,903,532)
Exchange differences PEH =% 1,269 (20,599)
Relating to disposal of a subsidiary EREHE—HEHBAR (3,795) —
Credited to profit or loss (Note 40) RIBZEERET A (MIFE40) 227,348 66,035
Credited to other comprehensive income — REMEEUEEET A
(Note 40) (Fft5E40) 11,214 (7,514)
At 31 December BR+=—A=+—H (1,629,574) (1,865,610)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 33 BEMBIREERETE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES REBEw

(CONTINUED)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities UTRFRNEEMSHEERBED
during the year, without taking into consideration the gg) > WESAKRA-HBaEERA
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdictions, are B & RIS

as follows:

Retirement Impairment

Accurred benefit and Government
Deferred income tax assets expenses obligations  provision grant Others Total
BEFEHEE FEitlx BUBENER REREE  BAHED Hff @t

HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TERL TR TiEx TiERx TEL TERL

As at 1 January 2016 RZE—R"E—A—H 109,108 61,479 204,004 78,865 120,856 574,312
Exchange differences ERES (15,522) (3,458) (11,241) (8,403) (11,249) (49,873)
Credited/(charged) to REREHA/ (1K)
profit or loss 52,825 (10,017) (38,507) 77,230 144,519 226,050
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-RE
+=ZA=1-H 146,411 48,004 154,256 147,692 254,126 750,489
Exchange differences ERESR 12,476 6,516 11,526 12,392 15,804 58,714
Relating to disposal of a subsidiary A BLE—HHER - (3,795) — - - (3,795)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss  RBZERET A/ (31k) 60,454 (17,624) 19,465 55,710 2,743 120,748
As at 31 December 2017 RZBE-t#&

tZB=t-H 219,341 33,101 185,247 215,794 272,673 926,156
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33 EXEMEREERELZNE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES REE®
(CONTINUED)
Distributable
profits
of PRC
Fair value ~ subsidiaries,
Fair value  changes of  associates
Difference Fairvalue of property  available-  and joint
of Fairvalue of prepaid  plantand forsale  ventures Accurred
depreciation  of mining lease  equipment investments HEMEAT - Miningfund  interest
life rights  payments HE BE  UHEE BECER  (Note)  income
Deferred income tax iabilities & FREY BAREER RREN RENOL  SELEN  REEe B Others Total
BEfEHaR FHEE  OABE NORBE  NABE EERE UARME (MR AEMA i it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T Tén Thn Tén Thn Tén Thn Tén Thn T
Asat 1 lanuary 2016 HMZE-1E
-f-F (200,179) (1,673,021 (56,998)  (210,514) (8,631)  (149,681) (155,246 - (23,574) (2,477 844)
Echange diffeences  EYEE 1389 - - - % - 987 1AM (2566 2921
(Charged)credited o~ RERE(MR)/
profit or loss A (27,187) 64,187 1,195 25,251 - 63,439 174 (270,069) (17,005 (160,019
Charged to other REH2ENA
comprehensive income i - - - - (7514) - - - - (1514)
As at 31 December 2016 H=5-7E
TZRZT-0 (13473 (1608834) (55,803)  (185,263) (15,159) (86,242) (145,235 (250,945 (53,145)  (2,616,099)
Exchange differences ~ EREE (13,179) - - - () - (10176 (r.208 (6605  (57449)
Credited/charged) o~ REREHA/
profit or loss (1) 48,804 39,639 37 25,649 = 14,354 126 (64,250) 41,951 106,600
Credited to other REBZERA
comprefensive income 5T A - - - - M - - - - M
As at 31 December 2017 R=F-t5
TZEZT-B  (177,848)  (1,569,19) (55476)  (159,614) (4222) (11.888)  (155.285)  (344,403) (17,799)  (2,555,730)
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33

34

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

Note i:

Pursuant to certain regulations in the PRC relating to the mining industry, the
Group is required to transfer an amount to the capital reserve account and such
fund is not available for distribution to shareholders (see Note 25(a) for details).
Such amounts are deductible for tax purposes when they are set aside but are
expensed for accounting purposes only when they are utilised. Therefore, a
deferred tax liability is recorded for such temporary differences.

At 31 December 2017, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
in respect of losses amounting to HK$8,063,220,000 (2016: HK$6,569,743,000)
and deductible temporary differences amounting to HK$8,013,402,000 (2016:
HK$11,247,901,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2017 are losses of approximately
HK$7,815,948,000 (2016: HK$6,365,722,000) that will expire within 5 years from
the year of originating, in or before 2022. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. The directors of the Company believe that the Group
has sufficient funds in the overseas companies within the Group and therefore
the Company will not require certain PRC subsidiaries to declare dividends in
the foreseeable future out of their profits earned from 1 January 2008 onwards
to 31 December 2017. Accordingly, the Group did not recognise withholding
tax liabilities for profits retained by certain PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$39,080,845,000 (2016: HK$43,209,508,000) for the years from 2008 to 2017.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income mainly represents subsidies granted by
certain PRC governmental departments related to assets. As
at 31 December 2017, government grants of HK$61,383,000
(31 December 2016: HK$84,589,000) was amortised to the
consolidated income statement (Note 35(i)).

33

34

EEFTEREERELNS
REEwW

FieEi -

RIBPBEREITENS THREES  AEBEABR
—ERREEANFEER ARZES TN TR
R(FIBEFLHMFE25(a)) o % 50EE K 38 8 1 a] 40
B EEESHREIX - it - MRETHERE
B-HELEHREE -

RZZE—+tF+_A=+—8  BREREFBERKR
TEERETE - WA B0 & 3L 4 208,063,220,000 7%
TTHEIE(=Z — /N4 : 6,569,743,0008 7T ) & &
£08,013,402,000 Bt AJ IR ERER(ZE—X
F 1 11,247,901,000 8 70 ) RIELEFT SR EE °
RIE—+HF+-_A=1+—H8  AHEIREEER
BERTEANFERTAFARR S ZF
Z BB R B 18 497,815,948,0008 ;L (—Z T — X
F :6,365,722,0008 70) - B E A ER B4
ﬁg °

RIEFECEMER(IEEMSH DA B=2F
TNEFE—A—Bi i EKE R A FEA
TR SBHMNEBEINR - XARESHE A%
EEAEEBETEINEFHRETHES AR
NEIRABERRAREBAERETHEMNBEATE
E-ETTNF-AF—BE-_ZT—+F+_A=+—
BAERBMFBEPEIRES - Bt AEBWE
RETFHEMBARAR-_BEENEFEE_E—+F
Ffr % 28 19 71138 39,080,845,000 /8 7T (= B — /N4 -
43,209,508,000 T ) iERTENHEE -

BN

BEEWAETERE TR BEEMNEF
HTHEEEMRABOEM R_F
—t&F+=-A=+—H 61,383,000
BL(ZE—R"FE+_A=+—H:
84,589,000/ 70) AT BIE B & HH I
kPSS (FIE35(3)) °
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35 E A

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Sales of scrap materials HERER 600,707 489,930

Government grant (i) AT 48 B0 (i) 785,581 592,838

Interest income B U A 310,854 279,427

Service income from heat BRZEEBRA

connection contracts 333,227 225,347
Dividend income from available-for-sale REAHEERED

investments AR B A 189,572 78,778

Service income AR 7% B A 107,690 119,315

Others HAh 7,867 137,381

2,335,498 1,923,016

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
received grants from certain PRC governmental
departments to compensate high operating costs
amounting to HK$86,458,000 (2016: HK$83,189,000).
There were no ongoing obligations or conditions
attached with these grants and, therefore, the Group
recognised the grants as income upon receipt.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
received grants amounting to HK$279,726,000 (2016:
HK$259,668,000) from the PRC government, which
were used for encouraging certain PRC subsidiaries
to close down the coal mines as a result of the
China’s supply-side reform. The grants were used for
teminations of the employees and fully paid in 2017,
thus the Group recognised the grants as income.

HE_T—+F+_A=+—H
IEFEE  AEBWEHETFHEK
T BB P9 2 48 (8 18 & Ak AN 38 N o 8%
M EL + £ %8 /486,458,000 %
JL(Z & — /X F : 83,189,000 /%
JC) © 5% E A B 4 R E K B BT A
f&ﬂﬂ# H iy - NEERK
H‘Iﬁuxu%ﬁﬁj] E_,J.I&]\ °©

REBEE-_Z—+F+_A=1+—
BIEFE - AEEWEF BBAT
P EfBE 279,726,000 T(—
T — X4 : 259,668,00078 7T )
AREERETHRBNE R 2R
FEIHEAAINEBEERE - %5

AR Tt FEREEYL
REME  FUIL RS B R

RWA -
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35 OTHER INCOME (continueD) 35 E /U )

(i)  (Continued) (i)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
received grants amounting to HK$188,420,000 (2016:
HK$78,752,000), from the PRC government, which
were used for encouraging certain PRC subsidiaries
to increase supply of electricity, and grants for
encouraging the development of environmental friendly
electricity generation, amounting to HK$169,594,000
(2016: HK$86,640,000). There were no ongoing
obligations or conditions attached to these grants and,
therefore, the Group recognised the grants as income
upon receipt.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
government grants relating to assets are credited to
other income amounting to HK$61,383,000 (2016:
HK$84,589,000).

(&)

RBE-_ZT—+tF+_A=1+—
BIEFE - AEE WS+ BIBRAT
B A BE 188,420,000 8 7t (—
T — X% : 78,752,000 7T ) (Jh
RARiEEE TR RENE AR A
BN ALEERERRES
T8 B #85169,594,000 8 (=&
— 7N £ : 86,640,000 7T ) © %
EHPTEREXNNNEETK
R - Eitt - A B R W i
R BIA o

REBEE-ZE—+tF+_A=1+—
BIEFE @ st AEMBANEE
8 B8 B AT % B) 561,383,000/%8
7t(= & — ;X F : 84,589,000/%
JC) °

36 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 36 Hft(EX) NS —F8
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EB—RF
HK$'000 HK$000
THET FHT
Net exchange (losses)/gains MEH (E8E), WS 558 (193,456) 219,397
Fair value changes on derivative financial T4 &R T AEAABEEH
instruments — (17,552)
Net losses on disposal of property, HEWE - BEMREED
plant and equipment Ei8F 5 (363,925) (447,066)
Net gains on disposal of HEBENHEEERN
prepaid lease payments W F58 — 4,760
Net gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR F5E 143,965 26,121
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of & AR E R
other equity investments (B18), W88 (133,065) 203,556
Gains on disposal of coal mining capacity & EBERRKEEMN WS 90,643 —
Others HA 103,151 46,046

(352,687) 35,262
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37 EEAIRS

2017 2016
—E—+tH§ —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Wages, salaries and bonus T& - e hitsd 4,420,481 4,510,032
Pension costs — retirement benefit schemes EREK A — 3R K18 A 5121
(Note 38(i)&(ii)) (Bt 38(i) K (ii)) 624,206 685,263
Termination benefit costs (Note 38(iii)) BRI REEFER
(B & 38(iii)) 133,076 335,194
5,177,763 5,530,489
(i) Five highest paid individuals (i) EEEEFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include four (2016:
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 50. The emoluments paid to the
remaining one (2016: three) individual during the year
are as follows.

Salaries and other benefits e hEMBER
Bonus 4L
Post-employment benefits B & 42 7

ERAEBRELEESHFMAL
BIENA(ZZE—RNF:WE)
BEE(M IS0 AT e H %
B) - FRXNFHT —R(ZFE
—NF  ZR)AEHFHBT

2017 2016
—2—tF —TAF
HK$'000 HK$’000
Tt T
1,451 6,037
3,880 5,295

58 114

5,389 11,446



=

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GHUFRRMEE

37 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (conTinue) 37 EEiEMREZ m

(i) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (i) EEESFMAL@
Emoluments of this one (2016: three) individual is h—%(ZFE—XRF: =Z%)AL
within the following bands: WEHMNF T3 E -

Number of individuals
AE
Emolument bands N & E]

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 L2

4,000,000 7T — 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 BILE

4,500,000 % 7T — 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 &2

5,500,000;8 7T 1 —
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38 RINREMKRIAESRRIE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEMES 2l
2017 2016
—E—tF —FE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Retirement benefit schemes — RIKEFEE -FE ()

Hong Kong (i) 2,746 3,211
Retirement benefit schemes — PRC (ii) RN FETE] — P = (i) 621,460 682,052
Termination benefit (ii) 2 R (i) 133,076 335,194

757,282 1,020,457

(i) HongKong

The Group operates various defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all Hong
Kong employees.The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The amount of contributions is
based on a specified percentage of the basic salary of
employees and any forfeited contributions in respect
of unvested benefits of staff leavers are used to reduce
the Group's contributions.

(i) PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the respective local government in the PRC. The
Group is required to contribute a specified percentage
of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
schemes is to make the specified contributions. The
amounts charged to the consolidated income statement
and capitalised in the construction in progress are
HK$621,460,000 (2016: HK$682,052,000) and
HK$30,912,000 (2016: HK$31,538,000), respectively.

iy &#&

AEEREZHRKFTELEEER
S 7 FREFRKGE - ZF
el EERASEEENRE
B YTHBVEB2ESRE -
HRRBEDREREEAFT 25
EBEDLEE - MBERE THEE
F A AR WAL RI A SAURE
REBEZHK -

(i) E

AEEMNTREESHTHIEHA
A BFEENERERREARE
FETEIHAE - NEB ARG E
EHHFERANSETE 9L #
TUEZRHEF XAEBRZE
FEME —FERELETH
HeReaHEaRTFHBREE
B EREIRENESEI A
621,460,000 8 7T( =& — /N4 -
682,052,000 7 7T ) &% 30,912,000
B(ZZF — /X F 31,538,000
BIT) o
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38 RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEMES (conminuep)

(iii) Termination benefit

(a)

For certain selected employees of China Resources
Power Hunan Liyujiang Co., Ltd., Shenyang Power
Company, and Hunan China Resources Coal
Mining Company Limited employed by the vendors
of the businesses as at respective acquisition dates
(the “Pre-acquisition Employees”), the Group
has offered early retirement packages to those
who met certain specified criteria and accepted
voluntary redundancy. Such arrangement required
specific approval granted by management of
the Group. The Group is obliged to pay such
termination benefits to those early retired
employees (i.e. retired before their statutory
retirement age), who had been working for more
than 30 years or in accordance with the respective
entities’ early retirement policy. These early retired
employees are entitled to certain monthly benefits
up to their statutory retirement age.

These obligations were provided for by the Group
at the present value of the total expected benefit
payments. Where the obligation does not fall due
within twelve months, the obligation payable has
been discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects
management’s current market assessment of
the time value of money and risk specific to the
obligation (the discount rate was determined with
reference to market yields at the balance sheet
date on treasury bonds in the PRC). The amount
of these obligations charged to the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December
2017 is HK$76,977,000 (2016: HK$49,642,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of these termination benefit payable in current
and non-current portion are approximately
HK$14,907,000 (2016: HK$19,946,000)
(Note 27(ii)) and HK$80,745,000 (2016:
HK$91,755,000), respectively.

38 RINREMKRBESIENET

&l m)

RIEZERA

(a)

AREBNKRBREBERE
E%Fmﬁﬁiﬂ@ UTH
RAR - EGE SR F NS
@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬂ%

BES(TWERES )M
5 AKRERNAETHE
0 & B B 2B E W
Al fE B iR iR R R IRGT S
BT REARBEEE
ABHE - AEEBEREM
ZFRFPERMNEB(BIRE
iﬁ%i?ﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁ
B=TFARBEARAZE
aﬁw%Mﬁ%EWﬁ )X
MR IEZERF - BFERIK
BEREEZRFHNETERK

FREBETEANERN -
M—rELEEEZKE .Tﬁziﬁ»szm

FfS BRI ERT R o W
EREXTERT —EARN
BE - BNREEHEARBRM
AIFIRBEIR - ZMERRE
BEREEREEERS
AETNEFERKRETH
ERITIGA A BB K2R
FEEBEESNEEABER
Bamis e EimERE -
DA—_ru-l_)\Ek g_‘ti
+-_A=+—HBILFE®
EHRETRNETELES
76,977,000/ ;o(— & — X
F 1 49,642,000787T) ©

RZE—+tF+=_A=+—
H @ B F &R R B AR
KIERNHAE D M BREE 5 7
49 /14,907,000 T (= &
— 7N 4 119,946,000 7T )
(B3 5E 27(ii)) K 80,745,000 7%
Jo(=ZZF— 734 : 91,755,000
BIT) ©
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38 RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEMES (conminuep)

(iii) Termination benefit (Continued)

(b)

In 2017 and 2016, certain coal mining entities
closed down certain coal mines and offered a
termination benefit package to those employees.
These obligations were provided for by the Group
at the present value of the total expected benefit
payments. Where the obligation does not fall due
within twelve months, the obligation payable has
been discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects
management’s current market assessment of
the time value of money and risk specific to the
obligation (the discount rate was determined with
reference to market yields at the balance sheet
date on treasury bonds in the PRC). The amount
of these obligations charged to the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December
2017 is HK$56,099,000 (2016: HK$285,552,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of these termination benefit payable in current
and non-current portion is approximately
HK$17,300,000 (2016: HK$60,621,000)
(Note 27(ii)) and HK$143,859,000 (2016:
HK$79,887,000), respectively.
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38 RINREMKRIAESERIE

£l (=)

I ZERF @)
E/\\\ 5

—TE—EFER TR
FATHEBARBRAI S
HEYRZERERHE—IA
BIEREREAGE - ZFE
AR ANE B %R TE &A%
BEHNIRBETR WEBEE
FEW AR+ @A AENH -
& B B A BR TR F 8L
B ZHERREBEEYHE
BirEEEREEEENE
7E R B HE 1T 8 B A T 45 5T
- BRIR KR AR B E
FREEBEXRBOMBK
HEMETE st ABHEZZ
—tF+_A=+—HLtHF
EMaHRaRNZEET
% %8 /56,099,000 7T(—
T — X4 : 285,552,000%
JL) °

RZE—+tF+=_A=+—
H - BRI EREFBE
NIEBNHAH H M EREE 5 5
49 /17,300,000 T(— &
— N4 1 60,621,000 7T )
(B 5F 27(ii)) X 143,859,000
B oo Z T — K F
79,887,000 7T) o
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39 FINANCE COSTS

39 BB

2017 2016
—EB—+F —F—R

HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Interests on bank and other borrowings BT REMEER S 3,585,454 3,283,822
Interests on corporate bonds NEESHF R 803,024 648,152
Others HAh 91,254 86,806
4,479,732 4,018,780

Less: Interests capitalised in property, plant Jg& @ ¥ « BB MR E
and equipment (Note 6) BRI B (HI5E6) (488,234) (461,560)
3,991,498 3,557,220

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on funds
borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining qualifying
assets and on the general borrowing pool which are
calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 4.43% (2016:
4.76%) per annum to expenditures incurred on qualifying

assets.

40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

—RNF 4.76%)FE
HIRASE °

40 FIERER

FARADERMENEERNRR BIG
FEREEMEESREAEEA
B WIESFEMMEFEKRL43% (ZF
REREEES

2017 2016
—= L F “E—R

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current income tax & HAFTIS
— PRC enterprise income tax — RSN 3,129,034 4,464,475
Deferred income tax (Note 33) BEEFTSH(MIFE33) (227,348) (66,035)
2,901,686 4,398,440
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40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuep) 40 FIEREAm

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no taxable profit in Hong Kong or incurred
tax losses for both years.

PRC enterprise income tax has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant
tax rates applicable to certain subsidiaries in the PRC.

Pursuant to CaiShui [2012] No. 10 Notice on the Execution
of the Catalogue of Public Infrastructure Projects Entitled
for Preferential Tax Treatment, certain wind power projects
of the Group, which were set up after 1 January 2008, are
entitled to a tax holiday of a three-year full exemption,
followed by a three-year 50% exemption of enterprise
income tax, commencing from their first turnover-making
year.

Pursuant to CaiShui [2011] No. 58 Notice on Tax Policy
Issues concerning Further Implementing the Western China
Development Strategy, certain entities of the Company's
PRC subsidiaries, which are located in the western regions
of the PRC, are entitled to a tax holiday of a two-year full
PRC enterprise income tax exemption, followed by a three-
year 50% exemption commencing from their first year of
reporting turnover and can enjoy a preferential income tax
rate of 15% after the tax holiday.

In addition, certain of the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries are
entitled to certain tax credit (“Tax Credit”) against their
assessable EIT, which is calculated as 10% of the current
year's purchases and use of specific environmental friendly,
water and energy-saving, safety-enhanced equipment in the
Group’s electricity generation business. The portion of Tax
Credit that has not been utilised in the current period can
be carried forward for future tax credit over a period of not
more than five years.

HRANEERMESERAREELE
EAERRANBRBEELEHEER
B B E B NS RRE

FREXAEBHEREERNE TF
B 8 B B0 AE B SR AR A B AR T
FMEEE -

RFI T [2012]10 KA R AR ~ BT
BRBENRATARERREEE G
EMGHESEREREAENEN)
AEER -_ZEZNF—F—HRER
VHETREIRE A& ERENFEE
MZFERRERMEH > MER=
FRBFRREEMEH -

BB [2011]58 5 BAFN R A B 3P
HARFAEEEEARKRBREENR
My RRABRETFTALAF BTG HH
MBARE EEENFERHMER
RHEMPRCEMSH 2B =ZFE
BF¥EERLEMSH  BRBRHBE
BZH15% NEBEMEMBE -

SN - AR A EVE T B E A B e
RHEEMBEREA —ERAER
(IREEE]) ZHRAEAEETRA
FEASENREXZBREREMR
R B KERRZ2REREN
10% 518 - NI I 8 6 H e R IEE
BRI BERARRER  HEHRA
BERAF -
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40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueD) 40 FTERFASZ @)

The reconciliation of the effective income tax rate from the ERFEHRHEEREEFMSHMRERN

statutory income tax rate is as follows: HERMAT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FHET
Profit before income tax B P 15 15 BT M) 8,520,390 13,041,588
Calculated at a tax rate of 25% EHE25%
(2016: 25%) (ZZ—RF : 25%)5t% 2,130,098 3,260,397
Tax exemptions and concessions granted to B} B A 71 &R AT IE
PRC subsidiaries e MER (386,882) (332,553)
Reduction of tax in respect of tax credit BT IBEENTIER (36,244) (83,270)
Income not subject to tax AT AWA (29,532) (91,943)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  “~A] H1F: AY B 52 319,617 409,121
Unrecognised deductible temporary REER A R E By = 5
differences 192,942 361,975
Unrecognised tax losses RERTIEEE 437,077 517,596
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax  {& i@ AR FIE
losses and temporary differences EELERERE (239,315) (244,457)
Withholding tax on the earnings B TH B A RIE L,
remitted/anticipated to be remitted by TEHAASPE B &) &R TR AL
certain subsidiaries 513,925 601,574
2,901,686 4,398,440

BMIEHRRA2%(ZF —XF:
25%)HEHE - RERFALKEX
#By R BEEBIERZIRE -

Tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%) is adopted for the taxation
reconciliation as such tax rate is applicable to most of the
Group’s operations in the PRC for the year.
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40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTinueD) 40 FIEREAm
The tax (charge)/credit relating to components of other
comprehensive income is as follows:

BRAEMZEWRAEREDHBIE(K
), R

2017 2016
o i A
Before tax Tax charge After tax Before tax  Tax credit  After tax
Bal  BEXH B bRl BEES Pk
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx TR THT THT TR

Exchange differences fE 5 =% 5,750,623 — 5,750,623 (5,326,643) — (5,326,643)

Share of other Bl REVE &A% E

comprehensive income of  REMEMEZEIKA

investments accounted for

using equity method 190,355 — 190,355  (203,312) — (203,312
Disposal of subsidiary HERBRA (2,549) — (2,549) — — —
Cash flow hedge BeRen - - — 44,123 — 44,123
Fair value changes AfHEREAR
of available-for-sale BEZD
investments (44,856) 11,214 (33,642) 30,057 (7,514) 22,543
Other comprehensive Hi2EKA
income 5,893,573 11,214 5,904,787 (5,455,775) (7,514) (5,463,289)
Current tax EHRE - -
Deffered tax EAEHIA 11,214 (7,514)
11,214

(7,514)
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41 EARNINGS PER SHARE 41

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by
the Company and held as treasury shares (Note 24).

=h

(a)

Profit attributable to owners of RNRRHEB ARIEFE
the Company
Weighted average number of B BT S AR e I T 8
ordinary shares in issue (thousands)  (Fi%)
(b) Diluted (b)

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Group has one category
of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share option
(Note 23). For the share option, a calculation is done
to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares)
based on the monetary value of the subscription rights
attached to outstanding share options.

REBA

S9N

SREARFHEADTEEA
FE {6 R B DA 2F PO B B8 77 B4 AR
0 DA P 49 85 (R 2 7 B B 36 4
Y 5 7 B 15 8 2 38 B B 0 (P 3
24))5H5 -

2017 2016
—E—+tH§ —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FH&TT
4,623,323 7,708,373
4,777,316 4,772,621
e

BREERNRRMA A EEE
EEBRELRER  REZETH
ShEBER IR E o A
SEREF RBAUHABEEER
e : BEAAE (M EE23) - BLEE AR AR
M5 - BRI R T 5 F AR Py B
RBEECERER BTRAR
BE(BEERRARRND 2 FI9F
EmSEE)AIBAZRNEE -
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41 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continueD) 41 BIREN @
(b) Diluted (Continued) (b) #HE @
The number of shares calculated as above is compared EXFEERNRG S E BRERE
with the number of shares that would have been issued AR EETT(E M Al BE 1T A AR 10 2K
assuming the exercise of the share options. BAELE -
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Earnings 2
Profit attributable to owners of AR A AT E
the Company 4,623,323 7,708,373
Weighted average number of EEITEEROMELTH
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (FB&) 4,777,316 4,772,621
Adjustments for: P
— Share options (thousands) —BEE(TMm) 175 1,008
Weighted average number of A EEREERIME
ordinary shares for diluted earnings TR A hnE 8

per share (thousands) (FR%) 4,777,491 4,773,629
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47 DIVIDENDS 42 IR
2017 2016
—E-tF “E-RE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEx BT
Dividend recognised as distribution FRARRADKORE()
during the year (i):
Final dividend for 2016 of HK$0.75 B54,779,124,000 f%
(2016: for 2015 of HK$0.75) per share on (ZZE—H% : 4,771,299,000 %)
4,779,124,000 (2015: 4,771,299,000) shares RSN ZT—RERBRE
BRO.7SETL(ZE—RF:
“T-hEHMKR0.7557T) 3,584,343 3,578,474
Interim dividend for 2017 of HK$0.125 2 344,810,440,000 f%
(2016: HK$0.125) per share on 4,810,440,000 (ZZ—73F : 4,780,002,000 %)
(2016: 4,780,002,000) shares (ii) BOXHZE—tFHHRE
BIR0.1258 T
(ZZ—RE : 0.125587T) (i) 601,305 597,500
4,185,648 4,175,974
Dividend proposed after the end of BEFERERERNKE (i) -
the reporting year (iii):
Proposed final dividend for 2017 of BE-_E—tERBREER
HK$0.75 (2016: HK$0.75) per share 0.758L(ZF—R¥ : 0.75%7) 3,584,344 3,579,668
(i) The dividends paid in 2017 and 2016 were () ZEBE—LEtFR_ZT—R"FEMK

HK$4,185,648,000 and HK$4,175,974,000 respectively.
They were stated after elimination of HK$23,489,000
(2016: HK$30,425,000) paid for shares held by the
Medium to Long-term Performance Evaluation Incentive
Plan, which is a share award scheme of the Group (Note
24).

B 5 Rl A&4,185,648,0007% T &
4,175,974,00078 T » # & 5+
B REE VG E RSB AT 8 (R
EEMNRHERTE)IFENR
1 X 1 #9 23,489,000 (==
— 7N 30,425,000 7T ) & A
BR(FI3E24) »



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

42 DIVIDENDS (conTtinuED)

(i)  The interim dividend of HK$0.125 per share is paid
in cash (2016: HK$0.125 per share, paid in cash with
an option to receive new and fully paid shares in lieu
of cash). The interim dividend for 2017 is based on
4,810,440,000 shares in issue as at 16 August 2017,
which included shares held by the Incentive Plan. The
interim dividend, amounting to HK$601,305,000 (2016:
HK$597,500,000) after elimination of HK$3,915,000
paid for shares held by the Incentive Plan, has been
recognised in shareholders’ equity in the year ended 31
December 2017.

(iii) A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017 of HK$0.75 per share, amounting to a
total dividend of HK$3,584,344,000 is to be proposed
at the annual general meeting on 28 May 2018. The
consolidated financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.
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(ii)

(iii)

0125 TR KRB (=
—NF: FR0.125F T AB
DIRE - ROOFEANMIEEE
IR R 2BRORERE) AR
K% - —_E—FHHERETD
BER-_ZE—+FNA+HE
%% 17 #94,810,440,000 A% B 17 5t
E EPEERETEFE LR
e RFHEMEETEFE R
9 X 1 #93,915,000 JT & © 3%
rhHARZ 2.601,305,0008 (==
—7N% : 597,500,000/ )R
HE-_ZT—+F+-_A=1+—H
IEFERRRER AR o

HE_T—+F+-_A=+—H
IFFENRBAREAER0.75E
70 M B 42 %A 3,584,344,000%
TR —_ZE—NFRA=-+NH
FRRBEFASLERER &
GRS R R B R R AL FE (SRR B, ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 43 BREREER
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REFBEEMNERS
2017 2016
ZE-t% “ENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T AL
Profit before income tax B?—Fﬁfﬁfﬂﬁl M 8,520,390 13,041,588
Adjustments for: B
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment (Note 6) W% FiE R ENTE
(Mis6) 10,015,238 9,428,679
Amortisation of mining rights (Note 8(a)) FEENEHE (M) 396,292 360,138
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments (Note 7) BRREERMEHE(E7) 95,892 93,671
Impairment charges on property, plant and equipment (Note 6)  ¥1% iR XX BHRERK
(M) 728,239 1,000,347
Reversal of impairment charges on prepaid lease BRREERNRERXER
payments (Note 7) GEY (2,112) (3,071)
Impairment charges on mining rights (Note 8(a)) RERAREBRX(M:8G) 99,308 119,687
Impairment charges on goodwill (Note 12) BENRERL(HF12) — 136,370
Impairment charges on inventories (Note 15) FEMRERL(HF15) 28,984 19,670
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of RE(BE)/HERE
doubtful accounts (Note16) (M3t 16) (4,254) 9,285
Exchange losses/(qains) (Note 36) BB/ (W) (M3 36) 193,456 (219,397)
Interest expense (Note 39) MER% (F13E39) 3,991,498 3,557,220
Interest income (Note 35) WELONGEEERY (310,854) (279,427)
Fair value changes on derivative financial instruments (Note 36)  TASBIANLREEEH
(P36 — 17,552
Share of results of associates f et 3 (136,448) (288,995)
Share of results of joint ventures ERAEMERE 104,558 44,968
Dividends received from available-for-sale investments (Note 35) BRIt ERERTHRE
(M5E35) (189,572) (78,778)
Net losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE KR REENER
(Note 36) 38 (fi1336) 363,925 447,066
Net gains on disposal of prepaid lease payments (Note 36) HERNHEERMIEFE
(PizE36) - (4,760)
Net gains on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) HERBLRNEFE
(MzE36) (143,965) (26,121)
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of other equity investments MELhERREARE/
(Note 36) (Mg )7 (st 36) 133,065 (203,556)
Changes in working capital: LEERRY
Increase in inventories FEEM 135,281 (1,005,845)
Increase in trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments  JEMRER « Eft BUGIER
B by (1,852,116) (1,117,764)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, other payables and THHEM A ENFIER
accruals e ERCRD) /&0 (840,489) 2447716
Increase in retirement and other long-term employee BARENESERRAEL
benefits obligations Em 52,962 21,878
Cash generated from operations RETHEENRE 21,379,778 27,518,121
* Total impairment provisions charged to the consolidated income * HE_Z—+tF+-A=+—RHLLF
statement for the year ended 31 December 2017 is HK$850,665,000 FEAA1?FWmi§?D|§$Eﬁ/WTE%7§1%%@§E
(2016: HK$1,282,288,000). 850,665,000 (=T — X F ¢

1,282,288,000787T) °
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43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continueD) 43 REREER @

(a) Cash generated from operations (Continued) (a) REFBEEMNBR T @)
In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale of FRERERTP  HEWE - K
property, plant and equipment comprise: B RBETERIERLRE
2017 2016
:g_ti 7 /\fﬁ
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FExT FHET
Net book amount (Note 6) AREDFE(M1EE6) 603,326 592,187
Net losses on disposal of property, plant HEWE « BELRERN
and equipment (Note 36) & 18558 (MisE36) (363,925) (447,066)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWX  BERREH
plant and equipment Fri8 18 239,401 145,121
In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale of EREREXRY HEBENHE
prepaid lease payments comprise: ERAMMGIIERTE -
2017 2016
:g‘_tfﬁ 7 /\fE'E
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Net book amount (Note 7) FREFEMHET) — 2,080
Net gains on disposal of prepaid lease ~ HEFENTHEE R
payments (Note 36) Wz FRE (P51 36) — 4,760
Proceeds from disposal of ngﬁf'ﬁﬂgﬁﬁﬁ i)

prepaid lease payaments PiECE e — 6,840



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continueD) 43 REREER @

(b) FEEHK
REZIPENFABLFEE

(b) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and

the movements in net debt for each of the periods EHETEHILT -
presented:
2017 2016
Net debt —E—+tHF —E—RF
FEE HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHT
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEFEY 5,381,686 4,347,022
Pledged and restricted bank deposits EHEARZEREIRT
F 890,182 1,092,114
Loan from an intermediate KE—HEFEZERA T
holding company BE R (800,000) —
Borrowings — repayable within one year BE-RN—FRNER (32,160,983)  (21,296,587)
Borrowings — repayable after one year BE-R—FKREE (68,761,886) (70,166,815)
Net debt FEE (95,451,001)  (86,024,266)
Cash and bank deposits e RIRITFR 6,271,868 5,439,136
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BERAE—BEMNE (27,577,108)  (25,342,075)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BEMRRE EBNE (74,145,761)  (66,121,327)
Net debt FEIE (95,451,001)  (86,024,266)
Liabilities from
Other assets financing activities Total
&R REREEHNER it
Pledged and  Loan from an
Cash and restricted intermediate  Borrow. due
cash bank holding within  Borrow. due
equivalents deposits company fyear  after 1year
RER  BERRX RE-EPE 8- 8- Total
BESEN RHUBAER BROANER R-FAEER N-FREE @3t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThER THR TRR TR TR
Net debt as at R-E-AE+=A
31 December 2016 ZT-ANFER 4,347,022 1,092,114 —  (21,296,587)  (70,166,815)  (86,024,266)
Cash flows RemE 610,066 (267,459) (800,102) 4807,669  (10,686,101) (6,335,927
Foreign exchange adjustments SHERR 424,598 65,527 102 (1277795)  (2,26,708)  (3,014,276)
Other non-cash movements Ehinsg - - —  (14,394,270) 14,317,738 (76,532)
Net debt as at R-E-tE+ZR
31 December 2017 ZT-BNFER 5,381,686 890,182 (800,000  (32,160,983)  (68,761,886)  (95,451,001)



&
3
B
&
[¢)
%
N
)

o
>
' \
3, ,Bgcb
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED @f%/ e 4 s o
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS K o cpont 2 - i
SHBRRMEE S
44 COMMITMENTS 44 R¥E
(i) Capital commitments (i) BEAREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the R EHRETHEHREEN
reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: BAREAEWNT :
2017 2016
“E—+F —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Contracted for but not provided BRI BT ER T BREREE
in the financial statements
— Capital expenditure in respect —RENE  BELRE
of the additions of property, BRENEARRX
plant and equipment 16,386,216 14,429,385
- Capital expenditure in respect —WERERE BREEEN
of the acquisition of BEARRAX
mining rights/exploration rights 5,522,276 5,160,510
- Capital expenditure in respect of the —EREEGBEN
acquisition of intangible assets BEARRAX 87,898 40,876
- Unpaid shareholder loans in respect of ~ —HIEEAELERTNKE
investment in a joint venture e (1)
(Note 11) 2,338,770 —
24,335,160 19,630,771
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GHUFRRMEE

44 COMMITMENTS (conTiNueD) 44

(i) Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The Group has various land and buildings, office
premises and other assets under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The lease terms of the
Group's agreements are between one to ten years.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

A

(i) HEELERE - FEREEA

AR BRE A A BEH L 2 O 1%
AREZRIHWEET  BRS
P A E - AE B HEHE
EFRR—Et+F-

AT L T R R
HENT@EMT :

No later than 1 year THBiE—F 50,411 42,210 37,351 108,365
Later than 1 year and BB —FETBBREF
no later than 5 years 70,564 173,119 57,722 165,958
Later than 5 years A 18,202 36,606 47,302 53,151
139,177 251,935 142,375 327,474
45 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 45 % EEm i

Audit services ZE AR
Non-audit services IERZEPRTE

11,025 10,328
1,031 544

12,056 10,872




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

The Group entered into two trademark licence
agreements dated 17 October 2003 with CRCL and
CRH, respectively, under which the Group was granted
irrevocable, royalty free and non-exclusive licences to
use certain trade marks and the rights to sub-license
the same to any member of the Group in consideration
of a nominal amount of HK$1 each.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive and non-
executive) and senior management. The compensation
paid or payable to key management for employee
services is shown below:
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46 BHRZ

(a)

AEER_ZTE=F1+A++tH
2Rl B M EEEEE L
IR IRRT Al o ek @ IRIL > ANE
BER RO - RENHKIE
BERFFAERSE THEE  ARH
AREBRERKE R AN RFFHE
RETEENEN RESRE
TEEE1IETT

TEEEAE W

FTEEBEABBRREEST(MITRIE
WIT)REREERE - SLEERS
BN EZEIE A 8 /R
NN

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FABT

Salaries and other short-term FehHMEEES RN
employee benefits 82,980 62,526
Post-employment benefits BEE 1212 A 595 921
83,575 63,447



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BHMBRRME
46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46 BREED A2 3 m)
(CONTINUED)
(¢) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the (o BREHTBHRREMBOEES
consolidated financial statements, the following AN RF AR T T N
transactions were carried out with related parties R

during the year:

2017 2016
—E-t& —TRF
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$°000 HK$'000
MEAREE MR X9 HH FHT  TER
Certain subsidiaries of CRH Fellow subsidiaries  Supply of direct power 138,597 239,367
EREENETMBELR EELn NS BEHE
Providing retail power agency 22,357 11,554
services
RETESNRBRE
Certain joint ventures of CR Joint ventures Providing retail power agency 3,672 1,233
Cement BEME services
ERKENETEERE RETESNRERE
Certain associates of CR Associates Supply of direct power 30,361 24,822
Cement BERE EEHES
ERKENETHERE
Guangzhou Runxin Energy Joint venture Sales of heat 41,081 2,366
Development Co.,Ltd. BEDE IHE G
BB RAEARAF Maintenance expenses 359 —
HEER
CR Taiyuan Associate Interest income 204,589 191,620
AREH BEhE MEHA
Sales of coal 13,242 2,367
HEK R
Sale of materials = 509
HEMR
Providing maintenance service 5 —
R ERT
Providing agency service fee 8,858 —
RERERBEE
Purchase of coal 12,360 —
BERK
Sale of coal mining capacity 177,732 —

HERIEFRERE
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46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46 EAEETS

(CONTINUED)

() In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the (o)
consolidated financial statements, the following AN
transactions were carried out with related parties R
during the year (Continued):

Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions
BEATER B# RELE

Certain subsidiaries of
CR Cement
EHKENETHBLOR

Orient
(Y]

Resources J

HRERER

Certain subsidiaries of China
Resources Land Ltd.

EHEMWARARNET
{op=ING|

Jiangsu Zhenjiang Power
Generator Co., Ltd.
IHEIEEFRAA

Fellow subsidiaries

EESI=ING]

Joint venture
REDLE

Joint venture

RELE

Fellow subsidiary

EESH-ING

Associate
HEME

Purchase of limestone powd

BEARAH

Providing agency service fee

RUREREE

Providing agency service fee

RERIEREE

Rental expense
HeEMR

Sales of electricity

HEEN

Sales of coal

HERR

Providing agency service fee
RUREREE

Purchase of fuel

BB

Interest expense paid (Note

ENFEER(HE28)

Providing maintenance service

PRt R

R 2 @)

T 6 A B B B
()

2017
—E—+&
HK$'000
TERT

er 99

325

325

23,137

158,155

51,024

28,209

712

28) 1,779

996

& Of s s b AR 0 % BR

#ITT T

2016
“T-REF
HK$'000
FHEL

881

325

325

23,542

12,754

26,285

5,773



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BHMBRRME
46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46 BREED A2 3 m)
(CONTINUED)
() In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the (0 BREFFBEHmEREMIBYEE
consolidated financial statements, the following AN RF AR T T N
transactions were carried out with related parties R (&)

during the year (Continued):

2017 2016
“E—tF ZT—RF
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$°000 HK$'000
RENFEHE BE REME THT TET
China Resources (Xuzhou) Associate Sales of coal 8,010 19,394
Electric Power Co., Ltd. B SHE R K
BMNEBRENBRAR Sales of electricity 144,534 243,813
HEEN
Providing agency service fee 23,055 21,050
REREREE
Interest expense paid (Note 28) 1,662 2,641
ERMEEA(HE28)
Providing maintenance service 20,341 17,441
R EERS
Sales of materials 40,312 —
HEWE
Nanjing Yanjiang Heating Associate Sales of heat 92,639 72,267
Power Co.,Ltd. e IHE B
ERmIA AR Service income 2,533 2,220
R
Rental income 165 —
G ON
CR Hezhou Joint venture Sales of materials 87,917 7,675
= aEhE HEMK
Providing maintenance service 15,417 43,787
R ERS
Service income 25,943 28,205
AR A
Purchase of power volume = 49,755
quota
BELELE
Interest expense paid (Note 29) 4,293 1,825
ERMEER(HEE29)
Sales of coal 128,614 —
HERRK
Purchase of fuel 268,159 —

BEMK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)
(c) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the (c)
consolidated financial statements, the following A

transactions were carried out with related parties

during the year (Continued):

Name of related company

HELAREH

Yangcheng Asia-america
Daning Railway Operation
Co., Ltd.

PG EREHREREE
YN

Shanxi Lanhua Daning
Electric Power Co., Ltd.

\IERTEAEREBRAT]

Chongging Energy (Guizhou)
Coal and Power Co., Ltd.
BRRER(EMNEEERLA

China Resources Energy
Service Co., Ltd.
EHERREERLT

China Resources Bank of
Zhuhai Company Limited
HEEBRTRNHAERAF

Shenzhen Vivavoce Fashion
Co., Ltd.
AT B AR A R A A

Relationship
B

Joint venture
BEDLE

Joint venture

RELE

Associate
BeEhE

Fellow subsidiary

BESH- NG

Fellow subsidiary

EES=PNG]

Fellow subsidiary

EESI=ING]
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Nature of transactions

XaME

Interest income (Note 11)

MEMAFEE11)

Interest income (Note 11)

MEMAFEE11)

Interest income (Note 10)

MEWA (FEE10)

Contract environment
management fee, contract
energy management fee and
exclusive operation fee

AAREEEER
ANRREEERR
SR ¥

Interest expense paid (Note 31)
ERMEBRAME3)
Interest income (Note 21)
FEMA(BE21)

Loans

& =h
B

Purchase of materials

BEMH

2017
—E—+&
HK$'000
TERT

1,602

1,011

50,241

695

1,107

1,216

& Of s s b AR 0 % BR
T 6 A B B B
x5 (&)

2016
“T-REF
HK$'000
FHEL

7,550

2,173

1,014

65,578

459
1,436

18,446

784

#ITT T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46 BREED A2 3 m)
(CONTINUED)
(¢) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the (o BREHTBHRREMBOBES
consolidated financial statements, the following AN RF N ST T N
transactions were carried out with related parties R (&)

during the year (Continued):

2017 2016
—2-tF —TRF
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$°000 HK$'000
BENRER B XAME TER THET
Tianjin Zhonghai CR Marine Joint venture Purchase of coal transportation 150,555 101,416
RAEFGE S BERE service
REBREXRRS
China Resources Joint venture Interest expense paid (Note 29) 4,292 19,902
Power (Jinzhou) Co., Ltd. BEE ERFEEA(HE29)
ZHEN(BEMN)BRAT Sales of materials — 61
HEMH
Providing maintenance service 512 —
REEERE
Management fee income 50 —
EEBRA
Providing agency service fee 23,378 —
REREREE
China Resources Joint venture Interest income (Note 11) 1,040 429
Power (Ningwu) Co., Ltd. BERE FIEMA (B3E11)
EREN(ER)ERAA Interest expense paid (Note 29) 53 —
ERNFSER(E29)
China Resources Leasing Co., Ltd. Fellow subsidiary Providing maintenance service 1,001 —
EEHERRAT EES=ING R4 IR
China Resources New Joint venture Interest expense paid (Note 29) 158 —
Energy (Lanxian) Co.,Ltd. BRME ENFEEE(HFE29)
ERHMER(EZ)BRAF Interest income (Note 11) 1,634 —
MEBHA(HIFE11)
CRH Intermediate holding Interest expense paid (Note 30) 520 —
EHEE company BERFEER(ME30)

PREERAT



&
3
B
&
[¢)
%
N
)

A
~N
? \b\‘b
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED S L o
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS hgs, T
ELLE eI eany Limied S

46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46 BREED A2 3 m)
(CONTINUED)
() In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the (0 BREHVBEREREMBOFES
consolidated financial statements, the following AN REF AR T T N
transactions were carried out with related parties R (&)

during the year (Continued):

2017 2016
ZE-tf T F
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$°000 HK$'000
BENRER B XAME TER THET
CR Power Northeast Power Joint venture Providing agency service fee 113 —
Engineering Co.,Ltd. RERE RUERIEREE
EHRLENTIRARLA Maintenance expense 129,950 145,780
HEER

Interest expense paid (Note 29) 541 540

ENMEER(ME29)
China Resources Wind Power Joint venture Interest expense paid (Note 29) 77 133

Jinzhou Yulong Co.,Ltd. RERE ERHEE A 29)
WMNIAER N EEERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities

The Group operates in an economic environment
currently predominated by entities directly or indirectly
owned or controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the Chinese government (“state-
controlled entities”). In addition, the Group itself
is part of a larger group of companies under CRCL,
ultimate holding company of the Company, which is
controlled by the Chinese State government. Apart
from the transactions with the parent company and its
subsidiaries which have been disclosed in other notes
to the consolidated financial statement, the Group also
conducts business with other state-controlled entities
during the ordinary course of its business.

The Group operates power plants in the PRC and sells
significant volumes of its electricity to the power grid
companies which are state-controlled entities in the
PRC. The Group also purchases/sells significant amounts
of coal from/to certain state-controlled entities.
Furthermore, the Group has certain borrowings and
deposits with certain banks which are state-controlled
entities in its ordinary course of business. The Group
has also entered into various transactions, including
other operating expenses with other state-controlled
entities which individually and collectively were
insignificant during the year.

46 RO RS @)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

47

48

CONTINGENCY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group and the third
parties provided certain guarantees amounting to
HK$3,849,912,000 (2016: HK$1,210,142,000) to its related
parties (Notes 10 and 11).

In addition, there were certain pending litigations and claims
against the Group as of 31 December 2017. After consulting
the legal counsels, the directors are of the view that the
likelihood of any material financial impact to the Group is
remote, therefore, no provisions have been made in light of
such litigations and claims.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the Group had no other significant subsequent event.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

49 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 49 AN OEBEBEBEXRREEE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY )
Balance sheet of the Company KAREEEEBR
2017 2016
—E—+tH§ —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets I RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RRE 214,968 201,357
Prepayment for non-current assets REFTE IR 32,251 33,776
Investments in subsidiaries AN ENGIE L Fa 28,180,533 26,503,768
Loans to subsidiaries ENENSISEN 14,464,894 12,575,944
Investments in associates KBS ERRER 2,347,414 2,280,453
Investments in joint ventures REETENER 1,270,108 1,270,108
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 184,910 184,910
46,695,078 43,050,316
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables, other receivables FEUBR TR~ H A IR
and prepayments PSENECE 94,216 89,818
Amounts due from associates JE UK BSE 2 1 5K 10,970 10,311
Amounts due from joint ventures fEW & &b EFIR — 26
Amounts due from other i U L b B8 38 2 B) FRE
related companies 22,285,924 20,770,209
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEEY 1,196,781 886,140
23,587,891 21,756,504
Total assets mEE 70,282,969 64,806,820



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

49 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continueD)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)
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As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
Note 2017 2016
Bt —EB—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners  AAQAFHEH AELER
of the Company
Share capital fi% < 22,341,736 22,257,732
Other reserves HAibREE Note (a)
FI5E (a) (412,689) (417,823)
Retained earnings REF)HE Note (a)
B3 (a) 21,107,720 14,726,187
Total equity g 43,036,767 36,566,096
LIABILITIES =i
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings BE 21,885,769 24,287,312
Current liabilities REaE
Trade payables, other payables FETBREN - H MBI FRIE
and accruals K EETE A 197,517 225,963
Amounts due to joint ventures et & & EFRIA 837 223
Amounts due to other BT E M BEE A B3R I8
related companies 1,817,428 934,742
Current income tax liabilities BEApTS TR AaE 10,553 20,806
Borrowings BE 3,334,098 2,771,678
5,360,433 3,953,412
Total liabilities HWEE 27,246,202 28,240,724
Total equity and liabilities BEZRERE 70,282,969 64,806,820

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 19 March 2018 and was signed on its
behalf.

Director

5%

Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

49 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continueD)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)
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Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company BI5E (a) AN Bl s
Retained Other
earnings reserve
REFE Hitf# e
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—XRE—HF—H 7,740,889 (460,126)
Profit for the year FRFE 11,161,272 —
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BEJR[N AR B1#HA AR S
(Note 42) (Mi3F42) (4,175,974) —
Cash flow hedges WEMmEE — 44,123
Transfer of share option reserve on ] 17 15 Fi PR e v 6 8¢
exercise of share options HERR — (1,820)
At 31 December 2016 R=-FB-—XR"F+=A=+—H 14,726,187 (417,823)
At 1 January 2017 R-—Z—+tH&—H—H 14,726,187 (417,823)
Profit for the year FARE 10,567,181 —
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BN ARGI#HE AKE
(Note 42) (M7E42) (4,185,648) —
Transfer of share option reserve on BEITT {50 8 i e T 5 4
exercise of share options AR HE - (50,050)
Vesting of shares under medium to R RHE NG E MBS T
long-term performance evaluation B 5B
incentive plan = 55,184
At 31 December 2017 R=ZZB—tF+=ZA=+—H 21,107,720 (412,689)



NOTESTO

THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

50 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP.622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP.622G))

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The

remuneration of each director and the chief

executive for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set

a3
\
o)
0”’@, ) '5‘{"
A N, ¥ >
°/°7ng 0! Report 2017 =8 @s{é‘@y
(@
OMpany Limited EEE

50 ESAHERES(REBA
SIRBISE 622 555 383 1RR
E - RA(ESABERR
BIMBIE 622G EHRE

(a) EERERITEMS

BE_T—t+tFt+_A=+—H
LFE SEERERFRATED

out below: BSEINT -
Salaries
and Pension  Share-based

Name Fees bonus costs compensation Total
e e HEREA BERK R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHLT  FHET AT FEL  FERL
Zhou Junging (i) MBI (i) — 5,472 — — 5,472
Ge Changxin ERA — 6,477 — — 6,477
Hu Min e — 5,331 78 — 5,409
Wang Xiao Bin F/M — 5,672 78 — 5,750
Ma Chiu-Cheung, Andrew  FHB#E 345 — — — 345
So Chak Kwong, Jack BOEN 345 — — — 345
Leung Oi-sie, Elsie DEF 345 — — — 345
Ch’ien Kuo Fung, Raymond $#3R% 300 — — — 300
Wang Yan (ii) T E (i) — — — — —
Chen Ying (i) PR (i) — — — — —
1,335 22,952 156 — 24,443

Ms. Zhou Junging served as an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Board of Directors. On 5 March 2018, Ms. Zhou Junging
resigned from her position and Mr. Li Ru Ge was appointed as a
Non-executive Director and the new Chairman of the Board of
Directors.

Included in the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, Mr. Chen
Ying and Mr. Wang Yan, also received emoluments from the related
companies.

(if)

FAERZtETETERTEFTRE
BT A\F=ZARRA AEDx
TEWTESREIFRBERE  MEX
BRAEEEAFNTEERERSHN
X -

BRIE SR EE AR E QAR
HeMBRELXHRENEEHER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YR ESE:

50 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 50 BERBRER(BREED
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED SHERBIEE 622 = 55 383 1658
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG T ANI(EBRFERR
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.622) B)BBIE622CERE) w0

AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURES OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G))

(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBRERHITEME @
(Continued)
During the year, no remuneration has been paid by FAN - AEETEMEFHASE
the Group to the directors or the five highest paid ERFMALTZNME - ERMN
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the AN 52 B B 3 0 A AN £ B 12 A B
Group or as a compensation for loss of office. 2 NERBERAME -
No directors have waived any remuneration during the FXN - TEEEWETMAMNE -
year.
The remuneration of each director and the chief HE_ZT-—RF+=-H=1+—H
executive for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set HtFE SEEREERTED
out below: BesymT -
Salaries
and Pension Share-based

Name Fees bonus costs  compensation Total
s e HFEREL BIAKAK Ehgrali i BEt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET FHET TET FHET

Zhou Junging (i) MBI (i) — 5,891 293 — 6,184
Zhang Shenwen (ii) SR X (i) — 3,944 65 — 4,009
Ge Changxin (iii) B (i) — 3,575 — — 3,575
Hu Min (iv) HAE (iv) — 1,456 52 — 1,508
Wang Xiao Bin F/M — 3,872 78 — 3,950
Ma Chiu-Cheung, Andrew  FHB#E 345 — — — 345
So Chak Kwong, Jack EOEN 345 — — — 345
Leung Oi-sie, Elsie DEF 345 — — — 345
Ch’ien Kuo Fung, Raymond X% 300 — — — 300
Chen Ying (v) B (v) — — — — —
Wang Yan (v) TEW) — — — — —
Du Wenmin (v,vi) FESCR (v, vi) — — — — —
Wei Bin (v,vii) B, (v, vii) — - - - —
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COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURES OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G))

(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

(i) Ms. Zhou Junging terminated her role as President of the Company
and continued to serve as Executive Director and Chairman of the
Board of Directors on 16 April 2016.

(ii) Mr. Zhang Shenwen resigned from his position as an Executive
Director on 24 October 2016.

(iii) Mr. Ge Changxin was appointed as an Executive Director on 16 April
2016.

(iv) Mr. Hu Min was appointed as an Executive Director and President of
the Company on 16 April 2016.

(v) Included in the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, Mr. Chen
Ying, Mr. Wang Yan, Mr. Du Wenmin and Mr. Wei Bin of the
Company also received emoluments from the related companies.

(vi) Mr. Du Wenmin resigned from his position as a Non-executive
Director on 16 April 2016.

(vii) ~ Mr. Wei Bin resigned from his position as a Non-executive Director
on 16 April 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no
remuneration has been paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

No directors have waived any remuneration during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

EEZNEEHITEME @

i)y FAEBZLIR-_ZT—R"FOA+TRAE
BEANARE  WHEETERS
HITEEREIRE -

(i)  FEAXFEER-Z—RFEFTA-+M
HERITEFHOBIRE -

(i BEFEER-_ZT—AFEA+H
BRERNITES -

(iv) WBEER_T-RNFMNA+RBEE
RERTRAMITESRMEH

(v AREWREEE  ETEEE - HX
Roe 4 KB 55 £ (RS A AR Y
HemelmE EXWENEEMER -

(vi) HXREFERZZT—ARFEA+H
BIERMITERNBBRE -

(viiy FELER —FT-RFMA+REAR
FHTESNBBGRE -

BE-T-~%+-A=1—H
L ARBERAEERE
LZRBHFMALZHBE - (FA
IPEN T LEVIPEY [T
B2 - Sh{E AREREO (S -

BE-T-~%+-A=1-8
LEE - DREERREAMNS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBHRRMEE

50 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURES OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G))

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2016: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors

As at 31 December 2017, there is no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company's business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2016: Nil).
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS
REESZTEN

SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE

The Company's shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Our stock code is 836.

FINANCIAL DIARY

Financial year end 31 December 2017

Announcement of final results 19 March 2018

Last day to register for final 20 June 2018
dividend

Book close 23 May 2018 to

28 May 2018

Payment of final dividend on or about 5 July 2018

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please contact
the Company’s Share Registrar:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
Telephone: (852) 2862 8628

Facsimile: (852) 2865 0990

For enquires from investors and securities analysts, please contact:

Investor Relations

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited

Room 2001-2002, 20th Floor, China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

General Line: (852) 2593 7530

IR hotline: (852) 2593 7550

Facsimile: (852) 2593 7531/2593 7551

E-mail: crp-ir@crc.com.hk

OUR WEBSITE

WWwWWw.Cr-power.com
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China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited

Rooms 2001-2002, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BERBFEEE265
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Telephone E5F : (852) 2593 7530
http://www.cr-power.com
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